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EXPECTED TIMETABLE'"

Application lists open® ... 11:45 a.m. on Thursday, July 6, 2006
Latest time to lodge white and yellow Application Forms . . 12:00 noon on Thursday, July 6, 2006

Latest time to give electronic application instructions

to HKSCC® . 12:00 noon on Thursday, July 6, 2006
Application listsclose. . . . ... .. .. .. .. .. 12:00 noon on Thursday, July 6, 2006
Price Determination Date™ . . . ... . ... ... ... Friday, July 7, 2006

Announcement of the Offer Price, indication of the level of
interest in the International Offering and application results
and basis of allocation of the Hong Kong Offer Shares
(with successful applicants’ identification document
numbers) to be published in the South China Morning Post

(in English) and the Hong Kong Economic Times (in Chinese) on. . .. .. Wednesday, July 12, 2006
Dispatch of refund checks on or before® . .. . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... Wednesday, July 12, 2006
Dispatch of Share certificates on or before®™ . . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... Wednesday, July 12, 2006
Dealings in Shares on the Stock Exchange expected to commence on. . .. .. Thursday, July 13, 2006
Notes:

(1) All times refer to Hong Kong local time except as otherwise indicated. The “Structure of the Global Offering” section in this
prospectus contains details, including conditions, of the Global Offering.

(2) If there is a “black” rainstorm warning or a tropical cyclone warning signal number 8 or above in force in Hong Kong at any
time between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon on Thursday, July 6, 2006, the application lists will not open on that day. You
may find further information in the paragraph entitled “Effect of bad weather on the opening of the application lists” in
the section entitled “How to Apply for Hong Kong Offer Shares” in this prospectus.

(3) If you are applying by way of electronic application to HKSCC, you should read the section entitled “How to Apply for
Hong Kong Offer Shares — How to apply electronically to HKSCC via CCASS” in this prospectus.

(4)  This is the expected Price Determination Date, which in any event will not be later than Monday, July 10, 2006. If, for any
reason, the Offer Price is not agreed by Monday, July 10, 2006, the Global Offering, including the Hong Kong Public
Offering, will not proceed.

(5)  We will issue refund checks to you if your application is wholly or partially unsuccessful or if the Offer Price is less than the
price per Offer Share payable on application. We will dispatch Share certificates and refund checks by ordinary post to you
at your own risk to the address you specified in your Application Form unless you have elected for personal collection. If
you have applied for 1,000,000 Hong Kong Offer Shares or more and you have indicated in your Application Form that you
wish to collect refund checks and/or Share certificates personally, you may collect refund checks and/or Share certificates
from our branch registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Wednesday, July 12,
2006 or on any other date we announce in the newspapers as the date of dispatch of Share certificates/refund checks. If
you are an individual applicant and you have elected for personal collection, you may not authorize any other person to
collect on your behalf. If you are a corporate applicant and you have elected for personal collection, you must attend by
your authorized representative with your letter of authorization stamped with your corporate chop. Both individuals and
authorized representatives must produce, at the time of collection, evidence of identity acceptable to our branch registrar.
If you fail to collect within the time specified for collection, we will dispatch uncollected Share certificates and refund
checks by ordinary post at your own risk to the address specified in the relevant Application Forms. You may find additional
information in the section entitled “How to Apply for Hong Kong Offer Shares” in this prospectus.
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Part of your Hong Kong Identity Card number or your passport number, or, if you are joint applicants,
part of the Hong Kong Identity Card number/passport number of the first-named applicant, provided
by you may be printed on your refund check, if any. Such data will also be transferred to a third party
for refund purpose. Your banker may require verification of your Hong Kong Identity Card number or
your passport number before encashment of your refund check. Inaccurate completion of your Hong
Kong Identity Card number or your passport number may lead to delay in encashment of or may
invalidate your refund check.

Our Share certificates will become valid certificates of title only if the Hong Kong Public
Offering has become unconditional and neither of the Underwriting Agreements has been
terminated in accordance with its terms, which is expected to be at around 8:00 a.m. on
Thursday, July 13, 2006.
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SUMMARY

This summary aims to give you an overview of the information contained in this prospectus. Because
this is a summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to you. You should
read the whole prospectus before you decide to invest in our Shares. There are risks associated with
any investment. We have described some of the particular risks in investing in our Shares in the
section entitled “Risk Factors.” You should read that section carefully before you decide to invest in
our Shares.

OVERVIEW

We are one of the leading residential property developers in China. We were ranked No. 1 among all
property developers in Zhejiang Province by Zhejiang Provincial Real Estate Association in 2005 in terms
of overall corporate strength measured by a combination of factors, including sales, profits, total
assets, total development projects commenced or under development, taxes paid, charitable donations
made, awards received, brand recognition and overall management in 2004. In 2004 and 2005, our
“Greentown” brand was ranked one of the 10 most valuable property brands in China by the Top 10
China Real Estate Research Group, an organization constituted by Enterprise Research Institute of the
Development Research Center of the State Council, Qinghua University Real Estate Research Center
and Soufun China Index Institute. We were established in January 1995 in Hangzhou, the capital city of
Zhejiang Province. While we have historically focused our property development operations in
Hangzhou and other cities within Zhejiang Province, we have over the years become a national player in
the residential property markets with significant operations in Shanghai, Beijing and other strategically
selected cities across the country, including Hefei in Anhui Province, Changsha in Hunan Province and
Urumgi in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region.

We primarily develop quality residential properties targeting middle to higher income residents in
China. Our residential developments aim to provide residents with a comfortable and convenient
community life. We have three main product series:

e villas, which are typically independent houses with one or two storeys;
° low-rise apartment buildings, which are typically three to five storeys; and
° high-rise apartment buildings, which are typically higher than six storeys.

Many of our residential developments are integrated residential complexes, which typically have a total
site area over 150,000 square meters and offer a combination of different product series with such
ancillary facilities as club houses, kindergartens and grocery stores. In addition to residential properties,
we are developing or planning to develop office and hotel properties in Shanghai, Ningbo, Zhoushan
and Hangzhou. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we completed 28 property projects or project phases
with an aggregate site area of approximately 2.1 million square meters and a total GFA of
approximately 2.0 million square meters. Among these 28 projects or project phases, 11 projects or
project phases had been fully sold as of March 31, 2006 and are not included in the Property Valuation
report in Appendix IV to this prospectus.

We are currently developing or planning to develop 83 property projects or project phases with an
aggregate site area of approximately 8.1 million square meters and an estimated total GFA of
approximately 8.6 million square meters, including approximately 5.2 million square meters of site area
and approximately 5.5 million square meters of total GFA attributable to us. Among these on-going or
planned projects or project phases,

° 24 are located in Hangzhou with a total GFA of approximately 3.4 million square meters,
° 27 are located in other cities in Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of approximately 2.6 million
square meters,
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10 are located in Shanghai with a total GFA of approximately 786,000 square meters,
seven are located in Beijing with a total GFA of approximately 528,000 square meters, and

° 15 are located in Hefei, Changsha and Urumgi with a total GFA of approximately 1.3 million
square meters.

Among the 83 on-going or planned projects or project phases as of the date of this prospectus, we
have not obtained land use rights certificates with respect to approximately 384,000 square meters of
site area for eight of our projects or project phases. We are in the process of completing all necessary
procedures, including the payment of land premiums and demolishment and resettlement costs, with a
view to eventually securing all the land use rights certificates. We expect to complete these 83 projects
or project phases within the next five years. No commercial value has been assigned to the land in
respect of which we have not obtained the land use rights certificates in the Property Valuation report
in Appendix IV to this prospectus.

Unless otherwise specified, area information contained in this prospectus, whether in terms of GFA or
site area, includes all projects in which we have an equity interest. We currently have seven minority-
owned companies which own 27 property projects or project phases with an aggregate site area of
approximately 2.1 million square meters and an estimated total GFA of approximately 3.3 million
square meters.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we possess the following principal strengths enabling us to compete in the residential
property markets in China:

e we are one of the leading national players in the residential property markets in China with high
brand recognition in Zhejiang Province and considerable brand awareness nationwide;

e we offer quality products to our customers through emphasis on planning and design and strict
quality control,

e we have sufficient land reserves in strategic locations to support our growth in the next five years;
we have an experienced senior management team supported by a well-trained workforce;
we have an in-depth understanding of market conditions and consumer preferences for private
residential properties in our target markets across China; and

e we have a centralized marketing and sales force to promote our products to our target markets
and to manage our customer relationships.

You can find more detailed discussions of these competitive strengths in the section entitled “Business
— Our Competitive Strengths” in this prospectus.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES
Our principal business strategies are:

° to maintain our leadership in Zhejiang Province and to further expand in Shanghai, Beijing and
other strategically selected cities across China;
to continue to leverage our brand name and increase our brand value;
to continue to emphasize on project planning and design and to improve the quality and appeal
of our products; and

° to adhere to prudent financial management to ensure sustainable growth and capital sufficiency.

You can find more detailed discussions of our principal strategies in the section entitled “Business —
Our Business Strategies” in this prospectus.



SUMMARY

TRADING RECORD

The total GFA of properties we delivered for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were
167,073 square meters, 429,881 square meters and 448,877 square meters, respectively. For the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, our revenues were Rmb 1,224.4 million, Rmb 2,739.1
million and Rmb 2,535.1 million, respectively; profits attributable to our equity holders were Rmb 77.2
million, Rmb 454.4 million and Rmb 622.7 million, respectively.

The following tables summarize our consolidated financial information for the three years ended, and
as of, December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005. We extracted this summary financial information from the
Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to this prospectus and you should read the entire audited financial
statements, including the notes to the financial statements, included in Appendix | for more details.

Consolidated income statements

Year ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
(Rmb in millions, except per share data)

Continuing operations

Revenue. . . . ... ... 1,224.4 2,739.1 2,535.1
Costof sales. . .. ... ... .. (860.4) (1,856.9) (1,639.6)
Gross profit .. ... . 364.0 882.2 895.5
Other operatingincome . . . ... ... ... . . ... ... 65.0 64.1 84.0
Selling and administrative expenses . . . . ............... (176.2) (213.8) (274.0)
Profit from operations . ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... ... 252.8 732.5 705.5
Finance costs . . . . . . (53.8) (36.8) (70.8)
Net gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries . .. ........... — 1.0 —
Net gain on disposal of an associate . .. ............... — — 0.6
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries . . .. ............ ... — — 45.0
Share of results of associates. . . ... ....... . ... ... .... (6.8) (43.0) 31.3
Profit before taxation. . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 192.2 653.7 711.6
Taxation. . ... ... (106.9) (202.0) (125.1)
Profit for the year from continuing operations. . . ... ... ... 85.3 451.7 586.5
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations . ... .. (15.9) (5.9) 0.3
Profit fortheyear. . . ... .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... 69.4 445.8 586.8
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company . . . .. ............... 77.2 454 .4 622.7
Minority interests. . . . .. ... ... (7.8) (8.6) (35.9)
69.4 445.8 586.8
Dividends . . . .. ... ... ... — 77.1 198.4

Earnings per Share
From continuing and discontinued operations:

Basic! . . . Rmb 0.08 Rmb 0.45 Rmb 0.62
From continuing operations:

Basic® . . . Rmb 0.09 Rmb 0.46 Rmb 0.62
Notes:

(1) The calculation of the basic earnings per Share from continuing and discontinued operations is based on profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of our company and a weighted average number of Shares of 1,000,000,000 which has been
adjusted to reflect the Capitalization Issue on June 21, 2006. The number of Shares in issue prior to the Capitalization Issue
was 1,000.

(2) The calculation of the basic earnings per Share from continuing operations is based on profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of our company before profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations and a weighted average
number of Shares of 1,000,000,000 which has been adjusted to reflect the Capitalization Issue on June 21, 2006. The
number of Shares in issue prior to the Capitalization Issue was 1,000.
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Consolidated balance sheets

December 31,

2003 2004 2005
(Rmb in millions)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. 168.9 177.2 2441
Intangible asset. . . ... .. ... .. 0.8 0.6 0.3
Interests in associates. . . . ... ... ... ... L. 96.3 126.7 479.3
Available-for-sale investments . . . ... ... ... ... ...... 25.0 25.0 1.0
Rental paid inadvance. . ... ..................... 8.3 14.9 14.2
Deferred tax assets . . ... ..... ... ... ... .. ....... 79.1 57.9 741
378.4 402.3 813.0
Current assets
Properties for development. . ... ...... ... ... ...... 1,237.2 1,168.4 2,506.1
Properties under development. . . ... ... ... ....... 2,832.0 3,809.0 5,654.3
Completed properties forsale . .. .................. 99.0 239.3 699.2
Inventories . . . . ... ... 1.3 2.0 12.4
Available-for-sale investments . . ... ... ... ... ...... 0.3 — —
Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments . . . 663.2 430.9 383.9
Amounts due from related parties . . .. ........ ... ... 1,338.0 2,358.5 1,081.0
Income taxes recoverable . .. ... ... ... .. .. ... ... 36.9 65.1 60.1
Other taxes recoverable . ... ....... ... ... ........ 135.2 185.6 235.6
Pledged bank deposits . . . ... ... . L 44.4 196.4 276.7
Bank balancesand cash . . ...... ... ... ... ... ..... 861.1 1,081.9 859.4
7,248.6 9,537.1 11,768.7
Assets classified as held forsale. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — 451.4 —
7,248.6 9,988.5 11,768.7
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables . . . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 633.7 894.5 1,000.3
Pre-sale deposits . . .. ... ... ... 2,991.1 3,985.5 4,824.0
Amounts due to related parties . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 391.0 666.4 652.1
Dividend payable. . . ....... ... ... .. . ... .. ... ... — 29.1 1.4
Income taxes payable. . .. ... ... ... L. 135.0 206.6 57.9
Other taxes payable. . . .. ... ... ... .. ... . ... ..... 29.5 116.0 175.5
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year . . .. .. 1,736.7 2,351.2 2,510.8
5,917.0 8,249.3 9,222.0
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for
sale .. — 123.6 —
5,917.0 8,372.9 9,222.0
Net currentassets. . . . ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. ...... 1,331.6 1,615.6 2,546.7
Total assets less current liabilities . . . . ... ..... ... ... 1,710.0 2,017.9 3,359.7
Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year . . ... .. 1,399.6 1,301.4 2,368.5
Deferred tax liabilities. . . ... ... ... .. ... ... .. .... 24.1 35.3 128.1
1,423.7 1,336.7 2,496.6
286.3 681.2 863.1
Capital and reserves
Paid-in capital . . . ... ... .. ... 250.2 210.5 —
ReServes. . . . . . (129.9) 336.7 665.9
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company . . . .. 120.3 547.2 665.9
Minority interest . . ... ... . 166.0 134.0 197.2
286.3 681.2 863.1
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PROFIT FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2006

We have prepared the following profit forecast for 2006 on the bases and assumptions as described in
Appendix Il to this prospectus. You should read these bases and assumptions in Appendix Il when you
analyze our profit forecast for 2006.

Forecasted profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of our company” . ... ... . ... ... ... Rmb 1,471 million (HK$1,423 million)
Forecasted earnings per Share on a pro forma fully diluted basis™® .. .. ... Rmb 1.13 (HK$1.10)
Forecasted earnings per Share on a weighted average basis"® . . ... ... .. Rmb 1.29 (HK$1.25)
Notes:

(1) We prepared our profit forecast after accounting adjustment for the net change in the fair value of the options and
conversion feature that are embedded in our Convertible Bonds.

(2)  We calculated our forecasted earnings per Share on a fully diluted basis based on our forecasted profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of our company for the year ending December 31, 2006 with the assumption that we had
been listed on the Stock Exchange since January 1, 2006 and that a total of 1,298,701,500 Shares, including our Shares
issued pursuant to the Global Offering and the Sale Shares, were in issue during the entire year of 2006. This calculation
also assumes no exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

(3)  We calculated our forecasted earnings per Share on a weighted average basis based on our forecasted profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of our company for the year ending December 31, 2006 with the assumption that a weighted
average number of 1,141,576,327 Shares were in issue during the entire year. This calculation also assumes no exercise of
the Over-allotment Option.

OFFER STATISTICS

We have prepared the following offer statistics on the basis of hypothetical Offer Prices without taking
into account the 1% brokerage fee, 0.005% SFC transaction levy and 0.005% Stock Exchange trading
fee. We have also assumed no exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

Based on Offer Based on Offer

Price per Share of Price per Share of

HK$6.57 HK$9.86

Market capitalization of our Shares™ . .. ... ... .. ... .. HK$8,532 million HK$12,805 million
Prospective price/earnings multiple

on a pro forma fully diluted basis® . . .. ... ... ... ... 6.0 times 9.0 times

on a weighted average basis® .. ... ... ... .. ... ... 5.2 times 7.9 times

Adjusted net tangible asset value per Share® . . ... ... ... Rmb 2.00 (HK$1.93) Rmb 2.76 (HK$2.67)

Notes:

(1) We calculated our market capitalization on the basis of 1,298,701,500 Shares expected to be in issue following the
completion of the Global Offering assuming the Over-allotment Option is not exercised.

(2)  We calculated our prospective price/earnings multiple on a pro forma fully diluted basis in accordance with our forecasted
earnings per Share on a pro forma fully diluted basis at the respective hypothetical Offer Prices of HK$6.57 and HK$9.86,
respectively.

(3)  We calculated our prospective price/earnings multiple on a weighted average basis in accordance with our forecasted
earnings per Share on a weighted average basis at the respective hypothetical Offer Prices of HK$6.57 and HK$9.86,
respectively.

(4)  We calculated the adjusted net tangible asset value per Share on the basis of 1,298,701,500 Shares expected to be in issue
following the completion of the Global Offering and hypothetical Offer Prices per Share of HK$6.57 and HK$9.86,
respectively.

DTZ valued our properties as of March 31, 2006 and you may find their valuation certificates for our
properties in Appendix IV to this prospectus.
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DIVIDENDS

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, we declared and paid final dividends of nil,
Rmb 77.1 million and Rmb 198.4 million, respectively, to our shareholders. On March 19, 2006, we
declared a special dividend in the aggregate amount of US$50 million on the basis of our net profit for
the year ended December 31, 2005 to our shareholders whose names appeared on our register of
members on the record date of January 1, 2006. The special dividend was paid out of our internal
resources to Delta House in the amount of US$27.0 million, to Profitwise in the amount of US$19.5
million and to Wisearn in the amount of US$3.5 million, respectively, in March and April of 2006.
Proceeds of such special dividend were used by Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn to settle a portion
of the amounts due from our Original Shareholders and their affiliates to us as of December 31, 2005.

For the year ending December 31, 2006, our Board of Directors currently intends to recommend a final
dividend of approximately Rmb 500 million (approximately Rmb 0.385 per Share), based on our issued
share capital following completion of the Global Offering, assuming the Over-allotment Option is not
exercised and our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds are not converted into our Shares. If the Over-
allotment Option is exercised and/or our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds are converted into our
Shares, the per Share amount of such final dividend to be paid will decrease accordingly. Such final
dividend is subject to the approval of our shareholders and, if approved, is currently expected to be paid
in mid 2007.

Our Board of Directors may declare dividends in the future after taking into account our operations,
earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and availability and other factors as it may deem
relevant at such time. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will be subject
to our constitutional documents and the Cayman Companies Law, including the approval of our
shareholders. Our future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect our historical declarations of
dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of our Board of Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the Global Offering accruing to us (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by us in relation to the Global Offering, assuming the
Over-allotment Option is not exercised) are estimated to be approximately HK$1,869 million, assuming
an Offer Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$2,820 million, assuming an Offer Price of
HK$9.86 per Share (or if the Over-allotment Option is exercised in full, approximately HK$2,178
million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$3,285 million, assuming
an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share).

We plan to use our net proceeds from the Global Offering as follows:

approximately Rmb 572 million to redeem all our mandatory Convertible Bonds;

approximately Rmb 975 million to finance the development costs for some properties under

development, specifically:

(1) approximately Rmb 350 million to finance the development of Beijing Qinglonggiao Phase |
and Phase ll, which is expected to complete in September 2007 and December 2007,
respectively;

(2) approximately Rmb 140 million to finance the development of Greentown Lanting Phase IlI,
which is expected to complete in December 2008;

(3) approximately Rmb 115 million to finance the development of Tachuayuan South Phase I,
which is expected to complete in December 2009;

(4) approximately Rmb 110 million to finance the development of Haining Baihe High-rise Phase
I, which is expected to complete in June 2010;
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(5) approximately Rmb 100 million to finance the development of Jiahe Jiubao Project Phase |,
which is expected to complete in May 2010;
(6) approximately Rmb 60 million to finance the development of Hefei Baihe Apartments Phase
I, which is expected to complete in May 2008; and
(7) approximately Rmb 100 million to finance the development of our other existing property
developments;
° approximately Rmb 385 million to Rmb 870 million to acquire new land for development; and
° the remaining balance, if any, to repay certain outstanding loans and/or for general corporate
purposes, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share, specifically,
(1) loans of an aggregate principal amount of approximately Rmb 331 million, with annual
interest rates ranging from 5.02% to 12.00% and maturity dates between August 2006 and
December 2006, that we borrowed to finance the development of Deep Blue Plaza, Jingui
Plaza, Taohuayuan South, Beijing Baihe Apartments, Shangyu Guihua Garden, Zhoushan
Guihua City; and
(2) loans of an aggregate principal amount of approximately Rmb 150 million, with annual
interest rates ranging from 5.58% to 10.80% and maturity dates between September 2006
and December 2006, that we borrowed for working capital and general corporate purposes
and accrued interest of approximately Rmb 17 million on our Convertible Bonds.

Among the projects or project phases mentioned above, Tachuayuan South is a villa project, in respect
of which we have obtained the land use rights certificate.

We intend to use our additional net proceeds of approximately HK$310 million, assuming an Offer
Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$465 million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per
Share, that we estimate we will receive from subscription for additional Shares in the event the Over-
allotment Option is exercised in full, to acquire new land for development.

Our acquisitions of new land for development mentioned above may include, but are not limited to,
those described in the section entitled “Business — Other Land Acquisition Contractual Arrangements”
after the signing of the relevant land use rights grant contracts. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we
did not have concrete plans or a timetable for such acquisitions.

Pending the use of our proceeds as disclosed in this prospectus, we will hold such funds on short-term
deposit with licensed banks and/or authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong as we consider to be
in our interest and in the interest of our shareholders taken as a whole.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Sale Shares by any Selling Shareholder. The net
proceeds of the Global Offering accruing to the Selling Shareholders (after deduction of underwriting
fees and commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Selling Shareholders in relation to the
Global Offering) are estimated to be approximately HK$165 million, assuming an Offer Price of
HK$6.57 per Share, or HK$247 million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share.

RISK FACTORS

There are risks and uncertainties relating to our business, the PRC real estate industry, China in general
and the Global Offering. We have described major risks and uncertainties under the section entitled
“Risk Factors” in this prospectus. The following is a summary of these risks and uncertainties:

Risks relating to our business

e We are heavily dependent on the performance of the residential property markets in China,
particularly in Zhejiang Province;
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We maintain a substantial level of indebtedness and a deterioration of our cash flow position
could materially adversely affect our ability to service our indebtedness and to continue our
operations;

We may not have adequate financing to fund our land acquisitions and property developments;
Our financing costs are subject to changes in interest rates;

We may not always be able to obtain land reserves that are suitable for development;

The relevant PRC tax authorities may challenge the basis on which we calculate our LAT
obligations;

We guarantee mortgage loans of our customers and may become liable to mortgagee banks if
customers default on their mortgage loans;

We do not have insurance to cover potential losses and claims;

Our business will be adversely affected if we fail to obtain, or experience material delays in
obtaining, necessary government approvals for any major property development;

We may not be able to complete our development projects on time or at all;

Our failure to meet all requirements for the issuance of property ownership certificates may lead
to compensatory liability to our customers;

If we cannot continue to obtain qualification certificates, our business may be adversely affected;
Our controlling shareholders may take actions that conflict with the best interests of our other
shareholders;

If our partners act in contradiction to our interests, our business may be adversely affected;
The appraisal value of our properties may be different from the actual realizable value and is
subject to change;

We are reliant on third party contractors;

We may forfeit land to the PRC government if we fail to comply with the terms of the land use
rights grant contracts;

We may not be able to obtain land use rights certificates with respect to certain parcels of land in
which we currently have various interests;

We bear demolishment and resettlement costs associated with some of our property
developments and such costs may increase;

We may not continue to enjoy income tax benefits;

If any key management members leave, we may be unable to find suitable substitutes;

We are a holding company that heavily relies on dividend payments from our subsidiaries and
associated companies for funding;

A third party’s inappropriate use of the trademarks and service marks “# %" (Greentown) and
"% = " (Greentown Real Estate) may damage our reputation and negatively affect our results
of operations and financial condition;

Our operations are subject to seasonal variations;

Our dividend distributions to our existing shareholders prior to the completion of the Global
Offering should not be treated as indicative of our future dividend policy;

Risks relating to the residential property industry in China

The PRC government may adopt further measures to slow down growth in the property sector;
Changes of laws and regulations with respect to pre-sale may adversely affect our cash flow
position and performance;

We are exposed to pre-sale related contractual and legal risks;

Our sales and pre-sales will be affected if mortgage financing becomes more costly or otherwise
becomes less attractive;

Intensified competition might adversely affect our business and our financial position;
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Risks relating to China

° PRC economic, political and social conditions as well as government policies can affect our
business;

e Changes in foreign exchange regulations may adversely affect our results of operations;

° Fluctuations in the value of Renminbi will affect the value of, and dividends payable on, our
Shares in foreign currency terms and affect the amount of our foreign debt service in Renminbi
terms;

Interpretation of PRC laws and regulations involves uncertainty;
The national and regional economies in China and our prospects may be adversely affected by a
recurrence of SARS or an outbreak of other epidemics, such as avian fly;

Risks relating to our Global Offering

e  There has been no prior public market for our Shares and their liquidity and market price may be
volatile;

° You will experience immediate dilution and may experience further dilution if we issue additional
Shares in the future;

Forward-looking information may prove inaccurate;
We cannot guarantee the accuracy of facts, forecasts and other statistics with respect to China,
the PRC economy and the PRC real estate industry contained in this prospectus;

° Sale, or perceived sale, of substantial amounts of our Shares in the public market could materially
and adversely affect the prevailing market price of our Shares;

° You may face difficulties in protecting your interests because we are incorporated under Cayman
Islands law, which law may provide less protection to minority shareholders than the laws of Hong
Kong and other jurisdictions;

° It may be difficult to effect service of process upon us or our Directors or executive officers who
reside in mainland China or to enforce against them in mainland China any judgments obtained
from non-PRC courts; and

° You should read the entire prospectus carefully and we strongly caution you not to place any
reliance on any information contained in press articles or other media, some of which may not be
consistent with information contained in this prospectus.

In May 2006, the PRC government implemented a series of measures, including, among others, land
supply, bank financing and mortgage financing measures, to curb fast increases in property prices, to
encourage the development of middle- to low-end housing and to promote healthy development of
the PRC property industry. Among these measures, the PRC government ordered the local governments
to suspend the supply of land for new villa projects. Although our Directors believe it is unlikely that
such measure will affect our existing villa projects, it will limit our product variety in our future
developments and thus may adversely affect our business and results of operations. For detailed
descriptions about these new measures, please see “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to our Business —
We may not always be able to obtain land reserves that are suitable for development,” “— We may not
have adequate financing to fund our land acquisitions and property developments,” “— Our business
will be adversely affected if we fail to obtain, or experience material delays in obtaining, necessary
government approvals for any major property development,” “— Risks Relating to the Residential
Property Industry in China — The PRC government may adopt further measures to slow down growth
in the property sector,” “Industry Overview — China’s Economy” and “Appendix VI — Summary of PRC
Laws Relating to the Property Sector-Measures on Stabilizing Housing Price.”



DEFINITIONS

In this prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the

following meanings.

" affiliate”

“Application Form(s)”

“associated company”

“associates”

“"Board of Directors” or
“Board”

“Capitalization Issue”

“Cayman Companies Law”

“CBRC”

“CCASS”

“CCASS Broker
Participant”

“CCASS Custodian
Participant”

“CCASS Investor
Participant”

"CCASS Participant”

“China” or "PRC"

“Companies Ordinance”

person or entity directly or indirectly controlled by, or under the direct or
indirect common control of, one person or entity

white application form(s) and yellow application form(s) or, where the
context so requires, either of them

has the meaning ascribed to it under IAS 28 “Investments in associates,”
that is, an enterprise in which an investor has a significant influence and
which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture (as defined in IAS 31
“Interests in joint ventures”) of the investor

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

our board of Directors

the issue of Shares made on June 21, 2006 upon the capitalization of
certain sums standing to the credit of our profit and loss account as
further described in “Statutory and General Information — Further
Information About Our Company — Changes in share capital” in

Appendix VIII to this prospectus

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands

rh B 4R 4T 2 B2 45 B 2 B & (China Banking Regulatory Commission)

the Central Clearing and Settlement System established and operated by
HKSCC

a person admitted to participate in CCASS as a broker participant
a person admitted to participate in CCASS as a custodian participant
a person admitted to participate in CCASS as an investor participant who

may be an individual or joint individuals or a corporation

a CCASS Broker Participant, a CCASS Custodian Participant or a CCASS
Investor Participant

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the context requires,
geographical references in this prospectus to China or the PRC exclude

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
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DEFINITIONS

“controlling shareholder”

“Convertible Bonds”

"Deed of Indemnity”

“"Deed of Non-

competition”

“Delta House"

“Director(s)"”

"DTZ”

“Far East Miles”

IIGDPII
"GFA"
"Global Offering”

“Greentown Holdings
Group”

“Greentown Real Estate”

“Hangzhou Jiuxi”

"HK$" or “H.K. dollars”
"HKSCC”

“HKSCC Nominees”

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, and
“controlling interest” will be construed accordingly

our US$130 million aggregate principal amount of secured convertible
bonds due 2011 issued on January 10, 2006

a deed of indemnity, dated June 22, 2006, given by our Original
Shareholders in favor of us

a deed of non-competition, dated June 22, 2006, given by our Original
Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group in favor of us

Delta House Limited, a British Virgin Islands international company with
limited liability and wholly owned by Song Weiping, chairman of our
Board

our director(s)

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, professional surveyors and property
valuers

Far East Miles Limited (F i 7 5 B F2 4 BR 4\ /), @ company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability on March 16, 1993 and owned by
independent investors not connected with us

gross domestic product

gross floor area

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering

S P R A FR A 7 (Greentown Holdings Group Limited), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise (4} & > 2) incorporated in China on

December 6, 2001, an affiliate owned by the Original Shareholders and
not a constituent of our company

449 Hh A 4 B 4 FR 2 | (Greentown Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.), our
wholly owned subsidiary in China registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise (4p g1 & 4 2) with limited liability under the PRC law on
January 6, 1995

oM JUIE BB kA PR | (Hangzhou Jiuxi Property Services Co., Ltd.), a
sino-foreign equity joint venture (44 % i>3%) with limited liability
established under the laws of China on July 19, 1996 in Hangzhou and
owned as to 95% by Richwise and as to 5% by Greentown Real Estate
Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

HKSCC Nominees Limited
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“Hong Kong”

“Hong Kong Offer Shares”

“Hong Kong Public

Offering”

“Hong Kong Underwriters”

“Hong Kong Underwriting
Agreement”

“[FRS”

“International Offer
Shares”

“International Offering”

“International
Underwriters”

“International
Underwriting
Agreement”

“Joint Global
Coordinators”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China

the 32,468,000 newly issued Shares offered by us for subscription in the
Hong Kong Public Offering

our offering of Hong Kong Offer Shares for subscription by the public in
Hong Kong (subject to adjustment as described in the section entitled
“Structure of the Global Offering”) for cash at the Offer Price and on and
subject to the terms and conditions described in this prospectus and the
Application Forms

the underwriters of the Hong Kong Public Offering listed in the section
entitled “Underwriting — Hong Kong Underwriters”

the Hong Kong underwriting agreement dated June 29, 2006 relating to
the Hong Kong Public Offering entered into among us, the Joint Global
Coordinators and the Hong Kong Underwriters

International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), and the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC)

the 292,207,500 Shares, consisting of 266,233,500 newly issued Shares
offered by us and 25,974,000 Sale Shares offered by the Selling
Shareholders pursuant to the International Offering, together with any
additional Shares offered pursuant to any exercise of the Over-allotment
Option

offering of International Offer Shares outside the United States pursuant
to Regulation S, including institutional and professional investors in Hong
Kong (other than retail investors in Hong Kong), and in the United States
to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A, as further described in the section
entitled “Structure of the Global Offering”

the underwriters of the International Offering led by the Joint Global
Coordinators and expected to enter into the International Underwriting
Agreement to underwrite the International Offering

the international underwriting agreement relating to the International
Offering, which is expected to be entered into among us, the Selling
Shareholders, the Joint Global Coordinators and the International
Underwriters on or around July 7, 2006

JPMorgan Securities and UBS
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“JPMorgan”

“JPMorgan Securities”

“land use rights certificate”

“LAT"

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Memorandum and
Articles of Association”

“Ministry of Construction”
“Ministry of Finance”

“Ministry of Land and
Resources”

“"MOFCOM”
“NDRC”

“NPC" or “National
People’s Congress”

J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited, licensed to conduct Type 1
regulated activity (dealing in securities), Type 4 regulated activity
(advising on securities), Type 6 regulated activity (advising on corporate
finance) and, Type 7 regulated activity (providing automated trading
services) under the SFO and a wholly owned subsidiary of JPMorgan
Chase & Co.

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd., incorporated under the laws of the United
Kingdom, a wholly owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co. and an
entity under the common ownership and control with the Sponsor

+ Hfifi F REzs (Land Use Rights Certificate), certificate issued by a local
real estate and land resources bureau with respect to the land use rights

4 Hb B (B (Land Appreciation Tax) as defined in
rpEE AR S -t ke (E B 476 (PRC Provisional Regulations on
Land Appreciation Tax) of 1994 and its implementation rules, as
described in Appendix V to this prospectus

June 23, 2006, being the latest practicable date for ascertaining certain
information in this prospectus prior to its publication

the date, expected to be on or about July 13, 2006, on which our Shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange and from which dealings in our Shares
are permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

the Macau Special Administrative Region of China

our memorandum of association and our articles of association,
conditionally approved and adopted on June 22, 2006 and to become
effective upon the Listing Date, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

rh g 4 3% %% (PRC Ministry of Construction)

B W B (PRC Ministry of Finance)

i + & yE 5 (PRC Ministry of Land and Resources)

b 8 76 7% 3% (PRC Ministry of Commerce)

g B KR R A M Z: Be (PRC National Development and Reform
Commission)
and its

2 ANRAFEARE (National

Committee)

People’s Congress Standing
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DEFINITIONS

"Offer Price”

"Offer Shares”

“QOriginal Shareholders”

“Over-allotment Option”

“PBOC"

“"PBOC Rate”

“PRC government”

“Price Determination Date”

"Profitwise”

“property ownership
certificate”

“Richwise”

“QIBs”

the final price per Offer Share in H.K. dollars (exclusive of brokerage, SFC
transaction levy and the Stock Exchange trading fee) at which Offer
Shares are to be subscribed for and issued/sold pursuant to the Hong
Kong Public Offering and the International Offering, to be determined as
further described in the section entitled “Structure of the Global Offering
— Determination of the Offer Price” in this prospectus

the Hong Kong Offer Shares and the International Offer Shares together,
where relevant, with any additional Shares issued pursuant to any
exercise of the Over-allotment Option

Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo, respectively

the option we will grant to the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the
International Underwriters, exercisable by the Joint Global Coordinators
on behalf of the International Underwriters pursuant to the International
Underwriting Agreement at any time from the day on which trading of
our Shares commences on the Stock Exchange until 30 days after the last
day for lodging of applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering, to
require us to allot and issue up to an aggregate of 48,701,000 additional
Shares representing approximately 15% of the initial Offer Shares, at the
Offer Price, to, among other things, cover over-allocations in the
International Offering, if any

g AR 4R 4T (People’s Bank of China), the central bank of China

the exchange rate for foreign exchange transactions published daily by
PBOC

the central government of China and its political subdivisions, including
provincial, municipal and other regional or local government bodies

the date, expected to be on or around July 7, 2006 but no later than July
10, 2006, on which the Offer Price is fixed for the purposes of the Global
Offering

Profitwise Limited, a British Virgin Islands international company with
limited liability and wholly owned by Shou Bainian, executive vice
chairman of our Board and chief executive officer of our company

= HE ez (Property Ownership and Land Use Rights Certificate),
certificate issued by a local real estate and land resources bureau with
respect to the land use rights and the ownership rights of the buildings
on such land

Richwise Holdings Limited, an investment holding company incorporated
under the laws of the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and

wholly owned by our company

“qualified institutional buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A
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“Regulation S”
“Relevant Period”

“Reorganization”

“Rmb"” or “Renminbi”
“Rule 144A"

“SAFE”

“Sale Shares”

“Selling Shareholders”
"SFC"

“SFO”

“Shanghai Lvyu”

“Share”

“Share Option Scheme’

“Shou Bainian”

“Song Weiping”

“Sponsor”

'

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act
our financial years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

the reorganization of our assets and liabilities, including assets and
liabilities of our subsidiaries and associated companies, as described in
the section entitled “Corporate History — Reorganization” in this
prospectus

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of China

Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

rp B B 4% 4 T 45 3 R (PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchange)
25,974,000 Shares owned by the Selling Shareholders

Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

F g5 E b E B B4 R4S | (Shanghai Lvyu Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.), our wholly owned subsidiary in China registered as a wholly
foreign owned enterprise with limited liability under the laws of China on
July 19, 2000 in Shanghai

an ordinary share, with a nominal value of HK$0.10, in our share capital

the share option scheme we conditionally adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed by our Shareholders on June 22, 2006 and a
resolution of our Board on June 22, 2006 as described in the section
entitled “Statutory and General Information — Other Information —
Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIl to this prospectus

#F#4  (Shou Bainian), national of China, one of our Original
Shareholders holding a 39% beneficial equity interest in our company
immediately prior to the Global Offering

KTF (Song Weiping), national of China, one of our Original
Shareholders holding a 52% beneficial equity interest in our company

immediately prior to the Global Offering

JPMorgan, the sponsor for the listing of our Shares on the Stock
Exchange
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“Stark”

“State Council”

“State Taxation Bureau”
“Stock Exchange”
“UBS”

“Underwriters”

“Underwriting
Agreements”

“United States” or “U.S.”

“U.S. Securities Act”

“US$” or “U.S. dollars”

" " on

we,” "us,” “our” or “our
company”

“Wisearn”

“Xia Yibo"

“Zhejiang Provincial Real
Estate Association”

Shepherd Investments International Ltd., Centar Investments (Asia), Ltd.,
and Stark Asia Master Fund, Ltd., each being a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and a member of the
affiliated family of funds of Stark Investments (Hong Kong) Limited

b B B 7 e (State Council of China)

B & B %6 44 )5 (State Taxation Bureau of China)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

UBS AG acting through its business group UBS Investment Bank
the Hong Kong Underwriters and the International Underwriters

the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement and the International
Underwriting Agreement

the United States of America

the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

Greentown China Holdings Limited, incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Cayman Islands on
August 31, 2005 and, except where the context otherwise requires,
including our subsidiaries after the Reorganization and those entities and/
or businesses which comprised or came to comprise Greentown China
Holdings Limited prior to the Reorganization

Wisearn Limited, a British Virgin Islands international company with
limited liability, wholly owned by Xia Yibo, the spouse of Song Weiping

X —ik (Xia Yibo), national of China, one of our Original Shareholders
holding a 7% beneficial equity interest in our company immediately prior
to the Global Offering, and the spouse of Song Weiping

an association under the supervision of Zhejiang Province Construction
Bureau, with over 500 members as of December 31, 2005, comprising
various real estate associations, enterprises engaged in property
development, property management, trading and property agency
services in Zhejiang Province
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully read and consider all of the risks and uncertainties described below before
deciding to make any investment in our Shares. Our business, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks and uncertainties. The trading
price of our Shares could decline due to any of these risks and uncertainties and you may lose all or
part of your investment as a result.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

We are heavily dependent on the performance of the residential property markets in China,
particularly in Zhejiang Province

Our business and prospects depend on the performance of the PRC residential markets. Any housing
market downturn in China generally or in the regions where we have property developments could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Currently, a substantial
number of our property projects are located in Hangzhou and other cities in Zhejiang Province. As of
the Latest Practicable Date, we had 27 completed residential projects or project phases and 77
residential projects or project phases under development or held for future development. Out of the 27
completed residential projects or project phases, 19 are located in Hangzhou and three in other cities in
Zhejiang Province. Of the 77 residential projects or project phases under development or held for future
development, 23 are located in Hangzhou and 24 in other cities in Zhejiang Province. The 22 completed
residential projects or project phases in Zhejiang Province have an aggregate site area of approximately
1.7 million square meters and an aggregate total GFA of approximately 1.4 million square meters. The
47 residential projects or project phases under development or held for future development in Zhejiang
Province have an aggregate site area of approximately 4.5 million square meters and an estimated
aggregate total GFA of approximately 5.6 million square meters.

Despite rapid economic developments in China, residential property prices in China, including Zhejiang
Province, have been growing at a slower rate in 2005. There can be no assurance that there will be
continued or growing demand for new residential properties in Zhejiang Province and other parts of
China. In addition, there can be no assurance that there will not be over-development or market
downturn in the residential property sectors in Zhejiang Province and other parts of China. Any such
over-development or market downturn and the resultant decline in property sales or decrease in
property prices in Zhejiang Province or other parts of China may adversely affect our business and
financial condition.

We maintain a substantial level of indebtedness and a deterioration of our cash flow position
could materially adversely affect our ability to service our indebtedness and to continue our
operations

We maintain a substantial level of indebtedness to finance our operations. As of December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005, our aggregate outstanding indebtedness was Rmb 3,527.3 million, Rmb 4,443.1
million and Rmb 5,531.4 million, respectively. As of April 30, 2006, our aggregate outstanding
indebtedness was Rmb 5,633.5 million. Our total indebtedness described above does not include our
guarantee or indemnity obligations of approximately Rmb 2,039.7 million, Rmb 2,714.6 million, Rmb
4,367.0 million and Rmb 2,818.4 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 and
April 30, 2006. Our debt to equity ratio was 779%, 349%, 434% and 829% respectively, as of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 and April 30, 2006. Of our total outstanding indebtedness of Rmb
5,633.5 million as of April 30, 2006, approximately Rmb 2,441.7 million was repayable within 12
months and approximately Rmb 3,186.8 million was repayable within five years. In comparison, as of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, our total shareholders’ equity was Rmb 286.3 million, Rmb 681.2
million and Rmb 863.1 million, respectively.
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RISK FACTORS

In addition to borrowing, we rely on pre-sale of properties as a major source of funding for our
operations, including our debt service. Should our pre-sale be significantly limited or otherwise
materially adversely affected as a result of changes in PRC rules and regulations or in government
policies relating to property development, or significant economic downturn in China or in the regional
markets where we operate or otherwise, we could experience cash flow difficulties and difficulties in
servicing our indebtedness. If major commercial banks decline to lend additional loans to us or to re-
finance our existing loans when they mature as a result of our credit risk and we fail to raise financing
through other channels, our financial condition, cash flow position and our business prospects may be
materially adversely affected.

We may not have adequate financing to fund our land acquisitions and property
developments

Property development is capital intensive. We finance our property projects primarily through a
combination of pre-sale and sale proceeds, borrowings from financial institutions, internal funds and
loans from project partners. As of December 31, 2005, our total bank and other borrowings amounted
to approximately Rmb 4,879.3 million. Our ability to procure adequate financing for land acquisition
and property development depends on a number of factors that are beyond our control. In September
2004, the PRC government adopted measures to strengthen enforcement on lending regulations in the
property industry, which were initially implemented by PBOC in June 2003. These measures:

° restrict PRC commercial banks from financing land premiums;

° restrict PRC commercial banks from financing the development of luxury residential properties
and villas; and

° restrict property developers from financing property developments with loans obtained from
banks in regions outside the location of the relevant property developments.

In May 2006, the Ministry of Construction and other PRC government authorities jointly issued the
Opinions on Housing Supply Structure and Stabilization of Property Prices, which, among others,

° restrict the grant or extension of revolving credit facilities to property developers that hold a large
amount of idle land and vacant commodity properties; and

° prohibit commercial banks from taking commodity properties that have been vacant for more
than three years as security for their loans.

On June 16, 2006, the PBOC decided to lift its reserve requirement ratio for commercial banks,
effective on July 5, 2006, from 7.5% to 8%. The reserve requirement refers to the amount of funds
that banks must hold in reserve against deposits made by their customers. The PBOC’s decision to
increase this ratio may negatively impact the amount of funds available to lend to businesses, including
us, by commercial banks in China.

These government actions and policy initiatives have limited our flexibility and ability to use bank loans
to finance our property projects across the country. We cannot assure that we will be able to secure
adequate financing or renew our existing credit facilities prior to their expiration or that our business,
financial condition and results of operations will not be materially adversely affected as a result of such
and other government actions and policy initiatives.
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Our financing costs are subject to changes in interest rates

Changes in interest rates have affected and will continue to affect our financing costs and, ultimately,
our results of operations. PBOC in October 2004 raised the benchmark one-year lending rate from
5.31% t0 5.58% and in April 2006 further increased such rate to 5.85%. While we do not believe such
increases in the lending rate have had or will have a material adverse effect on our ability to obtain
adequate financing for our operations or on our overall financial condition, we cannot assure that
lending rates will remain unchanged. As of April 30, 2006, the average annualized interest rate on our
outstanding bank borrowings was 6.24%. Interest expenses incurred in 2003, 2004 and 2005 were
Rmb 205.5 million, Rmb 212.1 million and Rmb 250.8 million, respectively. We cannot assure you that
PBOC will not further raise lending rates or that our business, financial condition and results of
operations will not be adversely affected as a result.

We may not always be able to obtain land reserves that are suitable for development

We derive our revenues principally from the sale of properties that we have developed. Thus we must
replenish and increase our land reserves in order to ensure sustainable business growth. Based on our
current rate of property development, we believe we have sufficient land reserves for development for
approximately the next five years.

In China, the government controls the availability of land reserves. Government land supply policies
have a direct impact on our ability to acquire land use rights for development and our costs of
acquisition. In May 2002, the PRC government introduced a nationwide system of mandatory public
tender, auction or listing-for-sale for the grant of land use rights for commercial use, tourism,
entertainment and commodity housing development. Although the regulation does not prevent
privately held land use rights from being traded in the secondary market, the intention of the PRC
government to grant state-owned land use rights at competitive market prices is likely to increase the
acquisition cost of land reserves. Our business prospects may be adversely affected to the extent that
we are unable to acquire quality sites on a timely basis or at prices which will enable us to achieve
sufficient returns. In addition, on May 30, 2006, the Ministry of Land and Resources published the
Urgent Notice on Tightening Land Administration, which requires local governments to suspend the
supply of land for new villa projects to ensure adequate supply of land for more affordable housing. All
of our villa projects currently under development or held for future development, regardless of whether
the relevant land use rights certificates have been obtained, have received the relevant construction
land use permits and our Directors believe it is unlikely that such new policy will affect our existing
projects. Historically, villa sales accounted for 17.8%, 21.6% and nil of our revenues from property
sales for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The suspension of supply of
land for new villa projects will limit our product variety in our future developments and thus may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

The relevant PRC tax authorities may challenge the basis on which we calculate our LAT
obligations

In accordance with the provisions of PRC Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax and their
implementation rules, all persons including companies and individuals that receive income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities must pay 30% to 60%
LAT on appreciated value of the land and improvements on such land, with certain exemptions
available for the sale of ordinary residential properties (3% 3 & # {1: 52) if the appreciated values do not
exceed 20% of the deductible items as defined in the relevant tax laws. Sales of villas and commercial
properties are not eligible for such exemption. You may find a more detailed description of the PRC
regulations on LAT in “Taxation — Mainland China Taxation — Our operations in mainland China —
Land appreciation tax” in Appendix V to this prospectus.
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However, there are uncertainties in the interpretation and implementation of these LAT regulations,
such as whether the residential part of our complexes that contain both residential and commercial
units will be eligible for the exemption available to ordinary residential properties. We have been
prepaying LAT with reference to our pre-sale proceeds since the PRC government imposed such
prepayment requirement in 2004 in all jurisdictions where we have operations, except Shanghai
Pudong district and Beijing Fangshan district which have not implemented such prepayment
requirement with respect to ordinary residential properties. Such LAT prepayments are recorded as a
part of “other taxes recoverable” on our balance sheets. We also made LAT provisions of Rmb 0.5
million, Rmb 100.3 million and Rmb 5.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005, respectively. LAT provisions are recorded as a part of “other taxes payable” on our balance
sheets. As of the Latest Practicable Date, none of the amounts in our LAT provisions in 2003, 2004 and
2005 had been settled. Nor have we received any official exemption or confirmation with respect to our
LAT liabilities for any period despite our LAT prepayments during the years. Our PRC counsel, T&C Law
Firm, has confirmed in its opinion that as of the Latest Practicable Date we had made prepayments and/
or provisions for LAT in compliance with PRC LAT laws and regulations and/or requirements by local tax
authorities. Although our Directors are of the view that our LAT prepayments and provisions in 2003,
2004 and 2005, as reflected in the financial statements included in the Accountants’ Report in
Appendix | to this prospectus, are sufficient to cover our LAT liabilities in these periods, there can be no
assurance that our LAT prepayments and provisions will be sufficient to cover our past LAT liabilities.
We cannot assure you that the relevant tax authorities will agree with the basis on which we calculate
our LAT liabilities. In addition, our financial condition may be materially adversely affected if our LAT
liabilities as finally calculated by the relevant tax authorities are substantially higher than our LAT
provisions and prepayments. The Original Shareholders have each agreed to indemnify us with respect
to losses, liabilities and expenses in relation to LAT that may be or become payable but not paid by us in
accordance with PRC law in respect of properties we have delivered or may deliver prior to the Listing
Date. However, there can be no assurance that each of these indemnifiers will be financially capable of
delivering these indemnities especially when they are called upon to indemnify all or a substantial
portion of such LAT and other liabilities under the Deed of Indemnity.

We guarantee mortgage loans of our customers and may become liable to mortgagee banks
if customers default on their mortgage loans

As we pre-sell properties before their actual completion of construction, in accordance with industry
practice, banks require us to guarantee our customers’ mortgage loans. Typically, we guarantee
mortgage loans taken out by our customers up until we complete the relevant properties and the
property ownership certificates and certificates of other interests with respect to the relevant properties
are delivered to the mortgagee banks. If a purchaser defaults on a mortgage loan, we may have to
repurchase the underlying property by paying off the mortgage. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee bank
may auction the underlying property and recover any additional amount outstanding from us as the
guarantor of the mortgage loans. In line with industry practice, we do not conduct any independent
credibility checks on our customers but simply rely on the result of evaluation by the mortgagee banks
relating to such individual customers.

As of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, our outstanding guarantees in respect of our customers’
mortgage loans amounted to Rmb 1,434.7 million, Rmb 1,829.8 million and Rmb 2,875.7 million,
respectively. During the three years ended December 31, 2005 and up to the Latest Practicable Date,
we encountered one event of default in 2004 by a purchaser of seven commercial units in Hangzhou
Zigui Garden. The defaulted mortgage loans had an aggregate outstanding principal amount of Rmb
4.4 million. The lending bank was able to recoup its full investment through foreclosure sales. Our
guarantees were not called upon and we did not sustain any economic loss. As of April 30, 2006, our
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outstanding guarantees in respect of our customers’ mortgage loans amounted to Rmb 2,162.2
million. If substantial defaults occur in a depressed property market and we are called upon to honor
our guarantees, our financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We do not have insurance to cover potential losses and claims

We do not take out insurance coverage against potential losses or damages with respect to our
properties before their delivery to customers. Nor do we maintain insurance coverage against liability
from tortious acts or other personal injuries on our project sites. We believe that third-party
construction companies should bear such tortious and personal injury liabilities arising from our project
sites. In addition, there are certain types of losses, such as losses due to earthquake, which are currently
uninsurable in China. Business interruption insurance is also currently unavailable in China. Therefore,
while we believe that our practice is in line with the general practice in the PRC property development
industry, there may be instances when we will have to internalize losses, damages and liabilities
because of our lack of insurance coverage, which may in turn adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

Our business will be adversely affected if we fail to obtain, or experience material delays in
obtaining, necessary government approvals for any major property development

China’s property markets are strictly regulated by the PRC government. Property developers in China
must abide by various laws and regulations, including rules stipulated by local governments to enforce
these laws and regulations. To develop and complete development of a property project, we must
apply to relevant governmental departments for various licenses, permits, certificates and approvals,
including land use rights certificates, construction plan permits, construction permits, pre-sale permits
and completion acceptance certificates. Before the government issues any certificate or permit, we
must first meet specific conditions. To date, we have not encountered serious delays or difficulties in
the process of applying for these certificates and permits, but we cannot guarantee that we will not
encounter serious delays or difficulties in the future. Therefore, in the event that we fail to obtain the
necessary governmental approvals for any of our major property projects, or a serious delay occurs in
the government’s examination and approval, we will not be able to keep up with our development
schedule and our business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected. In
addition, in May 2006, the Ministry of Construction and other relevant PRC government authorities
jointly issued the Opinions on Housing Supply Structure and Stabilization of Property Prices, which,
among others, require that at least 70% of residential projects approved or constructed on or after
June 1, 2006 must consist of units with a unit floor area (% #J # 4% i £%) of less than 90 square meters
per unit and that projects which have not obtained construction permits must adjust their planning to
be in conformity with this new requirement. Unit floor area is measured by reference to the interior
usable area of the relevant units and is generally smaller than GFA. According to these Opinions,
municipalities under direct administration of the PRC central government and provincial capitals may
deviate from such ratio under special circumstances upon approval from the Ministry of Construction.
The implementation of such policy may limit our project variety in the future and thus may adversely
affect our business and results of operations. Moreover, it is unclear how this new policy will be
interpreted and implemented across the country and we may be required to adjust the design and
planning of some of our projects, which may require additional design costs and cause delays to the
development schedules of some of our projects.

We may not be able to complete our development projects on time or at all

Property development projects require substantial capital expenditures prior to and during the
construction period, and construction of a property project may take longer than a year before it may
generate positive cash flow through pre-sales or sales. The progress and costs for a development
project can be adversely affected by many factors, including:

° delays in obtaining necessary licenses, permits or approvals from government agencies or

authorities;
° relocation of existing residents and/or demolishment of existing structures;
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shortages of materials, equipment, contractors and skilled labor;
labor disputes;

construction accidents;

natural catastrophes; and

adverse weather conditions.

Construction delays or failure to complete the construction of a project according to its planned
specifications, schedule or budget as a result of the above factors may affect our results of operations
and financial position and may also cause reputational damage. We cannot assure you that we will not
experience any significant delays in completion or delivery or that we will not be subject to any liabilities
for any such delays.

Our failure to meet all requirements for the issuance of property ownership certificates may
lead to compensatory liability to our customers

According to PRC law, property developers must meet various requirements within 90 days after
delivery of property or such other time period provided in sales contracts for the customers to apply for
property ownership certificates, including passing various governmental clearances, formalities and
procedures. We usually stipulate the delivery dates in our sales contracts so as to leave enough time for
us to complete the formalities and obtain the relevant approvals. However, we cannot assure you that
there will not be delays in our property development. There may also be factors beyond our control that
cause delay to the delivery of property ownership certificates, such as time-consuming examination and
approval processes at various government agencies. Under our sales contracts, we are required to
compensate our customers for delays in completing our deliverables. In the case of serious delays on
one or more property projects, our business and reputation will be harmed.

If we cannot continue to obtain qualification certificates, our business may be adversely
affected

As a precondition to engage in real property development in China, a property developer must obtain a
qualification certificate and renew it on an annual basis. According to the PRC regulation on
qualification of property developers issued in 2000, a newly established property developer must first
apply for a provisional qualification certificate with a one-year validity, which can be extended for not
more than two years under renewal. If, however, the newly established property developer fails to
commence a property development project within the one-year period when the provisional
qualification certificate is in effect, it will not be allowed to extend its provisional qualification
certificate. More established developers must also apply for renewal of their qualification certificates on
an annual basis. It is mandatory under government regulations that developers must fulfil all statutory
requirements before they may obtain or renew their qualification certificates.

We typically conduct our property developments through project companies. These project companies
must also hold valid qualification certificates to be able to conduct their businesses. There can be no
assurance that we and our project companies will continue to be able to extend or renew the
qualification certificates. If we or our project companies do not possess valid qualification certificates,
the government will refuse to issue pre-sale and other permits necessary for the conduct of the
property development business. In addition, the government may impose a penalty on us and our
project companies for failure to comply with the relevant licensing requirements.
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Our controlling shareholders may take actions that conflict with the best interests of our
other shareholders

Before and immediately after the Global Offering, our Original Shareholders will remain our controlling
shareholders, with substantial control over our issued share capital. Accordingly, subject to our
Memorandum and Articles of Association and the Cayman Companies Law, our Original Shareholders,
by virtue of their controlling ownership of our share capital as well as their positions on our Board, will
be able to exercise significant control or exert significant influence over our business or otherwise on
matters of significance to us and other shareholders by voting at the general meetings of shareholders
or at the Board of Directors’ meetings, including:

election of Directors;

selection of senior management;

amount and timing of dividend payments and other distributions;
acquisition of or merger with another entity;

overall strategic and investment decisions;

issuance of securities and adjustment to our capital structure; and
amendments to our Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The interests of our Original Shareholders may differ from the interests of other shareholders and these
controlling shareholders are free to exercise their votes according to their interests. You should note
that our controlling shareholders have substantial business interests in land and property projects that
may compete with our business. In connection with this Global Offering, the Original Shareholders
have each given an undertaking in the Deed of Non-competition that they and affiliates controlled by
them will not engage in property development business (other than hotel development and property
management) that may compete with us in China; provided, however, that they may continue to
engage in the property development projects as specified in the Deed of Non-competition. Under such
circumstances, to the extent the interests of these controlling shareholders conflict with the interests of
other shareholders, the interests of other shareholders can be disadvantaged and harmed.

If our partners act in contradiction to our interests, our business may be adversely affected

Many of our project companies are joint ventures established under PRC law and, for some of these
joint ventures, we are a minority equityholder. This gives rise to the possibility that we may only have
limited control over the operations of these joint ventures. Therefore, it may be necessary for us to
obtain consent from our joint venture partners before we can cause the joint venture to make or
implement a particular business development decision or to distribute profits to the shareholders,
including ourselves. Furthermore, we and our joint venture partners may hold different views. Thus, the
joint venture partners might act in a way contrary to our interests, or otherwise be unable or unwilling
to fulfil their obligations under the joint venture contracts. As a result, the joint ventures may face
difficulties in their operations and our interests in the joint ventures may be harmed.

The appraisal value of our properties may be different from the actual realizable value and is
subject to change

The appraisal value on our properties as contained in the property valuation report prepared by DTZ
attached hereto as Appendix IV is based on multiple assumptions that include elements of subjectivity
and uncertainty. Therefore, the appraised value of our properties should not be taken as their actual
realizable value or a forecast of their realizable value. Unforeseeable changes to the development of
the property projects as well as national and local economic conditions may affect the value of our
property holdings.

23



RISK FACTORS

As noted above, the appraised value of our property development projects and our land reserves are
based on many assumptions. They include that:

we will complete development projects on time;
we have obtained or will obtain on a timely basis all approvals from regulators necessary for the
development of the projects; and

e we have paid all the land premiums and demolishment and resettlement costs and obtained all
land use rights certificates and transferable land use rights without any payment obligation of
additional land premium and demolishment and resettlement costs.

As for properties in which we have less than a 100% stake, their appraised values are allocated to us
according to our pro rata ownership in the relevant project companies.

We are reliant on third party contractors

We employ third party contractors to carry out various works, including design, pile setting, foundation
digging, construction, equipment installation, internal decoration, electromechanical engineering,
pipeline engineering and elevator installation. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, payments to third-party
contractors accounted for approximately 94% to 96% of our total construction payments. We select
third party contractors mainly through a statutory tender system. We endeavor to employ companies
with good reputation, credibility and financial resources, but we cannot guarantee that any such third
party contractor will provide satisfactory services at the quality level required by us. In addition, since
we have expanded our business to other regional markets in China, there may be a shortage of
independent third party contractors able to meet our quality requirements in such regions. Moreover,
the contractors may undertake projects from other developers, engage in risky undertakings or
otherwise encounter financial or other difficulties, which may cause delay in the completion of our
property projects or increased costs to us. All of these factors will have a negative impact on our
reputation, credibility, financial position and business operations.

We may forfeit land to the PRC government if we fail to comply with the terms of the land
use rights grant contracts

Under PRC law, if we fail to develop a property project according to the terms of the land use rights
grant contract, including those relating to the payment of land premium, demolishment and
resettlement costs and other fees, specified use of the land and the time for commencement and
completion of the property development, the PRC government may issue a warning, impose a penalty,
and/or order us to forfeit the land. Specifically, under current PRC law, if we fail to commence
development for more than one year from the commencement date stipulated in the land use rights
grant contract, the relevant PRC land bureau may serve a warning notice on us and impose a land idle
fee on the land of up to 20% of the land premium. If we fail to commence development for more than
two years, the land is subject to forfeiture to the PRC government unless the delay in development is
caused by government actions or force majeure. Even though the commencement of the land
development is in line with the land use rights grant contract, if the developed GFA on the land is less
than one-third of the total GFA of the project or the total capital invested is less than one-fourth of the
total investment of the project and the suspension of the development of the land is over one year in
time without government approval, the land will be treated as idle land. There have been instances of
our failure to develop land or pay land premium, demolishment and resettlement costs and other fees
on a timely basis although the land authorities have not ordered us to forfeit the land. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, we paid an aggregate land idle fee of Rmb 1.3 million, with Rmb 1.4 million
outstanding in respect of a project. In addition, the Hangzhou National Land and Resource Bureau
Yuhang Branch imposed land idle fees in the aggregate amount of Rmb 6.1 million on us in respect of
two other projects. T&C Law Firm, our PRC counsel, has advised us that we should not be subject to
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such fees, and we have disputed the imposition of such fees. The land bureau has not responded to our
pleading as of the date of this prospectus. See “Business — Legal Proceedings and Material Claims” for
more details. There can be no assurance that circumstances leading to forfeiture or significant delays in
development schedule will not arise in the future. If we forfeit land, we will not only lose the
opportunity to develop the property projects on such land, but may also lose all our past investments in
the land, including land premiums paid and development costs incurred.

We may not be able to obtain land use rights certificates with respect to certain parcels of
land in which we currently have various interests

We have not obtained all land use rights certificates in respect of eight projects or project phases as
disclosed in “Business — Qur Property Projects — Properties held for future development.” As of the
Latest Practicable Date, the relevant land parcels occupied an aggregate site area of approximately
384,000 square meters. We have not assigned any value to these parcels of land in the Property
Valuation Report in Appendix IV to this prospectus. In addition, we have not signed the land use rights
grant contracts and/or have not obtained the land use rights certificates in respect of various proposed
projects as disclosed in “Business — Other Land Acquisition Contractual Arrangements.” If we fail to
obtain the land use rights certificates with respect to these parcels of land in a timely manner, or at all,
or we are required to pay higher land premium or fail to recover the costs that we have incurred, our
business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

We bear demolishment and resettlement costs associated with some of our property
developments and such costs may increase

We are required to compensate owners and residents of demolished buildings on some of our property
developments for their relocation and resettlement in accordance with the PRC urban housing
demolition and relocation regulations. The compensation we pay is calculated in accordance with
formulas published by the relevant local authorities. These formulas take into account the location,
type of building subject to demolition, local income level and many other factors. There can be no
assurance, however, that these local authorities will not change or adjust their formulas from time to
time without sufficient advance notice. If they do so, the land costs may be subject to substantial
increase, which can adversely affect our cash flow, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, if we fail to reach an agreement over the amount of compensation with any existing owner or
resident, either we or such owner or resident may apply to the relevant authorities for a ruling on the
amount of compensation. Dissenting owners and residents may also refuse to relocate. This
administrative process or such resistance or refusal to relocate may delay the timetable of our
development projects, and an unfavorable final ruling may result in us paying more than the amount
the formulas call for.

We may not continue to enjoy income tax benefits

Companies in China, including Greentown Real Estate, are typically subject to an aggregate of 33%
corporate income tax rate. Two of our project companies enjoy preferential income tax treatment due
to their places of establishment and/or their status as foreign-invested enterprises. Shanghai Lvyu, one
of our major revenue contributors in 2004 and 2005, pays corporate income tax at the reduced rate of
15%. Under current PRC tax law, enterprises established in the Pudong New Zone in Shanghai, such as
Shanghai Lvyu, are subject to a reduced corporate income tax rate of 15% for their income sourced
from operations in the Pudong New Zone in Shanghai. Hangzhou Jiuxi, also a major revenue
contributor in 2004, pays corporate income tax at the reduced corporate income tax rate of 27%.
Under current PRC tax law, foreign-invested enterprises established in Hangzhou Zhijiang National
Tourism And Resort Zone (it 91 = v B % jifg % BF {2 1%) in Zhejiang Province, such as Hangzhou Jiuxi, are
subject to a reduced corporate income tax rate of 24%, plus a local income tax of 3%. Taking into
account these preferential tax treatments, our effective overall corporate income tax rate for 2004 and
2005 was 30.9% and 17.6%, respectively. The preferential tax treatment enjoyed by Shanghai Lvyu
and Zhejiang Jiuxi is valid throughout their continuing operating period. However, as we generally
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dissolve our project companies some time after the completion of the development of their properties,
including Shanghai Lvyu and Hangzhou lJiuxi in due course, our tax benefits derived from the
preferential treatments enjoyed by these project companies will cease after all properties developed by
these companies have been delivered. There can be no assurance that such preferential tax treatments
will continue or that we will receive additional tax benefits from these or other tax authorities.

If any key management members leave, we may be unable to find suitable substitutes

We depend on the services provided by our management and other qualified and experienced staff.
Competition for such talented employees is intense in the property development sector. We are very
dependent on Song Weiping and Shou Bainian, our controlling shareholders and senior management
members. Both of them have more than a decade of experience in the PRC property markets with in-
depth knowledge of various aspects of property development. In case any core management team
member leaves and we fail to find suitable substitutes, our business will be adversely impacted.
Moreover, along with our steady growth and expansion into other regional markets in China, we will
need to employ, train and retain employees on a much larger geographical scale. If we cannot attract
and retain suitable human resources, our business and future growth will be negatively affected.

We are a holding company that heavily relies on dividend payments from our subsidiaries
and associated companies for funding

We are a holding company established in the Cayman Islands and operate our core business through
our subsidiaries and associated companies in China. Therefore, the availability of funds to us to pay
dividends to our shareholders and to service our indebtedness depends upon dividends received from
these subsidiaries and associated companies. If our subsidiaries and associated companies incur debt or
losses, such indebtedness or loss may impair their ability to pay dividends or other distributions to us. As
a result, our ability to pay dividends and to service our indebtedness will be restricted. PRC laws require
that dividends be paid only out of the net profit calculated according to PRC accounting principles,
which differ in many aspects from generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions,
including IFRS. PRC laws also require foreign-invested enterprises, such as some of our subsidiaries in
China, to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves. These statutory reserves are not
available for distribution as cash dividends. In addition, restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities,
joint venture agreements or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries and associated companies
may enter into in the future may also restrict the ability of our subsidiaries and associated companies to
make contributions to us and our ability to receive distributions. Therefore, these restrictions on the
availability and usage of our major source of funding may impact our ability to pay dividends to our
shareholders and to service our indebtedness.

A third party’s inappropriate use of the trademarks and service marks “# 1" (Greentown) and
" EE" (Greentown Real Estate) may damage our reputation and negatively affect our
results of operations and financial condition

We use the trademarks and service marks “#t 3" (Greentown) and “# 3 = & " (Greentown Real Estate)
under licenses from Greentown Holdings Group. Greentown Holdings Group is engaged in various
businesses in addition to property development, such as hotel management and sports. Accordingly,
the Greentown trademarks have been registered under Greentown Holdings Group’s name for various
classes and categories of services and products in accordance with PRC law. Although we are licensed
to use the trademarks in our property development business on an exclusive and royalty-free basis,
Greentown Holdings Group continues to use such trademarks in its other categories of business. In
addition, Greentown Holdings Group allows several connected parties to use the “Greentown” mark in
their business operations. Such connected parties who are under the control of the Original
Shareholders are engaged in interior decoration, media, hospital investment, and education businesses.
Greentown Holdings Group also allows certain of its affiliates to use the “Greentown” and “Greentown
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Real Estate” marks in eight property projects as permitted and specified in the Deed of Non-
competition. If such entities use such trademarks and service marks in ways that negatively affect the
“Greentown” and “Greentown Real Estate” brand names, our reputation and the reputation of our
products could be damaged, which in turn may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Our operations are subject to seasonal variations

Our business is under the influence of seasonal variations. For example, winter weather conditions can
hinder the execution of development projects, especially in northern China. In summer time, customers
tend to stay away from development projects to avoid hot weather. In addition, our delivery of
properties in the first quarter of each year is further negatively impacted by long vacations at the end of
the year and during the Chinese New Year holidays. Therefore, our revenue and profit, recognized
upon delivery of properties, in the first half of a year are often much lower than the second half and we
will continue to experience significant fluctuations in revenue and profit on an interim basis subsequent
to this Global Offering.

Our dividend distributions to our existing shareholders prior to the completion of the Global
Offering should not be treated as indicative of our future dividend policy

We declared and paid dividends in the amount of Rmb 77.1 million and Rmb 198.4 million in 2004 and
2005, respectively. We have also declared and paid a special dividend in the aggregate amount of
US$50 million on the basis of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2005 payable to our
shareholders whose names appeared on our register of members on the record date of January 1,
2006. The amounts of distributions that we have declared and made in the past are not indicative of
the dividends that we may pay in the future.

RISKS RELATING TO THE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY INDUSTRY IN CHINA

The PRC government may adopt further measures to slow down growth in the property
sector

Along with the economic growth in China, investments in the property sectors have increased
significantly in the past few years. In response to concerns over the scale of the increase in property
investments, the PRC government has introduced policies to curtail property developments which,
among others, include the following:

° requiring real estate developers to finance 35% rather than 20% of the total projected capital
outlay of any property development with their internal resources;

° limiting the monthly mortgage payment to 50% of an individual borrower’s monthly income and
limiting all monthly debt service payments of an individual borrower to 55% of his or her monthly
income,

° increasing the required reserve ratio of funds that a commercial bank must hold on deposit to
7.5% and further to 8.0% from 7.0%, effectively reducing the amount of money a bank is able to
lend;

° strictly enforcing a land idle fee for land which has not been developed for one year starting from
the commencement date stipulated in the land use rights grant contract and cancellation of land
use rights for land idle for two years or more;

° revoking projects not in compliance with the planning permits;

° suspending land provision for villa construction and restricting land supply for high-end residential
property construction;

° imposing a business tax levy on the sales proceeds for second-hand transfers subject to the length
of holding period and type of properties starting from June 1, 2005;

° prohibiting any onward transfer of uncompleted properties; and
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e tightening regulations governing mortgage lending and restricting approval of new development
zones.

In May 2006, Ministry of Construction, NDRC, PBOC and other relevant PRC government authorities
jointly issued the Opinions on Housing Supply Structure and Stabilization of Property Prices. Such
opinions reiterated the existing measures and introduced new measures to further curb fast increases in
property prices in large cities and to promote healthy development of the PRC property market. These
measures, among others, include:

° requiring that at least 70% of the land supply approved by a local government for residential
property development for any given year must be used for developing low- to medium-cost and
small- to medium-size units and low-cost rental properties;

° requiring that at least 70% of residential projects approved or constructed on or after June 1,
2006 must consist of units with a unit floor area (& % 4 5% i f%) of less than 90 square meters per
unit and that projects which have received project approvals prior to this date but have not
obtained construction permits must adjust their planning in order to be in conformity with this
new requirement, with the exception that municipalities under direct administration of the PRC
central government and provincial capitals and certain cities may deviate from such ratio under
special circumstances upon approval from the Ministry of Construction;

° increasing the minimum amount of down payment from 20% to 30% of the purchase price of
the underlying property if the underlying property has a unit floor area of 90 square meters or
more, effective from June 1, 2006;

° restricting the grant or extension of revolving credit facilities to property developers that hold a
large amount of idle land and vacant commodity properties;

° prohibiting commercial banks from taking commodity properties that have been vacant for more
than three years as security for their loans; and

° imposing a business tax levy on the entire sales proceeds from re-sale of properties if the holding
period is shorter than five years, as opposed to two years as such levy was initially implemented in
2005.

The PRC government'’s restrictive measures to curtail the growth of the property sectors could limit our
access to capital resources, reduce market demand and increase our operating costs in adapting to
these measures. We cannot assure you that the PRC government will not adopt additional and more
stringent measures, which could further slow down property development in China and adversely
affect our business and prospects.

Changes of laws and regulations with respect to pre-sale may adversely affect our cash flow
position and performance

We depend on cash flows from pre-sale of properties as an important source of funding for our
property projects. Under current PRC laws and regulations, property developers must fulfil certain
conditions before they can commence pre-sale of the relevant properties and may only use pre-sale
proceeds to finance their developments. On August 5, 2005, PBOC issued a report entitled “2004 Real
Estate Financing Report,” in which it recommended to discontinue the practice of pre-selling
uncompleted properties as it creates significant market risks and generates transactional irregularities.
This and other PBOC recommendations have not been adopted by the PRC government and have no
enforceability. However, there can be no assurance that the PRC government will not ban the practice
of pre-selling uncompleted properties or implement further restrictions on the pre-sale of properties,
such as imposing additional conditions for a pre-sale permit or further restrictions on the use of pre-sale
proceeds. Any such measure will adversely affect our cash flow position and force us to seek alternative
sources of funding for much of our property development business.
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We are exposed to pre-sale related contractual and legal risks

We make certain undertakings in our pre-sale contracts. These pre-sale contracts and PRC laws and
regulations provide for remedies for breach of such undertakings. For example, if we pre-sell a property
project fully or partially and we fail to complete that property project, we will be liable to the
purchasers for their losses. Should we fail to complete a pre-sold property project on time, our
purchasers may seek compensation for late delivery pursuant to either their contracts or PRC laws. If
our delay extends beyond a specified period, our purchasers may terminate the pre-sale contracts and
claim compensation. We cannot assure you that we will not experience significant delays in completion
and delivery of our projects.

Our sales and pre-sales will be affected if mortgage financing becomes more costly or
otherwise becomes less attractive

Substantially all purchasers of our residential properties rely on mortgages to fund their purchases. An
increase in interest rates may significantly increase the cost of mortgage financing, thus affecting the
affordability of residential properties. In addition, the PRC government and commercial banks may also
increase the down payment requirement, impose other conditions or otherwise change the regulatory
framework in a manner that would make mortgage financing unavailable or unattractive to potential
property purchasers. Under current PRC laws and regulations, purchasers of residential properties
generally must pay at least 20% of the purchase price of the properties before they can finance their
purchases through mortgages. In May 2006, the PRC government increased the minimum amount of
down payment to 30% of the purchase price of the underlying property if such property has a unit
floor area of 90 square meters or more. In addition, mortgagee banks may not lend to any individual
borrower if the monthly repayment of the anticipated mortgage loan would exceed 50% of the
individual borrower’s monthly income or if the total debt service of the individual borrower would
exceed 55% of such individual’'s monthly income. If the availability or attractiveness of mortgage
financing is reduced or limited, many of our prospective customers may not be able to purchase our
properties and, as a result, our business, liquidity and results of operations could be adversely affected.

In line with industry practice, we provide guarantees to banks for mortgages they offer to our
purchasers up until we complete the relevant properties and the property ownership certificates and
certificates of other interests with respect to the relevant properties are delivered to the mortgagee
banks. If there are changes in laws, regulations, policies and practices that would prohibit property
developers from providing guarantees to banks in respect of mortgages offered to property purchasers
and these banks would not accept any alternative guarantees by third parties, or if no third party is
available or willing in the market to provide such guarantees, it may become more difficult for property
purchasers to obtain mortgages from banks and other financial institutions during sales and pre-sales
of our properties. Such difficulties in financing could result in a substantially lower rate of sale and pre-
sale of our properties, which would adversely affect our cash flow, financial condition and results of
operations. We are not aware of any impending changes in laws, regulations, policies or practices
which will prohibit such practice in China. However, there can be no assurance that such changes in
laws, regulations, policies or practices will not occur in China in the future.

Intensified competition might adversely affect our business and our financial position

In recent years, many property developers, including overseas developers, have entered the property
development markets in Zhejiang Province and other regions of China. Many of them may have more
financial or other resources than us and may be more sophisticated than us in terms of engineering and
technical skills. Competition among property developers may cause an increase in land premiums and
raw material costs, shortages in quality construction contractors, surplus in property supply leading to
decreasing property prices, further delays in issuance of government approvals, and higher costs to
attract or retain talented employees. Moreover, residential property markets across China are
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influenced by various other factors, including changes in economic conditions, banking practices and
consumer sentiments. If we fail to compete effectively, our business operations and financial condition
will suffer.

RISKS RELATING TO CHINA

PRC economic, political and social conditions as well as government policies can affect our
business

The PRC economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many aspects, including:

political structure;

degree of government involvement;
degree of development;

level and control of capital reinvestment;
control of foreign exchange; and
allocation of resources.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a centrally planned economy to a more market-oriented
economy. For more than two decades, the PRC government has implemented economic reform
measures emphasizing utilization of market forces in the development of the PRC economy. Although
we believe these reforms will have a positive effect on China’s overall and long-term development, we
cannot predict whether changes in the PRC economic, political and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any adverse effect on our current or future business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Changes in foreign exchange regulations may adversely affect our results of operations

We currently receive all of our revenues in Renminbi. The PRC government regulates the conversion
between Renminbi and foreign currencies. Over the years, the government has significantly reduced its
control over routine foreign exchange transactions under current accounts, including trade and service
related foreign exchange transactions, payment of dividends and service of foreign debts. Subsequent
to this Global Offering, we have the choice of investing our net proceeds in the form of registered
capital or shareholder loan into our PRC subsidiaries for property developments. Our choice of
investment is affected, however, by the relevant SAFE regulations with respect to capital-account and
current-account foreign exchange transactions in China. There can be no assurance that these PRC
laws and regulations on foreign investments will not cast uncertainties on our financing and operating
plans in China. Under current foreign exchange regulations in China, following the completion of this
Global Offering and subject to the relevant registration at SAFE, we will be able to pay dividends in
foreign currencies, without prior approval from SAFE, by complying with certain procedural
requirements. However, there can be no assurance that the current PRC foreign exchange policies
regarding debt service and payment of dividends in foreign currencies will continue in the future.
Changes in PRC foreign exchange policies might have a negative impact on our ability to service our
foreign currency-denominated indebtedness and to distribute dividends to our shareholders in foreign
currencies.

Fluctuations in the value of Renminbi will affect the value of, and dividends payable on, our
Shares in foreign currency terms and affect the amount of our foreign debt service in
Renminbi terms

The value of Renminbi depends, to a large extent, on China’s domestic and international economic,
financial and political developments and government policies, as well as the currency’s supply and
demand in the local and international markets. For over 10 years from 1994, the conversion of
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Renminbi into foreign currencies, including the H.K. dollar and U.S. dollar, were based on exchange
rates set and published daily by PBOC in light of the previous day’s inter-bank foreign exchange market
rates in China and the then current exchange rates on the global financial markets. The official
exchange rate for the conversion of Renminbi into the U.S. dollar was largely stable until July 2005. On
July 21, 2005, PBOC revalued Renminbi by reference to a basket of foreign currencies, including the
U.S. dollar. As a result, the value of Renminbi appreciated by 2% on that day. Since then, the PRC
central bank has allowed the official Renminbi exchange rate to float against a basket of foreign
currencies. There can be no assurance that such exchange rate will not fluctuate widely against the U.S.
dollar, the H.K. dollar or any other foreign currency in the future. Since our income and profits are
denominated in Renminbi, any appreciation of Renminbi will increase the value of, and any dividends
payable on, our Shares in foreign currency terms. Conversely, any depreciation of Renminbi will
decrease the value of, and any dividends payable on, our Shares in foreign currency terms. Fluctuation
of the value of Renminbi will also affect the amount of our foreign debt service in Renminbi terms since
we have to convert Renminbi into foreign currencies to service our foreign debt, including our
Convertible Bonds.

Interpretation of PRC laws and regulations involves uncertainty

Our core business is conducted within China and is governed by PRC laws and regulations. The PRC
legal system is based on written statutes, and prior court decisions can only be used as a reference.
Since 1979, the PRC government has promulgated laws and regulations in relation to economic matters
such as foreign investment, corporate organization and governance, commerce, taxation and trade,
with a view to developing a comprehensive system of commercial law, including laws relating to
property ownership and development. However, due to the fact that these laws and regulations have
not been fully developed, and because of the limited volume of published cases and the non-binding
nature of prior court decisions, interpretation of PRC laws and regulations will involve a degree of
uncertainty. Depending on the government agency or how an application or case is presented to such
agency, we may receive less favorable interpretations of laws and regulations than our competitors. In
addition, any litigation in China may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of
resources and management attention. All these uncertainties may cause difficulties in the enforcement
of our land use rights, entitlements under our permits, and other statutory and contractual rights and
interests.

The national and regional economies in China and our prospects may be adversely affected
by a recurrence of SARS or an outbreak of other epidemics, such as avian flu

Some regions in China, including the cities where we operate, are susceptible to epidemics such as
Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, or SARS. Past occurrences of epidemics, depending on their scale
of occurrence, have caused different degrees of damage to the national and local economies in China.
A recurrence of SARS or an outbreak of any other epidemics in China, such as the H5N1 avian flu,
especially in the cities where we have operations, may result in material disruptions to our property
development and our sales and marketing, which in turn will adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR GLOBAL OFFERING

There has been no prior public market for our Shares and their liquidity and market price may
be volatile

Prior to the Global Offering, there has been no public market for our Shares. The initial issue price
range for our Shares was the result of negotiations among us, the Selling Shareholders and the Joint
Global Coordinators on behalf of the Underwriters, and the Offer Price may differ significantly from the
market price for our Shares following the Global Offering. We have applied for listing of, and
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permission to deal in, our Shares on the Stock Exchange. A listing on the Stock Exchange, however,
does not guarantee that an active trading market for our Shares will develop, or if it does develop, will
be sustained following the Global Offering or that the market price of our Shares will not decline
following the Global Offering. In addition, there can be no assurance that the Global Offering will
result in the development of an active and liquid public trading market for our Shares. Furthermore, the
price and trading volume of our Shares may be volatile. Factors such as variations in our revenues,
earnings and cash flow or other political, economic, financial and social developments may affect the
volume and price at which our Shares will trade.

You will experience immediate dilution and may experience further dilution if we issue
additional Shares in the future

The Offer Price of our Shares is higher than the net tangible assets value per Share immediately prior to
the Global Offering. Therefore, purchasers of our Shares in the Global Offering will experience an
immediate dilution in pro forma combined net tangible assets value to Rmb2.76 (HK$2.67) per share,
based on the maximum Offer Price of HK$9.86, assuming the Underwriters will not exercise the Over-
allotment Option.

In order to expand our business, we may consider offering and issuing additional Shares in the future.
We may also issue additional Shares pursuant to our Share Option Scheme. Purchasers of our Shares
may experience dilution in the net tangible assets book value per share of their Shares if we issue
additional Shares in the future at a price which is lower than the net tangible assets book value per
Share at that time.

Forward-looking information may prove inaccurate

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements and information relating to us and our operations
and prospects that are based on our current beliefs and assumptions as well as information currently
available to us. When used in this prospectus, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“plans,” “prospects,” “going forward” and similar expressions, as they relate to us or our business, are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect our current views with
respect to future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties and various assumptions, including the
risk factors described in this prospectus. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize,
or should any of the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may diverge significantly
from the forward-looking statements in this prospectus. We do not intend to update these forward-
looking statements in addition to our on-going disclosure obligations pursuant to the Listing Rules or
other requirements of the Stock Exchange.

" ou "o

" on

We cannot guarantee the accuracy of facts, forecasts and other statistics with respect to
China, the PRC economy and the PRC real estate industry contained in this prospectus

Facts, forecasts and other statistics in this prospectus relating to China, the PRC economy and the PRC
real estate industry have been derived from various official government publications generally believed
to be reliable. However, we cannot guarantee the quality or reliability of such source materials. They
have not been prepared or independently verified by us, any Selling Shareholder, the Sponsor, the Joint
Global Coordinators, the Underwriters or any of our or their respective affiliates or advisors and,
therefore, we make no representation as to the accuracy of such facts, forecasts and statistics, which
may not be consistent with other information compiled within or outside China. We have, however,
taken reasonable care in the reproduction and/or extraction of the official government publications for
the purpose of disclosure in this prospectus. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or
discrepancies between published information and market practice, these facts, forecasts and statistics
in this prospectus may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to facts, forecasts and statistics
produced with respect to other economies. Further, there can be no assurance that they are stated or
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compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as the case may be in other
jurisdictions. Therefore, you should not unduly rely upon the facts, forecasts and statistics with respect
to China, the PRC economy and the PRC real estate industry contained in this prospectus.

Sale, or perceived sale, of substantial amounts of our Shares in the public market could
materially and adversely affect the prevailing market price of our Shares

The Shares beneficially owned by our Original Shareholders, JPMorgan Securities and Stark and the
Shares that may be owned by the holders of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds upon conversion of
such bonds are subject to certain lock-up periods. While we are not aware of any intentions of our
Original Shareholders to dispose of a significant amount of our Shares after the completion of this
Global Offering, we are not in a position to give any assurance that our Original Shareholders,
JPMorgan Securities, Stark or any holders of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds will not dispose of
any Shares they may come to own in the future. Sales of substantial amounts of our Shares in the
public market, or the perception that these sales may occur, could materially and adversely affect the
prevailing market price of our Shares.

You may face difficulties in protecting your interests because we are incorporated under
Cayman Islands law, which law may provide less protection to minority shareholders than the
laws of Hong Kong and other jurisdictions

Our corporate affairs are governed by our Memorandum and Articles of Association and by the
Cayman Companies Law and common law of the Cayman Islands. The laws of the Cayman Islands
relating to the protection of the interests of minority shareholders differ in some respects from those in
Hong Kong and other jurisdictions. Such differences may mean that our minority shareholders,
including you, may have less protection than they and you would otherwise have under the laws of
Hong Kong or other jurisdictions. For example, the Cayman Islands does not have a statutory equivalent
of section 168A of the Companies Ordinance which provides a remedy for shareholders who have been
unfairly prejudiced by the conduct of the company’s affairs. See “Summary of Memorandum and
Articles of Association and Cayman Companies Law” in Appendix VIl to this prospectus.

It may be difficult to effect service of process upon us or our Directors or executive officers
who reside in mainland China or to enforce against them in mainland China any judgments
obtained from non-PRC courts

All of our executive Directors and executive officers reside within mainland China, and substantially all
of our assets and substantially all of the assets of those persons are located within mainland China.
Therefore, it may be difficult for investors to effect service of process upon us or those persons inside
mainland China or to enforce against us or them in mainland China any judgments obtained from non-
PRC courts.

China does not have treaties providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments of
courts with Hong Kong, the United States, the United Kingdom, Japan or most other Western
countries. Therefore, recognition and enforcement in China of judgments of a court in any of these
jurisdictions in relation to any matter not subject to a binding arbitration provision may be difficult or
impossible.

You should read the entire prospectus carefully and we strongly caution you not to place any
reliance on any information contained in press articles or other media, some of which may
not be consistent with information contained in this prospectus

There has been press coverage regarding us and the Global Offering in some of the Hong Kong
newspapers, including South China Morning Post, The Standard and Ming Pao, on June 20, 2006,
Hong Kong Economic Times, The Sun and Oriental Daily News, on June 21, 2006, Hong Kong Economic
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Journal, on June 22, 2006 and Ming Pao, Hong Kong Economic Times, China Daily — Hong Kong
Edition, The Standard, Apple Daily, Sing Tao Daily, ##7 H #z, Oriental Daily News, The Sun and Hong
Kong Economic Journal on June 27, 2006, which included financial information, financial projections
and other information about us that does not appear in our prospectus. We wish to emphasize to you
that we do not accept any responsibility for any such news reports, the accuracy or completeness of
any such information and that such reports and information were not sourced from or authorized by
us. We make no representation as to appropriateness, accuracy, completeness or reliability of any such
information or publication. To the extent that any such information appearing in publications is
inconsistent or conflicts with the information contained in this prospectus, we disclaim it. Accordingly,
you should not rely on any such reports or information in deciding whether you wish to invest in our
Offer Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus contains particulars given in compliance with the Companies Ordinance, the Securities
and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information to the public with regard to us. Our Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this prospectus and confirm, having
made all reasonable inquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts
the omission of which would make any statement in this prospectus misleading.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representation not
contained in this prospectus. You should not rely on any information or representation not contained in
this prospectus as having been authorized by us, any Selling Shareholding, the Sponsor, the Joint
Global Coordinators, the Underwriters or any of their respective directors, or any other person involved
in this Global Offering. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any offering, sale or delivery made in
connection with our Shares should, under any circumstances, constitute a representation that there has
been no change or development reasonably likely to involve a change in our affairs since the date of
this prospectus or imply that the information contained in this prospectus is correct as of any date
subsequent to the date of this prospectus.

UNDERWRITING
The Global Offering comprises the Hong Kong Public Offering of initially 32,468,000 Hong Kong Offer
Shares and the International Offering of initially 292,207,500 International Offer Shares, subject, in
each case, to reallocation on the basis as described in the section entitled “Structure of the Global
Offering” in this prospectus and, in case of the International Offering, to any exercise of the Over-
allotment Option.

This prospectus is published solely in connection with the Hong Kong Public Offering. The Sponsor is
sponsoring the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Hong Kong Public Offering is fully
underwritten by the Hong Kong Underwriters on a conditional basis. One of the conditions is that we,
the Selling Shareholders and the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the Underwriters have agreed
on the Offer Price. The International Offering will be fully underwritten by the International
Underwriters under the terms of the International Underwriting Agreement. The entire Global Offering
is conditional upon a favorable determination by JPMorgan Securities and another independent
investment bank of international repute selected by us (and approved in writing by the trustee of the
Convertible Bonds) that the Global Offering constitutes a “qualified public offering” for the purpose of
our Convertible Bonds as described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds — Qualified Public Offering” in
Appendix IX to this prospectus.

We expect that the Offer Price will be fixed by agreement among us, the Selling Shareholders and the
Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the Underwriters on the Price Determination Date, which is
expected to be on or around July 7, 2006 and in any event no later than July 10, 2006. If, for any
reason, we, the Selling Shareholders and the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the Underwriters
cannot agree on the Offer Price, the Global Offering will not proceed. For information about the
Underwriters and the underwriting arrangements, see “Underwriting” in this prospectus.

RESTRICTIONS ON SALE OF THE OFFER SHARES

We offer the Hong Kong Offer Shares solely on the basis of the information contained and
representations made in this prospectus and the related Application Forms and on the terms and
subject to the conditions contained in this prospectus and the Application Forms.
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No action has been taken to permit a public offering of the Offer Shares or the distribution of this
prospectus in any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong. Accordingly, this prospectus may not be used for
the purpose of, and does not constitute, an offer or invitation in any jurisdiction or under any
circumstance in which such an offer or invitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or invitation.

Each person subscribing for or acquiring Offer Shares will be required to confirm, and shall be deemed
by such person’s acquisition of Offer Shares to have confirmed, that such person is aware of the
restrictions on offers of the Offer Shares as described in this prospectus.

Australia

No prospectus or other disclosure document has been lodged with, or registered by, the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC"”) in relation to the Global Offering. This prospectus
does not constitute a prospectus or other disclosure document under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)
(the “"Corporations Act”) and does not purport to include the information required for a prospectus or
other disclosure document under the Corporations Act.

Any offer in Australia of the Offer Shares may only be made to persons (the “Exempt Investors”) who
are “sophisticated investors” (within the meaning of section 708(8) of the Corporation Act), to
"professional investors” (within the meaning of section 708(11) of the Corporation Act) or otherwise
pursuant to one or more exemptions contained in section 708 of the Corporations Act so that it is
lawful to offer the Offer Shares without disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations
Act.

The Offer Shares applied for by Exempt Investors in Australia must not be offered for sale in Australia
for 12 months from the date of issue under the Global Offering, except in circumstances where
disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act would not be required pursuant to an
exemption under section 708 of the Corporations Act or otherwise or where the offer is pursuant to a
disclosure document which complies with Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act or is made where the
body issued the relevant securities with disclosure under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act. Any
person acquiring our Shares must observe such Australian on-sale restrictions.

Cayman Islands

No invitation may be made to the public in the Cayman Islands to subscribe for or purchase any of our
Shares.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”), no Offer Shares may be made to the public in
that Relevant Member State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the Offer Shares
which has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where
appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in
that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that an offer of
Offer Shares may be made to the public in that Relevant Member State at any time:

(@) to legal entities which are authorized or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so
authorized or regulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

(b) to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the

last financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of more than €43,000,000; and (3) an annual net
turnover of more than €50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or consolidated accounts; or
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(c) inany other circumstances which do not require the publication by us of a prospectus pursuant to
Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression of “offer to the public” in relation to any Offer Shares
in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Offer Shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to
decide to purchase or subscribe the Offer Shares, as the same may be varied in that Member State by
any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State and the expression
“Prospectus Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in
each Relevant Member State.

France

This prospectus has not been prepared in the context of a public offering of securities in France within
the meaning of Articles L.411-1 of the French Code monétaire et financier ("CMF”) and Article 211-1 of
the Réglement Général of the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (“RGAMEF") and has therefore
not been submitted to the Autorité des Marchés Financiers for prior approval under conditions set out
inter alia by Articles 212-1 et seq. of the RGAMF. In accordance with Articles L.411-2-4° of the CMF, it
may only be made available to qualified investors listed under Articles D.411-1 of the CMF and/or to a
limited circle of fewer than 100 investors pursuant to Article D.411-2 of the CMF on the condition that
it shall not be passed on to any person nor reproduced (in whole or in part), that investors act for their
own account under conditions set out by Articles D.411-1, D.411-2, D.734-1, D.744-1, D.754-1 and
D.764-1 of the CMF and undertake not to offer, market or distribute, sell or resell or otherwise
retransfer, directly or indirectly, to the public in France the Offer Shares so purchased other than in
compliance with Articles L.411-1, L.411-2, L.412-1 and L.621-8 of the CMF.

Italy

The offering of the Offer Shares has not been registered with the Commissione Nazionale per le
Societae la Borsa (“CONSOB") in accordance with Italian securities legislation. The Offer Shares may not
be offered, sold or delivered, and copies of this prospectus or any other document relating to the Offer
Shares may not be distributed or made available, in the Republic of Italy to the public at large except to
qualified investors (operatori qualificati), as defined by Articles 25 and 31(2) of CONSOB Regulation no.
11522 of July 1, 1998 as subsequently modified (“Regulation 11522") or as defined by any self-
executing provisions of Directive 2003/71/EC which shall have direct effect in Italy as rule of law. Any
offer, sale or delivery of the Offer Shares or distribution or availability of copies of this prospectus in
Italy must be made solely by investment firms, banks or financial intermediaries permitted to conduct
such activities in the Republic of Italy and must be in full compliance with the provisions contained in
Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998, Legislative Decree no. 385 of September 1, 1993 and
their implementing rules and guidelines and any other applicable laws and regulations and possible
requirements or limitations which may be imposed by the Italian competent authorities.

Japan

The Offer Shares have not been and will not be registered for public offering under the Securities and
Exchange Law of Japan (Law No. 235 of 1948 as amended) (the “Securities and Exchange Law").
Accordingly, the Offer Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the
benefit of, any resident of Japan or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan except pursuant to an exemption from the registration
requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Securities and Exchange Law and other
relevant laws and regulations of Japan. As used in this paragraph, a “resident of Japan” means any
person residing in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan.
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Mainland China

This prospectus may not be circulated or distributed in mainland China and the Offer Shares may not be
offered or sold directly or indirectly to any resident in mainland China , or offered or sold to any person
for re-offering or re-sale directly or indirectly to any resident in mainland China except pursuant to
applicable laws and regulations of mainland China.

The Netherlands

The Offer Shares may not be offered, sold, transferred or delivered in or from within The Netherlands as
part of their initial distribution or at any time thereafter directly or indirectly, and neither this
prospectus nor any other document in respect of the Global Offering may be distributed or circulated in
The Netherlands other than to individuals or legal entities who or which trade or invest in securities in
the conduct of a profession or business within the meaning of The Netherlands Securities Transactions
Supervision Act 1995 (Vrijstellingsregeling wet foezicht effectenverkeer 1995) and its implementing
regulations (which include banks, brokers, securities institutions, insurance companies, pension funds,
investment institutions, other institutional investors and other parties including treasury departments of
commercial enterprises and finance companies of groups which are regularly active in the financial
markets in a professional manner).

Singapore

This prospectus has not been and will not be lodged with or registered by the Monetary Authority of
Singapore as a prospectus under the Securities and Futures Act (Cap 289) of Singapore (the “SFA”) and
the Offer Shares will be offered in Singapore pursuant to exemptions invoked under Subdivision 4,
Division 1, of Part XIll, particularly section 274 and section 275, of the SFA. Accordingly, this prospectus
and any other document or material in connection with the offer of the Offer Shares may not be issued,
circulated or distributed in Singapore nor may any of the Offer Shares be offered for subscription or
purchase or made the subject of an invitation or offer for subscription or purchase, whether directly or
indirectly, in Singapore other than (i) pursuant to, and subject to the conditions of, exemptions invoked
under Subdivision 4, Division 1, of Part XIlI, particularly section 274 and section 275, of the SFA and to
persons to whom the Offer Shares may be offered or sold under such exemptions; or (ii) otherwise
pursuant to, and subject to the conditions of, any other applicable provisions of the SFA, as amended
from time to time.

Where the Offer Shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is:

(@) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold
investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of
whom is an accredited investor; or

(b) atrust (which the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments
and each beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and
debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest in that trust shall not be
transferable for six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the Offer Shares
under Section 273 except:

(1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any
person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in

Section 275 of the SFA;

(2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or
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(3) by operation of law.

Taiwan

The Offer Shares have not been and will not be registered with the Financial Supervisory Commission,
the Executive Yuan of Taiwan and are not being offered or sold and may not be offered or sold, directly
or indirectly, in Taiwan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Taiwan, except (i) pursuant to the
requirements of the related securities laws and regulations in Taiwan; and (ii) in compliance with any
other applicable requirements of Taiwanese laws.

United Kingdom

This prospectus has not been approved by an authorized person in the United Kingdom and has not
been registered with the Registrar of Companies in the United Kingdom. The Offer Shares may not be
offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of a period of six months from the date of commencement of
dealings in the Shares on the Stock Exchange. In addition, no person may communicate or cause to be
communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA™)) received by such person in
connection with the issue or sale of the Offer Shares except in circumstances in which section 21(1) of
the FSMA does not apply to us.

United States

The Offer Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act and may not be
offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons
except that the Offer Shares may be offered, sold or delivered to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A or
another exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act or outside the United States in
offshore transactions in accordance with Regulation S.

The Offer Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, any state securities commission in the United States or any other U.S. regulatory
authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the Global
Offering or the accuracy of this prospectus or the circular relating to the International Offering. Any
representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

APPLICATION FOR LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

We have applied to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to
deal in, our Shares in issue and to be issued pursuant to (i) the Global Offering (including any additional
Shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option); (ii) the exercise of
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme; and (iii) the conversion of our non-
mandatory Convertible Bonds. We expect dealing in our Shares on the Stock Exchange to commence
on July 13, 2006.

Our Convertible Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Except for our
Convertible Bonds, no part of our share or loan capital is listed on or dealt in on any other stock
exchange. We are not seeking or proposing to seek a listing of, or permission to list, our share or loan
capital on any other stock exchange.

39



INFORMATION ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS AND THE GLOBAL OFFERING

OUR SHARES WILL BE ELIGIBLE FOR ADMISSION INTO CCASS

If the Stock Exchange grants the listing of, and permission to deal in, our Shares on the Stock Exchange
and we comply with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC, our Shares will be accepted as
eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the Listing
Date or any other date as determined by HKSCC.

Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange is required to take place in
CCASS on the second trading day after a trade. You should seek advice from your stockbroker or other
professional advisors for details of such settlement arrangements as such arrangements will affect your
rights and interests.

We have made all necessary arrangements for our Shares to be admitted into CCASS. All activities
under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in effect
from time to time.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

You should consult your professional advisors if you are in any doubt as to the taxation implications of
subscription for, purchasing, holding or disposing of, and dealing in, our Shares (or exercising rights
attaching to them) under the laws of Hong Kong and the place of your operations, domicile, residence,
citizenship or incorporation. We emphasize that none of the Joint Global Coordinators, Sponsor,
Underwriters, us, Selling Shareholders, any of our or their respective directors or any other person or
party involved in the Global Offering accepts responsibility for your tax effects or liabilities resulting
from your subscription for, purchase, holding or disposing of, or dealing in, our Shares or your exercise
of any rights attaching to our Shares.

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND STAMP DUTY

Our principal register of members will be maintained by our principal registrar, Butterfield Fund Services
(Cayman) Limited, in the Cayman Islands and our branch register of members will be maintained by our
branch registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Dealings in our
Shares registered on our Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject to Hong Kong stamp
duty. Only Shares registered on our Hong Kong branch register of members may be traded on the Stock
Exchange.

OVER-ALLOTMENT AND STABILIZATION

Stabilization is a practice used by underwriters to facilitate the distribution of securities. To stabilize, the
underwriters may bid for, or purchase, the newly issued securities in the secondary market during a
specified period of time to retard and, if possible, prevent a decline in the initial pubic offering price of
the securities.

In connection with the Global Offering, JPMorgan Securities, as stabilizing manager, or any person
acting for it may over-allocate or effect transactions with a view to stabilizing or maintaining the
market price of our Shares at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail in the open market
for a limited period after the Listing Date. Any market purchases will be effected in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulatory requirements. However, there is no obligation on JPMorgan Securities or
any person acting for it to conduct any such stabilizing activity which, if commenced, may be
terminated at the absolute discretion of JPMorgan Securities or any person acting for it at any time. Any
such stabilizing activity is required to be brought to an end on the 30th day after the earlier of the last
day for lodging of applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering and the Listing Date. The number
of Shares that may be over-allocated will not exceed the number of Shares that may be issued or sold
upon exercise of the Over-allotment Option, being 48,701,000 Shares in aggregate, which is
approximately 15% of the number of Offer Shares initially available under the Global Offering.
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Stabilizing actions permitted in Hong Kong pursuant to the Securities and Futures (Price Stabilization)
Rules include:

over-allocation for the purpose of preventing or minimizing any reduction in the market price;
selling or agreeing to sell Shares so as to establish a short position in them for the purpose of
preventing or minimizing any reduction in the market price;

° subscribing, or agreeing to subscribe, for Shares pursuant to the Over-allotment Option in order
to close out any position established as a result of over-allocation or short position described
above;

° purchasing, or agreeing to purchase, Shares for the sole purpose of preventing or minimizing any
reduction in the market price;
selling Shares to liquidate a long position held as a result of those purchases; and
offering or attempting to do anything described in the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th actions above.

As a result of effecting transactions to stabilize or maintain the market price of our Shares, JPMorgan
Securities or any person acting for it may maintain a long position in our Shares. The size of the long
position and the period for which JPMorgan Securities or any person acting for it will maintain the long
position is at the discretion of JPMorgan Securities and is uncertain. In the event that JPMorgan
Securities or any person acting for it liquidates its long position by making sales in the open market, this
may lead to a decline in the market price of our Shares.

Stabilizing action by JPMorgan Securities or any person acting for it is not permitted to support the
price of our Shares for a period longer than the stabilizing period, which begins on the Listing Date on
which trading of our Shares first commences on the Stock Exchange and ends on the 30th day after the
earlier of the last day for lodging of applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering and the Listing
Date. Therefore, the stabilizing period is expected to end on or before August 5, 2006. As a result,
demand for our Shares and their market price may fall after the end of the stabilizing period.

We will ensure or procure that a public announcement in compliance with the Securities and Futures
(Price Stabilizing) Rules will be made within seven days of the expiration of the stabilizing period.

Any stabilizing action taken by JPMorgan Securities or any person acting for it may not necessarily
result in the market price of our Shares staying at or above the Offer Price either during or after the
stabilizing period. Bids for or market purchases of our Shares by JPMorgan Securities or any person
acting for it may be made at a price at or below the Offer Price and therefore at or below the price paid
by you for our Shares.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION FOR HONG KONG OFFER SHARES
You may find the application procedures for our Hong Kong Offer Shares in the section entitled “How
to Apply for Hong Kong Offer Shares” in this prospectus and on the relevant Application Forms.

STRUCTURE OF THE GLOBAL OFFERING
You may find details of the structure of the Global Offering, including its conditions, in the section
entitled “Structure of the Global Offering” in this prospectus.

EXCHANGE RATE CONVERSION

For exchange rate translations throughout this prospectus, unless otherwise specified, we have used
the PBOC Rates of HK$1.00 and US$1.00 equaling Rmb 1.03364 and Rmb 8.0188, respectively, each
being the PBOC Rate on May 31, 2006. All translations from H.K. dollars into U.S. dollars were made at
the rate of US$1.00 to HK$7.7578. The PBOC Rates for the H.K. dollar and U.S. dollar on the Latest
Practicable Date were HK$1.00 = Rmb 1.03037 and US$1.00 = Rmb 8.0026, respectively. We make no
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representations and none should be construed as being made, that any of the Renminbi, H.K. dollar or
U.S. dollar amounts contained in this prospectus could have been or could be converted into amounts
of any other currencies at any particular rate or at all on such date or any other date.

ROUNDING
Any discrepancies in any table between totals and sums of amounts listed in the table are due to
rounding.
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DIRECTORS AND PARTIES INVOLVED IN THE GLOBAL OFFERING

DIRECTORS
Name Address Nationality
Executive Directors

Song Weiping (k ©°F) Room D8, Dangui Garden Chinese
No. 333, Wenyuan Road
Xihu District
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310012

Shou Bainian (#Z44) Room 1001, Unit 2 Chinese
Block 26, Zigui Garden
Xihu District
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310012

Chen Shunhua (i iE#) Room 23-2-601 Chinese
Liu Lang Xinyuan
Shangcheng District
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310002

Guo Jiafeng (zp4£1%)  Room 2-2, Yingui Garden Chinese
No. 469, Wenyuan West Road
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310012

Independent Non-executive Directors

Jia Shenghua (%44 Room 706 Chinese
Block 54, Qiushi Village
Xihu District
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310013

Jiang Wei (#% f&) 7th Floor, No. 7 Sing Woo Crescent Chinese
Happy Valley, Hong Kong

Sze Tsai Ping, Michael (3 57)  Flat 10A British
26 Magazine Gap Road
The Peak, Hong Kong

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (#z##E) 11A Branksome British
3 Tregunter Path
Mid-Levels, Hong Kong

Tang Shiding (pE i) Room 1905 Chinese
Block 8, Guodu Apartment
Xiacheng District
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China, 310006
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PARTIES INVOLVED IN THE GLOBAL OFFERING

Sponsor J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
27th Floor, Chater House
8 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

Joint Bookrunners J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
27th Floor, Chater House
8 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

UBS AG

52th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

Joint Global Coordinators J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5A)
United Kingdom

UBS AG

52th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

Auditors and reporting accountants Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway
Hong Kong

Legal advisors to our company as to Hong Kong law and U.S. law:
Herbert Smith
23rd Floor, Gloucester Tower
11 Pedder Street
Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC law:

T&C Law Firm

11th Floor, Block A Huanglong Century Plaza
No. 1 Hangda Road

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

China 310007

as to Cayman Islands law and British Virgin Islands law:
Maples and Calder

1504 One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong
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Legal advisors to the Underwriters

Property valuer

Compliance adviser

Receiving bankers

as to Hong Kong law and U.S. law:

Sidley Austin

39th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC law:

King & Wood

31st Floor, SOHO Office Tower A
39 Dongsanhuan Zhonglu
Chaoyang District

Beijing, China 100022

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
10th Floor

Jardine House

1 Jardine Place

Central, Hong Kong

Platinum Securities Company Limited

22nd Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building
4 Des Voeux Road

Central, Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
1 Garden Road
Central, Hong Kong

Bank of Communications Company Limited
Hong Kong Branch

20 Pedder Street

Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
15th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower

388 Kwun Tong Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Registered office in Cayman Islands M&C Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309GT, Ugland House
South Church Street
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

Place of business in Hong Kong Room 1406-8
14th Floor, New World Tower
Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Company secretary Lam Kam Tong (CPA, ACCA)
Qualified accountant Lam Kam Tong (CPA, ACCA)
Authorized representatives Shou Bainian

Room 1001, Unit 2

Block 26, Zigui Garden

Xihu District

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China 310012

Lam Kam Tong (CPA, ACCA)
19D, Block 2, Castello
Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

Board audit committee Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec
Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
Jia Shenghua
Tang Shiding
Jiang Wei

Board remuneration committee Jia Shenghua
Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
Chen Shunhua

Board nomination committee Sze Tsai Ping, Michael

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec

Shou Bainian

Tang Shiding
Cayman Islands principal share Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
registrar Butterfield House, 68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705, George Town
Grand Cayman, Cayman Island
British West Indies

Hong Kong branch registrar Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Principal bankers Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central,
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building
Central, Hong Kong

The Bank of China Limited, Zhejiang Province Branch
321 Fengqgi Road

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

China 310003

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Hangzhou Kaiyuan Branch

273 Zhongshan Road

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

China 310001

Agricultural Bank of China
Hangzhou Zhongshan Branch
188 Zhongshan Road
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
China 310002

China Construction Bank Limited, Hangzhou, Xihu
Branch

62 Baochu Road

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

China 310007

Bank of Communications, Shanghai, Pudong Branch
518 Shangcheng Road
Shanghai, China 200120

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shanghai Branch No.2

42 Henan Road

Shanghai, China 200002

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Beijing Fangshan Branch

32 Beida Avenue

Fangshan Liangxiang West Road

Beijing, China 102488

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Hunan Changsha Branch

559 Wuyi Avenue

Changsha, Hunan Province

China 411115

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Hefei Yinhe Branch

616 Meiling Avenue

Hefei, Anhui Province

China 230001
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We have extracted and derived the information and statistics in the section below, in part, from
various official government publications unless otherwise indicated. While reasonable care has been
taken in the extraction, compilation and reproduction of such information and statistics, neither we,
nor any Selling Shareholder, nor the Joint Global Coordinators, Sponsor or Underwriters, nor any of
our or their respective affiliates or advisors, nor any party involved in this Global Offering have
independently verified such information and statistics directly or indirectly derived from official
government publications or make any representation as to their accuracy. The information and
statistics may not be consistent with other information and statistics compiled within or outside
China.

CHINA’S ECONOMY
The PRC economy has grown significantly since the PRC government introduced economic reforms in
the late 1970’s. China’s accession to the World Trade Organization, or WTO, in 2001 has further

accelerated the reform of the PRC economy.

According to National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s real GDP grew at an average annual
growth rate of approximately 9.5% during the 5-year period from 2001 to 2005, making China one of
the fastest growing economies in the world. In 2005, China’s nominal GDP was approximately Rmb
18,232.1 billion, while real GDP grew approximately 9.9% from 2004.

China’s GDP (2001-2005)
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China’s population has increased steadily over the past decades. However, due to the adoption by the
PRC government of the one-child-per-family policy, population growth has remained at a relatively
slow rate from year to year with an annual growth rate of approximately 0.8%. Total population in
China reached approximately 1.3 billion as of the end of 2005.

China’s Population (1995-2005)
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In line with the nominal GDP growth, China’s nominal GDP per capita increased to Rmb 13,985 in
2005, representing a growth of approximately 9.3% in real terms over 2004.

China’s GDP per Capita (2001-2005)
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The urban consumer expenditure per capita in China reached Rmb 7,943 in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 10.6% over 2004.

Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita in China (1995-2005)
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Investments in residential real estate in China were approximately Rmb 1,076.8 billion in 2005,
representing an increase of approximately 21.9% over 2004.

Residential Real Estate Investments in China (1997-2005)
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Since 2004, in order to prevent China’s economy from expanding too rapidly and to achieve a balanced
and sustainable economic growth, the PRC government has taken measures to control money supply,
credit availability and fixed assets investment. The PRC government has also taken measures to
discourage speculation in the residential property market and to increase the supply of affordable
housing rather than high-end residential properties. In response to concerns over the scale of the
increase in property investment, the PRC government has introduced policies to restrict future
development, including:

° limiting the monthly mortgage payment to 50% of an individual borrower’s monthly income and
limiting all monthly debt service payments of an individual borrower to 55% of his or her monthly
income;

° requiring real estate developers to finance 35% rather than 20% of the total projected capital
outlay of any property development with their capital funds;

° increasing the required reserve ratio of funds that a commercial bank must hold on deposit from
7.0% to 7.5% and further to 8.0%, effectively reducing the amount of money a bank is able to
lend; and

° tightening regulations governing mortgage lending and restricting approval of new large-scale
development zones.

In April 2005, Ministry of Construction and other relevant PRC government authorities jointly issued the
Opinions on Stabilizing Property Prices followed by a set of new measures to tackle the overheating of
the real estate industry. The new policies include:

e  a business tax levy on the sales proceeds subject to the length of holding period and type of
properties starting from June 1, 2005;
a ban on onward transfer of uncompleted properties;
strict enforcement of the imposition of a land idle fee for land which has not been developed for
one year or longer starting from the commencement date stipulated in the land use rights grand
contract and cancellation of land use right for land idle for two years or longer;
a stop order and cancellation for projects not in compliance with the planning permits; and
a ban on land provision for villa construction and a restriction on land provision for high-end
residential property construction.

On May 29, 2006, Ministry of Construction, NDRC, PBOC and other relevant PRC government
authorities jointly issued the Opinions on Housing Supply Structure and Stabilization of Property Prices.
Such opinions reiterated the existing measures and introduced new measures to further curb rapid
increases in property prices in large cities and to promote healthy development of the PRC property
market. These measures, among others, include:

° requiring that at least 70% of the land supply approved by a local government for residential
property development for any given year must be used for developing low- to medium-cost and
small- to medium-size units and low-cost rental properties;

° requiring that at least 70% of residential projects approved or constructed on or after June 1,
2006 must consist of units with a unit floor area (% #I # 5% i £%) of less than 90 square meters per
unit and that projects which have received project approvals prior to this date but have not
obtained construction permits must adjust their planning in order to be in conformity with this
new requirement, with the exception that municipalities under direct administration of the PRC
central government and provincial capitals and certain cities may deviate from such ratio under
special circumstances upon approval from the Ministry of Construction;

51



INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

° increasing the minimum amount of down payment from 20% to 30% of the purchase price of
the underlying property if the underlying property has a unit floor area of 90 square meters or
more, effective from June 1, 2006;

° prohibiting commercial banks from lending funds to real estate developers with an internal capital
ratio, calculated by dividing the internal funds by the total project capital required for the relevant
projects, of less than 35%, restricting the grant or extension of revolving credit facilities to
property developers holding a large amount of idle land and vacant commodity properties, and
prohibiting commercial banks from taking commodity properties which have been vacant for
more than three years as security for their loans; and

° imposing a business tax levy on the entire sales proceeds from re-sale of properties if the holding
period is shorter than five years, effective from June 1, 2006, as opposed to two years as such levy
was initially implemented from June 2005; where an individual transfers a property other than an
ordinary residential property after five years from his/her purchase, the business tax will be levied
on the difference between the price for such re-sale and the original purchase price.

On May 30, 2006, the Ministry of Land and Resources published the Urgent Notice on Tightening Land
Administration. In this Notice, the Ministry of Land and Resources stressed that local governments must
adhere to their annual overall land use planning and land supply plans and tighten the control on land
supply for non-agricultural use. The Notice requires local governments to suspend the supply of land for
new villa projects to ensure adequate supply of land for more affordable housing. In this Notice, the
Ministry of Land and Resources also requires the local governments to conduct thorough investigations
of illegal land use and submit a report on such investigations to it by the end of October 2006.

CHINA’S PROPERTY MARKETS

Reform of the PRC property market did not commence until the 1990s. Prior to such reform, the PRC
real estate development industry was part of the nation’s centrally planned economy. In the 1990s, the
PRC government initiated the housing reform and, as a result, China’s real estate and housing sector
began its transition to a market-based system. A brief timeline of key housing reforms is set out below:

1988 NPC amended the national constitution to permit the transfer of state-owned land use rights
1992 Public housing sales in major cities commenced
1994 The PRC government further implemented the reform and established an employer/

employee-funded housing fund
1994 The PRC government issued a regulation regarding pre-sale of commodity housing in cities

1995 The PRC government issued regulations regarding the transfer of real estate, establishing a
regulatory framework for real estate sales

1998 The PRC government abolished the state-allocated housing policy
1999 The PRC government extended the maximum mortgage term to 30 years
The PRC government increased maximum mortgage financing from 70% to 80%

The PRC government formalized procedures for the sale of real property in the secondary
market

2000 The PRC government issued regulations to standardize the quality of construction projects,
establishing a framework for administering construction quality

2001 The PRC government issued regulations relating to sale of commodity properties
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2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

The PRC government promulgated the Rules Regarding the Grant of State-owned Land Use
Rights by Way of Tender, Auction and Listing-For-Sale

The PRC government eliminated the dual system for domestic and overseas home buyers in
China

The PRC government promulgated rules for more stringent administration of real estate
financing for the purpose of reducing the credit and systemic risks associated with such
financing

The State Council issued a notice for sustained and healthy development of the real estate
market

The State Council issued a notice to require that real estate development projects (excluding
affordable housing programs) be financed by developers themselves from their capital funds
with respect to 35%, rather than 20%, of the total projected capital outlay for such projects

The Ministry of Construction amended Administrative Measures on the Presale of
Commaodity Housing in Cities

CBRC issued the Guideline for Commercial Banks on Risks of Real Estate Loans to further
strengthen the risk control of commercial banks over their real estate financing

The PRC government instituted additional measures to discourage speculation in real
properties such as increasing the minimum down payment to 30% of the total purchase
price in some cities where the housing price increased too fast, eliminating the preferential
mortgage interest rate for residential housing, imposing a business tax of 5% on the
proceeds from sales that occur within two years of purchase, and prohibiting resale of
unfinished properties

The PRC government implemented additional land supply, bank financing and other
measures to curb fast increases in property prices, to encourage the development of middle-
to low-end housing and to promote healthy development of the PRC property industry

For additional information on housing reforms and recent regulatory developments, see “Summary of
PRC Laws Relating to the Property Sector” in Appendix VI to this prospectus.
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The housing reforms, together with the economic growth of China, emergence of the mortgage
lending market and urbanization, are the key factors in creating a real estate market in China and in
sustaining the growth of China’s real estate market. These and other government housing reform
measures will continue to encourage private housing ownership in China. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s urbanization rate, i.e. the proportion of the population residing in
urban areas, rose from approximately 29.0% in 1995 to approximately 43.0% in 2005. Increases in the
urban population of China will likely result in increases in demand for residential properties. The table
below describes China’s urbanization rate for the periods indicated.

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Urban population (millions) . . . 459 481 502 524 543 562
Total population (millions). . . . 1,267 1,276 1,285 1,292 1,300 1,308
Urbanization rate (%). . ... .. 36.2 37.7 39.1 40.5 41.8 43.0

Commodity Property Sales

Demand for real estate in China has seen a steady increase over the years. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the total revenue from real property sales in China increased from
approximately Rmb 251.3 billion in 1998 to approximately Rmb 1,808.0 billion in 2005. During the
same period, aggregate GFA sold in China increased from approximately 121.9 million square meters in
1998 to approximately 382.3 million square meters in 2004. Of the aggregate GFA sold in 2004,
approximately 338.2 million square meters were residential properties, representing an increase of
approximately 13.6% over 2003. In 2005, the aggregate GFA sold amounted to approximately 560
million square meters. The aggregate GFA sold in 2005 and the corresponding sales proceeds included
properties that were sold (including pre-sales) in 2005 while the aggregate GFA sold between 1998 and
2004 and the corresponding sales proceeds included properties that were completed and sold between
1998 and 2004. Data for aggregate residential GFA sold in 2005 are currently not available.

GFA Sold in China (1998-2004)
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The average price of commodity properties sold in China increased from Rmb 2,063 per square meter in
1998 to Rmb 2,714 per square meter in 2004, while the average price of residential properties sold
increased from Rmb 1,854 per square meter to Rmb 2,549 per square meter during the same period.
The average price of commodity properties sold in China in 2005 was calculated by dividing total sales
proceeds by the aggregate GFA sold, which was approximately Rmb 3,229 per square meter. According
to an announcement issued by National Bureau of Statistics of China, the average price of residential
properties sold in 2005 increased by approximately 9.3% compared to 2004.

Average Property Prices in China (1998-2005)
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The chart below (with respect to data up to 2004) was prepared by CEIC Data Company Limited, a
comprehensive database provider incorporated in Hong Kong. Data for 2005 were published by
National Bureau of Statistics of China. Mortgage loans have grown significantly since 1997 as a result
of continuous strong demand for residential properties in China.

Housing Mortgage Loans in China (1997-2005)
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HANGZHOU

Hangzhou is the capital city of Zhejiang Province. It covers a total area of approximately 16,596 square
kilometers and had a population of approximately 6.6 million as of December 31, 2005. A key city in
the Yangtze River delta, Hangzhou is 1.5 hours and two hours away from Ningbo and Shanghai,
respectively, by car.

The growth in the economy and population of Hangzhou has generated an increase in housing demand
in the city. From 1995 to 2005, the population of Hangzhou has increased by more than 620,000
representing an increase of approximately 10.5%. In addition, the urbanization rate, i.e. the proportion
of the population residing in non-agricultural areas, increased from approximately 36.5% in 2000 to
approximately 45.1% in 2005.

The nominal GDP of Hangzhou was approximately Rmb 291.9 billion in 2005, while real GDP grew
approximately 12.5% from 2004. Among all the provincial capitals, Hangzhou ranked second after
Guangzhou in terms of nominal GDP in 2004.

Hangzhou’s GDP (1995-2005)
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The population in Hangzhou increased steadily over the years with an average annual growth rate of
approximately 1.0%. As of December 31, 2005, Hangzhou's population reached approximately 6.6
million.

Hangzhou's Population (1995-2005)
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In line with the nominal GDP growth, Hangzhou's nominal GDP per capita increased to Rmb 44,487 in
2005, representing a growth of approximately 11.0% in real terms over 2004. Among all the provincial
capitals, Hangzhou ranked second behind Guangzhou in terms of nominal GDP per capita in 2004.

Hangzhou’s Nominal GDP per Capita (1995-2005)
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Urban consumer expenditure per capita in Hangzhou was Rmb 13,438 in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 19.8% over 2004. In terms of the urban consumer expenditure per capita,
Hangzhou ranked second behind Guangzhou among all the provincial capitals in 2004.

Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita in Hangzhou (1999-2005)
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Residential real estate investments in Hangzhou have increased over the years. Total residential real
estate investments in the city amounted to approximately Rmb 31.6 billion in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 24.7% over 2004.

Residential Real Estate Investments in Hangzhou (1997-2005)
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GFA of completed residential developments in Hangzhou in 2004 was approximately 6.4 million square
meters, representing an increase of approximately 15.5% over 2003. According to monthly statistical
reports published by Hangzhou City Statistical Bureau, total residential GFA completed in Hangzhou
between January 2005 and December 2005 amounted to approximately 6.3 million square meters.

Residential GFA Completed in Hangzhou (1997-2004)
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In 2004, residential GFA under construction in Hangzhou reached approximately 27.1 million square
meters, representing an increase of approximately 42.1% over 2003. According to monthly statistical
reports published by Hangzhou City Statistical Bureau, total residential GFA under construction in
Hangzhou between January 2005 and December 2005 amounted to approximately 32.9 million square
meters.

Residential GFA Under Construction in Hangzhou (1997-2005)
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In 2004, total residential GFA sold in Hangzhou amounted to approximately 5.4 million square meters,
representing an increase of approximately 13.8% over 2003. Total residential GFA sold in Hangzhou in
2005 amounted to approximately 6.2 million square meters. The residential GFA sold in 2005 included
properties that were sold (including pre-sales) in 2005 while the residential GFA sold between 1999 and
2004 included properties completed in these respective years, which might have been sold in periods
prior to the years they were completed.

Residential GFA Sold in Hangzhou (1999-2004)
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The average price of total residential GFA sold in Hangzhou in 2004 reached Rmb 3,714 per square
meter, representing an increase of approximately 1.6% over 2003. The average price of total
residential GFA sold in 2005 was Rmb 5,454 per square meter.

Average Residential Property Price in Hangzhou (1999-2004)

6,000 —50%

5,000 —40%
9]
g 4,000 ~30%
v 2
3 B e g
Z 3,000 20% %
g S
Q. O
£ 2,000 -10%

1,000 —0%

0 T T T T T -10%
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Average Residential Property o Growth (%)

Price (Rmb per square meter)

Sources: Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics; China Real Estate Statistics Yearbook

60



INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

ZHEJIANG PROVINCE

Zhejiang Province is located to the south of the Yangtze River delta, adjacent to Shanghai to its north. It
covers a total area of approximately 101,800 square kilometers and had a population of approximately
45.8 million at the end of 2005. The Yangtze River delta has become an important economic region in
China with significant development and growth potential.

In line with the economic growth in Zhejiang Province, the purchasing power of Zhejiang residents has
increased significantly over the years, which has supported the growth of the real estate market in
Zhejiang Province.

Nominal GDP of Zhejiang Province in 2005 was approximately Rmb 1,336.5 billion, while real GDP
grew approximately 12.4% over 2004. In terms of nominal GDP, Zhejiang Province ranked behind
Guangdong Province, Shandong Province and Jiangsu Province among all the provinces, autonomous
regions and municipalities in China in 2004. In terms of nominal GDP per capita, Zhejiang Province
ranked only behind Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin among all the provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities in China in 2004.

Zhejiang’s GDP (1995-2005)

1,500 25%
-20%
., 1,000
s F15% 2
3 <
£ g
2 S
E 10% O
5001
5%
0 0%

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

I Nominal GDP (Rmb in billions) —&— Real GDP Growth (%)

Sources: National Bureau of Statistics of China; Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics

61



INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The population of Zhejiang Province increased steadily over the years with an average annual growth
rate of approximately 0.6%. As of December 31, 2004, Zhejiang Province had a population of
approximately 45.8 million. Data for 2005 are currently not available.

Zhejiang's Population (1995-2004)
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The nominal GDP per capita in Zhejiang Province reached Rmb 27,552 in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 10.8% in real terms over 2004. Nominal GDP per capita of Zhejiang Province
ranked fourth among all the provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities in China in 2004.

Zhejiang Nominal GDP per Capita (1995-2005)
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Urban consumer expenditure per capita in Zhejiang Province reached Rmb 12,254 in 2005,
representing an increase of approximately 15.2% over 2004. In terms of urban consumer
expenditure per capita, Zhejiang Province ranked fourth among all the provinces, autonomous

regions and municipalities in China, only behind Shanghai, Beijing and Guangdong Province.

Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita in Zhejiang (1995-2005)
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Aggregate residential real estate investments in Zhejiang Province reached approximately Rmb 99.7
billion in 2004, representing an increase of approximately 39.3% over 2003. According to the monthly
statistical reports published by Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics, the aggregate residential real
estate investments in Zhejiang Province amounted to approximately Rmb 108.8 billion in 2005.

Residential Real Estate Investments in Zhejiang (1995-2004)
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The GFA of completed residential developments in Zhejiang Province was approximately 28.0 million
square meters in 2004, representing an increase of approximately 8.9% over 2003. According to the
monthly statistical reports published by Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics, the aggregate
residential GFA completed in Zhejiang Province between January 2005 and December 2005 amounted
to approximately 29.4 million square meters.

Residential GFA Completed in Zhejiang (1995-2004)
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The aggregate residential GFA under construction in Zhejiang Province was approximately 107.6 million
square meters in 2004, representing an increase of approximately 27.5% over 2003. According to the
monthly statistical reports published by Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics, the aggregate
residential GFA under development in Zhejiang Province between January 2005 and December 2005
amounted to approximately 119.6 million square meters.

Residential GFA Under Construction in Zhejiang (1995-2004)
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Total residential GFA sold in Zhejiang Province in 2004 was approximately 25.7 million square meters,
representing an increase of approximately 8.8% over 2003. Data for 2005 are currently not available.

Residential GFA Sold in Zhejiang (1995-2004)
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The average price of residential GFA sold in Zhejiang Province in 2004 was Rmb 2,786 per square
meter, representing an increase of approximately 13.7% over 2003. According to the monthly
statistical reports published by Zhejiang Provincial Bureau of Statistics, the average price of residential
GFA sold in Zhejiang Province rose approximately 9.6% in 2005 over 2004.

Average Residential Property Price in Zhejiang (1995-2004)
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SHANGHAI

Shanghai is situated at the eastern part of the Yangtse River delta region, bordering Jiangsu and
Zhejiang Provinces. It occupies an area of approximately 6,340.5 square kilometers with a population of
approximately 13.6 million as of the end of 2005. Shanghai is one of the four municipalities in China
under the direct administration of the PRC central government.

Shanghai’s nominal GDP reached approximately Rmb 914.4 billion in 2005, while real GDP grew
approximately 11.1% over 2004.

Shanghai‘s GDP (1995-2005)
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The population of Shanghai increased steadily between 1995 and 2005 with an average annual growth
rate of approximately 0.4%. As of December 31, 2005, Shanghai’s population reached approximately
13.6 million.

Shanghai’s Population (1995-2005)
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In line with the nominal GDP growth, Shanghai’s nominal GDP per capita increased to Rmb 51,583 in
2005. Data for the growth rate in real terms for 2005 is currently not available.

Shanghai’s Nominal GDP per Capita (1995-2005)
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Urban consumer expenditure per capita in Shanghai reached Rmb 13,773 in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 9.0% over 2004.

Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita in Shanghai (1995-2005)

16,000 —30%
14,000
-25%
12,000
-20%
10,000 —~
9
€ 8,000 F15% g
o=
<}
6,000 <
-10%
4,000
5%
2,000
0 0%

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
I Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita (Rmb) ~ —€—  Growth (%)

Source: Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Statistics

67



INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Total residential real estate investments in Shanghai amounted to approximately Rmb 92.3 billion in
2004, representing an increase of approximately 32.9% over 2003. According to Shanghai Municipal
Bureau of Statistics, the total residential real estate investments in Shanghai were approximately Rmb
92.1 billion in 2005.

Residential Real Estate Investments in Shanghai (1995-2004)
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Aggregate GFA of completed commodity developments in Shanghai was approximately 31.0 million
square meters in 2005, representing a decrease of approximately 10.1% over 2004. Aggregate GFA of
completed residential commodity developments was approximately 27.4 million square meters,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.9% over 2004.

Residential GFA Completed in Shanghai (1995-2005)
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Total GFA of commodity developments under construction in Shanghai reached approximately 104.6
million square meters in 2005, representing an increase of approximately 10.3% over 2004. Of this
total GFA under construction, approximately 81.0 million square meters of GFA were of residential
developments, representing an increase of approximately 6.0% over 2004.

Residential GFA Under Construction in Shanghai (1995-2005)
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Aggregate GFA of commodity developments sold in Shanghai in 2005 decreased by approximately
9.5% to approximately 31.6 million square meters as compared to 2004. Of this amount,
approximately 28.5 million square meters were of residential properties, representing a decrease of
approximately 12.0% from 2004.

Residential GFA Sold in Shanghai (1995-2005)
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The average price of commodity properties increased from Rmb 6,489 per square meter in 2004 to
Rmb 6,842 per square meter in 2005, representing an increase of approximately 5.4%. The average
price of residential properties increased from Rmb 6,385 per square meter in 2004 to Rmb 6,698 per
square meter in 2005, representing an increase of approximately 4.9%. Year-on-year growth rate in
2004 was based on the new definition adopted by Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Statistics for 2004
and onward and may not be comparable with the percentage changes of reported average selling
prices in 2003 and 2004.

Average Residential Property Price in Shanghai (1995-2005)
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In the above chart, the residential GFA sold between 2004 and 2005 included properties that were sold
(including pre-sales) in these respective years while the residential GFA sold between 1995 and 2003
included properties completed in these respective years, which might have been sold in periods prior to
the years they were completed.
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BELJING

Beijing, as the national capital of China, has long been a political, commercial and cultural center of the
nation. It occupies an area of approximately 16,807.8 square kilometers with a population of
approximately 11.8 million as of the end of 2005. Beijing is one of the four municipalities in China
under direct administration of the PRC central government.

Beijing’s nominal GDP reached approximately Rmb 681.5 billion in 2005 while real GDP grew
approximately 11.1% over 2004.

Beijing’s GDP (1995-2005)
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The population of Beijing has increased steadily between 1997 and 2005 with an average annual
growth rate of approximately 1.0%. As of December 31, 2005, Beijing’s population reached
approximately 11.8 million.

Beijing’s Population (1997-2005)
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In line with the nominal GDP growth, Beijing’s nominal GDP per capita increased to Rmb 44,441 in
2005. Data for the 2005 growth rate in real terms is currently not available.

Beijing’s Nominal GDP per Capita (1995-2005)
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Urban consumer expenditure per capita in Beijing reached Rmb 13,244 in 2005, representing an
increase of approximately 8.6% over 2004.

Urban Consumer Expenditure per Capita in Beijing (1995-2005)
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Real estate investments in Beijing have experienced a continuous increase over the years. Total
residential real estate investments in Beijing amounted to approximately Rmb 78.0 billion in 2005,
representing an increase of approximately 0.5% over 2004.

Residential Real Estate Investments in Beijing (1997-2005)
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Aggregate GFA of completed commodity developments in Beijing was approximately 37.7 million
square meters in 2005, representing an increase of approximately 23.0% over 2004. Aggregate GFA of
completed residential commodity developments was approximately 28.4 million square meters,
representing an increase of approximately 21.2% over 2004.
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Total GFA of commodity developments under construction in Beijing reached approximately 107.5
million square meters in 2005, representing an increase of approximately 8.2% over 2004. Of this total
GFA under construction, approximately 72.8 million square meters of GFA were of residential
developments, representing an increase of approximately 7.7% over 2004.

Residential GFA Under Construction in Beijing (1997-2005)
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Aggregate GFA of commodity developments sold in Beijing in 2005 increased by approximately 13.5%
over 2004 to approximately 28.0 million square meters. Of this amount, approximately 25.7 million
square meters were of residential properties, representing an increase of approximately 12.3% over
2004.

Residential GFA Sold in Beijing (1997-2005)
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The average price of commodity properties increased to Rmb 6,274 per square meter in 2005 from
Rmb 5,053 per square meter in 2004, representing an increase of approximately 24.2%. The average
price of residential properties increased to Rmb 5,853 per square meter in 2005 from Rmb 4,747 per
square meter in 2004, representing an increase of approximately 23.3%.

Average Residential Property Price in Beijing (1999-2005)
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HEFEI, ANHUI PROVINCE

Hefei is the capital city of Anhui Province. It covers a total area of approximately 7,266 square
kilometers and had a population of approximately 4.6 million as of December 31, 2005. Hefei is also
one of the important science and technology centers in China, home to China’s National Science and
Technology University.

Hefei’'s nominal GDP reached approximately Rmb 85.4 billion in 2005 while its real GDP grew
approximately 16.9% over 2004. Its nominal GDP per capita increased by approximately 14.5% over
2004 to Rmb 18,960 in 2005. Urban consumer expenditure per capita in Hefei reached Rmb 7,398 in
2005, representing an increase of approximately 5.7% over 2004.

According to Anhui Provincial Bureau of Statistics, real estate investments in Hefei increased by
approximately 39.9% to a total of approximately Rmb 13.3 billion in 2004. Of the total real estate
investments in 2004, approximately Rmb 10.5 billion were investments in residential properties,
representing an approximately 50.5% increase over 2003. Total GFA of completed residential
developments in 2004 was approximately 4.6 million square meters, representing an increase of
approximately 59.3% over 2003. Total GFA of residential developments under construction in Hefei in
2004 was approximately 11.1 million square meters, representing an increase of approximately 33.3%
over 2003. Total residential GFA sold reached approximately 3.2 million square meters in 2004,
representing an increase of approximately 29.7% over 2003. The average selling price of residential
properties in Hefei was Rmb 2,314 per square meter in 2004, representing an increase of approximately
22.1% over 2003.
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CHANGSHA, HUNAN PROVINCE
Changsha is the capital city of Hunan Province. It covers a total area of approximately 11,825 square
kilometers and had a population of approximately 6.2 million as at the end of 2005.

Changsha’s nominal GDP reached approximately Rmb 152.0 billion in 2005 while its real GDP grew
approximately 14.9% over 2004. Nominal GDP per capita in Changsha reached Rmb 23,968 in 2005,
representing an increase of approximately 13.9% over 2004. In 2004, Changsha’s urban consumer
expenditure per capita amounted to Rmb 9,660, representing an approximately 7.0% increase over
2004.

The economic growth of and increase in urbanization in Changsha have led to an increase in real estate
investment in Changsha. According to Changsha City Statistical Bureau, real estate investments in
Changsha increased by approximately 43.2% over 2003 to a total of approximately Rmb 17.6 billion in
2004. Of the total real estate investments in 2004, approximately Rmb 11.7 billion were investments in
residential properties, representing an increase of approximately 59.4% over 2003. Total GFA of
completed residential developments in 2004 reached approximately 5.4 million square meters,
representing an increase of approximately 29.8% over 2003. Total GFA of residential developments
under construction in Changsha reached approximately 13 million square meters in 2004, representing
an increase of approximately 21.8% over 2003. According to Changsha City Construction Committee,
in 2004, total GFA of commodity properties sold was approximately 2.5 million square meters,
representing a decline of 25% from 2003. Of this total, 2.2 million square meters, or 87.4%, were of
residential properties. According to Changsha City Housing Property Management Bureau, the average
selling price of commodity properties in Changsha was Rmb 2,738 per square meter in 2004,
representing an increase of approximately 10.9% over 2003. The average price of residential properties
sold in 2004 was Rmb 2,391 per square meter, representing an increase of approximately 7.6% over
2003.

URUMQI, XINJIANG UYGUR AUTONOMOUS REGION
Urumai is the capital of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. It covers an area of approximately 12,000
square kilometers with a population of approximately 1.9 million as of the end of 2005.

Urumgi’s nominal GDP reached approximately Rmb 57.1 billion in 2005 while its real GDP grew
approximately 13.6% over 2004. Nominal GDP per capita was Rmb 22,820 in 2004. Urban consumer
expenditure per capita in Urumgi was Rmb 7,052 in 2005, representing an increase of approximately
7.0% from 2004.

According to Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region Bureau of Statistics, real estate investments in
Urumgqi decreased by approximately 12.7% from 2003 to a total of approximately Rmb 4.0 billion in
2004. Of the total real estate investments in 2004, approximately Rmb 2.1 billion were investments in
residential properties, representing a decrease of approximately 10.6% over 2003. Total GFA of
completed residential developments in 2004 was 1.7 million square meters, representing a decrease of
approximately 46.4% from 2003. Total GFA of residential developments under construction in 2004
was approximately 3.1 million square meters, representing a decrease of approximately 33.1% from
2003. GFA of residential properties sold in Urumgi was approximately 2.3 million square meters in
2004, representing a decrease of approximately 13.8% from 2003. The average selling price of
residential properties in Urumgi was Rmb 1,886 per square meter in 2004, representing an increase of
approximately 1.2% over 2003. Data for 2005 are currently not available.
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As of the date of this prospectus, we are 52% owned by Song Weiping, chairman of our Board, 39%
owned by Shou Bainian, executive vice chairman of our Board and chief executive officer, 7% owned
by Xia Yibo, wife of Song Weiping, 1% owned by JPMorgan Securities and 1% owned by Stark. Our
three Original Shareholders hold their respective interests in our company through their wholly owned
investment holding companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Delta House, Profitwise and
Wisearn, respectively. We, through Richwise, our 100% owned British Virgin Islands subsidiary, wholly
own the three main PRC operating subsidiaries, Greentown Real Estate, Shanghai Lvyu and Hangzhou
Jiuxi. These PRC operating companies engage in property development businesses in China by
themselves and/or through their subsidiaries and associated companies. In addition, Richwise also owns
two investment holding companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, namely Green Sea
International Limited and Hua Yick Investments Limited, each currently with a subsidiary in China to
conduct property development. Richwise also owns certain minority ownership interests in project
development companies in China.

The following chart sets forth our corporate and shareholding structures as of the date of this
prospectus:

Song Shou .
Weiping Bainian Xia Yibo
‘100% ‘100% ‘100%
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We assume in this prospectus that this Global Offering will constitute a qualified public offering for the
purpose of our Convertible Bonds as described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in Appendix IX to
this prospectus. According to an agreement entered into between the holders of the Convertible Bonds
and us on June 23, 2006, we have agreed to take steps necessary to allow the holders of our
mandatory Convertible Bonds to redeem their mandatory Convertible Bonds upon a “qualified public
offering” as described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in Appendix IX to this prospectus, and the
holders of our mandatory Convertible Bonds have agreed that they will elect to require us to redeem
these Convertible Bonds at an aggregate amount of approximately US$71 million if this Global Offering
constitutes a “qualified public offering.” The holders of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of US$65 million may elect to convert these non-mandatory Convertible
Bonds into our Shares at any time on or after 180 days subsequent to the closing of this Global
Offering. For additional information on our Convertible Bonds, see “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in
Appendix IX to this prospectus.

OUR HISTORY

Greentown Real Estate, our current wholly owned subsidiary in China, was incorporated as a limited
liability company under the laws of China on January 6, 1995 in Zhejiang Province to engage primarily
in residential property development by itself or through its subsidiaries or associated companies. Prior
to our Reorganization described below, Greentown Real Estate was owned by Song Weiping, Shou
Bainian and Xia Yibo, holding a 54%, 39% and 7% equity interest, respectively. As of the date hereof,
Greentown Real Estate owns over 40 subsidiaries and associated companies located in Zhejiang,
Shanghai, Beijing and other provinces and cities in China to carry on property development business.

Apart from Greentown Real Estate and its subsidiaries and associated companies, Song Weiping and
Shou Bainian have also established other companies to carry on property development in China.

° Hangzhou Jiuxi was incorporated as a sino-foreign joint venture under the laws of China on July
19, 1996 in Hangzhou to carry on property developments primarily in Hangzhou.

e  Shanghai Lvyu was incorporated under the laws of China on July 19, 2000 in Shanghai. Shanghai
Lvyu carries on property developments primarily in Shanghai by itself or through its associated
company.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into on August 10, 2002 among Song Weiping, Shou Bainian, Xia
Yibo and others, the respective ultimately attributable beneficial equity interests of Song Weiping, Shou
Bainian and Xia Yibo in, inter alia, Greentown Holdings Group, Greentown Real Estate, Shanghai Lvyu
and other companies invested by these companies or invested by Song Weiping and/or Shou Bainian
directly which were engaged in property development business under the brand name of Greentown
were, de facto, divided among Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo on a 54%:39%: 7% basis.
Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo have been acting in concert since April 1998 when Mr. Shou
joined us and pursuant to an agreement entered into among Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo
on November 26, 2005, Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo also confirmed and agreed that they
will continue to act in concert in relation to our business operations and management affairs.
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The following chart sets forth our corporate and beneficial shareholding structures prior to our
Reorganization:

Song Welplng
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39% - —

. Greentown Holdings Group Far East Miles®
54% (PRQ) (Hong Kong)
79 54%
54% 39% 39% 7% 50% 25%
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25%

Note:
(1 Far East Miles is owned by independent third parties.

REORGANIZATION

Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on July 28, 2004,
November 16, 2004 and November 16, 2004 by Song Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo,
respectively, as their wholly owned investment holding companies, each with limited liability.

Richwise was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on November 16, 2004 as an investment holding
company with limited liability, with Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn owning 54%, 39% and 7%,
respectively, of its equity interests since its inception.

Our company, Greentown China Holdings Limited, was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands on August 31, 2005, with Delta House, Profitwise
and Wisearn each owning 54%, 39% and 7%, respectively, of its equity interest since its inception.

Pursuant to an agreement among Delta House, Profitwise, Wisearn, Richwise and us relating to the sale
and purchase of shares in Richwise dated November 14, 2005, all the issued shares of Richwise were
transferred by Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn to us and Richwise became our wholly owned
subsidiary.

Richwise acquired our three main operating subsidiaries in China, Greentown Real Estate, Shanghai
Lvyu and Hangzhou Jiuxi as follows:

° Richwise acquired all of the equity interest in Greentown Real Estate from Song Weiping, Shou
Bainian and Xia Yibo on March 10, 2005. Pursuant to an approval certificate (Shang Wai Zi Zhe Fu
Zi [2005] No. 00425) dated April 8, 2005 issued by Zhejiang Provincial Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation Bureau, Greentown Real Estate became a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of Richwise. Greentown Real Estate obtained its new business license on April 22,
2005. On April 25, 2005, Greentown Real Estate further completed the requisite foreign
exchange registration procedures at Zhejiang Provincial Foreign Exchange Bureau.
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° Richwise acquired all of the equity interest in Shanghai Lvyu from Song Weiping and Shou Bainian
(including all beneficiary equity interest owned by Xia Yibo) on December 8, 2004. Pursuant to an
approval certificate (Shang Wai Zi Hu Du Zi [2005] No. 0586) issued by Shanghai Foreign
Investment Commission dated February 28, 2005, Shanghai Lvyu became a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of Richwise. Shanghai Lvyu obtained its new business license on March 18, 2005. On
October 19, 2005, Shanghai Lvyu further completed the requisite foreign exchange registration
procedures at Shanghai Municipal Foreign Exchange Bureau.

° Richwise acquired an aggregate 70% equity interest in Hangzhou Jiuxi from Greentown Holdings
Group and Greentown Real Estate on December 6, 2004. The 25% equity interest owned by Far
East Miles in Hangzhou Jiuxi was also transferred to Richwise on the same day for a cash
consideration of US$2,400,000 based on arm’s length negotiation between the two parties.
Greentown Real Estate owns the remaining 5% of Hangzhou Jiuxi. Pursuant to an approval
certificate (Shang Wai Zi Zhe Fu Zi [1996] No. 07368) dated December 9, 2004 issued by Zhejiang
Provincial Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation Bureau, Hangzhou Jiuxi became a 95%-
owned subsidiary of Richwise. Hangzhou Jiuxi obtained its new business license on December 13,
2004. Hangzhou Jiuxi completed its ownership change registration with Zhejiang Administration
for Industry and Commerce on December 13, 2004.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On January 10, 2006, we issued an aggregate principal amount of US$130,000,000 of Convertible
Bonds, comprising US$65,000,000 mandatory Convertible Bonds and US$65,000,000 non-mandatory
Convertible Bonds. There are two tranches within our mandatory Convertible Bonds, US$40,000,000 in
principal amount of tranche A mandatory Convertible Bonds and US$25,000,000 in principal amount
of tranche B mandatory Convertible Bonds. JPMorgan Securities and Stark are the two subscribers for
our Convertible Bonds. JPMorgan Securities subscribed and is holding US$11,500,000 in principal
amount of our tranche A mandatory Convertible Bonds, US$7,500,000 in principal amount of our
tranche B mandatory Convertible Bonds and US$21,000,000 in principal amount of our non-mandatory
Convertible Bonds. Stark subscribed and is holding US$28,500,000 in principal amount of our tranche
A mandatory Convertible Bonds, US$17,500,000 in principal amount of our tranche B mandatory
Convertible Bonds and US$44,000,000 in principal amount of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds.
Our Convertible Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and will mature on
January 10, 2011.

According to an agreement entered into between the holders of the Convertible Bonds and us on June
23, 2006, we have agreed to take steps necessary to allow the holders of our mandatory Convertible
Bonds to redeem their bonds upon a “qualified public offering” as described in “Summary of
Convertible Bonds” in Appendix IX to this prospectus, and the holders of our mandatory Convertible
Bonds have agreed that they will elect to require us to redeem these Convertible Bonds at an aggregate
amount of approximately US$71 million if this Global Offering constitutes a “qualified public offering.”

According to deeds of charge entered into on January 10, 2006 in connection with the issuance of our
Convertible Bonds, 51% of the shares of each Selling Shareholder held by the relevant Original
Shareholder, and 51% of the shares of Richwise held by our company, are charged with the security
trustee for the benefit of all the holders of our Convertible Bonds. We expect such share charges to be
released upon the consummation of this Global Offering if it constitutes a “qualified public offering” as
described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in Appendix IX to this prospectus, according to the terms
of the Convertible Bonds.

You may find more information on our Convertible Bonds in “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in
Appendix IX to this prospectus.
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EXISTING SHARES SOLD CONCURRENT WITH CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Concurrent with the sale of our Convertible Bonds, Delta House sold 10 Shares, or 1%, in the capital of
our company to JPMorgan Securities and 10 Shares, or 1%, in the capital of our company to Stark at
the price of US$1,000,000 per Share pursuant to a subscription agreement dated January 4, 2006 (the
“Subscription Agreement”) entered into among the Original Shareholders, Delta House, Profitwise,
Wisearn, JPMorgan Securities (in its capacity as underwriter) and us. As a result of the Capitalization
Issue, JPMorgan Securities and Stark each currently own 10,000,000 Shares, representing a
recapitalized purchase price of US$1.00 per Share, implying a discount of approximately 5.6% of
the Offer Price assuming an Offer Price of HK$8.22, being the mid point of the pricing range of
HK$6.57 to HK$9.86 of the Global Offering. These Shares rank pari passu with all other Shares in issue
or to be issued pursuant to the Global Offering and they are not subject to any lock-up under the
Global Offering.
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OUR SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AFTER THE GLOBAL OFFERING

Assuming (i) this Global Offering will constitute a qualified public offering for the purpose of our
Convertible Bonds as described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds — Qualified Public Offering” in
Appendix X to this prospectus; (i) US$40 million in aggregate principal amount of our tranche A
mandatory Convertible Bonds and US$25 million in aggregate principal amount of our tranche B
mandatory Convertible Bonds will be redeemed upon completion of this Global Offering; and (iii) the
Underwriters will not exercise their Over-allotment Option, our shareholding structure immediately
after this Global Offering will be as follows:
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Out of the 29 subsidiaries, 21 entities are principally engaged in the real estate development business. The remaining eight
entities, as described below, are engaged in other business activities which are related to our real estate development

business:

(i) Zhejiang Greentown Property Sales Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged in the
sales of, and marketing for, the properties developed by us.

(i) Beijing Greentown Property Brokers Trading Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged
in the broking and consulting for the properties developed by us in Beijing.

(i) Shanghai Erhai Investment Consulting Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged in the
marketing consultation for properties developed by us in Shanghai.

(iv)  Zhejiang Greentown Material & Equipments Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged
in the trading of construction materials and decoration materials.

(v) Beijing Green Shunda Trading Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged in the trading
of construction materials and decoration materials.

(vi)  Zhejiang Greentown Electronical Technology Equipment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is
principally engaged in the sales and installation of, and other related services for, automatically-controlled
equipment and monitoring equipment for buildings.

(vii)  Zhejiang Greentown Electronical Engineering Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged
in the design and development of computer software and their systems for buildings.

(viii)  Beijing Greentown Investment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Greentown Real Estate, is principally engaged in investment

management business.
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OVERVIEW OF OUR BUSINESS

We are one of the leading residential property developers in China. We were ranked No. 1 among all
property developers in Zhejiang Province by Zhejiang Provincial Real Estate Association in 2005 in terms
of overall corporate strength measured by a combination of factors, including sales, profits, total
assets, total development projects commenced or under development, taxes paid, charitable donations
made, awards received, brand recognition and overall management in 2004. In 2004 and 2005, our
“Greentown” brand was ranked one of the 10 most valuable property brands in China by the Top 10
China Real Estate Research Group, an organization constituted by Enterprise Research Institute of the
Development Research Center of the State Council, Qinghua University Real Estate Research Center
and Soufun China Index Institute. We were established in January 1995 in Hangzhou, the capital city of
Zhejiang Province. While we have historically focused our property development operations in
Hangzhou and other cities within Zhejiang Province, we have over the years become a national player in
the residential property markets with significant operations in Shanghai, Beijing and other strategically
selected cities across the country, including Hefei in Anhui Province, Changsha in Hunan Province and
Urumgi in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region.

We primarily develop quality residential properties targeting middle to higher income residents in
China. Our residential developments aim to provide residents with a comfortable and convenient
community life. We have three main product series:

e villas, which are typically independent houses with one or two storeys;
° low-rise apartment buildings, which are typically three to five storeys; and
° high-rise apartment buildings, which are typically higher than six storeys.

Many of our residential developments are integrated residential complexes, which typically have a total
site area over 150,000 square meters and offer a combination of different product series with such
ancillary facilities as club houses, kindergartens and grocery stores. In addition to residential properties,
we are developing or planning to develop office and hotel properties in Shanghai, Ningbo, Zhoushan
and Hangzhou. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we completed 28 property projects or project phases
with an aggregate site area of approximately 2.1 million square meters and a total GFA of
approximately 2.0 million square meters. Among these 28 projects or project phases, 11 projects or
project phases had been fully sold as of March 31, 2006 and are not included in the Property Valuation
report in Appendix IV to this prospectus.

We are currently developing or planning to develop 83 property projects or project phases with an
aggregate site area of approximately 8.1 million square meters and an estimated total GFA of
approximately 8.6 million square meters, including approximately 5.2 million square meters of site area
and approximately 5.5 million square meters of total GFA attributable to us. Among these on-going or
planned projects or project phases,

24 are located in Hangzhou with a total GFA of approximately 3.4 million square meters;

27 are located in other cities in Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of approximately 2.6 million
square meters,

10 are located in Shanghai with a total GFA of approximately 786,000 square meters;

seven are located in Beijing with a total GFA of approximately 528,000 square meters; and

15 are located in Hefei, Changsha and Urumgi with a total GFA of approximately 1.3 million
square meters.

Among the 83 on-going or planned projects or project phases as of the date of this prospectus, we

have not obtained land use rights certificates with respect to approximately 384,000 square meters of
site area for eight of our projects or project phases. We are in the process of completing all necessary
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procedures, including the payment of land premiums and demolishment and resettlement costs, with a
view to eventually securing all the land use rights certificates. We expect to complete these 83 projects
or project phases within the next five years. No Commercial value has been assigned to the land in
respect of which we have not obtained the land use rights certificates in the Property Valuation report
in Appendix IV to this prospectus.

Unless otherwise specified, area information contained in this prospectus, whether in terms of GFA or
site area, includes all projects in which we have an equity interest. We currently have seven minority-
owned companies which own 27 property projects or project phases with an aggregate site area of
approximately 2.1 million square meters and an estimated total GFA of approximately 3.3 million
square meters.

The chart below shows geographic locations of our 83 property projects or project phases under
development or held for future development across 11 cities in China.
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OUR OPERATING PHILOSOPHY

We formulate our overall real estate development business strategy based on our long-term views of
the economic and social developments as well as the urbanization trends in China. We believe in our
mission to create comfortable, elegant and value-worthy properties for our customers, to enhance the
landscape and visual appeal of the communities and cities where our properties are located, to upgrade
the living environment of our customers, and to grow our business together with our employees and
our community. We believe in our people, attach strong importance to our corporate governance, and
endeavor to incorporate our core values of sincerity, goodwill, exquisiteness and perfection into the
norm of conduct for our employees. Our management is convinced that a strong sense of our
corporate responsibility and a steadfast belief in core values constitute the foundation of our success
and sustainable growth.
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OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we possess the following principal strengths to compete in the residential property
markets in China:

e we are one of the leading national players in the residential property markets in China with high
brand recognition in Zhejiang Province and considerable brand awareness nationwide;

e we offer quality products to our customers through emphasis on planning and design and strict
quality control,
we have sufficient land reserves in strategic locations to support our growth in the next five years;
we have an experienced senior management team supported by a well-trained workforce;
we have an in-depth understanding of market conditions and consumer preferences for private
residential properties in our target markets across China; and

e we have a centralized marketing and sales force to promote our products to our target markets
and to manage our customer relationships.

We are one of the leading national players in the residential property markets in China with
high brand recognition in Zhejiang Province and considerable brand awareness nationwide
We are one of the leading national residential property developers in China with strong presence in
Zhejiang Province. In 2005, we were ranked No. 1 among all property developers in Zhejiang Province
in terms of overall corporate strength according to the notice (Zhe Fang Xie [2005] No. 35) dated
September 27, 2005 and confirmation date March 26, 2006 issued by Zhejiang Provincial Real Estate
Association. In 2004, we were the only property developer based in Zhejiang Province that received the
“Best-known Brand” (%14 iig%%) award from Zhejiang Administration of Industry and Commerce. While
we have historically focused our property development operations mainly in Hangzhou and other cities
within Zhejiang Province, we have over the years become a national player in the residential property
markets with significant operations in Shanghai, Beijing and other strategically selected cities across the
country, including Hefei in Anhui Province, Changsha in Hunan Province and Urumgi in Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region. Our “Greentown” brand was ranked one of the 10 most valuable brands among
all PRC property developers in 2004 and 2005 by the Top 10 China Real Estate Research Group, an
organization constituted by Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research Center of the
State Council, Qinghua University Real Estate Research Center and Soufun China Index Institute. We
believe that our well-recognized brand in Zhejiang Province and the growing awareness of our brand
across the nation will enable us to expand our operations nationwide and to gain better returns.

We offer quality products to our customers through emphasis on planning and design and
strict quality control

We place particular emphasis on the overall artistic appeal, natural environment, architectural
excellence and human-centric facilities for our projects. We position our properties in the market with
distinctive designs and fine qualities reinforced with choice materials, advanced construction
workmanship and effective project management. We have established a comprehensive design and
quality control system, which encompasses our design and construction criteria, development
procedures and responsibility allocation. Over the years, we have established design and research
relationships with over 10 reputable international and domestic design houses to materialize our design
concept and help us position our properties among the best products in the country. We received the
“China Construction Architecture” award issued jointly by China Architecture Yearbook and China
Architecture Research Institute in 2004 in recognition of our achievements in design and architecture.

To ensure the quality of our properties across the country, we select and appoint key managerial staff

at project companies and provide them with centralized training. We have also been certified under the
ISO9000 quality system since 1999. In 2004, according to the surveys conducted by China Quality
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Association among 4,300 owners of properties developed by 30 developers in eight cities, we received
the highest scores in both the customer satisfaction and customer loyalty categories. Our Shanghai
Greentown project was ranked No. 1 in 2005 among the recipients of the Golden Award of the
Shanghai Quality Residential Property by the Shanghai Real Estate Industry Association. Our Chunjiang
Huayue project was awarded as the Best Residential Property in Hangzhou by the Committee for the
Hangzhou Best Residential Property Award in 2005.

We have sufficient land reserves in strategic locations to support our growth in the next five
years

We believe that we have sufficient land reserves with development potential for the next five years.
Over the years, we have acquired land reserves in various strategically selected cities in China. As of the
Latest Practicable Date, we had land reserves, including property projects or project phases under
development or held for future development, with an aggregate site area of approximately 8.1 million
square meters and an estimated aggregate total GFA of 8.6 million square meters, including 5.2 million
square meters of site area and 5.5 million square meters of total GFA attributable to us. Out of the 8.6
million square meters of total GFA, we expect that 1.2 million square meters and 1.8 million square
meters will be completed and ready for delivery in 2006 and 2007, respectively. In terms of total GFA of
our current land reserves, approximately 40% is located in Hangzhou, 30% in other cities of Zhejiang
Province, 9% in Shanghai, 6% in Beijing, 7% in Hefei City of Anhui Province, 7% in Changsha City of
Hunan Province and 1% in Urumgi City of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. Our current land
reserves reflect our current strategic distribution of our operations across China.

In addition, because of our brand and reputation, we are often invited by land authorities in various
regional markets to bid for land for development purposes. We believe that our brand, reputation,
ability to master-plan, design and build large scale projects and our track record in the real estate
industry have been effective in attracting increasingly more strategic partners with financial and/or land
resources to co-develop residential projects with us.

We have an experienced senior management team supported by a well-trained workforce

Our senior management team on average has over 10 years of experience in the PRC property sector,
with considerable strategic planning and business management capabilities. They share our core
corporate values and operating philosophy. Most of our executive directors and senior management
members have been working with us for more than five years. As property development demands close
monitoring, we are highly selective in our hiring process and endeavor to recruit and train employees
who have the potential of becoming long-term and effective management staff in our team. We also
incentivize and motivate our employees with performance-based bonuses and a career development
platform at our company. As of the Latest Practicable Date, approximately 80% of our employees had
college or associate college degrees. In addition, key positions such as construction, sales and financial
managers are filled by persons with necessary qualifications after an internal selection or external
recruiting through a competitive process.

We conduct and host training programs in varying degrees of sophistication for our staff on subjects
such as management techniques, technical skills and technology developments. We believe we have
cultivated a corporate culture built around four core values: sincerity, goodwill, exquisiteness and
perfection. We believe that we have attracted and retained some of the top talents in the real estate
industry in China through the emphasis on our corporate brand-reputation strategy, our on-going
training programs and our competitive compensation packages.
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We have an in-depth understanding of market conditions and consumer preferences for
private residential properties in our target markets across China

We believe that an in-depth understanding of our target markets and accurate product positioning are
essential to our success. Over the years, we have accumulated extensive knowledge of the PRC
residential property industry in general and the regional markets where we operate, in particular. We
maintain a customer database to keep track of changes in demands and preferences of existing and
potential customers. We also conduct regional market research and analysis in order to understand
competitive conditions in the regional markets where we operate or expect to expand. These efforts
assist us in accurately predicting market trends and levels of demand in a particular locality and help us
better plan and design our property projects to meet market trends and preferences. We believe that,
taking advantage of our reputation and brand awareness coupled with our promotion efforts, we are
able to influence market expectations and preferences within our target clientele of middle to higher
income residents.

We have a centralized marketing and sales force to promote our products to our target
markets and to manage our customer relationships

We have a centralized marketing and sales force for most of our projects in China. We believe that our
centralized approach assures consistency in promotion and sales strategy on a nationwide basis. Our
marketing and sales team, with the input from our project companies, formulates our nationwide
marketing and sales strategies and coordinates our promotion activities across different regional
markets in China. We also train and deploy our own sales forces rather than rely on third party brokers
and agents for most of our projects. We believe that our own dedicated sales representatives are better
positioned to service our customers and control property pricing and selling expenses. Our own sales
force has also effectively added accountability to our selling efforts. We also have a dedicated after-sale
service team to collect and act on complaints and suggestions from our customers. The marketing and
sales staff also organize special events, such as inviting potential customers to visit our completed
projects to develop and strengthen customer relations and enhance customer confidence and
awareness with respect to our products. We believe that these measures enhance our market
reputation and increase the number of referrals by existing customers. In 2004, according to the
surveys conducted by China Quality Association among 4,300 owners of properties developed by 30
developers in eight cities, we received the highest scores in both the customer satisfaction and
customer loyalty categories.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES
Our principal business strategies are:

° to maintain our leadership in Zhejiang Province and to further expand in Shanghai, Beijing and
other strategically selected cities across China;
to continue to leverage our brand name and increase our brand value;
to continue to emphasize on project planning and design and to improve the quality and appeal
of our products; and

e to adhere to prudent financial management to ensure sustainable growth and capital sufficiency.

Maintain our leadership in Zhejiang Province and further expand in Shanghai, Beijing and
other strategically selected cities across China

Zhejiang Province remains a key geographical region in our overall business development strategies in
China. With our track record, local knowledge and market reputation in Zhejiang Province, we intend
to maintain our leadership in Zhejiang Province. We believe that the economy in Zhejiang Province is
principally powered by private businesses and that private businesses, in turn, have produced many
higher-income property consumers. In addition, the proximity of Zhejiang Province to Shanghai places
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us in a strategic position to expand in Shanghai. Beijing, as the capital of the nation, attracts property
buyers nationwide and from overseas and presents a relatively mature market for our products. We
entered the Shanghai and Beijing markets in 2000 and 2001, respectively, and have been expanding
our operations in these cities. We believe that our operations in Shanghai and Beijing will have a
franchising value to our endeavor to expand nationwide.

We will continue to pursue business opportunities in other provincial capitals and strategically selected
cities outside Zhejiang Province to capture the economic growth in these regions and to geographically
broaden our revenue base. We intend to use Zhejiang Province as our home base to branch out our
operations to the relatively affluent coastal provinces and to those selected cities across China. We
believe that those provincial capitals and cities in China could present increasing growth opportunities
as they will tend to attract property buyers from smaller cities within the province.

Continue to leverage our brand name and increase our brand value

We believe that our strong brand name has been an important contribution to our past success. We will
continue to focus on product appeal to offer properties with innovative design, high quality and a sense
of community harmony so as to increase our brand value. To maximize our development scale and
brand awareness across China, we also intend to leverage our “Greentown” brand and industry
expertise by partnering with our strategic partners that possess land or financial resources to jointly
develop property projects. We intend to continue to maintain control over key aspects of these co-
developed projects, including project design, construction and quality control. We will also continue to
proactively manage our customer relations, including effectively using our nationwide “Greentown”
customer club to expand our customer base and increase customer loyalty.

Continue to emphasize on project planning and design and to improve the quality and appeal
of our products

We will continue to collaborate with reputable domestic and international architects in our pursuit of
product innovation and professional designs. Our goal is to benchmark our products against world class
development standards through enhanced international cooperation. We will continue to implement
strict quality control to monitor our product quality and workmanship throughout the development
process. We will continue to target middle to higher-end customer segments with our three main
product series and intend to replicate our success stories with these product series in new markets
through on-going product innovations.

Adhere to prudent financial management to ensure sustainable growth and capital
sufficiency

We will continue to closely monitor our capital and cash positions and carefully manage such key
measures as land acquisition costs, construction costs, cash flows and fixed charge coverages. We will
continue to cooperate with strategic partners to develop properties on a selective basis to take
advantage of our partners’ land and financial resources. We will actively manage our sales and pre-
sales to ensure adequate cash flow for our ongoing capital requirements. We will remain disciplined in
our capital commitments and seek long-term financing opportunities.
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OUR OPERATIONS

Property Development

Our business operations primarily involve the development and subsequent sale of high quality
residential properties targeting middle to higher income residents in China. Our residential
developments include villas, low-rise apartment buildings and high-rise apartment buildings. We will
continue to focus on the residential property markets in Zhejiang Province, Shanghai and Beijing and
pursue growth opportunities in strategically selected provincial capitals and cities in China.

We maintain a systematic development approach although each project is specifically designed to cater
to the target market and regional preferences. Our property development process can be summarized
in the diagram below:

Project

. . Project - Deliver
City and site ) construction Pre-sale and y
. —| planning and —» — —» and after-
selection . and sale .
design sale services
management

City and Site Selection

We conduct market research before we enter into a new city. We have formulated a set of criteria in
our city selection process, including:

size and population of the city;

general economic development and development conditions in the private sectors;
purchasing power of the residents;

urban planning and development;

anticipated demand for private residential properties;

future land availability; and

overall competition landscape.

We consider the following factors for site selection and product positioning:

site area and suitability for large-scale development;

location within the city;

neighboring environment and amenities;

infrastructure available or to be made available by the local government;
government planning for its vicinities; and

overall cost structure of the potential development.

Prior to July 2002, most of our land use rights were obtained from local land bureaus and other land
developers through negotiations. On July 1, 2002, the Rules Regarding the Grant of State-Owned Land
Use Rights by Way of Tender, Auction and Listing-for-sale ({2471 25 # p i 2 B0 A 1 b ff i WE B 2)
issued by the Ministry of Land and Resources came into effect. These rules require that land use rights
for the purposes of commercial use, tourism, entertainment and commodity residential properties in
China be granted by the government through public tender, auction or listing-for-sale. When deciding
to whom to grant land use rights, the relevant authorities will consider not only the tender price, but
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also the credit history and qualifications of the tenderer and its development proposal. Grantees of land
use rights may, however, dispose of the land use rights granted to them in private sales, subject to the
terms and conditions of the land use rights grant contracts and relevant laws and regulations.
Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, we may choose to acquire land in the secondary market
through negotiated transfers in addition to the public tender, auction or listing-for-sale process. When
opportunities arise, we will also consider obtaining land use rights from third parties through co-
development arrangements to increase our land reserves. See “Summary of PRC Laws Relating to the
Property Sector” in Appendix VI to this prospectus for more information about PRC land grant
regulations.

Based on our current development and growth targets, we expect to maintain sufficient land reserves
to fulfill our development requirements for the next five years on a rolling basis. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, we had approximately 7.4 million square meters of land under development and
approximately 649,000 square meters of land for future development. We continually search for land
sites which meet our selection criteria.

Project Planning and Design

We have a planning and design department which works closely with our project managers as well as
external designers and architects in master planning, architectural design, landscape design and interior
design. Our senior management is actively involved in the whole process, especially in the master
planning and architectural design of our projects.

The design work for our projects is entirely outsourced to external design firms. Historically, we have
used two design firms minority-owned by Song Weiping, one of our Original Shareholders, to
undertake architectural design work for most of our projects. For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005, fees paid to these two companies accounted for approximately 31.6%, 15.2% and
12.7%, respectively, of our total payments to design firms. With a view to integrating quality with
innovation in designs for our properties, in recent years we have also retained renowned domestic and
international design houses to help design our projects in various aspects, including master planning,
architectural design, landscape design and interior design. Over the years, we have developed long-
term relationships with a number of well-known international design firms, including Dahlin Group,
Inc., Place Design Group Pty Ltd, Bilkey Llinas Design, Belt Collins International (HK) Limited and
Development Design Group Incorporated. We have received various awards in recognition of our
efforts in innovating our property designs. For example, our Deep Blue Plaza project in Hangzhou,
Baihe Apartment project in Beijing and Shanghai Greentown project in Shanghai received “China’s
Most Innovative Building” award in 2004 issued jointly by China Architecture Yearbook and China
Architecture Research Institute, “Beijing Landmark Building” award in 2004 by Shopping Guide
Magazine and “National Classic Residency” award in 2004 jointly by #2535 3% 40 7 %1 45 3 o 0> (Urban
and Rural Planning and Administration Center of the Ministry of Construction), [ & 5 [ Ak £ &
(Chinese Landscape Institute), w5 #i 2 & = £ 0F % & (China Real Estate and Residence Research
Association), wE gz & (China Surveying and Design Association) and w5 [ ik @2 SR 0F 5% &
(China Ethnic Architecture Association), respectively.

Project Construction and Management

We develop and manage our projects through project companies. We designate project managers and
maintain control over the finance and accounting, procurement of construction materials and
construction cost management for our majority-owned project companies. For project companies in
which we have a minority equity stake and over which we otherwise do not maintain management
control, we generally retain the power to designate heads of construction departments and quality
control departments.
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Our construction work is outsourced to independent construction companies, which are selected
through a tender process. As most of our projects do not involve state ownership, we are generally not
required to select the construction companies through a public tender process and may invite a
minimum of three qualified construction companies to bid for a construction project through a tender
by invitation process. We have established a selection procedure to choose our construction contractors
in order to ensure compliance with our quality and workmanship standards. We take into account the
construction companies’ professional qualification, reputation, track records, past cooperation with our
company and financial condition and resources when inviting candidates for the bidding. As an
ISO9000 certified enterprise, we also review the qualifications and performance of our construction
contractors on an annual basis.

Construction materials are either procured by ourselves or by our contractors. For a substantial part of
our purchases of key construction materials, such as steel and cement, we use a centralized
procurement process to help increase our negotiating power and lower our unit costs. We believe that
such an arrangement will also allow us to better control quality of the key construction materials used
in our projects and ensure timely delivery of the projects. Substantially all of the costs of construction
materials, whether procured by ourselves or by the contractors, are accounted for as part of the
contractor fees upon settlement with the relevant contractors. Apart from civil engineering
construction, our construction work also includes interior decoration, gardening and landscaping,
which are entirely outsourced to independent service providers. Of the outsourced construction works,
we receive certain interior decoration services and purchase certain landscaping materials in respect of
outsourced construction works from Greentown Holdings Group and other companies controlled by
our Original Shareholders. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, our aggregate purchases (includings purchases of
raw materials and interior decoration services) from these connected persons accounted for
approximately 5.8%, 4.3% and 6.0%, respectively, of our total procurements during the three
years. For further information, see also “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions.”

To ensure construction quality, our construction contracts contain quality warranties and penalty
provisions for substandard work. Our construction contracts do not allow our construction contractors
to subcontract or transfer their contractual arrangements with us to any third party. We typically
withhold 3% to 5% of the construction fees for two to five years after completion of the construction
to give additional quality assurance. For each project where over 30% of its properties available for pre-
sale have been pre-sold, we select eight to 10 purchasers of properties in that project to establish a
quality inspection team. The team generally conducts on-site inspections on a bi-monthly basis to
oversee the schedule and quality of the related properties.

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, purchases from our single largest supplier
accounted for approximately 7.9%, 10.4% and 4.9%, respectively, of our total purchases. For the
same periods, purchases from our five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 33.2%, 28.6%
and 20.0%, respectively, of our total purchases. None of our Directors, their associates nor any of our
shareholders holding more than 5% of our issued share capital has any interest in our five largest
suppliers.

Pre-sale and Sale

Like other developers, we pre-sell properties prior to the completion of their construction. Under PRC
pre-sale law, property developers must satisfy specific conditions before they can pre-sell their
properties under construction. These mandatory conditions include:

° the land premium must have been paid in full;

° the land use rights certificate, the construction planning permit and the construction permit must
have been obtained;
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° at least 25% of the total project development investments must have been made;

° the progress and the expected completion and delivery date of the construction must be certain;
and

° the pre-sale permit must have been obtained.

These mandatory conditions are designed to impose a timing restriction on developers with respect to
the commencement of pre-sales. They are predicated on substantial progress in project construction
and in capital expenditure. Generally, the local governments also require developers and property
purchasers to use model pre-sale contracts prepared under the auspices of the government. Developers
are required to file all pre-sale contracts with local land bureaus and real state administrations within
30 days of entering into such contracts. Local governments may have additional conditions for
commencing pre-sales of properties.

We maintain a centralized marketing and sales force for most of our development projects in China
through our sales and marketing subsidiaries in Zhejiang Province, Beijing and Shanghai. We have over
100 personnel specializing in marketing and sales. This approach assures consistency in our promotion
and sales strategy on a nationwide basis. Our centralized marketing team formulates our nationwide
marketing strategies and coordinates our promotion activities across different regional markets in
China. We train and use our own sales force rather than rely on outside brokers and agent for most of
our projects. We believe our own dedicated sales representatives are better positioned to serve our
customers and to control our property pricing and selling expenses. Our sales subsidiaries also offer
consultation and sales planning services to third parties on a selective basis.

Our marketing and sales staff cooperate closely with each other in order to determine the appropriate
advertising and selling plans for a particular project. They also conduct market research, formulate
sales, pre-sales and pricing strategies and plan and organize on-site sale and pre-sale procedures. Our
promotion channels include billboard advertisements, promotion over the visual and print media, and
model display. As part of our marketing strategy, we organize potential customers to visit our
completed projects. These show-case visits facilitate sales of our properties under development located
in cities where these visitors reside and help promote our brand. In addition, we provide our existing
customers with an internal bi-monthly publication, Home e Greentown (Home e %), to provide
information on our various projects, including on-going projects. In August 2005, we launched our
Greentown Club with its membership available to all our existing and potential customers. From time to
time, our Greentown Club organizes activities such as mini-concerts and free medical consultation to its
members. In addition, in order to collect views from our customers on an on-going basis and to
continually improve our services, we have established a Customer Service Quality Monitor Group
composed of over 30 representatives selected from customers and residents at most of our property
projects. This group meets once a year with our senior management members and has served as a
forum to exchange views and ideas between us and our customers. We believe that these measures
increase the number of referrals and facilitate recurring purchases by our existing customers.

Our principal customers are individual purchasers of residential properties in China. For the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, revenues attributable to our five largest customers were less than
10% of our total revenues in each year. In 2005, Ms. Xia Yibo, one of our Original Shareholders, was
one of our five largest customers who purchased our properties in the aggregate amount of Rmb
5,487,000, representing 0.22% of our total revenues in 2005. Other than this purchase, none of our
Directors, their associates nor any of our shareholders holding more than 5% of our issued capital has
any interest in our five largest customers during the Relevant Period.
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Most of our customers purchase our properties through mortgage loans. As is customary in the
property industry in China, we provide guarantees to mortgagee banks in respect of the mortgage
loans provided to the purchasers of our properties up until we complete the construction of the
relevant properties and the property ownership certificates and certificates of other interests with
respect to the relevant properties are delivered to the mortgagee banks. See “Financial Information —
Indebtedness and Contingent Liabilities — Contingent liabilities.”

Delivery and After-sale Services

We endeavor to deliver our products to our customers on a timely basis. We closely monitor the
progress of construction of our property projects as well as conducting pre-delivery property
inspections to ensure timely delivery. The time frame for delivery is set out in the sale and purchase
agreements entered into with our customers. Once a property project or project phase has passed the
requisite inspections and is therefore ready for delivery, our customer service staff will notify our
customers in respect of delivery. Our sales and construction staff, together with staff of the property
management company, will inspect the properties prior to delivery to ensure quality.

Our customer service department is responsible for managing our after-sale services. We offer multiple
communication channels to our customers to express their feedback and complaints about our
products or services, including a telephone hotline at our head office and complaint departments at our
project companies. We also cooperate with property management companies that manage our
properties to handle customer complaints. Furthermore, we have set up an ownership certificate
department to assist our purchasers to obtain their property ownership certificates.

Prior to delivery of properties to customers, we engage Zhejiang Greentown Property Management
Company, a subsidiary of Greentown Holdings Group, to manage all of our properties. After the
delivery of properties to customers, with a view to ensuring quality in property management, we
introduce Zhejiang Greentown Property Management Company, to provide property management
services to customers until the owners of the relevant developments have become statutorily entitled to
elect their own property management companies. As of the Latest Practicable Date, owners of all of
our developments who had become statutorily entitled to elect their property management companies
continued to choose Zhejiang Greentown Property Management Company to manage their properties.

OUR PROPERTY PROJECTS
As of the Latest Practicable Date, we had a total of 111 property projects or project phases in China.

We have three categories of properties:

completed properties, comprising properties already completed and delivered;
properties under development, comprising properties with land use rights certificates which
construction is yet to be completed; and

° properties held for future development, comprising properties subject to the issuance of land use
rights certificates pending full payment of land premium and/or demolishment and resettlement
costs or satisfaction of other conditions.

Our classification of properties reflects the basis on which we operate our business and may differ from
classifications employed by other developers. Each property project or project phase may be subject to
multiple land use rights certificates, construction permits, pre-sale permits and other permits and
certificates which may be issued at different times throughout their developments. Our classification of
properties is also different from the classification of properties in the Property Valuation report
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contained in Appendix IV to this prospectus and the Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to this
prospectus. Both reports, prepared pursuant to the standards in their respective professions, share
many similarities in their treatment of these properties.

The differences between our classification of properties and the classification of properties in the
Property Valuation report are as follows:

properties that have been sold are not included in the Property Valuation report;
“properties under development” under our classification include properties in respect of which we
have obtained the relevant land use rights certificates while “properties under development” in
the Property Valuation report refer to properties in respect of which we have obtained the
relevant land use rights certificates as well as construction permits; and

° “properties held for future development” under our classification include properties in respect of
which we have not obtained all of the relevant land use rights certificates but have signed the
land use rights grant contracts while “properties held for future development” in the Property
Valuation report refer to properties in respect of which we have obtained the relevant land use
rights certificates but have not obtained the relevant construction permits. Properties in respect of
which we have not obtained the relevant land use rights certificates but have signed the land use
rights grant contracts are referred to as “properties to be acquired by the group” in the Property
Valuation report.

The differences between our classification of properties and the classification of properties in the
Accountants’ Report are as follows:

properties that have been sold are not included in the balance sheets in the Accountants’ Report;
"properties under development” under our classification include properties in respect of which we
have obtained the relevant land use rights certificates while “properties under development” as
recorded in the Accountants’ Report refer to properties in respect of which we have obtained the
relevant land use rights certificates as well as construction permits; and

° "properties held for future development” under our classification include properties in respect of
which we have not obtained the relevant land use rights certificates but have signed the land use
rights grant contracts while “properties for development” as recorded in the Accountants’ Report
have a broader coverage which also include properties in respect of which we have obtained the
relevant land use rights certificates but have not obtained the relevant construction permits.
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The GFA information in this prospectus is derived on the following basis:

° For total GFA, when the construction of the projects or project phases is complete and we have
received the completion and inspection certificates, the total GFA information in respect of these
projects or project phases refers to the total GFA in such completion and inspection certificates; if
we have not yet obtained the completion and inspection certificates but have the detailed
construction drawings for the projects or project phases, the total GFA information in respect of
these projects or project phases refers to the total GFA in such detailed construction drawings; if
we have not yet had the detailed construction drawings, but have obtained the construction
planning permits for the projects or project phases, the total GFA information in respect of these
projects or project phases refers to the total GFA in such construction planning permits; if we have
not obtained any of the above documents for these projects or project phases, the total GFA
information in respect of these projects or project phases refers to the total GFA estimated based
on our current development plans. Total GFA stated in completion and inspection certificates,
detailed construction drawings and construction planning permits includes underground GFA.
Underground GFA refers to basement and other underground spaces, generally used for parking
and storage purposes. The total GFA information in this prospectus includes both saleable and
non-saleable GFA. Saleable GFA generally refers to residential properties and retail shops and
office space (including internal floor area and shared areas in the building that are exclusively
allocated to such properties). Non-saleable GFA generally refers to certain communal facilities,
including, among others, club houses, schools and floor area for property management purposes
as required by the government.

° For saleable GFA, if we have obtained the pre-sale permits for the projects or project phases, the
saleable GFA information refers to the saleable GFA in the pre-sale permits; if we have not yet
obtained the pre-sale permits but have had the detailed construction drawings for the projects or
project phases, the estimated saleable GFA information in respect of these projects or project
phases refers to the estimated saleable GFA in such detailed construction drawings; if we have
not yet obtained the detailed construction drawings but have obtained the construction planning
permits for the projects or project phases, the estimated saleable GFA information in respect of
these projects or project phases is estimated based on our current development plans in
accordance with such construction planning permits; if we have not yet obtained any of the above
documents for the projects or project phases, the estimated saleable GFA information in respect
of these projects or project phases is estimated based on our current development plans.

° GFA sold information refers to the GFA in the relevant sale and purchase agreements on an
aggregate basis. GFA sold information in this prospectus does not include GFA of parking spaces.

Unless the pre-sale of a project has started, we have provided estimated pre-sale commencement time
for such on-going project in this prospectus. While these estimates are based on the management'’s
best belief and knowledge, they do not represent commitments and are subject to change. Unless a
project has already been completed, we have likewise provided estimated completion time for such on-
going project in this prospectus. Similarly, while these estimates are based on the management’s best
belief and knowledge, they do not represent commitments and are subject to change.
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Majority-owned projects

Dangui Garden (8 #& 1t E)

Dangui Garden is located at No. 333, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 27,200 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 18,376 square meters. It consists primarily of villas with an aggregate of 64 residential
units. This project was developed by us on behalf of Hangzhou Qiantang Real Estate Development
Company, our project partner. According to the relevant development contract, we were entitled to
75% of the profits derived from this project.

Construction of this project was completed in June 1995. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold.
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Jingui Garden (£ # 7t &)

Jingui Garden is located at No. 333, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 26,640 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 10,469 square meters. It consists primarily of villas with an aggregate of 54 residential
units. This project was developed by us on behalf of Hangzhou Qiantang Real Estate Development
Company, our project partner. According to the relevant development contract, we were entitled to
75% of the profits derived from this project.

Construction of this project was completed in November 1995. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in
this project had been sold.
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Yingui Garden (48 4 1 &)

Yingui Garden is located at No. 469, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 40,186 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 27,833 square meters. It consists primarily of villas with an aggregate of 78 residential
units. We co-developed this project with Hangzhou Qiantang Real Estate Development Company, our
project partner. According to our co-development agreement, we were entitled to 75% of the profits
derived from this project.

Construction of this project was completed in June 1996. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold.

Yuegui Garden (B # it &)

Yuegui Garden is located at No. 251, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 26,346 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 18,816 square meters. It consists primarily of villas and low-rise apartment buildings
with an aggregate of 125 residential units. We co-developed this project with Hangzhou Qiantang Real
Estate Development Company, our project partner. According to our co-development agreement, we
were entitled to 40% of the profits derived from this project.

Construction of this project was completed in May 1997. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold, except for 115 square meters of residential space and 892 square meters of
office space.
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Dangui Apartments (& A &)

Dangui Apartments is located at No. 85, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project occupies a total site area of approximately 42,434 square meters with a total GFA
of approximately 47,560 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings with an
aggregate of 397 residential units. We co-developed this project with Hangzhou Qiantang Real Estate
Development Company, our project partner. According to our co-development agreement, we were
entitted to 75% of the profits derived from this project. This project was awarded
WM dT Rk S# (Top Ten New Scenery for Urban Planning in  Hangzhou) by
BN Tk i #% Z& 8 & (Hangzhou Urban and Rural Planning Committee), 73 4 a4t Wi 114> 4t
(Xinhua News Agency, Zhejiang Branch), #i#l H ##t (Hangzhou Daily) and #i4l E# & (Hangzhou
Television Station) in 1998.

Construction of this project was completed in July 1997. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold, except for 124 square meters of residential space.
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Yungui Garden (= #& 1t E)

Yungui Garden is located at No. 333, Wensan West Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 42,216 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 22,265 square meters. It consists primarily of villas and low-rise apartment buildings
with an aggregate of 116 residential units. This project was developed by us on behalf of Hangzhou
Qiantang Real Estate Development Company, our project partner. According to the relevant
development contract, our project partner was entitled to the profits from this project in an amount
equal to 20% of its investment in the project, while we retained the remaining profits.

Construction of this project was completed in April 1998. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold.
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Langui Garden (4 1t E)

Langui Garden is located at No. 386, Gudun Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This
project occupies a total site area of approximately 40,273 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 47,587 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings and villas
with an aggregate of 346 residential units. We co-developed this project with Hangzhou Qiantang Real
Estate Development Company, our project partner. According to our co-development agreement, we
were entitled to 65% of the profits derived from this project.

Construction of this project was completed in April 1999. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold, except for 240 square meters of residential space, 90 square meters of
commercial space, 1,427 square meters of office space and six parking spaces.
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Chunjiang Huayue (& ;I3 )

Chunjiang Huayue is located at No. 19, Fuxing Road, Shangcheng District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project consists of five phases. We have completed the development of Phases I, Il and Il
with Phases IV and V under development. This project is being developed by Hangzhou Greentown Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd., a project company wholly owned by us. The project was named
Wi A JE 48 (Zhejiang Classic Residential Properties) by 2@ A&y &umE41Z% & (Competition
Committee for the National Award for Residential Properties) in 2003, and as #i /i 7 £ A J& 4%
(Best Residential Property in Hangzhou) by #i JH i % A J& 5 5% 48 5% 58 7 8 & (Committee for Hangzhou
Best Residential Property Award) in 2005.

Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 43,108 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 173,751 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings with an
aggregate of 850 residential units and 594 parking spaces. Construction of this phase was completed
in February 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been sold, except for 451
square meters of residential space and 76 parking spaces.
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Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 23,436 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 93,132 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings with an
aggregate of 434 residential units and 247 parking spaces. Construction of this phase was completed
in March 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been sold, except for 1,076
square meters of residential space, 1,688 square meters of commercial space and 10 parking spaces.

Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 12,045 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 60,192 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings with an
aggregate of 267 residential units and 170 parking spaces. Construction of this phase was completed
in May 2006. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been sold, except for 3,269 square
meters of residential space and 35 parking spaces.

See “— Properties under development — Chunjiang Huayue” below for information about Phases IV
and V of Chunjiang Huayue.
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Dishui Building (i % x #&)

Dishui Building is located at No. 1, Ti Huan Er Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This
project occupies a total site area of approximately 4,660 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 25,746 square meters. It consists of a commercial building. This project was developed
by Zhejiang Green Garden Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company wholly owned by us.

Construction of this project was completed in September 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in
this project had been sold.

Guihua City (& 7 #)

Guihua City is located at No. 69, Zijinhua Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This project
consists of two phases. We have completed the development of both phases. This project is developed
by Hangzhou Osmanthus City Real Estate Development & Operation Co., Ltd., a project company
wholly owned by us.

Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 153,802 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 174,546 square meters. It consists primarily of villas and low-rise apartment buildings.
Construction of this phase was completed in July 2002. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
phase had been sold.
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Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 46,912 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 15,903 square meters. It consists primarily of villas and low-rise apartment buildings.
Construction of this phase was completed in January 2003. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
phase had been sold, except for four parking spaces and 44 storage units.

Hangzhou Green Garden (i /i 4 E)

Hangzhou Green Garden is located at No. 36, Qiushi Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
This project occupies a total site area of approximately 36,703 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 123,284 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings. This
project was developed by Zhejiang Green Garden Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us. The project was awarded Wiyl & @ TFE“E7IH (Zhejiang
Construction Project Qian Jiang Award) by #iir & @547 2% W& (Zhejiang Construction Industry
Association) and #iiT & TR 3 H &4 # ¢ (Zhejiang Project Construction Quality Management
Association) in 2005.

[ i —
Je= -
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Construction of this project was completed in November 2003. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in
this project had been sold, except for one parking space.
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Hangzhou Zigui Garden (#i i & 4 1t &)

Hangzhou Zigui Garden is located at No. 268, West Wen Er Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project occupies a total site area of approximately 77,286 square meters with a total GFA
of approximately 122,326 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise and low-rise apartment
buildings. This project was developed by Zhejiang Xingyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us.

Construction of this project was completed in December 2002. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in
this project had been sold.
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Jiuxi Rose Garden (# ;2 % 5 E)

Jiuxi Rose Garden is located at No. 20, Wuyun East Road and No. 8, Wuyun West Road, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project consists of two phases. We have completed the development of both
phases. This project was developed by Hangzhou Jiuxi Property Services Co., Ltd., a project company
wholly owned by us. The project was awarded A & %8 #iL 4% 4 & #¢ (Classic Residential Properties Award)
by %8 5 30 35k 40 63 # WF 45 4% ¥ 0> (Urban and Rural Planning, Research and Administration Center of the
Ministry of Construction), # (& J&, 5 & #k 2 & (Chinese Landscape Institute) and b 5 = #th 7 & {: £ 0F 58 &
(Chinese Real Estate and Residence Research Association) in 2001.

Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 86,522 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 26,506 square meters. It consists primarily of villas. Construction of this phase was
completed in April 2000. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been sold.

Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 120,394 square meters with a total GFA of

approximately 41,629 square meters. It consists primarily of villas. Construction of this phase was
completed in June 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been sold.
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Taohuayuan East (&1 5 = &)

Taohuayuan East is located at Zhongtai Village and Fenghuang Shan, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project occupies a total site area of approximately 381,560 square meters with
a total GFA of approximately 65,136 square meters. It consists primarily of villas. This project was
developed by Hangzhou Taohuayuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company wholly
owned by us. The project was awarded 2 B A Ji 48 i gt 58 )5 22 45 4 R 8% (48 8 131 28 %51) (National Classic
Residential Architecture Award — For Classic Villas) by 4 A J& &7 Z 3 w4A % & (Competition
Committee for the National Award for Residential Properties) in 2002.

Construction of this project was completed in May 2003. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold.
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Yunshu Garden (Z #i %)

Yunshu Garden is located at No. 69 Zijinghua Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This
project occupies a total site area of approximately 7,374 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 16,231 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings. This project
was developed by Hangzhou Osmanthus City Real Estate Development & Operation Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us.

Construction of this project was completed in July 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold.

Zhoushan Dangui Garden (£ L f # 7E &)

Zhoushan Dangui Garden is located at No. 315 Renmin North Road, Dinghai district, Zhoushan,
Zhejiang Province. This project consists of two phases. We have completed the development of both
phases. This project was developed by Zhoushan Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a
project company wholly owned by us.
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Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 26,099 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 42,477 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings. Construction
of this phase was completed in May 2003. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had been
sold, except for 573 square meters of commercial space.

Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 4,501 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 6,809 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings. Construction
of this phase was completed in October 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had
been sold.

Shanghai Greentown (54 1)

Shanghai Greentown is located at No. 99 Jinhe Road, Pudong New Zone, Shanghai. This project
consists of three phases. We have completed the development of Phases | and Il with Phase Ill under
development. This project is developed by Shanghai Lvyu. The project was awarded
S ORISR T =k A4 4 k4 (National Classic Residential Architecture Award — For
Residence Groups) by 7 2% &5 ik 45 k7 #1 4% 38 7.0 (Urban and Rural Planning and Administration Center of
the Ministry of Construction), [ = #h 2 & 1 £ #F 75 & (Chinese Real Estate and Residence Research
Association), = [ Ja 5 E £ g (Chinese Landscape Institute), & B #2385 & (Chinese Surveying
and Design Association) and i [ E jik @ $E WF 9% & (Chinese Ethnic Architecture Association) in 2002,
and F@HEEEEe (Gold Award for Quality Residential Property in  Shanghai) by
T R b A& 17 2 1 & (Shanghai Real Estate Industry Association) in 2005.

Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 87,738 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 188,050 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings.
Construction of this phase was completed in October 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in
this phase had been sold, except for 247 square meters of residential space, 1,055 square meters of
commercial space and 512 parking spaces.
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Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 38,958 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 129,129 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise apartment buildings.
Construction of this phase was completed in September 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties
in this phase had been sold, except for 705 square meters of residential space and 380 parking spaces.

See "—Properties under development — Shanghai Greentown” below for information about Phase Il
of Shanghai Greentown.

Beijing Baihe Apartments (45 EH 4 A )

Beijing Baihe Apartments are located at Yancun County, Fangshan District, Beijing. This project consists
of seven phases. We have completed the development of Phases | and Il, with Phases Ill to VII under
development. This project is being developed by Beijing Sunshine Greentown Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., a project company 80% owned by us.

Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 113,348 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 156,736 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings.
Construction of this phase was completed in May 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
phase had been sold, except for 23,021 square meters of residential space, 513 parking spaces and 84
storage units.
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Phase Il occupies a total site area of approximately 45,730 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 56,364 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings. Construction
of this phase was completed in September 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had
been sold, except for 10,774 square meters of residential space and 201 parking spaces.

See “— Properties under development — Beijing Baihe Apartments” below for information about
Phases Ill to VII of Beijing Baihe Apartments.

Hefei Guihua Garden (& g 4 1 E)

Hefei Guihua Garden is located at High and New Technological Development Zone, Hefei, Anhui
Province. This project consists of three phases. We have completed the development of Phase I, with
Phases Il and Il under development. This project is being developed by Anhui Greentown Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a project company 90% owned by us. This project was designed by Zhejiang
Greentown Oriental Architecture Design Co., Ltd. and Yu Parkin Associates, Inc. The project was
named Z# & +EEx /M@ (Top Ten Residential Communities of Anhui Province) by 4z #4 a3 i
(Construction Department of Anhui Province) in 2004.
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Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 128,027 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 128,930 square meters. It consists primarily of high-rise and low-rise apartment
buildings. Construction of this phase was completed in September 2004. As of March 31, 2006, all
properties in this phase had been sold, except for 7,052 square meters of residential space, 2,236
square meters of commercial space, 452 parking spaces and storage units.

See “— Properties under development — Hefei Guihua Garden” below for information about Phases Il
and Ill of Hefei Guihua Garden.
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Non-majority owned projects

Haining Baihe New City (52 5 4 % )

Haining Baihe New City is located at Haining, Zhejiang Province. This project consists of 15 phases. We
have completed the development of Low-rise Phase |, with Low-rise Phases Il to V, High-rise Phases |, I,
IV and V and Villa Phases | to V under development and High-rise Phase Il held for future development.
This project is being developed by Haining Greentown Xinhu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a
project company 50% owned by us.

Low-rise Phase | occupies a total site area of approximately 71,982 square meters with a total GFA of
approximately 79,455 square meters. It consists primarily of low-rise apartment buildings. Construction
of this phase was completed in December 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this phase had
been sold, except for 1,648 square meters of residential space, 44 parking spaces and 14 storage units.

See “"— Properties under development — Haining Baihe New City” below for information about Low-
rise Phases Il to V, High-rise Phases I, Il, IV and V and Villa Phases | to V of Haining Baihe New City and
“— Properties held for future development” below for information about High-rise Phase Il of Haining
Baihe New City.
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Qilixiang Creek Villas (+ £ & % 31 £ &)

Qilixiang Creek Villas are located at Silian Cun, Shouxiang Town, Fuyang City, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project occupies a total site area of approximately 367,969 square meters with a total
GFA of approximately 122,921 square meters. It consists primarily of villas. This project was developed
by Hangzhou Jimei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 30% by us. This
project was designed by i VT 4 bk £ 25 3% =1 4 BE 2 | (Zhejiang Greentown Architecture Design Co., Ltd).
The project was awarded 2 A Ji 58 B3 8 35t 07 4 & K88 (e 27 %7)  (National  Classic
Residential Architecture Award — For Classic Villas) by i 5 7 42 22 ¢r (Chinese Architecture Institute),
o R A & AR = 58 & (Chinese Real Estate and Residence Research Association), (5] Jal 5= [ i £ 6
(Chinese Landscape Institute) and ##pimar s & ®M 4 .» (Urban and Rural Planning and
Administration Center of the Ministry of Construction) in 2003.

Construction of this project was completed in June 2005. As of March 31, 2006, all properties in this
project had been sold, except for 6,038 square meters of residential space.
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Majority-owned projects

Chunjiang Huayue (&I A)
Chunjiang Huayue is located at Site No. 19, Fuxing Road, Shangcheng District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province.

Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 23,991 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 79,457 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 57,726 square meters of residential space, 2,787 square
meters of commercial space and 260 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in
December 2003 and is expected to be completed in November 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-
sold 51,521 square meters of residential space and 164 parking spaces in this phase.

Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 20,783 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 67,806 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 48,055 square meters of residential space, 5,688 square
meters of commercial space and 180 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in
December 2003 and is expected to be completed in December 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-
sold 21,021 square meters of residential space and 38 parking spaces in this phase.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for Phases IV and V of this project were Rmb 443.2 million. We
estimate that additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 82.0 million will be required for this
project.

See "— Completed properties — Chunjiang Huayue” above for information about Phases I, Il and Ill of
Chunjiang Huayue.

Deep Blue Plaza (R & &%)

Deep Blue Plaza is located at No. 195-207 Zhaohui Road, Xiacheng District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project is being developed by Hangzhou Zhongshan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a
project company wholly owned by us.

This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 18,337 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 134,107 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 59,917 square meters of residential space, 3,975 square
meters of commercial space, 33,735 square meters of office space and 421 parking spaces.

Construction of this project commenced in December 2002 and is expected to be completed in October
2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 55,183 square meters of residential space, 18,315 square
meters of office space, and 231 parking spaces in this phase.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 507.7 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 20.1 million and additional construction costs of
approximately Rmb 361.3 million will be required for this project.

Dingxiang Apartment (T & 2 E)

Dingxiang Apartment is located at Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This
project is being developed by Zhejiang Green Garden Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us. This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately
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6,426 square meters and have an estimated total GFA of approximately 31,468 square meters. It will
primarily consist of high-rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 22,020 square meters of
residential space, 851 square meters of commercial space and 84 parking spaces.

Construction of this project commenced in September 2003 and is expected to be completed in
October 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 18,002 square meters of residential space, 612
square meters of commercial space and 44 parking spaces.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 152.4 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 70.6 million will be required for this project.

Greentown Lanting (4 i & fz)

Greentown Lanting is located at Linping Street, Shanghuangiao Village, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project consists of five phases, all of which are under development. This project
is being developed by Hangzhou Yuhang Jinteng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company
owned as to 75% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 74,866 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 128,456 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 80,000 square meters of residential space, 1,000 square
meters of commercial space, 424 parking spaces and 50 storage units. Construction of this phase
commenced in October 2005 and is expected to be completed in December 2007.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 68,000 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 67,535 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 37,000 square meters of residential space, 10,555 square
meters of commercial space, 250 parking spaces and 50 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in September 2006 and be completed in June 2008.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 73,532 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 203,599 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 145,000 square meters of residential space, 500 square
meters of commercial space, 876 parking spaces and 80 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in January 2007 and be completed in December 2008.

Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 140,000 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 207,507 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 140,000 square meters of residential space, 1,020 parking
spaces and 300 storage units. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in May 2007 and be
completed in June 2009.

Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 71,226 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 54,079 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 39,000 square meters of residential space, 300 parking spaces and 75 storage units.
Construction of this phase is expected to commence in December 2007 and be completed in December
2009.
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As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 407.1 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 164.6 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 200.3 million will be required for Phase | of this project, for
which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Jiahe Jiubao Project (& 71 112 15 E)

Jiahe Jiubao Project is located at Yanggong Village, Jiubao Town, Jianggan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project consists of two phases. We have Phase | under development, with Phase Il held
for future development. This project is being developed by Zhejiang Jiahe Industrial Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 60,955 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 205,000 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 140,000 square meters of residential space, 6,000 square
meters of commercial space and 950 parking spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in June 2007 and be completed in May 2010.

See "— Properties held for future development” for information about Phase Il of Jiahe Jiubao Project.

Jingui Plaza (¢ # kK &)

Jingui Plaza is located between Wenxin Road and Gudun Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. This project is being developed by Hangzhou Osmanthus City Real Estate Development &
Operation Co., Ltd., a project company wholly owned by us. This project consists of a commercial and
office building, will occupy a total site area of approximately 6,984 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 33,776 square meters. This project will offer an aggregate of
2,751 square meters of commercial space, 21,413 square meters of office space and 154 parking
spaces.

Construction of this project commenced in December 2004 and is expected to be completed in
December 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 2,115 square meters of commercial space, 6,423
square meters of office space and 11 parking spaces in this project.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 45.7 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 96.2 million will be required for this project.

Jiuxi Rose Garden Holiday Village (% 3 3 & 4k [ it )

Jiuxi Rose Garden Holiday Village is located at No. 8, Wuyun Road West, Xihu District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project is being developed by Hangzhou Jiuxi. This project is expected to occupy
a total site area of approximately 80,827 square meters and have an estimated total GFA of
approximately 28,000 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an aggregate of 2,836 square
meters of residential space and 8,289 square meters of commercial space. Construction of this project
commenced in October 2004 and is expected to be completed in June 2007.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs

and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 111.8 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 153.4 million will be required for this project.
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Taohuayuan South (#kit/R & &)

Taohuayuan South is located at Taoyuan Community, Zhongtai Village, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project consists of two phases, both of which are under development. This
project is being developed by Hangzhou Yuhang Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a
project company 51% owned by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 449,000 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 123,160 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 121,660 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
October 2004 and is expected to be completed in December 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold
19,414 square meters of residential space.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 490,413 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 134,150 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 129,150 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in June 2007 and be completed in December 2009.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 430.8 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 222.5 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 443.0 million will be required for Phase | of this project, for
which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Taohuayuan West (#7557 &)

Taohuayuan West is located at Zhongtai Village and Fenghuang Shan, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. This project is being developed by Hangzhou Taohuayuan Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., a project company wholly owned by us. This project will occupy a total site area of
approximately 331,172 square meters and have an estimated total GFA of approximately 63,793
square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an aggregate of 62,937 square meters of residential
space. The project was awarded 2B A J& & a5 7 45 4 08 (&8 7 2247) (National Classic
Residential Architecture Award — For Classic Villas) by 2 A48 s 5 L s st
(Competition Committee for the National Award for Residential Properties) in 2002.

Construction of this project commenced in March 2003 and is expected to be completed in August
2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 53,742 square meters of residential space.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 377.7 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 16.8 million and additional construction costs of
approximately Rmb 32.4 million will be required for this project.

Ningbo Guihua Garden (= i # it E)

Ningbo Guihua Garden is located at Luotuo Jie Road, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province. This project consists of
two phases, both of which are under development. This project is being developed by Ningbo
Greentown Osmanthus Garden Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company 60% owned by
us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 57,655 square meters and have an

estimated total GFA of approximately 124,820 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 92,645 square meters of residential space, 542 parking
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spaces and 180 storage units. Construction of this phase commenced in October 2005 and is expected
to complete in May 2008. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 12,712 square meters of residential
spaces, 23 parking spaces and 86 storage units.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 55,022 square meters and an estimated
total GFA of approximately 102,440 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise apartment
buildings with an aggregate of 76,550 square meters of residential space, 3,170 square meters of
commercial space and 285 parking spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in
October 2006 and be completed in December 2008.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 228.6 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 56.9 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 173.9 million will be required for Phase | of this project, for
which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Shangyu Guihua Garden (- = # 3¢ E)

Shangyu Guihua Garden is located at Lingyun lJie, Baiguan Street, Shangyu, Zhejiang Province. This
project is being developed by Shangyu Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company owned as to 51% by us.

This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 96,891 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 184,839 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 140,290 square meters of residential space, 6,400
square meters of commercial space, 597 parking spaces and 300 storage units. Construction of this
phase commenced in June 2004 and is expected to be completed in November 2006. As of March 31,
2006, we pre-sold 89,295 square meters of residential space, 190 parking spaces and 221 storage units
in this project.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 434.7 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 84.5 million will be required for this project.

Zhoushan Dangxiao (1l &%)

Zhoushan Dangxiao is located at No. 116 Wenhua Road, Dinghai District, Zhoushan, Zhejiang Province.
This project is being developed by Zhoushan Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us. This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately
16,272 square meters with an estimated total GFA of approximately 8,113 square meters. It will
primarily consist of villas with an aggregate of 8,113 square meters of residential space.

Construction of this project is expected to commence in July 2006 and be completed in December
2007.

Zhoushan Grand Hotel (£ 11 /8 JE)

Zhoushan Grand Hotel is located at Lincheng New District, Zhoushan, Zhejiang Province. This project is
being developed by Zhoushan Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company wholly
owned by us. This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 87,081 square meters
with an estimated total GFA of approximately 78,587 square meters. Construction of this project
commenced in September 2004 and is expected to be completed in June 2007.
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As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 90.0 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 354.7 million will be required for this project.

Zhoushan Guihua City (L # 3¢ 1)

Zhoushan Guihua City is located at Land Lot LE-22, Lincheng New District, Dinghai District, Zhoushan,
Zhejiang Province. This project consists of two phases, both of which are under development. This
project is being developed by Zhoushan Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project
company wholly owned by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 166,414 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 153,680 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 108,798 square meters of residential space, 6,800 square
meters of commercial space, 470 parking spaces and 563 storage units. Construction of this phase
commenced in August 2004 and is expected to be completed in December 2006. As of March 31,
2006, we pre-sold 63,593 square meters of residential space, 263 parking spaces and 397 storage units
in this phase.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 75,000 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 197,300 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 149,000 square meters of residential space and 630 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in May 2006 and is expected to be completed in June
2008.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 329.9 million. We estimate that
additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 527.6 million will be required for this project.

Zhoushan Service Apartment (% 158 /5 =X 2 =)

Zhoushan Service Apartment is located at Lingcheng New District, Dinghai District, Zhoushan, Zhejiang
Province. This project is being developed by Zhoushan Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a
project company wholly owned by us. This project is expected to occupy a total site area of
approximately 20,964 square meters with an estimated total GFA of approximately 68,300 square
meters. It will primarily consist of a high-rise apartment building with an aggregate of 50,000 square
meters of residential space and 18,300 square meters of office space.

Construction of this project is expected to commence in March 2007 and be completed in April 2009.

Shanghai Dongjiadu (8% x &)
Shanghai Dongjiadu is located at Xiaodongmen Street, Huangpu District, Shanghai. This project
consists of three phases. Phases | and Il are under development, with Phase Ill held for future
development. This project is being developed by Shanghai Huazhe Bund Real Estate Co., Ltd., a project
company owned as to 51% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 16,637 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 76,042 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 55,000 square meters of residential space and 375 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in August 2006 and be completed in
December 2008.
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Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 32,616 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 148,958 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with 101,000 square meters of residential space, 6,000 square meters of
commercial space and 750 parking spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in
August 2007 and be completed in April 2009.

"

See “— Properties held for future development” below for information about Phase Il of Shanghai
Dongjiadu.

Shanghai Greentown (L 54 3)

Shanghai Greentown is located at No. 99 Jinhe Road, Pudong New Zone, Shanghai. This project
consists of three phases. We have completed the development of Phases | and Il, with Phase lll under
development. This project is being developed by Shanghai Lvyu.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 59,839 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 146,489 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 107,576 square meters of residential space, 1,709 square
meters of commercial space and 845 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in March
2005 and is expected to be completed in August 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 7,408
square meters of residential space in this phase.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for Phase Il of this project were Rmb 460.9 million. We estimate
that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 0.1 million and additional construction costs of
approximately Rmb 315.2 million will be required for this project.

See "— Completed properties — Shanghai Greentown” above for information about Phases | and Il of
Shanghai Greentown.

Shanghai Rose Garden (t & ¥ 3 &)

Shanghai Rose Garden is located at Qizhong Forest Athletic City, Ma Qiao Town, Minhang District,
Shanghai. This project consists of four phases. Phases | to lll are under development and Phase IV is held
for future development. This project is being developed by Shanghai Greentown Woods Golf Villas
Development Co., Ltd., a project company wholly owned by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 171,743 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 48,177 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 47,177 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
September 2005 and is expected to be completed in September 2007.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 138,250 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 40,061 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 40,061 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in September 2006 and be completed in December 2007.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 230,968 square meters and an
estimated total GFA of approximately 65,153 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 57,653 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in September 2007 and be completed in January 2009.
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As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 778.4 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 313.3 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 264.8 million will be required for Phase | of this project, for
which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

See “"— Properties held for future development” below for information about Phase IV of Shanghai
Rose Garden.

Beijing Baihe Apartments (1t =54 QA E)
Beijing Baihe Apartments are located at Yancun County, Fangshan District, Beijing.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 62,934 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 80,819 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 51,820 square meters of residential space, 1,557 square
meters of commercial space and 21 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in August
2004 and is expected to be completed in June 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 23,489 square
meters of residential space and 848 square meters of commercial space in this phase. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, we completed 6,379 square meters of residential space and 1,557 square meters of
commercial space in this phase.

Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 36,908 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 65,444 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 51,211 square meters of residential space and 189 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in March 2005 and is expected to be completed in
November 2007.

Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 77,157 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 81,297 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 56,401 square meters of residential space, 9,250 square
meters of commercial space and 213 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in March
2006 and is expected to be completed in November 2008.

Phase VI is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 63,838 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 106,320 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 79,260 square meters of residential space and 328 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in March 2007 and be completed in
November 2009.

Phase VIl is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 44,598 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 85,078 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 65,091 square meters of residential space. Construction of
this phase is expected to commence in March 2008 and be completed in November 2010.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for Phases lll to VII of this project were approximately Rmb 372.3
million. We estimate that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 59.8 million will be required for
Phases lll to VII of this project and additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 142.7 million will
be required for Phases Ill to V of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the
Latest Practicable Date.
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See "— Completed properties — Beijing Baihe Apartments” above for more information about Phases |
and Il of Beijing Baihe Apartments.

Beijing Qinglongqiao (it = & # 1&)

Beijing Qinglonggiao is located at Qinglonggiao Cun, Haidianxiang, Haidian District, Beijing. This
project consists of four phases. Phases | and Il are under development, with Phases Ill and IV held for
future development. This project is being developed by Beijing Xingye Wanfa Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 65% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 55,322 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 38,172 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 26,026 square meters of residential space and 137 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in October 2005 and is expected to be completed in
September 2007.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 49,807 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 70,553 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 42,387 square meters of residential space and 250 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in July 2006 and be completed in
December 2007.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 723.7 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 998.1 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 249.4 million will be required for Phase | of this project, for
which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

See “"— Other Land Acquisition Contractual Arrangements — Beijing” below for information about
Phases Ill and IV of Beijing Qinglonggiao.

Hefei Baihe Apartments (8L 54 2 E)

Hefei Baihe Apartments are located at Hezuohua South Road, Shushan District, Hefei, Anhui Province.
This project consists of two phases, both of which are under development. This project is being
developed by Anhui Greentown Lianhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned
as to 54% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 58,332 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 134,036 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 105,000 square meters of residential space, 4,500 square
meters of commercial space and 800 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in
December 2004 and is expected to be completed in May 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold
28,819 square meters of residential space in this phase.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 38,771 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 118,124 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 88,300 square meters of residential space and 550 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in July 2006 and be completed in May
2008.
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As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 206.1 million. We
estimate that additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 205.2 million will be required for
Phase | of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Hefei Guihua Garden (& B 4 3t E)

Hefei Guihua Garden is located at the High and New Technological Development Zone, Hefei, Anhui
Province.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 150,764 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 213,714 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 156,403 square meters of residential space, 1,087
square meters of commercial space, 571 parking spaces and 602 storage units. Construction of this
phase commenced in July 2003 and is expected to be completed in October 2006. As of March 31,
2006, we pre-sold 84,781 square meters of residential space, 162 parking spaces and storage units in
this phase. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we completed 104,574 square meters of residential space.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 40,938 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 131,287 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 87,712 square meters of residential space, 17,011 square
meters of commercial space and 517 parking spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in July 2006 and be completed in December 2008.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for Phases Il and Il of this project were approximately Rmb 116.3
million. We estimate that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 17.3 million will be required for
Phases Il and Il of this project and additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 57.3 million will
be required for Phase Il of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest
Practicable Date.

See "— Completed properties — Hefei Guihua Garden” above for information about Phase | of Hefei
Guihua Garden.

Changsha Guihua City (K % # 3 3#)

Changsha Guihua City is located at Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan Province. This project consists of
two phases, both of which are under development. This project is developed by Hunan Greentown
Investment & Property Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 51% by us. The project was named
S v 5 fE B Mg (Best Quality Development of Changsha) by £ 7i E % 5 (Housing Administration
Bureau of Changsha), £ i#i#)5 (Planning Bureau of Changsha) and i 2 # 4t (Xiaoxiang
Morning Post) in 2005.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 87,056 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 169,813 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 108,327 square meters of residential space, 13,785
square meters of commercial space, 614 parking spaces and 207 storage units. Construction of this
phase commenced in November 2004 and is expected to be completed in December 2006. As of March
31, 2006, we pre-sold 23,755 square meters of residential space, 22 parking spaces and 19 storage
units in this phase.
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Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 68,155 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 150,034 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 101,856 square meters of residential space, 2,137 square
meters of commercial space, 625 parking spaces and 266 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in July 2006 and be completed in December 2007.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 407.7 million. We
estimate that additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 146.8 million will be required for
Phase | of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Hunan Qingzhu Garden North (g &M E it B)

Hunan Qingzhu Garden North is located at Qingzhu Lakefront, Laodaohe Town, Kaifu District,
Changsha, Hunan Province. This project consists of three phases, all of which are under development.
This project is being developed by Hunan Green Bamboo Lake International Business Community
Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 52.47% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 227,648 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 53,000 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 46,200 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
December 2005 and is expected to be completed in December 2007.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 271,748 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 44,500 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 44,500 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in July 2006 and be completed in December 2008.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 168,252 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 36,000 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 36,000 square meters of residential space. Construction of this project is expected to
commence in May 2007 and be completed in December 2009.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 239.2 million. We
estimate that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 2.0 million will be required for this project
and additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 80.2 million will be required for Phase | of this
project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Hunan Qingzhu Garden South (i@ & /T E=E &)

Hunan Qingzhu Garden South is located at Qingzhu Lakefront, Laodaohe Town, Kaifu District,
Changsha, Hunan Province. This project consists of three phases, all of which are under development.
This project is being developed by Hunan Green Bamboo Lake International Business Community
Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 52.47% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 271,713 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 65,060 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 55,060 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in August 2006 and be completed in April 2008.
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Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 116,956 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 31,780 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 31,780 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in March 2007 and be completed in February 2009.

Phase lll is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 251,694 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 63,256 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 63,256 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in July 2007 and be completed in December 2009.

Xinjiang Rose Garden (37 & ¥ 3t E)

Xinjiang Rose Garden is located at Honggiao Shan, Shuimogou Road, Shuimogou District, Urumaqi,
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. This project consists of three phases, all of which are under
development. This project is being developed by Xinjiang Sunshine Greentown Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 51% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 26,164 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 11,073 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 11,073 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
October 2004 and is expected to be completed in September 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold
1,621 square meters of residential space in this phase.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 65,091 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 13,173 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 9,746 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in April
2005 and is expected to be completed in September 2007.

Phase Ill is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 97,961 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 28,054 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 28,054 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in September 2007 and be completed in November 2008.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 45.9 million. We
estimate that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 11.6 million will be required for this project
and additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 36.7 million will be required for Phases | and |l
of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Non-majority owned projects

Haining Baihe New City (82 5 4 #i#)
Haining Baihe New City is located at Haining, Zhejiang Province.

Low-rise Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 41,135 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 64,590 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 33,756 square meters of residential space, 8,520 square
meters of commercial space, 110 parking spaces and 74 storage units. Construction of this phase
commenced in June 2004 and is expected to be completed in June 2006. As of March 31, 2006, we
pre-sold 32,794 square meters of residential space, 80 parking spaces and 57 storage units in this
phase.
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Low-rise-Phase lll is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 78,325 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 112,084 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 83,198 square meters of residential space, 308 parking
spaces and 281 storage units. Construction of this phase commenced in December 2004 and is
expected to be completed in May 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 7,320 square meters of
residential space, 15 parking spaces and 19 storage units in this phase.

Low-rise Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 30,889 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 63,672 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 38,997 square meters of residential space, 289 parking
spaces and 105 storage units. Construction of this phase commenced in August 2005 and is expected
to be completed in November 2008.

Low-rise Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 41,002 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 69,710 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 47,723 square meters of residential space, 263 parking
spaces and 116 storage units. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in March 2007 and
be completed in June 2009.

High-rise Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 28,500 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 71,800 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 41,411 square meters of residential space, 10,287
square meters of commercial space, 261 parking spaces and 50 storage units. Construction of this
phase is expected to commence in July 2006 and be completed in June 2009.

High-rise Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 41,909 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 110,100 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 62,953 square meters of residential space, 6,724 square
meters of commercial space, 449 parking spaces and 86 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in March 2007 and be completed in June 2010.

High-rise Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 30,636 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 68,268 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 39,049 square meters of residential space, 3,300 square
meters of commercial space, 194 parking spaces and 42 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in March 2008 and be completed in June 2011.

High-rise Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 54,008 square meters and
have an estimated total GFA of approximately 136,537 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 86,523 square meters of residential space, 6,601 square
meters of commercial space, 430 parking spaces and 92 storage units. Construction of this phase is
expected to commence in September 2008 and be completed in November 2011.

Villa Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 125,140 square meters and have
an estimated total GFA of approximately 58,958 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 29,926 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
August 2005 and is expected to be completed in November 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold
15,238 square meters of residential space in this phase.
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Villa Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 73,500 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 30,451 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 30,147 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase commenced in
March 2006 and is expected to be completed in April 2008.

Villa Phase lll is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 134,807 square meters and have
an estimated total GFA of approximately 41,050 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 40,639 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in July 2006 and be completed in November 2008.

Villa Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 66,500 square meters and have
an estimated total GFA of approximately 17,400 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 17,226 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in March 2007 and be completed in May 2009.

Villa Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 53,500 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 18,790 square meters. It will primarily consist of villas with an
aggregate of 18,602 square meters of residential space. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in September 2007 and be completed in November 2009.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for Low-rise Phases Il to V, High-rise Phases | to V and Villa
Phases | to V of this project were approximately Rmb 850.9 million. We estimate that additional land
costs of approximately Rmb 216.3 million will be required for Low-rise Phases Il to V, High-rise Phases |
to V and Villa Phases | to V of this project. We estimate that additional construction costs of
approximately Rmb 169.4 million will be required for Low-rise Phases Il to IV and Villa Phases | and Il of
this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

See "— Completed properties — Haining Baihe New City” above for information about Low-rise Phase |
of Haining Baihe New City and “— Properties held for future development” below for information
about High-rise Phases | to Ill of Haining Baihe New City.

Jade City (35 21)

Jade City is located at Huafeng Cun, Xianlin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This
project consists of five phases, all of which are under development. This project is being developed by
Hangzhou Jade City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 45% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 140,150 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 193,544 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 143,069 square meters of residential space, 690 parking
spaces and 295 storage units. Construction of this phase commenced in September 2004 and is
expected to be completed in December 2007. As of March 31, 2006, we pre-sold 85,760 square meters
of residential space and 149 parking spaces and 188 storage units in this phase.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 93,773 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 160,945 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 113,147 square meters of residential space, 8,000
square meters of commercial space and 569 parking spaces. Construction of this phase commenced in
January 2006 and is expected to be completed in December 2007.
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Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 195,792 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 298,400 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 235,022 square meters of residential space, 1,264
parking spaces and 71 storage units. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in December
2006 and be completed in December 2008.

Phase IV is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 275,103 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 387,800 square meters. It will consist of low-rise apartment
buildings, high-rise apartment buildings and villas with an aggregate of 293,985 square meters of
residential space, 4,000 square meters of commercial space, 1,621 parking spaces and 196 storage
units. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in June 2007 and be completed in
December 2009.

Phase V is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 244,955 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 456,250 square meters. It will consist of both high-rise and low-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 347,265 square meters of residential space, 3,330
square meters of commercial space, 2,107 parking spaces and 152 storage units. Construction of this
phase is expected to commence in June 2008 and be completed in December 2010.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were Rmb 655.2 million. We estimate that
additional land costs of approximately Rmb 443.7 million will be required for this project and additional
construction costs of approximately Rmb 548.0 million will be required for Phases | and Il of this project,
for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Xingqiao Project (£ #5185 B)

Xinggiao Project is located at Nanxing Village, Xinggiao Development Zone Avenue, Yuhang District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. This project consists of two phases. Phase | is under
development, with Phase Il held for future development. This project is being developed by
Hangzhou Yuhang Greentown Jiuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned
as to 35% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 37,195 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 60,750 square meters. It will primarily consist of low-rise
apartment buildings with an aggregate of 45,500 square meters of residential space and 300 parking
spaces. Construction of this project is expected to commence in December 2006 and be completed in
May 2009.

See "— Properties held for future development” below for information about Phase Il of Xinggiao
Project.

Ningbo Green Garden (2§ & &)

Ningbo Green Garden is located at Technology Park, No. 226 Changhai Road, Ningbo, Zhejiang
Province. This project is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 37,680 square meters
with an estimated total GFA of approximately 134,905 square meters. It will primarily consist of high-
rise apartment buildings with an aggregate of 65,437 square meters of residential space, 30,175
square meters of office space and 660 parking spaces. This project is developed by Ningbo Zhebao
Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a project company owned as to 50% by us.

Construction of this project commenced in April 2006 and is expected to be completed in September
2008.
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As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 274.1 million. We
estimate that additional land costs of approximately Rmb 14.5 million and additional construction costs
of approximately Rmb 340.8 million will be required for this project.

Bishui Qingfeng (% k5 &)

Bishui Qingfeng is located at Qiandaohu County, Chunan District, Qiandaohu, Zhejiang Province. This
project consists of two phases, both of which are under development. This project is being developed
by Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Greentown Investment & Property Co., Ltd., a project company owned as
to 29% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 94,176 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 169,321 square meters. It will consist primarily of high-rise
residential buildings with an aggregate of 111,321 square meters of residential space, 13,500 square
meters of commercial space and 880 parking spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to
commence in July 2006 and be completed in December 2009.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 34,091 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 66,079 square meters. It will consist primarily of high-rise
residential buildings with an aggregate of 56,079 square meters of residential space and 200 parking
spaces. Construction of this phase is expected to commence in May 2007 and be completed in
December 2010.

East Sea Plaza (Ri5E %)

East Sea Plaza is located at Jing'an District, Shanghai. This project consists of two phases, both of which
are under development. This project is developed by Shanghai Jingyu Real Estate Co., Ltd., a project
company owned as to 49% by us.

Phase | is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 5,760 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 78,129 square meters. It will primarily consist of commercial
buildings with an aggregate of 67,805 square meters of commercial space and 150 parking spaces.
Construction of this project commenced in August 2005 and is expected to be completed in June 2007.

Phase Il is expected to occupy a total site area of approximately 4,741 square meters and have an
estimated total GFA of approximately 32,231 square meters. It will primarily consist of commercial
buildings with an aggregate of 24,616 square meters of commercial space and 218 parking spaces.
Construction of this project is expected to commence in December 2006 and be completed in July
20009.

As of March 31, 2006, the total development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction costs
and capitalized finance costs) incurred for this project were approximately Rmb 1,388.7 million. We
estimate that additional construction costs of approximately Rmb 286.7 million will be required for
Phase | of this project, for which we had commenced construction as of the Latest Practicable Date.
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Properties held for future development

We also have eight projects or project phases for which our project companies have entered into land
use rights grant contracts, land use rights transfer agreements or other agreements but for which we
have not obtained the land use rights certificates for all or part of the relevant land. These properties
are meant for future development and they have an aggregate site area of 649,299 square meters. As
of the Latest Practicable Date, we had obtained land use rights certificates in respect of an aggregate of
264,983 square meters in site area of these properties and had not obtained the land use rights
certificates for the remaining 384,316 square meters. There is no assurance that we will obtain the land
use rights certificates in respect of the remaining area and we have therefore assigned no commercial
value in the Property Valuation report in Appendix IV to properties with respect to which we had not
obtained the relevant land use rights certificates as of March 31, 2006. As of March 31, 2006, the total
carrying value of such land was approximately Rmb 443.9 million, which primarily represents our
payments toward land costs. According to the relevant land use rights grant contracts or transfer
agreements, the project companies are entitled to a full refund of the land premiums that they have
paid if they fail to obtain the land use rights certificates due to reasons not attributable to them. These
projects or project phases are in their preliminary planning stage and we have incurred some
insignificant costs in connection with such preliminary planning and preparatory work. None of these
projects or project phases have commenced actual physical construction. We divide these properties
into three categories:

Category | includes properties in respect of which we have paid all land premiums as provided in the
relevant land use rights grant contracts and we have applied or are legally entitled to apply for the land
use rights certificates. We have approximately 33,236 square meters of site area in this category for
which we have not obtained land use rights certificates. The aggregate carrying value of such land
parcels was Rmb 376.5 million as of March 31, 2006, which primarily represented our payments
toward land costs. We have been advised by our PRC counsel, T&C Law Firm, that there exists no
material legal impediment to our obtaining the relevant land use rights certificates.

Category Il includes properties in respect of which we will be legally entitled to apply for the land use
rights certificates after we have made the outstanding payments, including land premiums and
demolishment and resettlement costs, as provided in the relevant land use rights grant contracts, which
were not yet due as of the Latest Practicable Date. We have approximately 70,511 square meters of site
area in this category for which we have not obtained land use rights certificates. The aggregate
carrying value of such land parcels was nil as of March 31, 2006, which primarily represented our
payments toward land costs. We have been advised by our PRC counsel, T&C Law Firm, that so long as
we pay the relevant outstanding amounts as they become due under the relevant land use rights grant
contracts, there exists no material legal impediment to our application for, and obtaining of, the
relevant land use rights certificates.

Category Ill includes properties in respect of which we will be legally entitled to apply for the land
use rights certificates subject to (i) our payment of all land premiums and/or (i) our completion of the
demolishment and resettlement process including the payment of all demolishment and resettlement
costs. There exists uncertainties as to the final land premiums and/or demolishment and resettlement
costs payable by us. We have approximately 280,569 square meters of site area in this category for
which we have not obtained land use rights certificates. The aggregate carrying value of such land
parcels was approximately Rmb 67.4 million as of March 31, 2006, which primarily represented our
payments toward land costs.
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Within this category, Ningbo Zheda Technology Zone Phases | and Il are subject to renegotiation on the
land premium and the conclusion of a new land use rights grant contract despite the fact that we have
already signed a contract with, and paid the agreed land premium in full to, the relevant local
governmental agency. When we signed the contract with the relevant government agency in 2003, the
land was for agricultural use and, therefore, our contract was subject to a condition that the land be
converted into construction use by the relevant government agencies. Before we could effect the land
use conversion, the PRC government imposed a moratorium on all large-scale property developments
subject to restructuring and a freeze for approximately six months in 2004. In August 2005, the PRC
Supreme People’s Court issued an interpretative opinion that all land use rights related contracts with
respect to such large-scale property development projects are subject to reconfirmation by the relevant
land bureaus. In December 2005, the Zhejiang provincial government approved the conversion of the
permitted use of this piece of land to property development. During the interim, however, the cost
incurred by the government in preparation of the land exceeded our agreed land premium payable
under the contract and, as a result, the government authorities issued a demand to us for renegotiation
of the land premium in reliance on a 2003 PRC regulation that requires land premiums not to be lower
than the land costs. As of the date of this prospectus, we are still negotiating with the relevant
government authorities regarding the additional land premiums payable and no agreement has been
reached.

We set forth in the table below further information about these properties held for future
development. The proposed GFAs with respect to each project or project phase included in our
properties held for future development, such as the proposed GFAs disclosed in the following table, are
estimates by our management on the basis of the land use rights grant contracts or government project
documents or plans.

Land premiums
to be paid under

Carrying value land use rights Ref. to
as of  grant contracts as of Interest Proposed  Property
March 31, 2006" March 31, 2006 attributable Site area GFA  Valuation
Property projects Location (Rmb in millions) (Rmb in millions) to us (m?) (m?) report
Category |
New Green Garden ... ...... Hangzhou, Zhejiang 229.9 — 50% 27,666 116,000 53
Shanghai Rose Garden Phase IV. . Shanghai 146.6 69.2% 100% 262,392 75,426 48
Category Il
Haining Baihe New City High-rise  Haining, Zhejiang — 210.0 50% 70,511 173,000 52
Phase Il ... ... ...
Category Ill
Jiahe Jiubao Project Phase Il . . .. Hangzhou, Zhejiang 144 — 100% 39,854 131,000 55
Xinggiao Project Phase Il . .. . .. Hangzhou, Zhejiang 26.4 — 35% 38,581 61,780 54
Shanghai Dongjiadu Phase Ill. . . . Shanghai — 51% 16,505 75,000 49
Ningbo Zheda Technology Zone Ningbo, Zhejiang 26.6 see Note (6) 60% 73,336 184,845 50
Phase | .. ............
Ningbo Zheda Technology Zone Ningbo, Zhejiang — see Note (6) 60% 120,454 61,939 50
Phase Il ... ..........
Total ................. 443.9 279.2 649,299 878,990
Notes:

(1) Carrying value represented costs incurred for these properties held for future development, comprising primarily land costs
together with some preliminary planning expenses.
(2) Land premiums to be paid under land use rights grant contracts represented outstanding considerations for the grant of
land use rights according to the relevant land use rights grant contracts.
(3)  All land premiums under the land use rights grant contract for Shanghai Rose Garden Phase IV have been fully paid
subsequent to March 31, 2006.
(4)  We have obtained the land use rights certificate in respect of 256,822 square meters of land in Shanghai Rose Garden

Phase IV.

(5)  We have obtained the land use rights certificate in respect of 8,161 square meters of land in Shanghai Dongjiadu Phase III.
(6)  We and the relevant government authorities are still in the process of negotiating the additional land premiums payable
with respect to these two project phases.
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We have not assigned any commercial value to these land parcels because we have not received the
relevant land use rights certificates. The Property Valuation included in Appendix IV to this prospectus,
however, made references to these properties and also disclosed their estimated values attributable to
us on the assumption that the various conditions are satisfied in due course, in particular:

° that the requisite land premiums are paid on a timely basis in accordance with the land use rights
grant contracts; and

° that no other legal impediments exist or will occur to us for obtaining the relevant land use rights
certificates.

You should not unduly rely on such estimated values as disclosed in the Property Valuation report when
making your investment decision in our Shares.

Other Land Acquisition Contractual Arrangements

Hangzhou — Liu Zhuang Project. In March 2005, Zhejiang Fazhan Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., (“Zhejiang Fazhan Real Estate”) signed a land use rights grant contract with Hangzhou Land and
Resources Bureau to acquire a parcel of land with an aggregate site area of approximately 51,062
square meters. In September 2005, Zhejiang Fazhan Real Estate and us established Zhejiang Fazhan
Greentown Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown”), in which Zhejiang Fazhan Real Estate
and us each hold a 55% and 45% interest, respectively. In October 2005, Zhejiang Fazhan Real Estate
transferred all its rights and obligations under the land use rights grant contract to Zhejiang Fazhan
Greentown. As of March 7, 2006, Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown was in default of certain land premium
and compensation fee payments. The relevant land authorities agreed to postpone the payment of
such land premiums and compensation fees to the end of April 2006. Our PRC counsel, T&C Law Firm,
has advised us that the relevant land use rights grant contract and compensation agreement remain
valid and Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown is subject to a penalty at the rate of 0.1% of the amount in
default per day for the defaulting period pursuant to the relevant land use rights grant contract and
compensation agreement, unless the relevant authorities waive them. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
such penalty fees amounted to approximately Rmb 39.5 million. Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown has paid
approximately Rmb 421.5 million out of the total amount of land premiums and compensation fees,
with approximately Rmb 80.4 million of land premium and compensation fee outstanding and in
default. Due to such default, Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown may forfeit to the government the relevant
parcel of land in respect of which such land premium or compensation fee remains outstanding. On
May 9, 2006, the project partners of this project passed a shareholders’ resolution providing that all
losses arising out of the possible penalties and forfeiture of land in respect of this project will be borne
by our project partner, the majority shareholder of Zhejiang Fazhan Greentown.

Beijing. In February 2002, Beijing municipal government approved the Beijing Qinglonggiao project.
The site covers an aggregate site area of 346,370 square meters with an aggregate proposed GFA of
340,530 square meters. We have divided this project into four phases. In April 2004, we entered into a
land use rights grant contract with the Beijing municipal government with respect to Beijing
Qinglonggiao Phases | and Il with an aggregate site area of 105,129 square meters and an aggregate
proposed GFA of 101,812 square meters. In November 2004, we received the relevant land use rights
certificates for the two phases. You may find more details about Beijing Qinglonggiao Phases | and Il in
“— Properties under development — Beijing Qinglonggiao.”

We have not entered into any land use rights grant contract with respect to Beijing Qinglonggiao
Phases lll and IV. These two phases have an aggregate site area of 241,238 square meters and an
aggregate proposed GFA of 231,807 square meters. The land parcels underlying the two phases have
been designated for relocation and infrastructure construction purposes under the city planning and
forestation program initiated by Beijing municipal government. Under this program, Beijing Haidian
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district government reclaimed certain parcels of land in the district and is in the process of relocating
the original residents on such land to certain other areas of the district. We have received approval
from Beijing Haidian district government to commence the demolishment and resettlement process.
After we complete the demolishment and resettlement process, we intend to apply for the conversion
of the use of this piece of land to commercial development and to sell the properties to the public. If
Beijing municipal government approves such conversion, we will need to pay additional land premiums
as determined by the relevant land authorities. Such determination will take into account the
demolishment and resettlement costs that we have incurred. However, we cannot assure you that
Beijing municipal government will approve the conversion of the designated use to commercial
development.

If we fail to obtain the approval to convert the land to commercial development, under applicable
regulations promulgated by Beijing municipal government we may sell the properties built on such sites
after their completion to the residents subject to relocation under the city planning and forestation
program initiated by Beijing municipal government. Each resident subject to relocation under such
program can purchase the properties by reference to their development costs for GFA of up to 50
square meters. For GFA exceeding 50 square meters per person, the selling price will be determined by
the relevant authorities, which generally is higher than prices based on development costs.

Beijing Qinglonggiao Phases Ill and IV will be developed by the same project company that is currently
developing Beijing Qinglonggiao Phases | and Il, Beijing Xingye Wanfa Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., a project company owned as to 65% by us.

Hangzhou — Baochu Road Project. In May 2006, we won a bid for co-development of a residential
property development site currently owned by the PRC military, whereby the PRC military will provide
the land and we will pay for the construction costs and demolishment and resettlement costs and both
the PRC military and us will share the properties according to an agreed ratio. We paid Rmb 5.0 million
as the bidding deposit to the land owner. The site covers an area of 25,041 square meters with a
proposed total GFA of approximately 46,200 square meters. On May 16, 2006, we signed the co-
development agreement with the land owner on this proposed co-development project. The co-
development agreement, however, is subject to the approval of the PRC military authorities. There can
be no assurance that such approval will be forthcoming if at all. If we fail to obtain the land use rights,
we are entitled to a full refund of the bidding deposit.

Qingdao. We entered into a project framework agreement in January 2006 with the government of
Licang District of Qingdao City in Shandong Province. We paid Rmb 10 million as a bidding deposit and
won the bid for project developer. In this project framework agreement, we have agreed to pay certain
demolishment and resettlement costs, when and as incurred, to the Licang District government.
Qingdao City government is currently planning to develop the Licang District into a new residential and
business district in Qingdao. The initial development plan covers an area of approximately 2.0 square
kilometers with a total GFA of approximately 1.6 million square meters. Our payments made and to be
made to Licang District government will be counted toward our payment of land premium if we obtain
any land use rights. In the event that Licang District government fails to prepare the land for
development in time as provided in the agreement or we fail to obtain any land use rights (if, for
instance, we are out-bid by our competitors), we are entitled to a full refund of our upfront payment,
plus an agreed monetary compensation. There is no assurance that our framework agreement will lead
to our acquisition of any land use rights.

Shanghai. In November 2002, Greentown Real Estate and Shanghai Shenyuan Enterprise

Development Co., Ltd., entered into a residential project development agreement with Xingiao
Township government in Songjiang District of Shanghai with respect to a piece of land of
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approximately 360,000 square meters in site area. Greentown Real Estate and Shanghai Shenyuan
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd., established Shanghai Green View Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
to develop this project in January 2003. Greentown Real Estate owns 60% of the equity interest of this
project company. We and Shanghai Shenyuan Enterprise Development Co., Ltd., have paid Rmb 60
million and Rmb 40 million, respectively, to the Xingiao Township government as a deposit. According
to the then applicable Shanghai land grant regulations, the government will not sign the land use rights
grant contract with a developer until the planning parameters and land grant method for the project
have been determined. The Planning Administration (#i #]4 3 J5) of Songjiang District did not approve
the planning parameters of the project until May 2003. In March 2003, Xingiao Township government
submitted a report to Songjiang District government proposing to grant the relevant land parcel
through a tender by invitation process. Songjiang District government did not approve such proposal
and did not submit it to Shanghai municipal government for its approval until March 2004. On August
31, 2004, the PRC government started to strictly enforce the mandatory requirement of tender, auction
and listing-for-sale nationwide for the grant of land use rights for commercial development and, as a
result, the determination of the land grant method for this land parcel is still pending and we have not
received the relevant approval from Shanghai municipal government. In May 2006, Xingiao Township
government confirmed in a letter to us that it is closely monitoring the approval process for this project
and is actively pursuing the relevant authorities in charge of this project at both Songjiang District
government and Shanghai municipal government. Xingiao Township government further confirmed
that, in the event that we fail to receive the relevant land use rights in any public auction or bidding, it
will promptly and unconditionally refund our deposit in full. We will evaluate from time to time
whether to proceed with the acquisition of the land. The factors we will consider in such determination
include land acquisition cost and development cost, market price of comparable sites, market
environment and outlook and overall profitability of the project.

Indemnity. Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, our Original Shareholders jointly undertook to
indemnify us against, among other things, any losses in relation to any payment made by us in respect
of the above five land acquisition contractual arrangements.

PROPERTIES USED BY US

As of March 31, 2006, we used the office space, with a total GFA of 4,757.6 square meters, at
Huanglong Century Plaza (# BE it 42 & #5) in Hangzhou as our headquarters. We leased this office space
from Greentown Holdings Group and its associate Zhejiang Century Square Investment Company
Limited. See “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions —
Properties Lease.” In addition to our offices in Huanglong Century Plaza, we also occupied
properties with an aggregate GFA of 22,548.2 square meters, including 15,273.8 square meters in
Zhejiang Province, 2,177.8 square meters in Beijing, 1,729.6 square meters in Shanghai and 3,367.0
square meters in other parts of China. These properties were primarily used as office premises or
dormitories for our employees in the different regions. With respect to the 22,548.2 square meters of
office premises and dormitories, we owned 15,676.6 square meters with the remaining 6,871.6 square
meters on lease from independent third parties.

COMPETITION

We compete with other real estate developers based on a number of factors including product quality,
service quality, price, financial resources, brand recognition, ability to acquire proper land reserves and
other factors. We believe we have established a strong presence in Zhejiang Province since our
formation in Hangzhou in 1995. The property markets in Zhejiang Province and other regions of China
where we have operations, however, are highly competitive. Our existing and potential competitors
include major domestic developers and, to a lesser extent, foreign developers, such as leading
developers from Hong Kong. Some of these competitors may have better track records, greater

143



BUSINESS

financial, human and other resources, larger sales networks and greater name recognition. See “Risk
Factors — Risk Relating to the Residential Property Industry in China — Intensified competition might
adversely affect our business and our financial position.”

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

Greentown Holdings Group has registered the trademarks and service marks of “#ti%"” (Greentown)
and “# 4k = &E" (Greentown Real Estate) with the PRC Trademark Office (43¢ A 3£ 1 5 5 12 &) under
various categories including property development, construction, property lease and real estate agency.
Greentown Holdings Group has granted us a license to use the trademarks and service marks "4 %"
(Greentown) and “# %= &" (Greentown Real Estate) free of charge in a trademark licensing
agreement entered into between Greentown Holdings Limited and us dated June 22, 2006. See
“Connected Transactions.”

We are also the owner of the domain names of “chinagreentown.com” and “chinagreentown.cn.” See
“Statutory and General Information — Intellectual property” in Appendix VIII to this prospectus for
more details.

INSURANCE

We carry employer’s liability insurance for medical and related expenses that our employees may incur
as a result of personal injuries on our workplace or construction sites of our property developments. We
do not, however, maintain property damage or third-party liability insurance on our workplace or
property developments. Under existing PRC law, these types of insurance are not mandatory and may
be purchased on a voluntary basis. We believe our insurance practice is in line with the customary
practice in the PRC real estate industry. We closely monitor the quality and safety measures adopted on
our construction sites with the construction companies to lower the risks of damage to our property
and liabilities that may be attributable to us. We may re-evaluate the risk profile of the property
markets and adjust our insurance practice from time to time.

See "Risk Factor — Risks Relating to Our Business — We do not have insurance to cover potential losses
and claims.”

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY MATTERS

We are subject to PRC environmental and safety laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
govern a broad range of environmental matters, including air pollution, noise emissions and water and
waste discharge. We are required to engage qualified agencies to conduct a comprehensive
environmental assessment on each of our projects and submit our environmental impact study
reports to the relevant authority for approval. The PRC government will not grant us the construction
permit with respect to any property project absent an environmental impact study report that is
acceptable to it. We are committed to compliance with these environmental and safety laws and
regulations. We also actively participate in the environmental assessment process and fully cooperate
with accredited environmental assessment organizations.

All of our completed property projects and properties under construction have received the requisite
environmental approvals. Upon completion of each property project, the relevant PRC government
authorities will also inspect the property site to ensure that we have complied with the applicable
environmental and safety standards.

Our Directors confirm that we have not breached any applicable environmental or safety regulation

since our establishment. Our Directors further confirm that our operations are in compliance with
currently applicable PRC environmental and safety regulations.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND MATERIAL CLAIMS

During the Relevant Period, we have been involved in legal or other proceedings in the ordinary course
of our business, which involved primarily disputes with our customers and we have not incurred
significant legal costs and expenses in view of our overall operating results. We are not aware of any
other material legal proceedings or claims currently existing or pending against us.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, we had not encountered any circumstances that have led to material
construction delays or received any material claims from our customers for our failure to complete any
pre-sold project on time, or received any material claims from our customers for our delay in the
delivery of property ownership certificates.

In October 2005, the Hangzhou National Land and Resources Bureau Yuhang Branch required us to
commence construction of Greentown Lanting and Xinggiao projects and pay land idle fees in the
aggregate amount of Rmb 6.1 million on the ground that parts of the land had been idle for more than
one year. The delay in construction in these two projects, however, was due to failure of the
government to relocate original residents and to complete demolishment and site preparation.
Pursuant to applicable land grant regulations, developers should not be subject to any land idle fee if
the delay in commencing construction is due to government actions. We have pleaded to the relevant
authorities against the imposition of such land idle fees. The relevant authorities had not responded to
our petition as of the Latest Practicable Date. T&C Law Firm, our PRC counsel, has advised us that we
should not be subject to such land idle fees because the delay in commencing construction in these
projects were caused by the failure of the government to relocate original residents and to complete
demolishment and site preparation. As such, we did not make any provision for such land idle fees in
our financial statements included in the Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to this prospectus.

In January 2006, we received a notice from the Hangzhou National Land and Resources Bureau Yuhang
Branch requiring us to commence construction of seven out of the 21 parcels of land in respect of
Taohuayuan South project and pay land idle fees of Rmb 2.7 million in respect of such land. We
commenced the overall project construction in October 2004. However, due to its large development
scale, the physical construction of this project has not yet extended to these seven parcels of land. We
have paid approximately Rmb 1.3 million of such land idle fee. We have pleaded to the land bureau
against the imposition of the outstanding land idle fees and to postpone the commencement of
construction of these seven parcels of land in light of the development schedule of this project. The
land bureau had not responded to our petition as of the Latest Practicable Date. T&C Law Firm, our PRC
counsel, has advised us that we have strong grounds to challenge the imposition of such land idle fees
because this project was approved by Hangzhou Development and Planning Bureau Yuhang Branch as
a single development project and we commenced the construction of the overall project in October
2004 and its development is continuous since then. As such, we did not make any provision for the
outstanding land idle fees.

Except as disclosed above, we have not been subject to any penalty and/or land idle fee imposed by the
PRC government for our failure to develop a property project or project phase on a timely basis in
accordance with the relevant land use rights grant contracts during the Relevant Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR ORIGINAL SHAREHOLDERS

Apart from us, our Original Shareholders own a number of other companies. Greentown Holdings
Group is a company holding a group of companies under common control of our Original Shareholders.
It was established in Hangzhou on December 6, 2001 and is currently beneficially owned by Song
Weiping, Shou Bainian and Xia Yibo, holding an equity interest of 54%, 39% and 7%, respectively.
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Greentown Holdings Group currently has more than 40 subsidiaries and is carrying on various lines of
businesses principally in Zhejiang Province of China, including property management, hotel
management and tourism, sports, and sale of construction materials, among other things. In
addition, it is involved in the Non-inclusion Projects described in “— Non-competition undertaking —
Non-inclusion projects” below.

As of December 31, 2005, Greentown Holdings Group had more than 4,000 full-time employees. For
2005, based on the management accounts of Greentown Holdings Group prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting rules and regulations, its revenues amounted to approximately Rmb 87,400,000. None
of our executive Directors assume any directorship or management role in Greentown Holdings Group.
Greentown Holdings Group is operated independently from us with a separate management team. The
total revenues of Greentown Holdings Group received from us amounted to approximately Rmb
21,340,000 in 2005, consisting of football advertising services fees of Rmb 14,329,000, pre-delivery
property management services fees of Rmb 5,874,000 and sales of landscaping materials of Rmb
1,136,500, representing approximately 24.4% of the total revenues of Greentown Holdings Group in
the same year.

Our Original Shareholders also own other businesses, such as interior decoration, media, hospital
investment and education in China.

Delineation of businesses

Apart from the Non-inclusion Projects, none of Greentown Holdings Group, any of its subsidiaries or
any of the other entities controlled by our Original Shareholders are engaged in any property
development business that competes or may compete with us.

Greentown Holdings Group and the other businesses owned by our Original Shareholders are engaged
in a variety of businesses, some of which are unrelated to the property industry, such as sports, tourism,
hospital investment and education.

Other than the Non-inclusion Projects, all property-related businesses operated by Greentown Holdings
Group and other affiliates of our Original Shareholders are ancillary to and not a part of our core
property development activities. For example, they are engaged in property management, provision of
interior decoration services and the supply of landscaping materials for construction. There is no
overlap in our businesses as Greentown Holdings Group and other businesses controlled by our Original
Shareholders are in fact our suppliers and service providers. Such transactions sourced from Greentown
Holdings Group and other businesses controlled by our Original Shareholders constitute connected
transactions before and subsequent to this Global Offering. See “Connected Transactions — Non-
exempt Continuing Connected Transactions.”

Greentown Holdings Group is also engaged in the hotel operation business, which is distinct from our
residential property development business. Our properties under development include two hotels, Jiuxi
Rose Garden Holiday Village in Hangzhou and Zhoushan Grand Hotel in Zhoushan. These hotels will be
ancillary to our core operations and are being developed by us solely because the land grant in relation
to adjacent residential projects required the construction of a hotel. Following completion of the hotels,
we will engage third party hotel management companies to manage them. We do not currently
operate, nor do we intend to operate, hotel management and development as part of our core
business. Therefore, the future overlap in hotel operations will not compete with our core business.
Furthermore, the hotel operated by Greentown Holdings Group is a high-end hotel located in
Hangzhou, whereas Jiuxi Rose Garden Holiday Village will be principally targeted at mid-market
tourists. Therefore, we do not consider that there would be material competition.
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The Non-inclusion Projects represent the only overlap between our core business and that of
Greentown Holdings Group and other entities controlled by our Original Shareholders. These projects
were not included within our business either because there exist legal uncertainties as to the title of the
relevant land or because the joint venture partner(s) did not consent to such a transfer. For a detailed
explanation of how we decided which properties were and were not included within our company
during the Reorganization, the reasons for excluding each of the Non-inclusion Projects, and how each
of these Non-inclusion Projects can be differentiated from our operations, please refer to “Business —
Relationship with our Original Shareholders — Non-inclusion Projects” below. Each of the project
companies holding the Non-inclusion Projects is a joint venture and has a management team
independent from us. There is no overlap between the board composition of those project companies
and us. Greentown Holdings Group holds only a minority interest in each existing Non-inclusion Project
and does not have management control. In any event, pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, we
have been granted an option to acquire any of the Non-inclusion Projects if and when we choose. We
may therefore acquire such projects in the future if the existing obstacles to their inclusion are
removed, and if our Board considers that such an acquisition would be in the best interests of our
shareholders as a whole. We do not currently have any plans to exercise any of the options, but we will
make an announcement if such a decision is taken in the future.

In addition, pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of our Original Shareholders and
Greentown Holdings Group has undertaken not to engage in activities that compete with our core
businesses except for the Non-inclusion Projects. As such, we consider that there exists a clear
delineation between our business and that of Greentown Holdings Group and other entities controlled
by our Original Shareholders.

Directors

Save as disclosed in this section “— Relationship with our Original Shareholders,” none of our Directors
is a director (other than an independent non-executive director) or a substantial shareholder of any
business apart from our business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our business.

Connected transactions

Historically, we have entered into connected transactions with our Original Shareholders or their
affiliates. Principally, these transactions related to services provided or products supplied to us in our
ordinary course of business. We sourced these products and services from affiliates of our Original
Shareholders as we considered their prices to be reasonable and their service levels to be satisfactory.
Our Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group entered into a Comprehensive Services
Agreement with us on June 22, 2006, pursuant to which our Original Shareholders and Greentown
Holdings Group will continue to provide certain services and materials to us. Our Original Shareholders
and Greentown Holdings Group will enter into such connected transactions under terms no less
favorable than those they would offer to independent third parties. If services and materials provided
by our Original Shareholders or Greentown Holdings Group cannot meet our requirements, we have a
right to terminate such services or supplies by serving three-months’ prior written notice. See
“Connected Transaction — Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions.”
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Non-competition undertaking

Each Original Shareholder and Greentown Holdings Group (the “Covenantors”) have undertaken to us
in the Deed of Non-competition that they will not, and shall procure their controlled affiliates (other
than members of our company) not to, engage in any property development business (except for hotel
development and property management) in China including (without limitation) the following
activities:

(i)  acquiring, holding, developing, transferring, disposing or otherwise dealing in, whether directly or
indirectly, land, real estate properties or property-related investments;

(i) engaging, having a right or in any way having an economic interest, in the promotion or
development of or investment in land or real estate properties;

(iii) acquiring, holding, transferring, disposing or otherwise dealing in any option, right or interest
over any of the matters set out in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above; or

(iv) acquiring, holding, transferring, disposing or otherwise dealing in, directly or indirectly, shares of
any company, joint venture, corporation or entity of any nature, whether or not incorporated,
with any interest in the matters set out in paragraphs (i) to (iii) above;

provided, however, that:

(i)  Greentown Holdings Group may continue with the development and sale of the existing eight
property projects (the “Non-inclusion Projects”), as described in “— Non-inclusion Projects”
below, within and to the extent of the proposed GFA as described below; and

(i)  except for the Non-inclusion Projects and the Linping Guihua City project which is owned by
independent third parties, where Greentown Holdings Group has allowed those projects to use
the Trademarks (as defined below), Greentown Holdings Group may not use and may not permit
any person other than us to use the Trademarks in any property development business that
competes or may compete with us in China. In addition, Greentown Holdings Group shall not
register or use or permit any person other than us to register or use trademarks similar to the
Trademarks in any property development business that competes or may compete with us in
China.

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Covenantors granted an option to us to acquire the Non-
inclusion Projects. The option allows us to acquire the attributable interests of the Original
Shareholders, or any part thereof, in such Non-inclusion Projects at their fair market values, provided
that such interests are available for transfer. If the parties to the Deed of Non-competition fail to agree
on the acquisition price, the valuation of such property projects and the price shall be determined by an
independent qualified valuer. The Original Shareholders also undertook in the Deed of Non-
competition that they will use their best endeavors to obtain the joint venture partners’ consent to
the transfer of such attributable interests to us if so requested by us and to provide us with all
information necessary for the purpose of exercising the option.

The exercise of any of the options under the Deed of Non-competition will constitute a connected
transaction for us, and we shall comply with the procedures set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of connected transactions, including independent shareholdings’ approval if required. Any
decision relating to the exercise of the options under the Deed of Non-competition will be made by our
independent non-executive Directors.

On a quarterly basis, based on information from meetings with Greentown Holdings Group and our
management’s understanding of the market, proposals as to whether to exercise the options and other
information relating to the Deed of Non-competition will be presented to our independent non-
executive Directors for their consideration. Our independent non-executive Directors will consider
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whether the covenants contained in the Deed of Non-competition have been complied with and what,
if any, remedial actions should be taken. Our executive Directors, including Mr. Song Weiping and Mr.
Shou Bainian, will not attend our board meetings at which matters relating to the Deed of Non-
competition are under consideration unless they are invited by a majority of the independent non-
executive Directors present at such meetings.

When considering the exercise or non-exercise of any options contained in the Deed of Non-
competition, our independent non-executive Directors, after considering any recommendation from
our management, will take into account various factors including:

e whether the legal issues relating to the title of the land have been adequately resolved such that it
would be appropriate for us to acquire and pursue such project;
whether consents from the joint venture partners can be obtained,;
whether the project accords with our then current development strategy; and/or
whether the project has reached a sufficiently progressed stage that it would be in the interest of
our shareholders as a whole to exercise the options.

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, Greentown Holdings Group will not conduct any property
development except the Non-inclusion Projects. If any future business opportunity which may involve
business competitive to our principal business is made available to Greentown Holdings Group, any
Original Shareholder or their affiliates, the Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group shall
promptly refer such business opportunity to us. Any decisions on whether to accept future business
opportunities referred to us by Greentown Holdings Group will be taken by our independent non-
executive Directors. In taking such decisions, our independent non-executive Directors will consider
whether the relevant business opportunities are expected to present a sustainable level of profitability,
accord with our then current development strategy, and in other respects would be in the best interests
of our shareholders as a whole. In addition, Greentown Holdings Group and each Original Shareholder
and his/her relevant affiliates shall meet with us on an annual basis to update us on the latest
development progress of the Non-inclusion Projects and any other business opportunities which it may
be aware of. Our representatives (including our independent non-executive Directors) shall be entitled
to receive information and materials at such meetings in respect of any of the Non-inclusion Projects
and such business opportunity from Greentown Holdings Group and each Original Shareholder and his/
her relevant affiliates.

In addition, our Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group have undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition to provide and use reasonable endeavors to procure the provision to us of all
information necessary for the enforcement of the undertakings contained therein. Our Original
Shareholders have further undertaken to make a statement in our annual report confirming compliance
by them and their affiliates with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition. We will disclose in our
annual reports on how the undertakings in the Deed of Non-competition were complied with and
enforced in accordance with the principles of making voluntary disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report as defined in Appendix 23 of the Listing Rules.

The Deed of Non-competition will terminate if the Covenantors in the aggregate beneficially own less
than a 10% interest in us or the Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

Internal controls

Following the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange, we will continue to enter into connected
transactions with our Original Shareholders and their affiliates. Mr. Song Weiping and Mr. Shou
Bainian, two of our Original Shareholders, are also our Directors. Our Original Shareholders and
Greentown Holdings Group, however, may not compete with us as provided in the Deed of Non-
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competition. Our Original Shareholders have confirmed that they fully comprehend their respective
obligations to act in the best interests of our company and our shareholders as a whole. In order to
further avoid potential conflicts of interests, we have implemented the following measures:

e  As part of our preparations for this Global Offering, we have amended our Memorandum and
Articles of Association to comply with the Listing Rules. In particular, our Memorandum and
Articles of Association provide that, except in certain limited circumstances, a Director shall not
vote on any resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which
such Director or any of his/her associates have a material interest nor shall such Director be
counted in the quorum present at the meeting. As such, each of our Original Shareholders shall
not vote or be counted in the quorum in respect of any proposals involving Greentown Holdings
Group or any of their other affiliates.

° As a condition to the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange and pursuant to our
Memorandum and Articles of Association, our Board must include a majority of independent non-
executive directors. We have appointed five independent non-executive Directors, four of whom
have extensive experience as directors of listed companies and three of whom have expertise in
the property sector. Our independent non-executive Directors will be able to provide an impartial,
external opinion to protect the interests of our public shareholders.

e  We have appointed Platinum Securities Company Limited as our compliance adviser, which will
provide advice and guidance to us in respect of compliance with the applicable laws and the
Listing Rules including various requirements relating to directors’ duties and internal controls.

° Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, any decision to exercise or not exercise the options
granted to us in the Deed of Non-competition with respect to any Non-inclusion Project shall be
taken by our independent non-executive Directors. In addition, as described in “— Non-
competition undertaking” below, our independent non-executive Directors will be responsible for
taking decisions to enforce the Deed of Non-competition. Our executive Directors, including Mr.
Song Weiping and Mr. Shou Bainian, will not attend our board meetings at which matters relating
to the Deed of Non-competition are under consideration, unless invited by a majority of the
independent non-executive Directors present at such meeting.

° Pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement, the terms offered by our Original
Shareholders and their affiliates with respect to any connected transactions conducted
thereunder shall be on at least as favorable terms to us as that offered to other parties. In
addition, as required by the Listing Rules, our independent non-executive Directors shall review
our continuing connected transactions annually and confirm in our annual report that such
transactions have been entered into in our ordinary and usual course of business, are either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to us than available to or from
independent third parties and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of our
shareholders as a whole.

e  We will engage an independent financial adviser by the end of 2006 to advise our independent
non-executive Directors as to whether it is in the interests of our company and our shareholders to
exercise the options pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition. Our independent non-executive
Directors will convene a meeting to consider, without the attendant of our executive Directors,
whether to exercise the options with reference to the opinions of the independent financial
adviser by the end of 2006.

° In addition, if our independent non-executive Directors consider it necessary or desirable, they
may also engage professional advisers (including an independent financial adviser) to advise them
on matters relating to the Deed of Non-competition (including as to whether or not to exercise
the options and the terms on which such options should be exercised) or on any business
opportunities which may be referred to us by the Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings
Group.
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e The exercise of any options pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition would constitute a
connected transaction pursuant to the Listing Rules. We will comply with all requirements of the
Listing Rules in relation to such connected transactions, including obtaining independent
shareholder approval where relevant. We will also announce any decision to exercise or not
exercise the options as required by the Listing Rules. When considering the exercising or non-
exercise of any options contained in the Deed of Non-competition, our independent non-
executive Directors will take into account various factors including:

(i)  whether the legal issues relating to the title of the land have been adequately resolved such
that it would be appropriate for us to acquire and pursue such project;

(i) whether consents from the joint venture partners can be obtained,;

(ili) whether the project accords with our then current development strategy; and/or

(iv) whether the project has reached a sufficiently progressed stage that it would be in the
interest of our shareholders as a whole to exercise the options.

° Our independent non-executive Directors will annually review all the decisions taken in each
quarter of the year in relation to whether to exercise the options pursuant to the Deed of Non-
competition and whether to pursue any business opportunities which may be referred to us by the
Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group, and disclose such decisions and the
rationale for them in our annual report. Disclosure of the development status of the Non-inclusion
Projects will also be made in our annual reports for as long as Greentown Holdings Group remains
interested in the relevant Non-inclusion Projects.

Non-inclusion projects

Since the consummation of the Reorganization, the Non-inclusion Projects have been retained by
Greentown Holdings Group. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, these property projects will
continue to be developed and eventually sold by Greentown Holdings Group, within and to the extent
of the proposed GFA as described below, unless and until we have exercised the option to purchase any
attributable interest in such Non-inclusion Projects. Except for the Non-inclusion Projects, Greentown
Holdings Group and the Original Shareholders and their affiliates will not engage in any new property
development project that competes or may compete with us.

The guiding principles we applied during the Reorganization for deciding which properties to be
included within our company were as follows:

(@) the relevant properties had to conform with our development strategy and business model;
(b) one of the following conditions had to be met in respect of the relevant properties:

(i)  land use rights certificates had been obtained;

(i) where land use rights certificates had not yet been obtained, there should be valid and
enforceable land use rights grant contracts; or

(iii) where land use rights grant contracts had not yet been entered into, either bidding process
and negotiations for the acquisition of the land should had been initiated, with payment of
bidding deposit made, where relevant, or project approval (57 1&) obtained from the relevant
government authorities; and

() where Greentown Holdings Group held a minority interest in a development, the majority joint
venture partner did not have any legal right to prevent the transfer of the interest to us.
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Our business model currently involves the development and subsequent sale of residential properties.
Under PRC laws and regulations, we are required to obtain the land use rights before we develop the
relevant properties. In addition, the limited amount of commercial properties that we are developing
are office buildings and hotels but are not commercial buildings. We do not consider development of
commercial properties as our core pursuit. Our development strategies are described in the section
“Business — Our Business Strategies.”

The Non-inclusion Projects do not fulfil the criteria set out in (a), (b), or (c) above. Specifically in relation
to criterion (b) above, there are title issues with properties set out in paragraphs (B) to (D) (for further
details, see descriptions below) and there are no clear procedures for rectification of these problems. In
respect of the properties set out in paragraphs (E) to (H), the joint venture partner has not given
consent to the transfer.

As described in “Business — Relationship with our Original Shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking,” if and when:

the title issues can be resolved,;

any joint venture partner consents (where necessary) are obtained;

it is in our best interests to do so; and

we consider that the project accords with its then current development strategy;

we will consider exercising our option to acquire the attributable interest in the relevant Non-inclusion
Project.

The Non-inclusion Projects fall into three categories. The property project set out in paragraph (A)
below has not been included in our business because we have decided not to pursue this development.
Greentown Holdings Group has sold its interest in this project to avoid competition. The property
projects set out in paragraphs (B), (C) and (D) below have not been included in our business because
Greentown Holdings Group only has contractual interests in such properties. No legal title to such
properties have been obtained by Greentown Holdings Group owing to uncertainties regarding the
permitted use of the land or transfer restrictions. We will not pursue such projects unless and until such
obstacles can be removed. In addition, joint venture partner consent is required for the transfer of the
relevant attributable interests in (B) to (D) and the joint venture partners have indicated to Greentown
Holdings Group that they will not consent to such transfer. The property projects set out in paragraphs
(E), (F), (G) and (H) below have not been included in our business because Greentown Holdings Group
has not been able to obtain consent from the relevant joint venture partners. For each of the property
projects in (E) to (H), Greentown Holdings Group holds a minority equity interest and has no
management control. The respective remaining interests are beneficially owned by independent third
parties which have refused to allow Greentown Holdings Group to transfer its respective interests in
those projects to us. The joint venture partner in respect of the property projects in (E) to (G) is a body
corporate. The joint venture partner in respect of the property project in (H) is an individual.
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Details of the Non-inclusion Projects are as follows:

(A)

the development of Anzhengiao Building Complex (% 5 #6454 #8), a commercial building, in
Beijing with a proposed GFA of 20,550 square meters by Beijing Tianan Greentown Property
Development Company Limited (-t 5t K 4 4k 3k = #b 2 B %% 23 #1) (“Beijing Tianan”), formerly a 70%
subsidiary of Greentown Holdings Group. This project has been disposed of by Greentown
Holdings Group and no potential competition exists with us. We have provided further
explanations on our disposal below.

the development of Blue Coast (# 4 1) in Chaoyang District of Beijing with a proposed GFA of
61,594 square meters by Beijing Dongfang Yihua Property Development Company Limited
(A st a3 E b s B 88 A |)) (“Dongfang Yihua”), a 30% associate of Greentown Holdings
Group. Dongfang Yihua has entered into a joint development contract with Chaoyang State Farm
(m b5 2 352) (“Chaoyang State Farm”), a local state farm to develop the land. The land is held by
Chaoyang State Farm and its designated land use is agricultural. Pending the change of the land
use, the land cannot be used for residential development. At present, there is no indication that
Dongfang Yihua is able to obtain the governmental approval for the change of the designated
land use within a short time. Assuming the land use has been changed, Dongfang Yihua would
further need to participate in a public tender process to acquire the land. This project therefore
does not fulfil criterion (b) of our Reorganisation principles and was excluded in the
Reorganization. Furthermore, the joint venture partner in the project company has indicated
that it would not consent to a transfer of Greentown Holdings Group’s interest in the project
company and this project therefore does not fulfil criterion (c) of our Reorganization principles.
Construction has not begun on this development. Due to the title issue outlined above and the
uncertainty whether and when this project will commence development, we consider the
potential competition risk with us is currently remote.

the development of Huanglong Commercial Complex (¥ %7 % #), a commercial building, in
Hangzhou with a proposed GFA of 120,000 square meters by Hangzhou Zijin Industrial
Investment Company Limited (#7 1| 2% 4 £ 2 £ % 47 FR 2 7)) (“Hangzhou Zijin"), a 20% associate of
Greentown Holdings Group. The other beneficial interests of Hangzhou Zijin are held by Zhejiang
Century Square Investment Company Limited (i ith 42 B35 # & A R 2 7)) (“Zhejiang Century
Square”), a 40% associate of Greentown Holdings Group, on trust for an independent third party
and Hangzhou Huanglong Joint-stock Economic Cooperative (i & ¥8 i fi £ 48 35 4 7E41) (the
“Huanglong Cooperative”). The land occupied by Huanglong Commercial Complex was obtained
by the Huanglong Cooperative, which is a collectively owned enterprise under the PRC law. As
advised by our PRC counsel, T&C Law Firm, the land owned by such a collectively owned
enterprise is subject to certain transfer restrictions and is not freely transferable without consent
of two-thirds of all the farmers within Huanglong Cooperative. Therefore, instead of transferring
the land to Hangzhou Zijin, the land will instead be leased to Hangzhou Zijin which has a right to
sub-lease to third parties. Hangzhou Zijin will lease the land from Huanglong Cooperative for a
period of 40 years upon the completion of construction of Huanglong Commercial Complex.
Currently, as the construction of Huanglong Commercial Complex has not commenced, the
detailed terms of lease of the land from Huanglong Cooperative by Hangzhou Zijin is still subject
to further negotiation. The business model of Hangzhou Zijin contrasts with our business model of
solely or jointly owning our properties and selling rather than leasing the developed properties.
Furthermore, the Huanglong Commercial Complex will be a multiple commercial uses complex
whereas our commercial buildings are office buildings. As such, this project does not conform
with our development strategy and therefore does not conform with criterion (a) of our
Reorganization principles. In addition, Hangzhou Zijin has only a leasehold contractual
arrangement and will not own any land use rights. It therefore does not fulfil criterion (b) of
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our Reorganization principles. Furthermore, the joint venture partner in the project company has
indicated that it would not consent to a transfer of Greentown Holdings Group’s interest in the
project company and this project therefore does not fulfil with criterion (c) of our Reorganization
principles. As described above, the business model for this development is very different from
ours, and the actual nature of the development also differs from our commercial office properties.
Therefore, we do not consider that there will be competition between this project and our
principal business. Currently, the construction plan of Huanglong Commercial Complex has not
been finalized and there is no concrete timetable for the completion of construction of
Huanglong Commercial Complex.

the development of Huanglong Century Plaza, a commercial building, in Hangzhou with a
proposed GFA of 80,700 square meters by Zhejiang Century Square, a 40% associate of
Greentown Holdings Group. The other equity interests of Zhejiang Century Square are owned by
an individual and Huanglong Cooperative. Construction of Huanglong Century Plaza was
completed in 2002. The land currently used by Zhejiang Century Square is not state-owned land
but collectively owned land, which is subject to transfer restrictions and Zhejiang Century Square
may not transfer it freely. Zhejiang Century Square has instead leased the land from Huanglong
Cooperative for a period of 45 years commencing from March 31, 2002 and sub-leased it to third
parties. Substantially all of the rentals and sub-rentals have already been collected and such
profits have been distributed between the joint venture partners of Zhejiang Century Square.
Therefore, the project company is simply holding a lease and sub-lease contract, with insignificant
revenues to be obtained. This project does not conform with our development strategy and
therefore does not conform with criterion (a) of our Reorganization principles. It also does not
conform with criterion (b) of our Reorganisation principles as Zhejiang Century Square does not
own the land use rights. Furthermore, the joint venture partner in the project company has
indicated that it would not consent to a transfer of Greentown Holdings Group’s interest in the
project company and this project therefore does not fulfil criterion (c) of our Reorganization
principles. As described above, Zhejiang Century Square is operating on a lease and sub-lease
contract. In light of the above, we do no consider that there will be competition between this
project and us.

the development of Deqging Baihe Apartments (% 75 & 2\ &) in Deqing of Zhejiang Province with
a proposed GFA of 209,922 square meters and saleable GFA of 161,005 square meters by Deging
Greentown Xizi Property Development Company Limited, an associate indirectly held as to 24.5%
by Greentown Holdings Group through Zhejiang Zhongginglv Greentown Real Estate Investment
Company Limited (“Zhongginglv Real Estate”) (a 49% associate of Greentown Holdings Group).
This project was excluded in the Reorganization because joint venture partner consent was
required for the transfer and was not obtained and it therefore did not conform with criterion (c)
of our Reorganization principles. Construction commenced on September 1, 2005, is expected to
be completed in June 2009 and pre-sales commenced from December 1, 2005. We do not
currently have any developments (actual or proposed) in Deqing. If we ever in the future decide to
develop any properties in Deging, it will take some time before such new developments are
constructed and pre-sales begin. It is therefore unlikely that the sales of any future developments
by us in Deging would overlap with this project, and we thus consider that there will not be
material competition between this project and us.

the development of Deqing Guihua City (f#i%#E:1E3%) in Deqing of Zhejiang Province with a
proposed GFA of 305,163 square meters and saleable GFA of 256,788 square meters by Deging
Greentown Zhongtian Property Development Company Limited, an associate indirectly held as to
46.6% by Greentown Holdings Group through Zhongginglv Real Estate. This project was
excluded in the Reorganization because joint venture partner consent was required for the
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transfer and was not obtained and it therefore did not conform with criterion (c) of our
Reorganization principles. Construction commenced on December 1, 2004, is expected to be
completed in December 2008 and pre-sales commenced from April 2, 2005. We do not currently
have any developments (actual or proposed) in Deqing. If we even in the future decide to develop
any properties in Deqing, it will take some time before such new developments are constructed
and pre-sales begin. It is therefore unlikely that the sales of any future developments by us in
Deqging would overlap with this project, and we thus consider that there will not be material
competition between this project and us.

(G) the development of Greentown Baihe Apartments (44 H 4/ ) in Zhengzhou of Henan
Province with a proposed GFA of 425,968 square meters and saleable GFA of 334,000 square
meters by Henan Zhongzhou Greentown Real Estate Investment Company Limited, an associate
indirectly held as to 37.7% by Greentown Holdings Group through Zhongginglv Real Estate. This
project was excluded in the Reorganization because joint venture partner consent was required
for the transfer and was not obtained and it therefore did not conform with criterion (c) of our
Reorganization principles. Construction commenced on July 1, 2005, is expected to be completed
in December 2008 and pre-sales commenced from April 1, 2006. We do not currently have any
developments (actual or proposed) in Henan Province. If we ever in the future decide to develop
any properties in Henan Province, it will take some time before such new developments are
constructed and pre-sales begin. It is therefore unlikely that the sales of any future developments
by us in Henan Province would overlap with this project, and we thus consider that there will not
be material competition between this project and us.

(H) the development of a villa project located in Huadu District of Guangzhou in Guangdong Province
with a proposed GFA of 90,222 square meters by Guangzhou Lvshanhu Property Development
Company Limited (i &% 11135 55 H 2 B 88 4 BR 2> 7)), @ 20% associate of Greentown Holdings
Group. This project was excluded in the Reorganization because joint venture partner consent
was required for the transfer and was not obtained and it therefore did not conform with criterion
(c) of our Reorganization principles. Construction has not yet commenced. We do not currently
have any developments (actual or proposed) in Guangdong Province. If we ever in the future
decide to develop any properties in Guangdong Province, it will take some time before such new
developments are constructed and pre-sales begin. It is therefore unlikely that the sales of any
future developments by us in Guangdong Province would overlap with this project, and we thus
consider that there will not be material competition between this project and us.

The management team of the project companies holding the Non-inclusion Projects are different from
ours. There is no overlap between the board composition of those project companies holding Non-
inclusion Projects and our Board.

In relation to the project set out in paragraph (A), pursuant to an equity interest transfer agreement
dated April 26, 2006, Greentown Holdings Group and its joint venture partner agreed to transfer their
entire equity interests in Beijing Tianan to two individuals who are independent third parties.
Anzhengiao Building Complex is an office building development project with a proposed GFA of
approximately 20,500 square meters located in central Beijing. Pursuant to an approval document
(2004 Gui Yi Zhi No. 0061) of the local city planning authority, the construction of Anzhengiao Building
Complex is required to be in harmony with another building located in the vicinity as these two
buildings are subject to integrated planning and construction requirements. This requires a substantial
amount of coordination with the other building, which has led to the slow progress of this project. As
our development strategy is primarily focused on residential property development rather than office
building development and in light of the abovementioned issues, we took a commercial decision not to
pursue this project and Greentown Holdings Group has sold its interests in this project to avoid
potential competition. As Greentown Holdings Group has disposed of its interest in Anzhengiao
Building Complex, we have no information as to the current development status of the project.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Greentown Holdings Group is a company established and controlled by the Original Shareholders.
Greentown Holdings Group and other associates of the Original Shareholders constitute our connected
persons pursuant to the Listing Rules. We have entered into a number of continuing agreements and
arrangements with the Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group in our ordinary and usual
course of business. Upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange, the following transactions
will constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

Trademarks Licence

Greentown Holdings Group is the registered owner of the trademarks and service marks of “# "
(Greentown) and “# 4% = &" (Greentown Real Estate) in the form of Romanized spelling, Chinese
characters (including the simplified and traditional forms) as well as in the form of logos (the
“Trademarks”) in China. We and Greentown Holdings Group have entered into a trademarks license
agreement (the “Trademarks License Agreement”) dated June 22, 2006, pursuant to which Greentown
Holdings Group has granted us an irrevocable and exclusive right to use the Trademarks in our property
development business.

Pursuant to the Trademarks License Agreement, except for the Non-inclusion Projects and Linping
Guihua City project which is owed by independent third parties, where Greentown Holdings Group
allowed those projects to use the Trademarks, Greentown Holdings Group may not use and may not
permit any person other than us to use the Trademarks in any property development business that
competes or may compete with us in China. In addition, Greentown Holdings Group shall not register
or use or permit any person other than us to register or use trademarks similar to the Trademarks in any
property development business that competes or may compete with us in China. The Trademarks have
been licensed to us on a royalty-free basis within the valid registration period of such Trademarks.
Greentown Holdings Group has agreed to maintain at its own cost the registration of such Trademarks,
including extensions from time to time of such registration of the Trademarks upon their expiration.
Greentown Holdings Group has also agreed to be responsible for any expenses for enforcement against
any infringement of the licensed Trademarks by any third parties. The term of the Trademarks License
Agreement is ten years subject to an automatic extension for a further ten years if so requested by us
one month before the expiring date.

As the grant of rights to use the Trademarks by Greentown Holdings Group to us is on a free-of-charge
basis, the transactions under the Trademarks License Agreement are exempted from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements applicable to continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as it falls within the de minims
threshold under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

Deed of Non-competition

We have also entered into the Deed of Non-competition with our Original Shareholders and Greentown
Holdings Group. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Covenantors (as defined above)
undertook that they will not, and shall procure their controlled affiliates not to, engage in any business
that competes or may compete with us and granted us an option to acquire their attributable interests
in the Non-inclusion Projects. See “Business — Relationship with our Original Shareholders — Non-
competition undertaking.”
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On June 22, 2006, our Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group entered into a
comprehensive services agreement (the “Comprehensive Services Agreement”) with us relating to the
transactions set out in (C), (D) and (E) below. The Comprehensive Services Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from January 1, 2006 and may be renewed upon mutual agreement among
the parties.

(A) Properties leases

Zhejiang Century Square Investment Company Limited is owned as to 40% by Greentown Holdings
Group. It is therefore an associate of Greentown Holdings Group and our connected person for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Prior to the Global Offering, Greentown Holdings Group and Zhejiang Century Square Investment
Company Limited leased to us certain premises and properties for general commercial uses. The
buildings and properties leased by us from Greentown Holdings Group and Zhejiang Century Square
Investment Company Limited comprise several floors of Huanglong Century Plaza located at No. 1
Hangda Road in Hangzhou with an aggregate GFA of 4,758 square meters.

We intend to continue to occupy these premises following the Global Offering. Therefore, we have
entered into a properties leasing agreement on June 22, 2006 with Greentown Holdings Group and a
properties leasing agreement on June 22, 2006 with Zhejiang Century Square Investment Company
Limited (collectively, the “Properties Leasing Agreements”) regarding the terms and conditions for the
continued lease of these properties. The leases are for a period of three years from January 1, 2006.
The aggregate annual rental payable pursuant to the Properties Leasing Agreements is Rmb 6.35
million. There are no rent review provisions.

DTZ, an independent valuer, has confirmed that the rental payments under the Properties Leasing
Agreements reflect the prevailing market rates and the terms of the agreements are fair and reasonable
to us.

Historical transaction values

Historically, we were not required to pay rental fees to Greentown Holdings Group or Zhejiang Century
Square Investment Company Limited for the lease of the properties which are the subject matter of the
Properties Leasing Agreements.

Annual Caps

Pursuant to the terms of the Properties Leasing Agreements, our annual rental payable in respect of the
Properties Leasing Agreements will be Rmb 6.35 million in each year of the three years ending
December 31, 2008, which are accordingly determined as our annual caps.

(B) Football club advertising services

Greentown Holdings Group owns 100% of a football club, namely Zhejiang Greentown Football Club
Company Limited (4 T % 3% J& BR18 44 35 45 [ 2\ 7)) (the “"Greentown Football Club”). Greentown Football
Club is therefore an associate of Greentown Holdings Group and our connected person for the purpose
of the Listing Rules.

Greentown Football Club is one of the professional football clubs in China which is participating in
football matches within the China Football League A at present. We have historically entered into
advertising arrangements with Greentown Football Club, pursuant to which our Greentown Real Estate
(#3% 5= 2=) brand name has been advertised by Greentown Football Club at its football games and
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events. Our Directors believe that this marketing campaign has been successful and has allowed our
brand name to be publicized to spectators and the wider public through various public media reporting
on the football events.

In view of past successful experience, we intend to continue to maintain an advertising cooperation
relationship with Greentown Football Club after the Global Offering. Pursuant to an advertising
services agreement entered into between Greentown Football Club and us (the “Advertising Services
Agreement”) dated June 22, 2006, we will pay annual advertising fees to Greentown Football Club in
return for its advertising the brand name of Greentown Real Estate. The annual advertising fees shall be
agreed between the parties each year. We will consider various factors when determining the fees,
including comparable advertising rates for similar campaigns, our advertising focus and the level and
quality of publicity we expect to obtain from such events. Pursuant to the Advertising Services
Agreement, Greentown Football Club is required to use the name of Greentown Real Estate only in all
of its publicity materials and prominently show the same in its players’ sportswear and is also required
to publish press articles including the name on designated newspapers, television programs and
websites within each year. Our Directors believe the Advertising Services Agreement has been entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of our business and the advertising services are conducted on
normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the interest of our shareholders as a
whole. The Advertising Services Agreement is for a term of three years commencing from January 1,
2006.

Historical transaction value

For the three consecutive years ended December 31, 2005, the aggregate fees for the advertising
services provided by Greentown Football Club to us were approximately Rmb 36,574,000, Rmb
34,520,000 and Rmb 14,329,000, respectively. In the year of 2005, one of our affiliates, Hangzhou
Jimei Property Development Company Limited (“Hangzhou Jimei”) that was held by Greentown Real
Estate as to a 30% equity interest and not consolidated within our company had a strong marketing
requirement for its properties. Hangzhou Jimei completed Qilixiang Greek Villas in June 2005. As a
large villa project located in remote suburban areas of Hangzhou, Qilixiang Greek Villas had a strong
marketing and advertising demand to facilitate its sales. Upon arm’s length negotiations between
Hangzhou Jimei and Greentown Football Club, Greentown Football Club agreed to advertise the
project by way of prominently displaying the name and photos of Qilixiang Greek Villas in its publicity
activities. As a result, substantial advertising resources of Greentown Football Club were used by
Hangzhou Jimei and our use of such advertising resources for such purposes declined in 2005.
Accordingly, we decided to reduce the use of advertising services from Greentown Football Club in the
same year so that the affiliate could use some of the advertising services from Greentown Football
Club. Aggregate advertising fees of approximately Rmb 13,701,500 were paid by the affiliate in 2005
to Greentown Football Club.

Annual caps

In determining the annual caps of the advertising fees payable to Greentown Football Club, we have
considered various factors such as the level and quality of publicity expected from Greentown Football
Club, as well as the prevailing market rate of other similar football clubs in the same league in providing
similar advertising and promotion services. Furthermore, Greentown Football Club is targeting an
advance into China Football Super League, which our Directors believe is likely following the 2006
season in view of its current performances. If the Greentown Football Club can advance into China
Football Super League, it will attract more attention both from media and spectators and the
corresponding level and quality of publicity for us from its advertising campaign is expected to be
enhanced. Pursuant to the Advertising Services Agreement, the aggregate annual advising fees payable
to Greentown Football Club will vary depending on which league it plays in. The advertising fees
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currently payable to Greentown Football Club for 2006 are Rmb 31,500,000. If Greentown Football
Club fails to qualify for China Football Super League in the next football season, the annual advertising
fee will be reduced to Rmb 29,000,000 (assuming it retains its status as a football team in China
Football League A) or Rmb 20,000,000 (assuming it downgrades to China Football League B). If
Greentown Football Club successfully advances into China Football Super League, with reference to the
market rate of other football clubs in China Football Super League in providing similar advertising and
promotion services, we will pay an annual advertising fee of Rmb 40 million to Greentown Football
Club in 2007 and 2008, which accordingly are determined as our annual caps.

(C) Interior decoration services

The Original Shareholders, through their associates, have historically provided and will continue to
provide interior decoration services to us for our property development. These associates of Original
Shareholders include Hangzhou Greentown Decoration and Design Company Limited (“Greentown
Decoration”), a company owned as to 86.7% by Ms. Xia, one of our Original Shareholders, Hangzhou
Greentown Decoration Engineering Company Limited, a company owned as to 90% by Ms. Xia, and
Zhejiang Huaneng Decoration Engineering Company Limited, a subsidiary of Greentown Decoration. In
China, it is a common practice for property developers to engage external providers to conduct interior
decoration for their developed properties. We historically have not conducted any interior decoration
business ourselves and have no special expertise in such area. In view of our past successful long-term
working relationship with affiliates of the Original Shareholders in this area, we believe that the
Original Shareholders and their affiliates are able to provide quality and cost-effective interior
decoration services to us on a continuing basis. Following the Global Offering, these services will be
provided pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement, our Original Shareholders have agreed to provide
interior decoration services to us upon terms not less favorable than those they offer to any third
parties from time to time, but we are not obliged to use such services exclusively or at all from our
Original Shareholders or their affiliates. By serving three months’ prior written notice, we may
terminate the interior decoration service provided by our Original Shareholders or their affiliates in
respect to any project. Our Directors believe the interior decoration services provided by our Original
Shareholders and their affiliates are in the ordinary and usual course of our business and are conducted
on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the interest of our shareholders as a
whole.

Historical transaction value

For the three consecutive years ended December 31, 2005, the aggregate fees for the interior
decoration services provided by associates of our Original Shareholders to us were approximately Rmb
26,777,000, Rmb 20,798,800 and Rmb 20,859,000, respectively. Historically, we used interior
decoration services primarily for lobbies of our high-rise buildings, property sales centers and club
houses. Most of our residential properties did not require such services as most of them were delivered
to customers without interior decoration. The demand for such interior decoration services varied
during the three years due to fluctuations in relative contributions of our club houses and lobbies of
high-rise buildings to our total properties developed. In 2003, the historical transaction value was
comparatively higher than 2004 and 2005 due to strong demand for interior decoration services for
club houses and lobbies of high-rise buildings.

Annual caps

We expect our total interior decoration services procurement will be increased significantly since we are
planning to increase our development of fully decorated residential properties. Out of the expected
increase in our total procurement for interior decoration services, we expect the proportion sourced
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from connected persons will be reduced as we are likely to source most of such services in respect of
fully decorated residential properties from independent third parties. We also expect a continued
increase in delivery of our office premises and residential properties with lobbies and club houses
resulting from our growth of operations. Out of interior decoration services procurement in respect of
these office premises, and lobbies and club houses of residential properties, we expect the proportion
sourced from connected persons to remain steady as we think the services provided by the associates of
our Original Shareholders have historically been satisfactory. Based on the historical transaction values
and taking into account our projected growth, our Directors estimate that, pursuant to the
Comprehensive Services Agreement, our annual fees in respect of interior decoration services to be
provided by Greentown Holdings Group to us for the three years ending December 31, 2008 would not
exceed Rmb 30 million, Rmb 40 million, and Rmb 50 million, respectively, which accordingly are
determined as our annual caps.

(D) Property management services

We do not engage in property management services. The property management services, although
property-related, are labor-intensive and require long-term dedication to make the business a
satisfactory accommodation to property owners. Our Directors do not consider property management
services as part of our core pursuit or our business development target. It is a common practice for
property developers in China to engage external property management service providers to render
professional property management services for their property developments. Greentown Holdings
Group, through its subsidiary, Zhejiang Greentown Property Management Company, is one of the
service providers we engage to provide property management services in respect of our projects. Prior
to delivery of properties to our customers, Greentown Holdings Group provides pre-delivery property
management services (including certain property management advisory services, security services and
other related services) to us. Following delivery of the properties to our customers, such property
management services are no longer provided to us, but are contractually or legally provided to the
customers by Greentown Holdings Group, which therefore do not constitute connected transactions.
The provision of pre-delivery property management services by Greentown Holdings Group constitutes
a connected transaction. Following the Global Offering, these services will be provided pursuant to the
Comprehensive Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement, Greentown Holdings Group has agreed to provide
pre-delivery property management services to us upon terms not less favorable than those it offers
from time to time to third parties. We are not obliged to engage the services from Greentown Holdings
Group on an exclusive basis or at all. By serving a three months’ prior written notice, we may terminate
property management services provided by Greentown Holdings Group in respect of any of our
projects. Our Directors believe the property management services provided by Greentown Holdings
Group are contracted in the ordinary and usual course of our business and are conducted on normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the interest of our shareholders as a whole.

Historical transaction value

For each of the three consecutive financial years ended December 31, 2005, the payments we made for
the aforesaid services provided by Greentown Holdings Group to us were approximately Rmb
1,908,000, Rmb 2,830,000 and Rmb 5,874,000, respectively. The increase in historical transaction
values for property management services was due to the increase in delivery of properties during the
Relevant Period.
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Annual caps

We expect that our requirement for pre-delivery property management services will increase broadly in
line with any increase in the number of properties we develop. We do not currently anticipate that
there will be major changes in the percentage of property management services provided by
Greentown Holdings Group out of our total property management services procurement, since its
service levels have historically been satisfactory, and we believe that Greentown Holdings Group will
continue to be able to provide services to us in line with our anticipated growth of such service
requirements. Therefore, we expect that the value of property management services from Greentown
Holdings Group will increase broadly in line with our projected increase in properties developed. In
particular, it is expected that 12 projects will be completed in 2006, with a total GFA of 1,257,235
square meters, representing a significant increase from the seven projects completed in 2005, with a
total GFA of 663,483 square meters. Further, it is expected that 20 projects will be completed in 2007
with a total GFA of 1,748,164 square meters and 17 projects will be completed in 2008 with a total
GFA of 1,776,649 square meters, subject to further adjustments and changes that we may make from
time to time. Based on the above historical transaction values and taking into account our projected
growth, our Directors estimate that our annual expenditures in respect of property management
services provided by Greentown Holdings Group to us under the Comprehensive Services Agreement
for the three years ending December 31, 2008 will not exceed Rmb 11 million, Rmb 12 million and Rmb
14 million, respectively, which accordingly are determined as our annual caps.

(E) Supply of raw materials

Historically, our Original Shareholders and Greentown Holdings Group provided certain construction
materials to us, including aluminum alloy fixtures and fittings, landscaping materials and steel. The
aluminum alloy fixtures and fittings were manufactured and supplied by Hangzhou Greentown
Aluminum Product Company Limited, a company majority owned by Ms. Xia, one of our Original
Shareholders. In 2005, our purchase of aluminum alloy fixtures and fittings from Hangzhou Greentown
Aluminum Product Company Limited amounted to approximately Rmb 57.2 million. Ms. Xia disposed
of her whole equity interest in Hangzhou Greentown Aluminium Product Company Limited to an
independent third party on March 30, 2006. The purchase of aluminum alloy fixtures and fittings thus
will not constitute connected transactions after the Global Offering. We also purchased steel from
Hangzhou Jihe Group Company Limited, a company majority owned by a director of our subsidiary,
Haining Greentown Xinghu Property Development Limited. In 2005, such purchase of steel amounted
to approximately Rmb 27,362,300. We will cease to purchase any steel from connected persons from
June 2006.

Greentown Holdings Group, through its associates, currently is providing certain landscaping materials
to us. Such materials consisted primarily of plants used for outside landscaping of our property
developments, particularly, for our villas. Following the Global Offering, these materials will be
provided pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement, Greentown Holdings Group has agreed to provide
such materials to us upon terms not less favorable than those it offers from time to time to any third
parties. We are not obliged to purchase the landscaping raw materials exclusively from Greentown
Holdings Group or at all. By serving a three month’s prior written notice, we may terminate the supply
of landscaping raw materials from Greentown Holdings Group in relation to any specific supply
contract.

Our Directors believe the acquisition of landscaping raw materials is in the ordinary and usual course of

our business, is conducted on normal commercial terms and is fair and reasonable and in the interest of
our shareholders as a whole.

161



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Historical transaction value

Prior to 2005, Greentown Holdings Group did not supply the landscaping raw materials to us. Our
aggregate cost for purchase of landscaping materials from Greentown Holdings Group was
approximately Rmb 1,136,500 in 2005. Greentown Holdings Group was not among our top five
suppliers in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Annual caps

We expect that our requirement for landscaping raw materials will increase broadly in line with any
increase in the number of properties we develop. We do not currently anticipate that there will be
major changes in the percentage of landscaping raw materials provided by Greentown Holdings Group
out of our total procurement for such landscaping raw materials, since its supply has historically been
satisfactory, and we believe that it will continue to be able to supply us in line with our anticipated
growth in procurement requirements for such raw materials. Therefore, we expect that the value of
landscaping raw materials supplied by Greentown Holdings Group will increase broadly in line with our
projected increase in properties developed. Based on the historical transaction values and our projected
growth, our Directors estimate that, pursuant to the Comprehensive Services Agreement, our annual
cost in respect of purchase of landscaping raw materials to be supplied by Greentown Holdings Group
for the three years ending December 31, 2008 would not exceed Rmb 2 million, Rmb 3 million, and
Rmb 4 million, respectively, which accordingly are determined as our annual caps.

Waivers

The transactions described in paragraphs (A) to (E) above constitute our continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules. The applicable percentage ratios as defined in Rule
14A.10 of the Listing Rules and calculated with reference to the proposed annual caps each year shown
above are less than 2.5%. As such, the non-exempt continuing connected transactions in paragraphs
(A) to (E) above would normally require full reporting and announcement but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval. Our Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
consider that disclosure and approval of these transactions in full compliance with the Listing Rules
would be impracticable and, in particular, add unnecessary administrative costs to us. In addition, our
Directors believe that it is in our interests to continue with these transactions after the listing of our
Shares on the Stock Exchange. They also believe that such transactions are conducted upon normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the interests of our shareholders as a whole. Our
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are also of the view that the annual caps of
all of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions in paragraphs (A) to (E) above are fair and
reasonable. We have applied for and the Stock Exchange has granted us waivers from strict compliance
with the announcement and (where applicable) independent shareholders’ approval requirements of
the Listing Rules in respect of each of these transactions subject to the aggregate value of each of these
non-exempt continuing connected transactions for each financial year not exceeding the relevant
annual cap amount set forth in the respective caps stated above.

In applying for the waivers, we have agreed that we will comply with the requirements set out in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sponsor’s view

The Sponsor is of the view that the transactions and the annual caps described in paragraphs (A) to (E)
above have been entered into and will be entered into in our ordinary and usual course of business and
on normal commercial terms, are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of our shareholders as a
whole.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors consists of nine Directors, five of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The powers and duties of our Board of Directors include: convening shareholders’ meetings
and reporting the Board'’s work at the shareholders’ meetings, implementing the resolutions passed on
the shareholders’ meetings, determining our business plans and investment plans, formulating our
annual budget and final accounts, formulating our proposals for profit distributions and for the
increase or reduction of registered capital as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association. We have entered into service contracts
with each of our executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Song Weiping (%R TL°F), aged 48, is the chairman of our Board. He is primarily responsible for the
formulation of our development strategies, as well as supervising our project planning, design and
marketing. Song Weiping graduated from Hangzhou University with a bachelor’s degree in history in
1982. Between 1982 and 1994, he worked at various entities including CPC School of Zhoushan City
and Hangzhou Qiantang Real Estate Company. He founded our company in January 1995. In 2004 and
2005, Mr. Song was honored with the Ten Leaders of the Residential Property Sector in Zhejiang Award
(WL & e ¥+ K EE AY) jointly by the Zhejiang Daily (#7 i1 H #4), the China Housing Industry
Association (&5 Tl EE%me) and Special Committee of the China Construction Industry
Association (f @S edikZEe). In 2004, Mr. Song received the China Construction
Architecture Award (Individual Contribution Award) ([ 7 £ 25 4f 4% ({8 A F L 4E) ). He is a vice-
chairman of Zhejiang Provincial Real Estate Association (#i T4 = ih & {5 €r).

Shou Bainian (2 44F), aged 52, is the executive vice chairman of our Board and our chief executive
officer. He is primarily responsible for our overall business operations and financial management. He
graduated from Hangzhou University with a bachelor’s degree in history in 1982. Between 1982 and
1998, he worked at the government office of Yin County of Zhejiang Province, the general office of
Ningbo Municipal Government and China Huaneng Group’s Zhejiang subsidiary. He joined us in April
1998. He is a vice-chairman of Hangzhou Real Estate Association (t JH 17 | H1 2 1 &r).

Chen Shunhua (g g #£), aged 44, is an executive Director of our Board and our chief operating officer.
He is primarily responsible for the management of our daily operations including human resources,
sales and customer relations as well as the management of our property developments in east China.
He received a diploma in management science and engineering from Zhejiang University in 1999 and a
master’s degree in business administration from the Open University of Hong Kong in 2002. Between
1991 and 1992, he worked at Zhejiang Radio & Television Engineering Company
(W7 7T & 3% 1 TRE 4\ 7)) as a chief officer and a financial general manager. Between 1992 and 2002,
he worked at Zhejiang Radio & Television Real Estate Limited (47 v %5 & 3% & 15 )= b 7 B %% 4\ 7)) as a chief
accountant and general manager. He joined us in December 2002.

Guo Jiafeng (= {£1%), aged 41, is an executive Director of our Board and one of our executive general
managers. He is primarily responsible for our property developments in Beijing and central China. He is
also the chairman of Hunan Greentown Investment & Property Co., Ltd. (¥ 4k 1% & B £ 4 R A7)
and the vice-chairman of Hangzhou Taohuayuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(b 9 Ak AE U6 5 4 728 B %8 A5 BR 23 W), two of our subsidiaries. He graduated from Zhejiang School of
Construction (#7 T & 4E T. 2 £ #%) with a diploma in industrial and civil architecture in 1981. Between
1988 and 1994, he worked at various entities including Zhoushan Dinghai Construction Company
(1l 2 M B8 7 42 4% /) and Zhoushan Zhongnongxin Real Estate Company (S 11y 7 2 % = H 75 /3 7). He
joined us in May 1999.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Jia Shenghua (& /L #£), aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director of our Board. He is currently
an associate dean of the School of Management of Zhejiang University, as well as a director of Zhejiang
University Property Research Center (#f VT k £ 5 #1 7 BF 5¢ /1 .0»). Mr. Jia is an independent non-executive
director of Cosmos Group Co., Ltd. (& 524 3 i 3 5 FE 2\ 7)), Zhejiang lJiali Technology Holding Ltd.
(HF YT A 3 B4 i 3 47 BR 23 7) and Zhejiang Huating Holding Ltd. (i 71 2 2 i 45 47 BR 25 1T 24 =), as well as
a consultant to Ningbo Fangtai Kitchenware Ltd (% 3% 5 & J&f B % B2 2\ #). Between 1989 and 1995, Mr.
Jia taught and conducted research in property economics, property development, and enterprise
management in China and Germany. Mr. Jia graduated from the Northwest Agricultural University
(76 4k 2 % #2) with a doctorate degree in agricultural economics and management. He is currently a
member of Zhejiang Enterprises Management Research Society (7L # 42345 M5 &), Hangzhou
Land Academy (#i i 7 + # 22 €r) and Zhejiang Land Academy (i i1 % 1- #b B €r). He was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on June 22, 2006.

Jiang Wei (3% f%), aged 43, is an independent non-executive Director of our Board. He is currently the
director and chief financial officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRC"), an
integrated and diversified conglomerate with major business operations involving the manufacture and
distribution of consumer products, property development, infrastructure, utilities and related
industries. Mr. Jiang has a bachelor’'s degree in international trade and a master’'s degree in
international business and finance, both from the University of International Business and Economics in
Beijing, China. Mr. Jiang is a director of China Vanke Company Limited, a PRC listed company primarily
engaging in property development business in China. He was formerly a non-executive director of
China Resources Peoples Telephone Company Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He is also a non-
executive director of the following Hong Kong listed companies: China Resources Enterprise Limited,
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited and China Assets (Holdings) Limited. Mr. Jiang has extensive experience in
business planning and financial control. He was appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on June 22, 2006.

Sze Tsai Ping, Michael (31 3% 57), aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director of our Board. He is a
member of the Disciplinary Appeals Committee of the Stock Exchange, a lay member of the Insider
Dealing Tribunal and a committee member of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers Association Limited. He was
formerly a council member of the Stock Exchange, a member of the Main Board Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange and a member of the SFC Appeals Panel. Mr. Sze is a non-executive director of
Burwill Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of T. S. Telecom Technologies
Limited as well as GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is a certified public accountant, being an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors Limited. He has over 30 years of experience in the financial and securities field. He was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on June 22, 2006.

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (#:#3#), aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director of our Board. He is
currently the chairman of WAG Worldsec Corporate Finance Limited and vice-chairman of China
Mergers and Acquisitions Association. He was formerly the chairman of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the chief operating officer of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the chief
executive of the Stock Exchange and the adviser and council member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
In the last three years, Mr. Tsui held past directorships in the following listed companies as an
independent non-executive director: CITIC 21CN Company Limited, Value Convergence Holdings
Limited, Techpacific Capital Limited and Stockmartnet Holdings Ltd. Currently he holds directorships in
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the following listed companies as an independent non-executive director: Industrial & Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Limited, Vertex Communications & Technology Group Limited, China Chengtong
Development Group Ltd., COSCO International Holdings Limited, China Power International
Development Limited and Synergis Holdings Limited. He graduated from the University of Tennessee,
United States, with a bachelor’s degree in science and a master’s degree in industrial engineering. He
completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government at the John F. Kennedy School of
Government of Harvard University. He has numerous years of experience in finance and administration,
corporate and strategic planning, information technology as well as human resources management. He
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on June 22, 2006.

Tang Shiding (= it 72), aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director of our Board. Between 1992
and 2002, Mr. Tang served as the deputy director of Zhejiang Province Construction Department
(WiyT & & EE). He is currently the chairman of Zhejiang Provincial Real Estate Association
Wit & EH#E &), a consultant of the Real Estate Association of China (fHEHE R ¢) and a
specialist on the Comprehensive Real Estate Development Committee under the China Real Estate and
Residence Research Society (w5 5 i & J% {1 2 iF 5% €5 5 Hb % 47 & B 88 % B ). Mr. Tang has also been a
member of the Residential Guidance Working Committee of the China Civil Engineering Institute
(P A TFEB 4 TREE T/ELR S ¢) since December 2003. His publications include “Growth
Pattern and  Development Trend of the Real Estate Industry in  Zhejiang”
(HIF VL 53 b 728 i 48 X fn 2% 2 #3%4). Currently he holds directorships in the following A-Share listed
companies in China as an independent non-executive director: Lander Real Estate Co., Ltd
(e 142 & ¥R AT R 2 7)), Zhejiang  Zhongda Group Co., Ltd (i vr h K4 i 3 47 B2 7)), and
Qianjiang Water Resources Development Co., Ltd. (S&7L/kFIBHE M AR A ). Mr. Tang was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on June 22, 2006.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam Kam Tong (#k 45 4), aged 37, is our company secretary. Prior to joining the Group in May 2006,
Mr. Lam was a senior manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and has over 14 years experience in
professional audit firms. Mr. Lam graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Lam Kam Tong (#k$# 45), aged 37, is employed as our financial controller and qualified accountant on a
full-time basis as required under Rule 3.24 of the Listing Rules. See “— Company Secretary” above for
his biography.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhao Jinbiao (s 454=), aged 58, is an executive general manager of our company. He is primarily
responsible for the management of our property developments in Zhejiang Province. He is
also the general manager of Hangzhou Greentown Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(W I 4% 3005 Hb 75 B 38 47 IR 4 7). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial and civil construction engineering in 1982. From 1982 to 1999, he worked at Zhejiang
Provincial Planning and Economic Commission (#7 /1. %4 = % ¢ % % & &r) and became the manager of its
fixed assets investment department in 1996. He joined us in January 1999.

Ma Li (}5 /1), aged 48, is an executive general manager of our company. He is primarily responsible for
supervising project construction, procurement of raw materials and development budgets. He is also
the general manager of Hangzhou Jade City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(L M) 35 22 3 55 Hb 728 B %% 4 R 2\ |)). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial and civil construction engineering in 1982. From 1982 to 1993, he worked at P&T Plan-design
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Institute of Zhejiang Province (T 5 T & #7 #13% %1 5¢) and acted as a deputy chief engineer from 1989
to 1992. From 1993 to 2000, he worked at Zhejiang Huaneng Real Estate Development Company
(3 VT 22 G 7= Hb 75 B %% 4 /) and acted as its general manager from 1996 to 2000. He joined us in June
2000.

Chen Wei (i 4k), aged 40, is an executive general manager of our company. He is primarily responsible
for supervising project planning and interior design work. He is also the general manager of Hangzhou
Zhongshan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (b A il 55 bz B %5 4 R 24 7). He graduated from
Zhejiang Industrial University with a diploma in industrial and civil architecture in 1987. He graduated
from Shanghai Tongji University with a master’s degree in architecture in 1994. From 1987 to 1998, he
worked at Hangzhou Institute of Urban Construction Design (i | 7 3k 2 3% 21 k) as an architect. From
1998 to 2002, he worked at Zhejiang Zhongda Group Real Estate United Co., Ltd.
(M7 VL ok 4 18 2 W T & 4 PR ) 7)) as a deputy general manager and then a director. He joined us in
June 2002.

Qian Xiaohua ($&#:3E), aged 42, is an executive general manager of our company. He is primarily
responsible for the management of our commercial property development. He is also the general
manager of Shanghai Jingyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. (i & 5% % % 4 R 2 |). He graduated from Beijing
Institute of Aeronautics (4t 5 fii 22 £ %) with a bachelor’s degree in solid mechanics in 1984 and from
China — Europe International Business School with a master degree in business administration in 2002.
From 1995 to 2005, he worked at Shanghai Midway Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited
(P s e (EE) B A ) as a director and a chief executive officer. He joined us in
February 2005.

Lam Kam Tong (#f ¢ 45), aged 37, is the company secretary and qualified accountant of our company.
See “— Company Secretary” above for his biography.

RULE 8.12 REQUIREMENTS

According to Rule 8.12 of the Listing Rules, an issuer must have sufficient management presence in
Hong Kong. In most circumstances, at least two of the issuer’s executive directors must be ordinarily
resident in Hong Kong. Since our operations are in mainland China, we do not and, for the foreseeable
future, will not have management presence in Hong Kong. Currently, substantially all of our Directors
reside in mainland China. Accordingly, we have applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, a waiver under Rule 8.12 of the Listing Rules. We will have certain internal
arrangements in place to maintain effective communication between us and the Stock Exchange,
including appointing Lam Kam Tong, a Hong Kong resident and our company secretary, and Shou
Bainian, one of our executive Directors, as authorized representatives, to act at all times as our channel
of communication with the Stock Exchange. They will make themselves available in Hong Kong
whenever necessary to deal promptly with enquiries from the Stock Exchange. In addition, we have
retained Platinum Securities Company Limited as compliance advisor to act as our principal channel of
communication with the Stock Exchange for the duration of the compliance advisor’s engagement, the
material terms of which are set forth in “— Compliance Advisor” below.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have established a Board audit committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee will
be to review and supervise our financial reporting process and internal control system and provide
advice and comments to our Board of Directors. The audit committee consists of five members, all of
whom are our independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the audit committee is Mr. Tsui
Yiu Wa, Alec.
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BOARD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

We have set up a Board remuneration committee which consists of Jia Shenghua, Sze Tsui Ping,
Michael and Chen Shunhua. The Board remuneration committee considers and recommends to our
Board of Directors the remuneration and other benefits paid by us to our Directors and senior
management. The remuneration of all our Directors and senior management is subject to regular
monitoring by the Board remuneration committee to ensure that levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

BOARD NOMINATION COMMITTEE

We have set up a Board nomination committee which consists of Sze Tsui Ping, Michael, Tsui Yiu Wa,
Alec, Shou Bainian and Tang Shiding. The Board nomination committee considers and recommends to
our Board of Directors suitably qualified persons to become our Board members and is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of our Board on a regular basis.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

We reimburse our Directors for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably incurred for providing
services to us or executing their functions in relation to our operations. The executive Directors are also
our employees and receive, in their capacity as our employees, compensation in the form of salaries and
other allowances and benefits in kind.

The aggregate amount of salaries and other allowances and benefits in kind paid by us to our five
highest paid individuals during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 was approximately
Rmb 1.4 million, Rmb 1.2 million and Rmb 2.9 million, respectively. Approximately Rmb 58,000, Rmb
73,000 and Rmb 198,000 were paid by us as our contribution to the pension schemes in respect of
such individuals in the three years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, the aggregate amount of salaries and
other allowances, pension scheme contributions and benefits in kind paid by us to or on behalf of all of
our Directors was Rmb 0.6 million, Rmb 0.7 million, and Rmb 1.3 million, respectively.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, in respect of the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, by us or any of our subsidiaries to or on behalf of any of
our Directors.

Under the arrangements currently in force, we estimate the aggregate remuneration, excluding

discretionary bonus, of our Directors payable for the year ending December 31, 2006 to be
approximately Rmb 2,390,000.
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EMPLOYEES
As of May 31, 2006, we had 1,035 full-time employees. Breakdowns of employees by function as of
the same date were as follows:

Number of employees

Other Percentage
Division Zhejiang  Shanghai Beijing regions Total of total
Management .. ... .. .. .. 80 14 9 16 119 11.50%
Administration .. ... ... .. 62 18 13 14 107 10.34
Human resources. . . ... ... 20 5 2 3 30 2.90
Finance and auditing . . . . .. 54 8 5 12 79 7.63
Construction. . .. ........ 284 39 42 65 430 41.55
Construction cost management 30 3 5 6 44 4.25
Marketing. . .. .......... 17 5 2 12 36 3.48
Sales . ... ... 94 25 19 33 171 16.52
Customer relations. . . . . ... 4 1 2 2 9 0.87
Others................ 10 0 0 0 10 0.97
Total . ....... .. ... .. 655 118 99 163 1,035 100.0%

We recruit our employees from Chinese universities, vocational schools and the public. As of May 31,
2006, over 80% of our 1,035 full-time employees had college or associate college degrees.

The remuneration package of our employees includes salary, bonus and other cash subsidies. In
general, we determine employee salaries based on each employee’s qualification, position and
seniority. We have designed an annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which form the basis of our determination on salary raise, bonus and promotion. We are subject to
social insurance contribution plans organized by the PRC local governments. In accordance with the
relevant national and local labor and social welfare laws and regulations, we are required to pay on
behalf of our employees a monthly social insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing reserve fund. We believe the salaries and benefits
that our employees receive are competitive in comparison with market rates.

Our employees do not negotiate their terms of employment through any labor union or by way of
collective bargaining agreements. We believe our relationship with our employees is good. As of the
Latest Practicable Date, no significant labor disputes which adversely affected or were likely to have an
adverse effect on the operations of our business occured.

We have adopted a share option scheme for our senior management and employees. See “Statutory

and General Information — Other Information — Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIII to this
prospectus. As of the date of this prospectus, we have not granted any share option to any person.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

We have appointed Platinum Securities Company Limited as our compliance advisor upon listing of our
Shares on the Stock Exchange in compliance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules. We have entered into
a compliance advisor's agreement with Platinum Securities Company Limited, the material terms of
which are summarized as follows:

(a)

we have appointed Platinum Securities Company Limited as our compliance advisor for the
purpose of Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules for a period commencing on the date of listing of our
Shares on the Stock Exchange and ending on the date on which we comply with Rule 13.46 of the
Listing Rules in respect of our financial results for the financial year ending December 31, 2007, or
until the agreement is terminated, whichever is earlier;

Platinum Securities Company Limited shall provide us with services, including guidance and advice
as to compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules, codes
and guidelines, and to act as one of our principal channels of communication with the Stock
Exchange;

we have agreed to indemnify Platinum Securities Company Limited for certain actions against it
and losses incurred by it arising out of or in connection with the performance by Platinum
Securities Company Limited of its duties under the agreement; and

we may terminate the appointment of Platinum Securities Company Limited as our compliance
advisor only if its work is of an unacceptable standard as determined under the Listing Rules and
the relevant laws and regulations or if there is a material dispute (which cannot be resolved within
30 days) over fees payable to it as permitted by Rule 3A.26 of the Listing Rules. Platinum
Securities Company Limited will have the right to resign or terminate its appointment by service of
a three-month notice to us if we materially breach the agreement.
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So far as we are aware, the following persons will, immediately following the completion of the Global
Offering and taking no account of any Shares which may be taken up under the Global Offering and
assuming no exercise of the Over-allotment Option, have beneficial interests or short positions in any of
our Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to us under the provisions of Divisions

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Number of Percentage of

Shares held shareholding in

after Global us after Global

Shareholder Offering  Nature of Interest Offering'"”
Song Weiping . . 570,383,000'” Deemed interest, interest of controlled corporations 43.92%
Xia Yibo. ... .. 570,383,000®) Deemed interest, interest of controlled corporations 43.92%
Shou Bainian. . . 383,643,000 Interest of controlled corporations 29.54%
Delta House . . . 501,524,000 Beneficial owner 38.62%
Profitwise . . . . . 383,643,000 Beneficial owner 29.54%

Notes:

(1 If the Over-allotment Option is fully exercised, such percentages of shareholding by Song Weiping, Shou Bainian, Delta
House and Profitwise will be 42.33%, 28.47%, 37.22% and 28.47%, respectively.

(2) Includes deemed interest in 501,524,000 Shares held via controlled corporation, and deemed interest in 68,859,000
Shares held by Wisearn, a controlled corporation of his spouse, Xia Yibo. Ms Xia Yibo is similarly deemed to be interested in
570,383,000 Shares by virtue of her deemed interest in Shares held by Wisearn and Shares in which Song Weiping is
interested.

(3) Includes deemed interest in 68,859,000 Shares held via controlled corporation, and deemed interest in 501,524,000
Shares held by Delta House, a controlled corporation of her spouse, Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping is similarly deemed
to be interested in 570,383,000 Shares by virtue of his deemed interest in Shares held by Delta House and Shares in which
Xia Yibo is interested.

For details of our Directors’ interests in our Shares immediately following the completion of the Global
Offering, see “Statutory and General Information — Further Information about Directors, Management
and Staff” in Appendix VIII to this prospectus.

Except as disclosed in this prospectus, we are not aware of any person that is not a Director who will,
immediately following the completion of the Global Offering, be directly or indirectly interested in 10%
or more of our registered capital. We are not aware of any arrangement which may at a subsequent
date result in a change of control of our company.

170



SHARE CAPITAL

The following is a description of the share capital of our company in issue after giving effect to the
Capitalization Issue and the Global Offering:

HK$
Authorized:
10,000,000,000 Shares, par value HK$0.10 per Share . . ... ..................... 1,000,000,000
Issued and to be issued, fully paid or credited as fully paid:
1,000 Shares in issue prior to Capitalization Issue . .. .................. 100
999,999,000 Shares issued pursuant to the Capitalization Issue . ... ............. 99,999,900
1,000,000,000 Shares in issue at the date of this prospectus . ................... 100,000,000
298,701,500 Shares to be issued pursuant to the Global Offering ... ............ 29,870,150
Total:
1,298,701,500 Shares . . . . . . . .. 129,870,150

The above table assumes the Global Offering becomes unconditional and is completed. It takes no
account of any Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option. Our
Directors have a general mandate to issue additional Shares as described below.

Other than this Global Offering, we do not propose to carry out a public or private issue or to place
securities simultaneously with the Global Offering or within the next six months other than the issue of
Shares upon conversion of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds or upon the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme. We have not approved any Share issue plan other than the
Global Offering and the issue of Shares upon conversion of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds or
upon the exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

We have given certain undertakings in respect of the issuance of our Shares and other securities. See
“Underwriting — Underwriting Arrangements and Expenses — Undertakings.”

RANKING

The Offer Shares will rank equally with all our Shares now in issue or to be issued and will qualify for all
dividends, income and other distributions and any other rights and benefits attaching or accruing to
our Shares after the completion of the Global Offering.

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES
Assuming the Global Offering becomes unconditional, our Directors have been granted a general
mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares with a total nominal value of not more than the sum of:

e 20% of the total nominal amount of our share capital in issue immediately following the
completion of Global Offering but before the exercise of the Over-allotment Option; and

° the total nominal amount of our share capital repurchased by us under the mandate as mentioned
in “— General Mandate to Repurchase Shares” below.

The general mandate is in addition to the powers of our Directors to allot, issue or deal with Shares
under any rights issue, scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangement providing for the allotment and
issue of Shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend in accordance with our Memorandum and
Articles of Association, or pursuant to the exercise of any subscription rights attached to any warrants
which may be issued by us from time to time, or upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option or
options granted under the Share Option Scheme. The general mandate does not include any Shares to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option or the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme.
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This general mandate will expire:

at the end of our next annual general meeting; or
at the end of the period within which we are required by any applicable laws or our Memorandum
and Articles of Association to hold our next annual general meeting; or

e when varied or revoked by an ordinary resolution of our shareholders in a general meeting,

whichever is the earliest.

Further information of this general mandate is set out in “Statutory and General Information — Further
Information About Our Company — Resolutions in writing of all our shareholders passed on June 22,
2006" in Appendix VIII to this prospectus.

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

Assuming the Global Offering becomes unconditional, our Directors have been granted a general
mandate to exercise all the powers of our company to repurchase Shares with a total nominal value of
not more than 10% of the total nominal amount of our share capital in issue immediately following the
completion of Global Offering but before the exercise of the Over-allotment Option. The general
mandate does not include any Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option or the options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

This general mandate only relates to repurchases made on the Stock Exchange or on any other stock
exchange on which the Shares are listed (and which is recognized by SFC and the Stock Exchange for
this purpose) and which are in accordance with the Listing Rules. A summary of the relevant Listing
Rules is set out in “Statutory and General Information — Further Information About Our Company —
Repurchase by our company of Shares” in Appendix VIII to this prospectus.

This general mandate will expire:
at the end of our next annual general meeting; or
at the end of the period within which we are required by any applicable laws or our Memorandum
and Articles of Association to hold our next annual general meeting; or

e when varied or revoked by an ordinary resolution of our shareholders in a general meeting.

whichever is the earliest.
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You should read this section in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements,
including the accompanying notes, in the Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to this prospectus. Our
audited consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the three years ended December 31,
2003, 2004 and 2005 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants. We
have prepared our consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS, which may differ in
material respects from generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions. Pursuant to the
Reorganization, our company, Greentown China Holdings Limited, became the holding company of the
companies now comprising our group. Our company, Greentown China Holdings Limited, and its
subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganization are regarded as a continuing entity. Our consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
(including the Non-Property Related Entities as defined in note 2 in the Accountants’ Report in
Appendix | to this prospectus up to the date of disposal) for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005 include the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the companies comprising our group
as if our company, Greentown China Holdings Limited, had always been the holding company of our
group and in accordance with the respective equity interests in the individual companies attributable to
the existing shareholders throughout the Relevant Period or, if shorter, since their respective dates of
incorporation. Therefore, the financial information included in this prospectus may not necessarily
reflect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows in the future or what they would have
been had we been a separate, stand-alone entity during the periods presented.

This section includes forward-looking statements. All statements, other than statements of historical
facts, included in this section that address activities, events or developments which we expect or
anticipate will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. These statements are based
on assumptions and analyses we made in light of experience and our perception of historical trends,
current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors we believe are
appropriate under the circumstances.

Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “2003,” “2004" and “2005" in this prospectus are
to our financial years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. References to
“associate” or “associates” in this “Financial Information” section are to associates as defined in IFRS.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Overview

We are one of the leading residential property developers in China. We primarily develop high quality
residential properties in three main product series: villas, low-rise apartment buildings and high-rise
apartment buildings. While we have historically focused our property development operations in
Hangzhou and other cities within Zhejiang Province, we have over the years become a national player in
the residential property markets with significant operations in Shanghai, Beijing and other strategically
selected cities across the country, including Hefei in Anhui Province, Changsha in Hunan Province and
Urumai in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. For 2003, 2004 and 2005, our revenues amounted to
Rmb 1,224.4 million, Rmb 2,739.1 million and Rmb 2,535.1 million, respectively, with profits
attributable to equity holders of our company of Rmb 77.2 million, Rmb 454.4 million and Rmb 622.7
million for the respective years.

Key factors affecting our results of operations

Economic growth, speed of urbanization and demand for residential properties in China
Economic growth, urbanization and higher standards of living in China have been the main driving
forces behind the increasing market demand for residential properties. At the current stage of the PRC
economic development, while the property industry is regarded by the PRC government as one of
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China’s pillar industries, the property industry is significantly dependent on the overall economic
growth and the resultant consumer demand for residential properties. Because we target middle to
higher income residents, we believe that private sector developments and urbanization in China are
especially important to our operations. Developments in the private sector, urbanization and the
resultant demand for residential properties in China have in the past increased the sales of our
properties. These factors will continue to have a significant impact on our results of operations.

Regulatory measures in the real estate industry in China

PRC government policies and measures on property development and related industries have a direct
impact on our business and results of operations. From time to time, the PRC government adjusts its
macroeconomic control policies to encourage or restrict development in the private property sector
through measures relating to, among others, land grants, pre-sales of properties, bank financing and
taxation. In 2004 and 2005, the PRC government implemented a series of measures with a view to
slowing down the growth of the economy, including the property markets. As a result of such
measures, property developments and sales in certain regions of China, including Shanghai, grew at a
slower speed in 2005 as compared to 2003 and 2004. PRC regulatory measures in the real estate
industry will continue to impact our business and results of operations.

Ability to acquire suitable land

Our continuing growth will depend in large part on our ability to secure quality land at prices that can
yield reasonable returns. Based on our current development plans, we have sufficient land reserves for
property developments for the next five years. As the PRC economy continues to grow at a relatively
high speed and demand for residential properties remains relatively strong, we expect that competition
among developers for land reserves that are suitable for property development will intensify. In
addition, the public tender, auction and listing-for-sale practice in respect of the grant of state-owned
land use rights is also likely to increase competition for development land and to increase land
acquisition costs as a result.

Pre-sale

Pre-sale constitutes the most important source of our operating cash inflow during the process of our
project development. The PRC law allows us to pre-sell properties before their completion upon
satisfaction of certain requirements and requires us to use the pre-sale proceeds to develop the
property projects so pre-sold. The amount and timing of cash inflows from pre-sales are affected by a
number of factors, including timing and other restrictions on pre-sale imposed by the PRC government,
market demand for our properties subject to pre-sale and the number of properties we have available
for pre-sale. Reduced cash flow from pre-sales of our properties will increase our reliance on external
financing and will impact our ability to finance our continuing property developments.

Access to and cost of financing

Bank borrowing is another important source of funding for our property developments. As of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, our outstanding bank borrowings amounted to Rmb 2,789.2
million, Rmb 3,454.0 million and Rmb 3,913.2 million, respectively. As commercial banks in China link
the interest rates on their bank loans to benchmark lending rates published by PBOC, any increase in
such benchmark lending rates will increase the interest costs for our developments. Our access to
capital and cost of financing are also affected by restrictions imposed from time to time by the PRC
government on bank lending for property developments.

We may also seek financing in the international capital market similar to the offering of our Convertible

Bonds, which may give us a longer maturity term but may bear higher interest rates than bank
borrowings.
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Price volatility of construction materials

Our results of operations are affected by price volatility of construction materials such as steel and
cement. Cost of materials constitutes the most important item in our construction costs, exceeding in
importance our construction labor cost and project design cost. For a substantial part of our purchases
of key construction materials such as steel and cement, we use a centralized procurement process to
help increase our negotiating power and lower our unit costs for construction materials. Despite the
efficiencies and pricing advantages of our volume purchases, rising costs for any construction materials
will impact our construction costs and cost of sales. If we cannot pass the increased costs on to our
customers, our profitability will suffer.

LAT

Our property developments are subject to LAT with respect to the appreciated value of the related land
and improvements on such land. LAT applies to both domestic and foreign investors in real properties
in China, irrespective of whether they are corporate entities or individuals. The PRC tax authorities in
general have not strictly enforced the LAT regulations and the regulatory standards for the calculation
of LAT are unclear in various aspects. We made LAT provisions of Rmb 0.5 million, Rmb 100.3 million
and Rmb 5.1 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. We also prepay LAT with reference to our
pre-sale proceeds since the PRC government imposed such prepayment requirement in 2004 in all
jurisdictions where we have operations, except Shanghai Pudong district and Beijing Fangshan district
which has not implemented such prepayment requirement with respect to ordinary residential
properties (3 5 4% % 4 52). Our PRC counsel, T&C Law Firm, has confirmed in its opinion that, as of the
Latest Practicable Date, we had made prepayments and/or provisions for LAT in compliance with PRC
LAT laws and regulations and/or requirements by local tax authorities. However, we cannot assure that
such provisions will be sufficient to cover our LAT obligations in respect of our past LAT liabilities or that
the relevant tax authorities will agree with the basis on which we have calculated our LAT liabilities for
provision purposes. Our financial condition may be materially adversely affected if our LAT liabilities as
calculated by the relevant tax authorities are substantially higher than our provisions. We have provided
more details on the PRC regulations on LAT in “Taxation — Mainland China Taxation — Our operations
in mainland China — Land appreciation tax” in Appendix V to this prospectus.

Interim fluctuation of results of operations

Our results of operations tend to fluctuate from period to period. The number of properties that we can
develop or complete during any particular period is limited due to substantial capital requirements for
land acquisition, demolishment, resettlement and construction, as well as limited land supplies and
lengthy development period before positive cash flows may be generated. In addition, in recent years
we began to develop larger scale property developments and, as a result, we develop properties
through different phases during the course of several years. Typically, selling prices of properties in
such larger scale property developments tend to increase as the overall development becomes closer to
completion, thus offering a more established residential community to the purchasers. Seasonal
variations as we disclosed in “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Business — Our operations are
subject to seasonal variations” have in addition caused fluctuations in our interim revenues and profits,
including quarterly and semi-annual results. As a result, our results of operations fluctuate and our
interim results do not proportionally reflect our annual results.

Critical accounting policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention as modified for
the revaluation of certain financial instrument and in accordance with IFRS. IFRS requires us to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of our assets and liabilities
at the end of each fiscal period, (ii) the disclosure of our contingent assets and liabilities at the end of
each fiscal period and (iii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during each fiscal period.
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We continually evaluate these estimates based on our own historical experience, knowledge and
assessment of current business and other conditions, our expectations regarding the future based on
available information and our best assumptions, which together form our basis for making judgments
about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. Since the use of estimates is an integral
component of the financial reporting process, our actual results could differ from those estimates and
expectations. Some of our accounting policies require a higher degree of judgment than others in their
application.

When reviewing our financial statements, you should consider (i) our selection of critical accounting
policies, (ii) the judgment and other uncertainties affecting the application of such policies, and (iii) the
sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions. We believe the following
accounting policies involve the most significant judgment and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition. Our revenues comprise primarily proceeds from sales of properties that we
develop, net of business tax. We recognize revenues from the sales of our properties when the relevant
properties have been delivered to the purchasers, typically at the earlier of the time when the
possession to the properties was passed to the purchasers and, if the purchasers failed to take delivery
within the delivery period stated in the delivery notices, the last day of the delivery period stated in the
delivery notices. Deposits received from pre-sales of properties are carried as pre-sale deposits.

Construction contracts. \We sometimes engage in property developments as construction contracts
for accounting purposes. In such event, where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activities at the relevant balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to the balance sheet date bear to the estimated total contract costs,
except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the
customer. Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognized to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an
expense immediately. The determination of the stage of completion and estimation of total contract
costs require management judgments with reference to the market situation. Adjustments may be
required if the market situation changes in the future. As of the date of this prospectus, we have one
project which was treated as a construction contract for accounting purposes.

Properties for development. Cost of properties for development includes the costs of the relevant
land use rights and other costs directly attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the condition
necessary for it to be ready for development. The costs of the relevant land use rights representing
leasehold land held for future development are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
identified impairment loss. Other costs directly attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the
condition necessary for it to be ready for development are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

Properties under development. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost of properties under development includes the costs of the relevant land use
rights, construction costs, capitalized borrowing costs and other direct development expenditure. Net
realizable value is determined by reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs to completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Completed properties for sale. Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost of completed properties for sale includes the costs of the relevant land use
rights, construction costs, capitalized borrowing costs and other direct development expenditure. Net
realizable value is determined by reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs. \We capitalize our borrowing costs as part of the cost of sales for a project or
project phase to the extent that such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction
of such project or project phase. In general, we capitalize the borrowing costs incurred from the
commencement of the construction upon receipt of the construction permit of the relevant project or
project phase until the relevant project or project phase is ready for delivery. Borrowing costs incurred
after the completion of the construction or otherwise not directly attributable to the acquisition and
construction of such project or project phase are recorded on our income statements as finance costs in
the period in which they are incurred.

LAT. LAT is recognized as an expense to the extent that it is probable that we have the obligation to
pay the tax to the PRC tax authorities. We make provisions for LAT based on the total appreciated value
of the land and improvements on the land in respect of the delivered properties. We have estimated
and made provisions according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. We also prepay LAT on the basis of our pre-sale proceeds in accordance with requirements
of PRC tax authorities. The actual LAT liabilities are, however, subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development projects and, because the PRC government
has not published clear and comprehensive guidelines to implement its LAT regulations, the tax
authorities may disagree with the basis on which provisions for LAT are calculated. In 2003, 2004 and
2005, we made LAT prepayments of Rmb 0.6 million, Rmb 3.6 million and Rmb 25.0 million,
respectively, and made LAT provisions of Rmb 0.5 million, Rmb 100.3 million and Rmb 5.1 million,
respectively. Until the PRC government further clarifies its LAT regulations and enforces them on a
uniform basis, our actual LAT liability will continue to be subject to a degree of uncertainty.

Certain income statement items

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from proceeds from sales of properties that we develop, net of
business tax, municipal maintenance tax and education surcharge. Business tax, municipal maintenance
tax and eduction surcharge in the aggregate account for approximately 5.55% of the gross revenue,
depending on local regulations of different cities. We recognize our revenue after the properties have
been sold and delivered. As customary in the residential property industry, we pre-sell our properties
prior to their completion in accordance with PRC pre-sale regulations. We do not, however, recognize
the proceeds from pre-sale of properties until we have completed the construction of these properties
and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers. Typically there is a time gap ranging from
one to two years between the time we commence pre-sale of the properties under development and
the delivery of the properties. We record the proceeds received from the pre-sold properties as “pre-
sale deposits,” an item of current liabilities on our balance sheet, and as a part of “increase in pre-sale
deposits” on our cash flow statements.
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Our financial performance for a given period depends on the number of properties we sell or pre-sell
within the period and the sale prices realized for these properties. The table below sets forth, for the
periods and regions indicated, the aggregate GFA of residential properties we delivered and the
average selling prices per square meter for these properties, as measured by dividing the revenues by
the aggregate GFA delivered.

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
Average Average Average
GFA selling GFA selling GFA selling
delivered price/m?  delivered price/m?  delivered price/m?
(m?) (Rmb) (m?) (Rmb) (m?) (Rmb)
Hangzhou
Villa. oo 31,180 6,706 42,639 13,599 — —
Apartment . . ... ... L 97,353 8,576 151,906 5,893 79,011 7,523
Zhejiang Province (excluding Hangzhou)
Villa. .o — — — — — —
Apartment . . ... ... L 38,540 3,453 9,365 3,580 58,131 3,354
Shanghai
Villa. .o — — — — — —
Apartment . .. ... ... L — — 150,620 6,526 107,146 9,539
Beijing
Villa. oo — — — — — —
Apartment . .. ... ... L — — . — 109,674 2,807
Anhui Province
Villa. .o — — — — — —
Apartment . ... ... ... L — — 75,351 2,462 94,915 3,360
Hunan Province
Villa. .o — — — — — —
Apartment . .. ... ... .. L. — — — — — —
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region
Villa. .o — — — — — —
Apartment . ... ... ... L. — — — — — —
Total............ ... ... ....... 167,073 429,881 448,877

One of our property projects, Dishui Building, is treated for accounting purposes as a construction
contract rather than a property development project. Pursuant to a contract with Zhejiang Finance
Development Company (i y1. % Bt 7% B 25 /% 7)), we developed this project on its behalf and have
received development fees totaling Rmb 211.6 million. Revenues generated from this project are
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the project at the relevant balance sheet date.
Such revenues recognized on a stage-of-completion basis were Rmb 38.1 million, Rmb 54.7 million and
Rmb 66.7 million, respectively, for 2003, 2004 and 2005. See Note 5 “— Revenue” in the Accountants’
Report in Appendix | to this prospectus.
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The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, our revenues from property sales by project and
revenues from other sources.

Year ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
(Rmb in millions)

Property sales

Guihua City .. ... . 131.5 69.4 11.5
Hangzhou Green Garden . .. ........ .. ... ... ... .. ...... 821.9 79.5 6.5
Chunjiang Huayue Phase I. . . ... ... ... . ... .. . . ... ... — 746.2 18.9
Chunjiang Huayue Phase Il . ... ... ... .. .. .. ... ... . ..... — — 559.8
Taohuayuan East. . .. ... ... ... .. 77.6 8.9 —
Jiuxi Rose Garden . . ... ... ... ... — 571.0 1.2
Hangzhou Zigui Garden . . .. ... ... ... . ... . .. ...... 9.7 — —
Shanghai Greentown Phase |. . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... — 983.0 21.3
Shanghai Greentown Phase Il . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... — — 1,001.0
Zhoushan Dangui Garden Phase | (residential) . . ... ....... ... 118.5 4.8 —
Zhoushan Dangui Garden Phase | (commercial) ... ........... 14.6 49 4.1
Zhoushan Dangui Garden Phase Il . . ... ... ... ... . ...... — 23.8 —
Hefei Guihua Garden Phase I. .. ....... ... .. .. .......... — 175.5 62.1
Hefei Guihua Garden Phase | (parking spaces) . ... ........... — 10.0 —
Hefei Guihua Garden Phase Il .. ... ... .. .. .. .. .. ...... — — 256.8
Haining Baihe New City . . ... ... ... .. .. . . . ... ... ... ... — — 190.9
Beijing Baihe Apartments . . . ... ... ... . ... — — 307.8
Others . . . 3.3 1.6 —
Subtotal . . . ... ... ... .. 1,177 .1 2,678.6 2,441.9
Construction contract . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. .. ..., 38.1 54.7 66.7
Computer system design and installation . ... ... .. .. ... . 7.9 4.7 4.6
Sales of construction materials . . . .. ..... ... .. ... ... ... — — 18.6
Other businesses. . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1.3 1.1 3.3
Total. . .. .. ... .. 1,224.4 2,739.1 2,535.1
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises primarily costs incurred directly for our property development, including land acquisition
costs, construction costs, capitalized interest expenses and provisions for LATs. The table below sets forth
breakdowns by these categories of our cost of sales for 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
(% of (% of (% of
(Rmb in cost of (Rmb in cost of (Rmb in cost of
millions) sales) millions) sales) millions) sales)
Land acquisition costs . .. ... .. 344.5 40.0% 461.0 24.8% 270.1 16.5%
Construction costs
Contractor fees and certain
material costs” . .. ... ... 381.6 44.4 1,026.4 55.3 1,005.1 61.3
Infrastructure costs . .. ..... 19.5 2.3 14.9 0.8 90.1 5.5
Design costs . . . .......... 12.5 1.4 28.6 1.5 39.9 2.4
Government surcharges . . . .. 15.5 1.8 64.6 3.5 44.5 2.7
Construction management costs 14.0 1.6 16.6 0.9 28.9 1.8
Subtotal . . .. ..... ... ... 4431 51.5 1,151.1 62.0 1,208.5 73.7
Capitalized interest . ... ... ... 36.1 4.2 111.6 6.0 81.0 4.9
LAT provisions. . . .. ......... 0.5 0.1 100.3 5.4 5.1 0.3
Others . .. ... ... ... ...... 36.2 4.2 32.9 1.8 74.9 4.6
Total. .. ...... ... .. ... . 860.4 100.0% 1,856.9 100.0% 1,639.6 100.0%

Note:
(1) The material costs in this item primarily related to purchases of plants for landscaping use and certain electrical engineering
equipment for installation in our properties.

Land acquisition costs. Land acquisition costs represent costs relating to acquisition of the rights to
occupy, use and develop land, including land premiums, demolishment and resettlement costs, and
other land-related taxes and government surcharges. In addition to PRC economic development and
property market conditions, our land acquisition costs are affected by the location of the property
projects and the timing of acquisition. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, our average land costs per square
meter of GFA were Rmb 2,061.8, Rmb 1,072.4 and Rmb 601.7, respectively, as measured by dividing
the aggregate land costs by the aggregate saleable GFA of properties delivered within these periods.
Our average land costs decreased between 2003 and 2005 primarily because we delivered more
properties in regions where land was relatively cheaper. Between 2003 and 2004, such decrease was
also due to the lower land costs for a particular project because we acquired the land at a time when
land costs were generally lower.

When a piece of land is previously occupied, site cleaning and relocation of original residents are
required before the land can be developed. Demolishment and resettlement costs generally represent
the compensation we pay to the original residents and the expenses to clean up the site. The PRC
government has laid down some basic principles for determining the appropriate level of demolishment
and resettlement compensation. However, the actual demolishment and resettlement compensation
varies from site to site and is subject to negotiations between the developers and the original residents.
In many instances, pursuant to the land use rights grant contract, the government will take
responsibility for completing the demolishment of original structures and the resettlement of the
original residents on the land while we will typically pay the demolishment and resettlement costs
through the government at an agreed amount.
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Construction costs. Construction costs represent costs for the design and construction of a property
project, consisting primarily of fees paid to our contractors, including contractors responsible for civil
engineering construction, landscaping, equipment installation and interior decoration, as well as
infrastructure construction costs, design costs and certain government surcharges. Our construction
costs are affected by a number of factors such as price movements of construction materials, location
and types of properties, choices of materials and investments in ancilliary facilities. Substantially all of
the costs of construction materials, whether procured by ourselves or by our contractors, are accounted
for as part of the contractor fees upon settlement with the relevant contractors. Our construction costs
as a percentage of the total cost of sales increased in recent years primarily because we used higher
quality construction materials and upgraded ancilliary facilities in our property developments in an
attempt to continue to enhance the overall quality and appeal of our properties.

Capitalized interest. We capitalize our borrowing costs as part of the cost of sales for a project or
project phase to the extent that such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
the jurisdiction of such project or project phase. See “— Critical Accounting Policies — Borrowing
costs.”

LAT provisions. LAT provisions as part of our cost of sales represent provisions for the estimated LATs
payable in relation to our properties delivered during a period. In accordance with the PRC Provisional
Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax and the relevant implementation rules, property developers that
receive income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and other attached
facilities must pay 30% to 60% LAT on the appreciated value of the land and improvements on such
land unless the properties fall into the category of ordinary residential properties and the appreciation
does not exceed 20% of the deductible items as described in the LAT regulations. Sales of villas and
commercial properties are not eligible for such exemption. However, the regulatory standards for the
calculation of LAT are unclear or uncertain in various respects. We made LAT provisions of Rmb 0.5
million, Rmb 100.3 million and Rmb 5.1 million in 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Our LAT
provisions were relatively small for 2003 and 2005 because most of the properties delivered in these
years were ordinary residential properties and the appreciation did not exceed 20% of the total
deductible items, while we made Rmb 100.3 million of LAT provisions in 2004 because a larger portion
of our deliveries in 2004 were villas, which were not treated as ordinary residential properties and were
not eligible for the 20% exemption. For further details, see “— Key factors affecting our results of
operations — LAT” and “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Business — The relevant PRC tax
authorities may challenge the basis on which we calculate our LAT obligations.”

Other operating income

Other operating income primarily comprises interest income from our bank deposits and loans to
project companies that are our associates, government grants, gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments, and management fees received from our minority-owned project companies not
consolidated with our company for financial reporting purposes. Government grants are subsidies
we receive from local governments, which are paid at the sole discretion of the relevant government
authorities. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, we received Rmb 19.4 million, Rmb 41.5 million and Rmb 24.0
million, respectively, in local government grants. These grants were financial subsidies, awards or
support from local governments during those respective years in various cities or provinces where we
had operations.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses comprise primarily advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs,
advertising fees paid to the Greentown Football Club (% & k{2 44 %5), depreciation, travel expenses,
entertainment expenses, rental payments, office expenses, impairment losses on properties, sales
commissions, and certain taxes including urban land use tax, building tax and stamp duty.
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Finance costs

Finance costs comprise primarily interest costs net of capitalized interest relating to properties under
development. See “Critical Accounting Policies — Borrowing costs” above. Since the construction
period for a project or project phase does not necessarily coincide with the interest payment period of
the relevant loan, not all of the interest costs related to a project or project phase can be capitalized. As
a result, our finance costs fluctuate from period to period depending on the level of interest costs that
are capitalized within the reporting period.

Taxation

Taxation represents PRC corporate income tax payable by our subsidiaries in China. The Corporate
income tax rate generally applicable in China is 33% of taxable income. Certain enterprises are eligible
for preferential corporate income tax treatments. Shanghai Lvyu, one of our major revenue
contributors in 2004 and 2005, pays corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 15% as an
enterprise established in the Pudong New Zone in Shanghai. Hangzhou Jiuxi, also a major revenue
contributor in 2004, pays corporate income tax at the reduced corporate income tax rate of 27% as a
foreign-invested enterprise established in Hangzhou Zhijiang National Tourism and Resort Zone
(e M 2 VLB % i % B {2 [%) in Zhejiang Province. Taking into account these preferential tax treatments,
our effective corporate income tax rate for 2003, 2004 and 2005 was 55.6%, 30.9% and 17.6%,
respectively. The relatively high effective income tax rate in 2003 was mainly due to the fact that a
large number of project companies had not yet reached the pre-sale stage in their projects and
therefore no deferred tax assets had been recognized for the losses they incurred. As generally our
project companies will be dissolved after the completion of their property developments, our tax
benefits derived from the preferential treatments by these project companies will cease after we have
delivered all properties developed by these companies. Going forward our other project companies may
be eligible for similar tax benefits. However, there can be no assurance that we will continue to receive
these or other tax benefits indefinitely or at all.

Currently, we are not subject to Cayman Islands income tax pursuant to an undertaking obtained from
the Governor in Cabinet. See "Summary of Memorandum and Articles of Association and Cayman
Companies Law — Summary of Cayman Companies Law and Taxation — Taxation” in Appendix VIl to
this prospectus.

Discontinued operations

As part of our Reorganization, we disposed of some of our businesses, including catering, consulting,
property management, entertainment, production and sale of certain materials such as plants used for
landscaping of property developments, leasing and landscape gardening, that are not part of our core
pursuit of property development. Losses from these businesses were Rmb 15.9 million and Rmb 5.9
million, respectively, for 2003 and 2004. Profits from these businesses were Rmb 0.3 million for 2005.

Minority Interests

Our project companies generally incur losses before they commence delivery of the properties they
develop due to the initial capital outlay and administrative costs. As such, minority shareholders of our
project companies generally share losses during the early stages of the relevant developments. For
2003, 2004 and 2005, most of our non-wholly owned subsidiaries had not delivered any, or had
delivered only a small number of, properties developed by them. As a result, our minority shareholders
shared a net loss in each of these years.
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Results of operations
The table below summarizes our audited consolidated results in absolute terms and as a percentage of
our revenue for 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Consolidated income statements

Year ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
(Rmb in millions, except percentages and per share data)

Continuing operations

Revenue................. 1,224.4 100.0% 2,739.1 100.0% 2,535.1 100.0%
Costofsales. ............. (860.4) (70.3) (1,856.9) (67.8) (1,639.6) (64.7)
Gross profit .. ...... ... ... 364.0 29.7 882.2 32.2 895.5 35.3
Other operating income . . . . . . 65.0 53 64.1 2.3 84.0 3.3
Selling and administrative

EXPeNnseS. . . ... (176.2) (14.3) (213.8) (7.8) (274.0) (10.8)
Profit from operations . . .. ... 252.8 20.7 732.5 26.7 705.5 27.8
Finance costs . .. .......... (53.8) (4.4) (36.8) (1.3) (70.8) (2.8)
Net gain on partial disposal of

subsidiaries . ... ... ... — — 1.0 0.0 — —
Net gain on disposal of an

associate . ... .. ... ... — — — — 0.6 0.0
Net gain on disposal of

subsidiaries . . . ... ... ... — — — — 45.0 1.8
Share of results of associates. . . (6.8) (0.6) (43.0) (1.5) 31.3 1.2
Profit before taxation. .. ... .. 192.2 15.7 653.7 23.9 711.6 28.0
Taxation. .. .............. (106.9) (8.7) (202.0) (7.4) (125.1) (4.9
Profit for the year from

continuing operations. . . . . . 85.3 7.0 451.7 16.5 586.5 23.1

Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year from

discontinued operations . . . . (15.9) (1.3) (5.9) (0.2) 0.3 0.0
Profit for the year. . . . . . . .. 69.4 5.7 445.8 16.3 586.8 23.1
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the

Company. ............. 77.2 6.3 454 .4 16.6 622.7 24.6
Minority interests. . ... ... ... (7.8) (0.6) (8.6) (0.3) (35.9) (1.5)
69.4 5.7% 445.8 16.3 586.8 23.1

Dividends . . .. ............ — — 771 2.8% 198.4 7.8%

Earnings per Share
From continuing and
discontinued operations:

Basic™. ... ... ... ... ... Rmb 0.08 Rmb 0.45 Rmb 0.62
From continuing operations:

Basic?. . ... ... ... .. Rmb 0.09 Rmb 0.46 Rmb 0.62
Notes:

(1) The calculation of the basic earnings per Share from continuing and discontinued operations is based on profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of our company and a weighted average number of Shares of 1,000,000,000 which has been
adjusted to reflect the Capitalization Issue on June 21, 2006. The number of Shares in issue prior to the Capitalization Issue
was 1,000.

(2)  The calculation of the basic earnings per Share from continuing operations is based on profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of our company before profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations and a weighted average
number of Shares of 1,000,000,000 which has been adjusted to reflect the Capitalization Issue on June 21, 2006. The
number of Shares in issue prior to the Capitalization Issue was 1,000.
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2005 compared to 2004

Revenue. Our revenue decreased by Rmb 204.0 million, or 7.4%, to Rmb 2,535.1 million in 2005 from
Rmb 2,739.1 million in 2004. Major contributors to our revenue in 2005 included sales of properties of
Shanghai Greentown Phase I, Chunjiang Huayue Phase I, Beijing Baihe Apartments Phase |, Hefei
Guihua Garden Phase Il and Haining Baihe New City Apartment — Low-rise Phase I. The decrease in
revenue was primarily due to the increased weight in our delivery of lower-priced properties as
compared to 2004. These properties are at their initial phase of development or are located in regions
relatively less developed, and therefore with generally lower property prices, than Hangzhou and
Shanghai. Two of our major project phases delivered in 2005 are situated in Fangshan district, Beijing
and Hefei, Anhui Province.

Cost of sales. Our cost of sales decreased by Rmb 217.2 million, or 11.7%, to Rmb 1,639.6 million in
2005 from Rmb 1,856.8 million in 2004 primarily due to lower land costs for Beijing Baihe Apartments
Phase |, Hefei Guihua Garden Phase Il and Haining Baihe New City Apartment Low-rise Phase | as
compared to the average land costs for the properties delivered in 2004.

Gross profit. Our gross profit increased by Rmb 13.2 million, or 1.5%, to Rmb 895.4 million in 2005
from Rmb 882.2 million in 2004. Our gross profit margin increased to 35.3% in 2005 from 32.2% in
2004, primarily due to the higher selling prices realized for Shanghai Greentown Phase Il and Chunjiang
Huayue Phase Il, which generated the majority of our gross profit in 2005, than their first phase
developments delivered in 2004.

Other operating income. Our other operating income increased by Rmb 19.9 million, or 31.0%, to Rmb
84.0 million in 2005 from Rmb 64.1 million in 2004 primarily due to an increase of Rmb 30.0 million in
interest income resulting mainly from loans to associates and third parties, partially offset by a decrease
of Rmb 17.5 million in government grants.

Selling and administrative expenses. Our selling and administrative expenses increased by Rmb 60.2
million, or 28.1%, to Rmb 274.0 million in 2005 from Rmb 213.8 million in 2004. As a percentage of
revenue, our selling and administrative expenses increased from 7.8% in 2004 to 10.8% in 2005. The
increase in selling and administrative expenses was primarily due to an increase in staff costs as a result
of our expanded business and increased employee salaries in 2005.

Finance costs. Our finance costs increased by Rmb 34.0 million, or 92.2%, to Rmb 70.8 million in 2005
from Rmb 36.8 million in 2004, primarily due to an increase in borrowings associated with our new
property projects. Construction of many of these new projects did not commence in 2005 and as a
result we could not capitalize their interest expenses.

Net gain on disposal of an associate. Our net gain on disposal of an associate was Rmb 0.6 million in
2005 as compared to nil in 2004. It resulted from the disposal of our 50% interest in an associate.

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries. Our net gain on disposal of subsidiaries was Rmb 45.0 million in
2005 as compared to nil in 2004. The gain on disposal of subsidiaries resulted primarily from the
disposals of all of our interest in two subsidiaries. We used the net proceeds from the disposals to
finance other developments.

Share of results of associates. Our share of profits of associates was Rmb 31.2 million in 2005 as

compared to our share of losses of Rmb 43.0 million in 2004. Our share of profits of associates in 2005
was primarily attributable to profits from Hangzhou Jimei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., whose
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Qilixiang Creek project was delivered in 2005, and profits from Shanghai Huazhe Bund Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. Losses from our associates in 2004 were primarily due to the initial capital outlay and
administrative expenses for property projects where returns had not become realizable.

Taxation. Our income tax expenses decreased by Rmb 76.9 million, or 38.1%, to Rmb 125.1 million in
2005 from Rmb 202.0 million in 2004. Our effective income tax rate decreased to 17.6% in 2005 from
30.9% in 2004. The decrease was primarily attributable to the increased weight of properties delivered
in Shanghai Greentown Phase Il, the project company of which, Shanghai Lvyu, pays corporate income
tax at the reduced rate of 15% as opposed to the generally applicable rate of 33%.

Profit for the year from continuing operations. Our profit for the year from continuing operations
increased by Rmb 134.7 million, or 29.8%, to Rmb 586.4 million in 2005 from Rmb 451.7 million in
2004. As a percentage of revenue, our profit for the year from continuing operations increased from
16.5% in 2004 to 23.1% in 2005. The increase was primarily attributable to higher gross profit, higher
other operating income, more share of profits of associates and lower income tax expenses as well as a
net gain on disposal of subsidiaries in 2005.

Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations. Our profit for the year from discontinued
operations was Rmb 0.3 million in 2005 as compared to a loss of Rmb 5.9 million in 2004.

Profit for the year. Our profit for the year increased by Rmb 141.0 million, or 31.6%, to Rmb 586.8
million in 2005 from Rmb 445.8 million in 2004.

Minority interest. Losses attributable to our minority shareholders increased by Rmb 27.3 million, or
316.4%, to Rmb 35.9 million in 2005 from Rmb 8.6 million in 2004. The losses attributable to our
minority shareholders in 2005 mainly reflected losses shared by minority shareholders of Hangzhou
Taohuayuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Anhui Greentown Lianhua Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., Hunan Green Bamboo Lake International Business Community Development Co., Ltd. and
Ningbo Junshun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. due to their initial capital outlay and administrative
costs at the early stage of the property development by these project companies.

Profit attributable to equity holders of our company increased by Rmb 168.3 million, or 37.0%, to Rmb
622.7 million in 2005 from Rmb 454.4 million in 2004.

2004 compared to 2003

Revenue. Our revenue increased by Rmb 1,514.7 million, or 123.7%, to Rmb 2,739.1 million in 2004
from Rmb 1,224.4 million in 2003, primarily due to a significant increase in the number of properties
delivered in 2004. Major contributors to our revenue in 2004 included Shanghai Greentown Phase |,
Chunjiang Huayue Phase |, Jiuxi Rose Garden Phase Il and Hefei Guihua Garden Phase I.

Cost of sales. Our cost of sales increased by Rmb 996.4 million, or 115.8%, to Rmb 1,856.8 million in
2004 from Rmb 860.4 million in 2003, primarily due to the increased deliveries of properties in 2004.

Gross profit. Our gross profit increased by Rmb 518.2 million, or 142.4%, to Rmb 882.2 million in 2004
from Rmb 364.0 million in 2003, primarily due to the increased deliveries of properties in 2004. Our
gross profit margin increased to 32.2% in 2004 from 29.7% in 2003, primarily due to the lower land
costs for our Jiuxi Rose Garden Phase Il, which land was acquired in 1997 when land acquisition was
relatively cheaper than our acquisitions in recent years.
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Other operating income. Our other operating income decreased by Rmb 0.9 million, or 1.5%, to Rmb
64.1 million in 2004 from Rmb 65.0 million in 2003, primarily due to decreases in interest income, gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investments and management fees, which were partially offset by a
Rmb 22.1 million increase in government grants.

Selling and administrative expenses. Our selling and administrative expenses increased by Rmb 37.6
million, or 21.3%, to Rmb 213.8 million in 2004 from Rmb 176.2 million in 2003. The increase resulted
primarily from a significant increase in advertising and promotion expenses due to increased sales of
properties. As a percentage of revenue, our selling and administrative expenses decreased from 14.4%
in 2003 to 7.8% in 2004.

Finance costs. Our finance costs decreased by Rmb 17.0 million, or 31.5%, to Rmb 36.8 million in 2004
from Rmb 53.8 million in 2003, primarily due to an increase in the number of projects entering into the
construction phase in 2004, allowing more interest costs to be capitalized.

Net gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries. Our net gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries was Rmb 1.0
million in 2004 compared to nil in 2003 as a result of the partial disposal of our interest in two
subsidiaries in 2004.

Share of results of associates. Our share of losses of associates increased by Rmb 36.2 million, or
532.4%, to Rmb 43.0 million in 2004 from Rmb 6.8 million in 2003. The increase was primarily due to
increases in losses from Shanghai Huazhe Bund Real Estate Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Jade City Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Jimei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Yuhang
Jinteng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Losses from our associates were primarily due to the initial
capital requirements and administrative expenses for their property projects during the early
development stages when returns had not become realizable.

Taxation. Our income tax expenses increased by Rmb 95.2 million, or 89.0%, to Rmb 202.0 million in
2004 from Rmb 106.8 million in 2003, primarily due to our increased deliveries of properties and the
resulting profits. Our effective income tax rate decreased to 30.9% in 2004 from 55.6% in 2003. The
relatively high effective income tax rate in 2003 was mainly due to the fact that a large number of
project companies had not yet reached the pre-sale stage in their projects and therefore no deferred
tax assets had been recognized for the losses they incurred in 2003. The decrease in effective income
tax rate in 2004 was primarily attributable to the preferential tax treatments enjoyed by Hangzhou Jiuxi
and Shanghai Lvyu, both of which were our major revenue contributors in 2004. Hangzhou Jiuxi and
Shanghai Lvyu pay corporate income tax at the reduced rates of 27% and 15%, respectively.

Profit for the year from continuing operations. Our profit for the year from continuing operations
increased by Rmb 366.4 million, or 429.2%, to Rmb 451.7 million in 2004 from Rmb 85.3 million in
2003. As a percentage of revenue, our profit for the year from continuing operations increased from
7.0% in 2003 to 16.5% in 2004. The increase was primarily attributable to the lower cost of sales,
lower selling and administrative expenses and lower income tax expenses as a percentage of revenue.

Loss for the year from discontinued operations. Our losses for the year from discontinued operations
decreased by Rmb 10.0 million, or 62.7%, to Rmb 5.9 million in 2004 from Rmb 15.9 million in 2003.

Profit for the year. Our profit for the year increased by Rmb 376.4 million, or 542.4%, to Rmb 445.8
million in 2004 from Rmb 69.4 million in 2003.

Minority interest. Losses shared by our minority shareholders increased by Rmb 0.8 million, or 10.6%,
to Rmb 8.6 million in 2004 from Rmb 7.8 million in 2003.
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Profit attributable to equity holders of our company increased by Rmb 377.2 million, or 488.6%, to
Rmb 454.4 million in 2004 from Rmb 77.2 million in 2003.

Certain balance sheet items

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits

We had trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits of Rmb 663.2 million, Rmb 430.9
million and Rmb 383.9 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005. Trade
receivables were Rmb 36.7 million, Rmb 4.9 million and Rmb 19.9 million, respectively, as of December
31, 2003, 2004 and 2005. We pre-sell most of our properties and receive full payments for them prior
to their completion and delivery to the purchasers. For properties sold after their completion, we
generally grant a credit to our customers for a term of two months. Sometimes we may grant a longer
credit period to property purchasers based on our assessment of their financial position. We also retain
a legal recourse against such purchasers to be able to repossess the properties in case the purchasers
default. As a result, we do not believe that any allowance for bad and doubtful debts is necessary for
such trade receivables. Other receivables were Rmb 315.4 million, Rmb 256.6 million and Rmb 187.3
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005. Other receivables represent mainly our
advances to third parties. They are interest-free, unsecured and payable on demand. We had Rmb
258.0 million, Rmb 188.6 million and Rmb 129.0 million of such advances outstanding as of December
31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. They were largely advances to our joint venture project
companies or our project partners in connection with our joint acquisition of land reserves. To the
extent the acquisition was successful, such advances would be converted into, and recorded as,
payments toward land costs or development costs in connection with our projects. To the extent the
acquisition was not successful, we would require repayment without any interest. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, such outstanding advances amounted to Rmb 55.0 million.

Prepayments and deposits were Rmb 311.1 million, Rmb 169.4 million and Rmb 176.6 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005. Prepayments and deposits represent primarily
our prepaid land costs and/or construction costs. The prepaid land costs are accounted for as
“properties for development” after the relevant land use rights grant contract has been signed and the
prepaid construction costs are transferred to “properties under development” in accordance with the
relevant project’s construction progress. We normally do not prepay construction costs to our
contractors. In 2003, however, due to special arrangements we prepaid certain construction costs to
the construction contractor for our Hefei Guihua Garden Phase |, which costs were converted into
“properties under development” in 2004. As a result, our prepayments decreased substantially in 2004
as compared to 2003. Our prepayments as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 also included Rmb
100.0 million that we paid in 2003 with respect to a proposed project in Songjiang District of Shanghai
as we have disclosed in “Business — Our Property projects — Other Land Acquisition Contractual
Arrangements — Shanghai.”

Trade and other payables

We had trade and other payables of Rmb 633.7 million, Rmb 894.5 million and Rmb 1,000.3 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005. Trade payables were Rmb 332.3 million, Rmb
475.1 million and Rmb 573.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005. We do
not have uniform settlement terms with our suppliers and contractors. For general suppliers, we
typically settle our payments within 60 days of receiving the goods and services. For construction of our
projects, we typically agree with our construction contractors to settle in the current month
approximately 70% of the construction costs incurred during the previous month. This is largely
because of the time needed to verify the actual incurrence of construction costs. We typically settle as
much as 85% by the time the construction of a project is completed and up to 95% by the time we
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finally agree with our contractors on the amount of the aggregate construction costs. Our contractual
arrangements also typically provide for our withholding a warranty fee of up to 5% of the aggregate
construction costs, subject to settlement within two to five years.

We had other payables and accrued expenses of Rmb 281.7 million, Rmb 370.8 million and Rmb 427.1
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005. The increase in other payables and
accrued expenses in 2004 as compared to 2003 was primarily due to a temporary loan in the principal
amount of Rmb 63.5 million we borrowed for working capital purposes, which had been repaid in full
as of the Latest Practicable Date. The increase in other payables and accrued expenses in 2005 as
compared to 2004 was primarily due to notes payables of Rmb 51.0 million we issued in connection
with purchases of raw materials, which had been paid in full as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Amounts due from and to related parties

As of
As of December 31, March 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006

(Rmb in millions) (unaudited)

Amounts due from related parties

Due from shareholders. . ... ........... ... 295.1 295.1 9.4 2.9
Due from Shareholders’ Companies™. . ... .. .. 607.4 556.3 576.4 413.5
Due from minority shareholders. . . .. .. ... ... 110.0 64.1 178.2 62.1
Due from associates. . . . ................. 260.7 1,356.7 225.2 520.2
Due from officers . . ......... ... .. .. ..... 64.8 86.3 91.8 31.3
Total . ... ... 1,338.0 2,358.5 1,081.0 1,030.0
Amounts due to related parties
Due to shareholders. . . .................. — — 16.6 31.7
Due to Shareholders’ Companies™. . .. ... .. .. 277.4 170.4 184.0 13.7
Due to minority shareholders. . .. ... ..... ... 40.1 404.1 340.7 668.1
Due to associates. . .. ......... ... .. ... .. 60.4 67.9 96.5 76.6
Due to officers . . ........ ... ... ... .. ... 13.1 24.0 14.3 12.5
Total ... ... 391.0 666.4 652.1 802.6
Note:

(1) Shareholders’ Companies refer to companies owned by our Original Shareholders.

Amounts due from related parties. Amounts due from related parties include amounts due from our
Original Shareholders, companies owned by them, our minority shareholders, associates and officers.
As of December 31, 2005, we had amounts due from related parties of Rmb 1,081.0 million, of which
Rmb 585.8 million was due from our Original Shareholders and companies owned by them; Rmb 178.2
million was due from our minority shareholders; Rmb 225.2 million was due from our associates and
Rmb 91.8 million was due from our officers. As of December 31, 2005, Rmb 258.5 million of our
amounts due from related parties arose from trade activities and Rmb 822.5 million of our amounts due
from related parties arose from non-trade activities. As a private enterprise, we lent funds to our
Original Shareholders, companies owned by them, our minority shareholders and officers during the
Relevant Period. Amounts due from our Original Shareholders and companies owned by them
represented primarily money lent to them for their non-property related business. Amounts due from
our minority shareholders represented primarily money lent to them prior to the Reorganization.
Amounts due from our officers represented primarily money we lent to them for them to invest in some
of our property developments as minority shareholders. These officers are mainly members of our
management or management of our project companies, including Mr. Chen Shunhua and Mr. Guo
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Jiafeng, both our Directors and executive general managers. Most of the amounts due from these
officers were secured by such officers’ interest in the relevant project companies and repayable within
one year. As of the Latest Practicable Date, all of the amounts due from our officers had been repaid
except for Rmb 254,000, which were primarily cash held by our officers for our daily operations.
Associates are project companies majority-owned by our project partners and minority-owned by us.
Advances to these associates typically are for our development projects undertaken by these associates.
We typically receive repayments for the advances after the relevant properties have commenced pre-
sale and generated positive cash flows. The Original Shareholders have used the proceeds from the sale
of some of their equity interest concurrent with the offering of our Convertible Bonds and the special
dividend of US$50 million declared on March 19, 2006 to settle the amounts due from them and their
affiliates to us. Except as disclosed above, most of the amounts due from related companies are
unsecured and bear interest at rates between 5.58% and 10.9% per annum. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, the amounts due from related parties were reduced to Rmb 548.7 million. As of the
Latest Practicable Date, all amounts of non-trade nature due to us from related parties had been fully
settled. As of the Latest Practicable Date, all our guarantees provided to our Original Shareholders and
companies owned by them had been fully released.

Amounts due to related parties. Our amounts due to related parties include amounts due to our
Original Shareholders, companies owned by them, our minority shareholders, associates and officers.
As of December 31, 2005, we had amounts due to related parties of Rmb 652.1 million, of which Rmb
200.6 million was due to our Original Shareholders and companies owned by them; Rmb 340.7 million
was due to our minority shareholders; Rmb 96.5 million was due to our associates and Rmb 14.3 million
was due to our officers. As of December 31, 2005, Rmb 466.8 million of our amounts due to related
parties arose from trade activities and Rmb 185.3 million of our amounts due to related parties arose
from non-trade activities. During the Relevant Period, one affiliate of our Original Shareholders
participated in financing arrangements as financial conduits and immediate lenders for our property
developments. Amounts due to our minority shareholders represented primarily the portion of their
lendings to our project companies as shareholder loans. Amounts due to our associates represented
mostly pre-paid distributions to us before they were declared as dividends. As of the Latest Practicable
Date, all amounts of non-trade nature due to related parties from us had been fully settled. As of the
Latest Practicable Date, we had amounts due to related parties of Rmb 384.7 million, which
represented solely amounts arising from the continuing connected transactions, including property
leases, interior decoration services, pre-delivery property management services, football advertising
services and sale of landscaping materials, as described in the section entitled “Connected
Transactions” in this prospectus. All guarantees provided to us by our related parties had been
released as of the Latest Practicable Date.

Pre-sale deposits

We record our pre-sale proceeds as “pre-sale deposits” within our current liabilities in our balance
sheet. We do not recognize these pre-sale proceeds as revenue until we have completed the
construction of the relevant projects and have delivered the relevant properties to the purchasers. As of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, our aggregate pre-sale deposits amounted to Rmb 2,991.1
million, Rmb 3,985.5 million and Rmb 4,824.0 million, respectively.

Income taxes recoverable and other taxes recoverable

We prepay corporate income tax and other taxes, such as business tax and LAT, when we receive pre-
sale proceeds. We record these prepaid income taxes as “income taxes recoverable” and record other
prepaid taxes as “other taxes recoverable.” We record such income taxes recoverable as “taxation” in
our income statements during the same year after we have recognized the relevant pre-sale proceeds
as revenue. We record such other taxes recoverable relating to LAT as part of our “cost of sales” and
directly net off those relating to business tax from our revenue during the same year after we have
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recognized the relevant pre-sale proceeds as revenue. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, we prepaid Rmb 36.9
million, Rmb 65.1 million and Rmb 60.0 million, respectively, of income taxes and prepaid Rmb 135.2
million, Rmb 185.6 million and Rmb 235.6 million, respectively, of other taxes. The aggregate amounts
of our prepayments of income tax and other taxes are calculated on the basis of our pre-sale proceeds
during the year and, as a result, such prepayments vary from year to year. All our tax prepayments are
subject to adjustments and clearance with the relevant tax authorities, with deficiencies to be paid and
excesses to be refunded.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

To date, we have primarily financed our expenditures through internally generated cash flows,
proceeds from pre-sales and sales of properties, borrowings from commercial banks and other parties
and capital market financings such as our Convertible Bonds.

The following table presents selected cash flow data from our consolidated cash flow statements for
the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005

(Rmb in millions)
Net cash from operating activities . .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... 306.9 824.8 6.0
Net cash used in investing activities . . . .. ........ ... ... .. .... (183.2) (1,313.5) (128.0)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities . . . .. ............... 375.8 747 .1 (138.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear . ... ... ... .. ... ... 861.1 1,119.4 859.4

Operating activities

Our cash from operating activities is generated primarily from proceeds from the sales of our
properties, including proceeds from pre-sales of our properties which are recorded as “pre-sale
deposits” on our balance sheet. Our cash flows for a given period are also supplemented by increases in
trade and other payables and taxes payable which have been accrued but are not yet due. Our cash
used in our operating activities reflects our investments in our property developments. Cash used in
operating activities also includes payments of income taxes.

In 2005, our net cash from operating activities was Rmb 6.0 million. Cash from operating activities in
2005 consisted primarily of proceeds from the sales of our properties, pre-sale deposits of Rmb 838.5
million and a decrease of Rmb 355.3 million in properties for development. The cash inflows from
operating activities were partially offset by investments in properties under development and
completed properties for sale totaling Rmb 1,483.9 million, payment of income taxes of Rmb 293.9
million and a decrease in trade and other payables of Rmb 50.5 million.

In 2004, our net cash from operating activities was Rmb 824.8 million. Cash from operating activities in
2004 consisted primarily of proceeds from the sales of our properties, pre-sale deposits of Rmb 994.4
million and a decrease in trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments of Rmb 158.2 million
and an increase in other taxes payable of Rmb 86.6 million. The cash inflows from operating activities
were partially offset by investments in properties for and under development and completed properties
for sale totaling Rmb 1,004.0 million, an increase in other taxes recoverable of Rmb 50.4 million and
payment of income taxes of Rmb 126.3 million.

In 2003, our net cash from operating activities was Rmb 306.9 million. Cash from operating activities in

2003 consisted primarily of proceeds from the sales of our properties, pre-sales deposits of Rmb
1,277.3 million, a decrease in properties for development and completed properties for sales totaling
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Rmb 289.5 million and an increase in trade and other payables of Rmb 120.5 million. The cash inflows
from operating activities were partially offset by investments in properties under development of Rmb
1,274.1 million, an increase in trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments of Rmb 210.4
million, an increase in other taxes recoverable of Rmb 79.6 million, and payment of income taxes of
Rmb 44.4 million.

Investing activities

Our cash used in investing activities reflects cash outflows relating to advances to related parties, the
acquisitions of or investments in subsidiaries or associates and the purchases of property, plant and
equipment. Our cash from investing activities reflects primarily cash inflows relating to repayments
from related parties, disposal of subsidiaries and associates and interest payments received. Advances
to and repayments from related parties consist primarily of loans to our minority-owned project
companies for their property developments and the repayments from these companies generally after
the relevant property development has commenced pre-sales and generated positive cash flows. We
are not related to the majority owners of these project companies. Investments in associates consist
primarily of our investments in our project companies for their property developments.

In 2005, our net cash used in investing activities was Rmb 128.0 million. Cash used in investing
activities in 2005 mainly consisted of cash outflows for investments in associates of Rmb 450.1 million
mainly for the investments in Shanghai Jingyu Real Estate Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Haizhou Investment &
Property Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Newspapering Greentown Investment Co., Ltd., purchases of property,
plant and equipment of Rmb 77.2 million and purchases of additional interests in subsidiaries of Rmb
17.2 million. The cash used in investing activities was partially offset by repayments from related parties
of Rmb 123.3 million, disposals of subsidiaries of Rmb 101.9 million mainly due to the disposals of
Deqging Zhongtian Real Estate Development Company Limited and Henan Zhongzhou Greentown
Investment Property Co., Ltd., repayment from third parties of Rmb 59.6 million and interest payments
received of Rmb 50.8 million.

In 2004, our net cash used in investing activities was Rmb 1,313.5 million. Cash used in investing
activities in 2004 mainly consisted of cash outflows for advances to related parties of Rmb 1,150.2
million, investments in associates of Rmb 138.0 million mainly for the investments in Shanghai Huazhe
Bund Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Deqing Greentown Xizi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and
purchases of property, plant and equipment of Rmb 89.3 million, which were partially offset by
repayment from third parties of Rmb 69.4 million, proceeds from disposals of interests in associates of
Rmb 40.0 million and interest payments received of Rmb 20.8 million.

In 2003, our net cash used in investing activities was Rmb 183.2 million. Cash used in investing
activities in 2003 mainly consisted of cash outflows for advances to related parties of Rmb 128.7
million, investments in associates of Rmb 129.5 million mainly for the investments in Hunan Greentown
Investment & Property Co., Ltd., Ningbo Zheda Science & Technology Park Construction Co., Ltd. and
other associates, acquisition of subsidiaries of Rmb 46.0 million, purchase of additional interests in
subsidiaries of 45.7 million and purchases of property, plant and equipment of Rmb 37.7 million, which
were partially offset by repayment from third parties of Rmb 103.5 million, proceeds from disposals of
interests in associates of Rmb 54.8 million and proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment of Rmb 27.2 million.

Financing activities

Our cash from financing activities is mainly generated from bank and other borrowings taken out to
finance our property development, advances from related parties and contributions by minority
shareholders of our subsidiaries, which are offset by repayments of bank and other borrowings and
interest thereon, increases in pledged deposits as security interests for our borrowings, payments of
dividends and distribution of paid-in capital in connection with the Reorganization.
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In 2005, our net cash used in financing activities was Rmb 138.1 million. In 2005 we raised bank and
other borrowings totaling Rmb 3,800.9 million and received contributions by minority shareholders of
our subsidiaries totaling Rmb 23.0 million to finance our project developments. In 2005, we made
repayments of bank and other borrowings totaling Rmb 2,990.1 million and repayments to related
parties totaling Rmb 106.3 million to settle amounts due to related parties, made interest payments
totaling Rmb 250.8 million, paid dividends totaling Rmb 226.2 million, distributed paid-in capital
totaling Rmb 308.3 million as a result of the Reorganization, and had an increase in pledged deposits of
Rmb 80.3 million.

In 2004, our net cash from financing activities was Rmb 747.1 million. In 2004, we raised bank and
other borrowings totaling Rmb 2,993.4 million and received advances from related parties totaling Rmb
548.7 million. In 2004, we made repayments of bank and other borrowings totaling Rmb 2,353.0
million, had an increase in pledged deposits of Rmb 152.0 million, paid interests of Rmb 212.1 million
and dividends of Rmb 73.0 million and distributed paid-in capital of Rmb 39.7 million.

In 2003, our net cash from financing activities was Rmb 375.8 million. In 2003, we raised bank and
other borrowings totaling Rmb 2,909.3 million and received advances from related parties totaling Rmb
31.8 million, which were partially offset by repayments of bank and other borrowings totaling Rmb
2,335.7 million, interest payments of Rmb 205.5 million and an increase in pledged deposits of Rmb
44.4 million.

Net current asset position

Our net current assets as of April 30, 2006 were approximately Rmb 3,257.3 million, comprising
current assets of approximately Rmb 11,916.6 million and current liabilities of approximately Rmb
8,659.3 million. As of the same date, our current assets consisted of properties for development of
Rmb 2,932.9 million, properties under development of Rmb 5,922.3 million, completed properties for
sale of Rmb 545.3 million, inventories of Rmb 2.1 million, trade and other receivables of Rmb 343.5
million, amounts due from related parties of Rmb 675.3 million, income taxes recoverable of Rmb
107.9 million, other taxes recoverable of Rmb 251.2 million, pledged bank deposits of Rmb 170.0
million and bank balances and cash of Rmb 966.1 million; and our current liabilities consisted of trade
and other payables of Rmb 1,134.6 million, pre-sale deposits of Rmb 4,887.3 million, bank and other
borrowings of Rmb 2,036.1 million, amounts due to related parties of Rmb 405.6 million, income taxes
payable of Rmb 29.5 million and other taxes payable of Rmb 166.2 million.

Restricted cash

A portion of our cash has been deposited in certain banks as pledges for bank loans. Such cash is
restricted from being used or transferred before the repayment of the respective bank borrowings. As
of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 and as of April 30, 2006, the outstanding amount of cash so
deposited was approximately Rmb 44.4 million, Rmb 196.4 million, Rmb 276.7 million and Rmb 170.0
million, respectively.

Working capital

As of December 31, 2005, our aggregate cash and cash equivalents amounted to Rmb 859.4 million,
including overseas cash and cash equivalents of Rmb 0.9 million free from any foreign exchange
controls in China and cash and cash equivalents in China of Rmb 858.5 million subject to PRC foreign
exchange controls if any such cash and cash equivalents are to be remitted outside China. As of April
30, 2006, our aggregate cash and cash equivalents were Rmb 966.1 million.
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Taking into account the estimated net proceeds from the Global Offering, available banking facilities
and cash flow from our operations, we confirm that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months from the date of this prospectus.

INDEBTEDNESS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings

Our borrowings are denominated principally in Renminbi. As of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005,
and as of the close of business on April 30, 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this document for the purpose of this indebtedness statement, we had the following outstanding
borrowings.

As of
As of December 31, April 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006
(Rmb in millions) (unaudited)
Secured bank loans . . . ... ... ... 1,336.2 2,391.0 3,441.2 2,904.0
Unsecured bank loans . ... ... ... ... ... . ... 1,453.0 1,063.0 472.0 424.0
2,789.2 3,454.0 3,913.2 3,328.0
Secured otherloans. .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... — — 335.2 367.4
Unsecured other loans . . .. ................. 347.1 198.6 631.0 652.1
347 .1 198.6 966.2 1,019.5
3,136.3 3,652.6 4,879.4 4,347.5
Secured bank loans directly associated with assets
classified as held forsale. . . .............. . — 35.0 — —
Unsecured other loans directly associated with assets
classified as held forsale. . . ......... .. ... . — 89.1 — —
3,136.3 3,776.7 4,879.4 4,347.5
Convertible Bonds™. . . ... ... ... — — — 880.4
Amounts due to related parties. . .. ........ ... 391.0 666.4 652.1 405.6
Total ... ... 3,527.3 4,443 .1 5,531.5 5,633.5
Note:

(1) Out of the borrowings of Rmb 880.4 million relating to our Convertible Bonds, Rmb 484.8 million was related to our
mandatory Convertible Bonds and Rmb 395.6 million was related to our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds.

Some of our other loans are consignment loans. Consignment loans are tri-partite arrangements, under
which banks, as entrusted by certain non-financial institutions or individuals, lend us the funds sourced
from such non-financial institutions or individuals at a management fee. Such non-financial institutions
or individuals are considered the providers of the consignment loans. Consignment loans generally bear
interest rates higher than normal bank borrowings. We have been advised by our PRC counsel, T&C
Law Firm, that such consignment loan arrangements are in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in China.

Our outstanding bank and other borrowings amounted to Rmb 3,136.3 million, Rmb 3,776.7 million,
Rmb 4,879.3 million and Rmb 5,227.9 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005
and April 30, 2006. The increase in our bank and other borrowings was primarily due to the expansion
of our operations. We used the proceeds from these borrowings to finance our property development.
For 2003, 2004 and 2005 and the four months ended April 30, 2006, the average interest rate was
5.34%, 6.10%, 6.68% and 6.24%, respectively, for our bank loans and 5.40%, 7.24%, 12.0% and
11.71%, respectively, for other loans. The significant increase in average interest rates in 2005 was
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primarily due to a one-time bridge loan associated with our Reorganization which bore a higher interest
rate than routine bank borrowings. The bridge loan was repaid in full in January 2006 with the
proceeds from our Convertible Bonds.

Commercial banks in China typically require guarantees or security interests for our borrowings. As of
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, Rmb 552.6 million, Rmb 927.6 million and Rmb 985.8 million,
respectively, of our outstanding bank and other borrowings were guaranteed by companies owned by
our Original Shareholders, minority shareholders of our project companies and third parties. All such
guarantees provided by companies owned by our Original Shareholders, guarantees provided by
minority shareholders of our project companies and guarantees provided by third parties under cross-
guarantee arrangements had been fully released as of the Latest Practicable Date. As of December 31,
2003, 2004 and 2005, Rmb 1,336.2 million, Rmb 2,391.0 million and Rmb 3,776.3 million,
respectively, of our outstanding bank and other borrowings were secured by our properties, including
land use rights and construction in progress. As of the Latest Practicable Date, our mortgages to banks
covered an aggregate GFA of approximately 697,589 square metres, together with the underlying land
use rights, in respect of certain residential buildings and commercial units and construction in progress
that we owned, and land of approximately 3.8 million square metres, together with construction in
progress on 537,417 square metres of such land.

The table below sets forth the maturity profiles of our bank and other borrowings and our Convertible
Bonds as of the dates indicated:

As of
As of December 31, April 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006

(Rmb in millions)
(Unaudited)

Bank loans
Due withinoneyear . ................... 1,389.6 2,226.2 1,898.8 1,378.0
Due after one year but within two years. . . . . .. 1,244.6 888.8 1,303.2 1,541.1
Due in three to five years, inclusive . ... ... ... 155.0 374.0 706.0 403.9
Due after fiveyears . .. ......... ... .. .... — — 5.2 5.0
Total bank loans . .. ........ ... ... ... ... 2,789.2 3,489.0 3,913.2 3,328.0
Other loans
Due withinoneyear .. ....... ... ... .. ... 292.5 214.1 612.0 658.1
Due after one year but within two years. . . . . .. 54.6 73.6 54.0 —
Due in three to five years, inclusive . ... ... ... — — 300.2 361.4
Total otherloans. .. .............. ... ... 347.1 287.7 966.2 1,019.5
Convertible Bonds'"
Due in three to five years, inclusive .. ... ... .. — — — 880.4
Total Convertible Bonds . . .. .............. — — — 880.4
Amounts due to related parties. . . . ........... 391.0 666.4 652.1 405.6
Total borrowings . . .. ......... ... . ... ..... 3,527.3 4,443.1 5,531.5 5,633.5
Note:

(1) Out of the borrowings of Rmb 880.4 million relating to our Convertible Bonds, Rmb 484.8 million was related to our
mandatory Convertible Bonds and Rmb 395.6 million was related to our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds.
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On January 10, 2006, we issued US$130,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Convertible Bonds.
Our Convertible Bonds carry an initial interest rate of 10% per annum, subject to adjustment upon the
consummation of this Global Offering to 6% for our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds. In addition, we
have undertaken to Stark to pay an amount equivalent to an additional 1% per annum, so as to give
Stark an effective interest rate of 7% per annum in respect of its holdings of our non-mandatory
Convertible Bonds. This payment undertaking is not assignable to transferees (other than affiliates of
Stark) of the non-mandatory Convertible Bonds or otherwise. According to an agreement entered into
between the holders of the Convertible Bonds and us on June 23, 2006, we have agreed to take steps
necessary to allow the holders of our mandatory Convertible Bonds to redeem their bonds upon a
“qualified public offering” as described in “Summary of Convertible Bonds” in Appendix IX to this
prospectus, and the holders of our mandatory Convertible Bonds have agreed that they will elect to
require us to redeem these Convertible Bonds at an aggregate amount of approximately US$71 million
if this Global Offering constitutes a “qualified public offering.”

We expect to pay approximately Rmb 52.3 million interest due on July 10, 2006 according to the terms
of our Convertible Bonds. We plan to make such interest payment out of our internal funds.

Contingent liabilities

We make arrangements with various domestic banks to provide mortgage facilities to purchasers of our
properties. In accordance with market practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks
in respect of mortgages offered to our customers. Guarantees for mortgages on residential properties
are generally discharged when the property ownership certificates and certificates of other interests
with respect to the relevant properties are submitted to the mortgagee banks. If a purchaser defaults
on the mortgage loan, we may be required to repurchase the underlying property by paying off the
mortgage loan. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction the underlying property and
recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds.
In line with industry practice, we do not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but will
rely on the credit checks conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of April 30, 2006, the outstanding
guarantees over mortgage loans of the purchasers of our properties were equal to approximately Rmb
2,162.2 million. As of the same date, we had not experienced any significant purchaser defaults on
mortgage loans that we guaranteed.

As of December 31, 2005, we had guarantees outstanding with respect to indebtedness of companies
owned by our Original Shareholders of Rmb 273.0 million and, as of the Latest Practicable Date, such
guarantees were fully released. As of December 31, 2005, we also guaranteed the indebtedness of our
associates and the indebtedness of independent third parties in the aggregate amount of Rmb 452.5
million and Rmb 765.8 million, respectively. Guarantees provided to third parties under cross-guarantee
arrangements amounting to Rmb 483.0 million had been subsequently released. As of April 30, 2006,
our guarantees outstanding with respect to indebtedness of our associates and third parties were
reduced to Rmb 486.2 million and Rmb 170.0 million, respectively.

In connection with this Global Offering, the Original Shareholders have each agreed to indemnify us
against the losses, claims, liabilities and expenses arising out of, or relating to (i) guarantees entered
into by us prior to the Listing Date in respect of indebtedness incurred by affiliates controlled by any
Original Shareholder that are not our consolidated subsidiaries and (ii) guarantees entered into by us
that are not on normal commercial terms or in our ordinary course of business in respect of
indebtedness incurred by third parties.

As disclosed in the section entitled “Business — Legal Proceedings and Material Claims,” we received

three claims for land idle fees in respect of three of our projects. Such claims have been disclosed as
contingent liabilities in the financial information included in the Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to
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this prospectus as T&C Law Firm, our PRC counsel, has confirmed that in each case we have strong
reasons for appeal and, in the opinion of our Directors, such appeals have a good chance of being
successful.

We confirm that, other than disclosed in this prospectus, there has been no material change in our
indebtedness and contingent liabilities since April 30, 2006.

Contractual obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations as of April 30, 2006 that may affect our
liquidity over the next five years:

Payments due by period

Less than Over
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(Rmb in millions)

Debt obligations . . . ....... ... .. .. .. .. 5,633.5 2,441.7 2,305.1 881.7 5.0
Land acquisition obligations . .. ... .... ... . 612.7 490.0 70.0 52.7 —
Construction payment obligations . . .. ... ... 1,323.1 1,115.5 178.2 23.1 6.3
Operating lease obligations. . . . ........... 18.5 8.5 10.0 — —
Total ... .. 7,587.8 4,055.7 2,563.3 957.5 11.3

We expect to continue to rely on proceeds from our property sales and pre-sales as well as new
financings as the principal sources of funding to finance our contractual obligations. We also expect to
use a portion of our net proceeds from this Global Offering to reduce our current indebtedness as we
have disclosed in “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” in this prospectus.

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

Except for the contingent liabilities set forth above, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet
guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties. We do
not have any variable interest in any unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk
or credit support to us or engages in leasing or hedging or research and development services with us.

MARKET RISKS
We are, in the normal course of business, exposed to market risks primarily relating to fluctuations in
interest rates, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and the inflation rate.

Interest rate risk

We are exposed to interest rate risks, primarily relating to our bank borrowings, which totaled Rmb
3,913.2 million as of December 31, 2005. We undertake debt obligations to support our property
development and general working capital needs. Upward fluctuations in interest rates increase the cost
of our financing. Fluctuations in interest rates can also lead to significant fluctuations in the fair values
of our debt obligations. The benchmark one-year lending rate published by PBOC for 2003, 2004 and
2005 was 5.31%, 5.58% and 5.58%, respectively. On April 28, 2006, PBOC raised the bench mark
one-year lending rate by 27 basis points to 5.85%. We do not currently use any derivative instruments
to modify the nature of our debt so as to manage our interest rate risk.
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An increase in interest rates may also adversely affect our prospective purchasers’ ability and cost to
obtain financing and depress the overall housing demand in China. On March 17, 2005, PBOC raised
the minimum property mortgage loan rates. As a result, the minimum rate for property mortgages with
a term of over five years increased to 5.51%, 20 basis points higher than the previously existing
minimum mortgage loan rate.

Commodities risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials for our property developments, primarily
steel and cement. We purchase most of our supplies of steel and cement at market prices. Such
purchase costs are generally accounted for as part of the contractor fees pursuant to our arrangements
with the relevant contractors. We satisfy the remaining requirements for these materials through our
construction and other contractors. Accordingly, rising prices for construction materials will affect our
construction costs in the forms of increased fees payable to our contractors. As a result, fluctuations in
the prices of our construction materials have a significant impact on our results of operations.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of our revenues and expenses are denominated in Renminbi. Our exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations results primarily from our foreign currency-denominated debts, mainly our
Convertible Bonds. Our Convertible Bonds are denominated in U.S. dollars and any changes in the
exchange rate between Renminbi and U.S. dollar will affect the amount required to repay the principal
of and interests on the Convertible Bonds and may result in foreign exchange gains or losses for a given
period. We will continue to be exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as a result of our
Convertible Bonds until such bonds have been fully converted, redeemed or repaid. In addition,
subsequent to this Global Offering, a depreciation of Renminbi would adversely affect the value of any
dividends we pay to our offshore shareholders. We currently do not engage in hedging activities
designed or intended to manage such currency risk. Also see “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to China —
Fluctuations in the value of Renminbi will affect the value of, and dividends payable on, our Shares in
foreign currency terms and affect the amount of our foreign debt service in Renminbi terms.”

Inflation

China has not experienced significant inflation or deflation in recent years. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s overall national inflation rate, as represented by the general
consumer price index, was approximately 1.2% in 2003, 3.9% in 2004 and 1.8% in 2005. Recent
inflation and deflation have not materially affected our business. Deflation could negatively affect our
business as it might be a disincentive for prospective property purchasers to make a purchase.

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

Our Directors have confirmed that, as of the Latest Practicable Date, there are no circumstances which
would give rise to a disclosure requirement under Rule 13.13 to 13.19 of the Listing Rules upon the
listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange.

PROFIT FORECAST

We forecast that, on the bases described in Appendix Il to this prospectus, profits attributable to equity
holders of our company for the year ending December 31, 2006 is unlikely to be less than Rmb 1,480
million, before accounting adjustment for the net change in the fair value of the options and
conversion feature that are embedded in our Convertible Bonds, or Rmb 1,471 million after such
accounting adjustment.
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On a pro forma fully diluted basis and on the assumption that the Global Offering had been completed
and a total of 1,298,701,500 Shares were in issue throughout the year ending December 31, 2006
(taking no account of any Share that may be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option but taking into account of profits or losses that may arise on the revaluation of the options
which are embedded in our Convertible Bonds), our estimated earnings per Share is HK$1.10,
representing a price/earnings multiple of 7.5 times based on the Offer Price of HK$8.22 per Share
(being the mid-point of the stated range of the Offer Price between HK$6.57 and HK$9.86 per Share).

You may find the texts of the letters from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, auditors and reporting
accountants, and J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited as the Sponsor in respect of the profit
forecast in Appendix Il to this prospectus.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Subject to the Cayman Companies Law and through a general meeting, we may declare dividends in
any currency but no dividend may be declared in excess of the amount recommended by our Board.
Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that dividends may be declared and paid out of
our profit, realized or unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits which the Directors
determine no longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be
declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which can be authorized
for this purpose in accordance with the Cayman Companies Law.

Except so far as the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any Shares that may otherwise provide,
(i) all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the Shares in respect of
which the dividend is paid, but no amount paid up on a Share in advance of calls shall for this purpose
be treated as paid up on the Share and (ii) all dividends shall be apportioned and paid pro rata
according to the amount paid up on the Shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect
of which the dividend is paid. Our Directors may deduct from any dividend or other monies payable to
any of our shareholders or in respect of any Shares all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him
or her to us on account of calls or otherwise. In addition, the declaration of dividends is subject to the
discretion of our Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will also depend on
the following factors:

our general business conditions;

our financial results;

our capital requirements;

interests of our shareholders; and

any other factors which our Board may deem relevant.

Our Directors have absolute discretion in whether to declare any dividend for any year and, if they
decide to declare a dividend, how much dividend to declare. They will declare dividends, if any, in Hong
Kong dollars with respect to our Shares on a per Share basis and will pay such dividends in Hong Kong
dollars. Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our shareholders’ approval.

In 2003, 2004 and 2005, we distributed dividends of nil, Rmb 77.1 million and Rmb 198.4 million,
respectively, to our shareholders. On March 19, 2006, we declared a special dividend in the aggregate
amount of US$50 million on the basis of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2005 to our
shareholders whose names appeared on our register of members on the record date of January 1,
2006. The special dividend was paid out of our internal resources to Delta House in the amount of
US$27.0 million, to Profitwise in the amount of US$19.5 million and to Wisearn in the amount of
US$3.5 million, respectively, in March and April of 2006. Proceeds of such special dividend were used
by Delta House, Profitwise and Wisearn to settle a portion of the amounts due from our Original
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Shareholders and their affiliates to us as of December 31, 2005. For the year ending December 31,
2006, our Board of Directors currently intends to recommend a final dividend of approximately Rmb
500 million (approximately Rmb 0.385 per Share), based on our issued share capital following
completion of the Global Offering (assuming the Over-allotment Option is not exercised and our non-
mandatory Convertible Bonds are not converted into our Shares). If the Over-allotment Option is
exercised and/or our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds are converted into our Shares, the per share
amount of such final dividend to be paid will decrease accordingly. Such final dividend is subject to the
approval of our shareholders and, if approved, is currently expected to be paid in mid 2007. Our past
dividend payment history is not, and should not be taken as, an indication of our potential future
practice on dividend payments. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or
distributed in any year.

Distributable reserves
As of December 31, 2005, our reserves available for distribution to our equity holders amounted to
approximately Rmb 280.3 million.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA ADJUSTED NET TANGIBLE ASSETS

The following statement of unaudited pro forma adjusted net tangible assets is based on our net
tangible assets as of December 31, 2005 contained in the Accountants’ Report in Appendix | to this
prospectus and adjusted as described below:

Audited
consolidated
net tangible

assets
attributable to Estimated Unaudited
equity holders net proceeds pro forma
of our company from issue of adjusted net Unaudited pro forma
as of December Offer tangible adjusted net tangible
31, 2005 Shares® assets®® assets per Share®
(Rmb in millions) (Rmb) (HKS$)
Based on Offer Price of
HK$6.57 per Share. . . .. 665.7 1,931.5 2,597.2 2.00 1.93
Based on Offer Price of
HK$9.86 per Share. . . .. 665.7 2,914.8 3,580.5 2.76 2.67
Notes:

(1) As of December 31, 2005, our audited consolidated net tangible assets attributable to equity holders of the company was
equal to equity attributable to equity holders of our company less the intangible asset.

(2)  The estimated net proceeds from the Global Offering are based on hypothetical Offer Prices of HK$6.57 and HK$9.86,
respectively, per Offer Share assuming no exercise of the Over-allotment Option, after deduction of underwriting fees and
estimated expenses payable by us in connection with the Global Offering.

(3)  The unaudited pro forma adjusted net tangible assets do not take into account the special dividend of US$50 million
declared and paid to our Shareholders whose names appeared on our register of members on the record date of January 1,
2006.

(4) By comparing the valuation of our property interests as set out in Appendix IV to this prospectus and the unaudited net
book value of these properties as of March 31, 2006, the valuation surplus was approximately Rmb 9,976.2 million, which
has not been included in the above net tangible assets. The valuation surplus of our property interests will not be
incorporated in our financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2006. If the valuation surplus were to be
included in our financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2006, an additional depreciation charge of
approximately Rmb 0.4 million per annum would be incurred.

(5)  The unaudited pro forma adjusted net tangible assets per Share is based on a total of 1,298,701,500 Shares expected to be
in issue immediately after the Capitalization Issue and the completion of the Global Offering (assuming no exercise of the
Over-allotment Option).
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PROPERTY INTERESTS AND PROPERTY VALUATION

Our property interests, including the interests in properties that are attributable to us, as valued by DTZ,
an independent property valuer, as of March 31, 2006 was Rmb 18.5 billion. There is a net revaluation
surplus, representing the excess market value of the properties over their book value as of December
31, 2005 (after adjusting for units sold during the period from January 1, 2006 to March 31, 2006).

For further details of our property interests and the text of the letter and valuation certificates of these
property interests prepared by DTZ, see Appendix IV to this prospectus. You should also be aware of
the differences between our classification of properties and the classification used by DTZ in its Property
Valuation report and by our auditors and reporting accountants in the Accountants’ Report as we have
disclosed in “Business — Qur Property Projects.”

Disclosure of the reconciliation of the valuation of the interests in properties attributable to us and such
property interests in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 as required under Rule
5.07 of Listing Rules is set forth below:

Rmb in millions
Net book value as of December 31, 2005

Property, plant and equipment™ . . . 168.1
Properties for development® . . .. 2,260.5
Properties under development. . . . .. . ... 5,654.3
Completed properties forsale . . . ... ... . .. . ... 699.2
8,782.1
Movement for the period from January 1 to March 31, 2006
Addition. . . . 1,091.6
Disposal . . . . . . (908.2)
Depreciation . . . . . . . . (0.8)
Net book value as of March 31, 2006 . . . .. ... .. .. . . . . . .. 8,964.7
Valuation surplus. . . . . .. 9,976.2
Valuation as of March 31, 2006 . . . . . ... ... 18,940.9
Notes:

(1) Among the property, plant and equipment amounting to an aggregate of approximately Rmb 244.1 million as of
December 31, 2005, property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and buildings) amounting to
approximately Rmb 76.0 million are excluded from the valuation in Appendix IV to this prospectus and are therefore also
excluded from this reconciliation.

(2)  Among the properties for development amounting to an aggregate of approximately Rmb 2,506.1 million as of December
31, 2005, properties for development amounting to approximately Rmb 245.6 million, in respect of which the land use
rights certificates had not yet been obtained as of March 31, 2006, have not been assigned any commercial value in the
valuation in Appendix IV to this prospectus and are therefore also excluded from this reconciliation.

(3) For the purpose of this reconciliation, the valuation as of March 31, 2006 includes the valuation of property interests of our
subsidiaries in full but excludes that of our associates.

NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
We confirm that there has not been any material adverse change in our financial or trading position
since December 31, 2005.
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FUTURE PLANS

We intend to grow our business by continuing to focus on development of integrated residential
complexes comprising our three principal product series, villas, low-rise apartment buildings and high-
rise apartment buildings. We intend to leverage our competitive strengths to solidify our leading
position in Zhejiang Province residential property markets and to further strengthen our presence in
Shanghai, Beijing and other strategically selected cities in China.

Based on our current development schedule and land bank, we will have sufficient land reserves and
property developments in the pipeline for the next five years and plan to continue to maintain a five-
year land reserve on a rolling basis. Consistent with our future plans, our future property developments
will consist largely of residential properties targeted at middle to higher income residents. As we
engage primarily in the development of large-scale development projects comprising multiple phases,
our future property developments will continue to be categorized into properties under development
and properties held for future development based on the development status of our properties as of
any time of reference. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we had approximately 7.7 million square
meters of GFA under development and approximately 0.9 million square meters of GFA held for future
development. Based on our current development plan, we estimate that aggregate additional land and
construction costs of approximately Rmb 19,939 million will be required to complete the properties
currently under development and aggregate additional land and construction costs of approximately
Rmb 3,422 million will be required to complete the properties currently held for future development.
We intend to use a portion of the proceeds from this Global Offering to finance these property
developments as described below. We will use our operating cash flows and external borrowings to
finance the remaining development costs. Based on our current development plan, which is subject to
changes, we expect to complete approximately 15.7%, 23.5%, 23.5%, 22.6%, 12.0% and 2.7%,
respectively, of the properties currently under development by the end of 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009,
2010 and 2011. We expect to complete approximately nil, nil, 21.0%, 35.9% and 43.1%, respectively,
of the properties currently held for future development by the end of 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and
2010.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the Global Offering accruing to us (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by us in relation to the Global Offering, assuming the
Over-allotment Option is not exercised) are estimated to be approximately HK$1,869 million, assuming
an Offer Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$2,820 million, assuming an Offer Price of
HK$9.86 per Share (or if the Over-allotment Option is exercised in full, approximately HK$2,178
million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$3,285 million, assuming
an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share).

We plan to use our net proceeds from the Global Offering as follows:

approximately Rmb 572 million to redeem all our mandatory Convertible Bonds;

approximately Rmb 975 million to finance the development costs for some properties under

development, specifically:

(1) approximately Rmb 350 million to finance the development of Beijing Qinglonggiao Phase |
and Phase ll, which is expected to complete in September 2007 and December 2007,
respectively;

(2) approximately Rmb 140 million to finance the development of Greentown Lanting Phase lll,
which is expected to complete in December 2008;

(3) approximately Rmb 115 million to finance the development of Tachuayuan South Phase I,
which is expected to complete in December 2009;
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(4) approximately Rmb 110 million to finance the development of Haining Baihe High-rise Phase
I, which is expected to complete in June 2010;

(5) approximately Rmb 100 million to finance the development of Jiahe Jiubao Project Phase |,
which is expected to complete in May 2010;

(6) approximately Rmb 60 million to finance the development of Hefei Baihe Apartments Phase
I, which is expected to complete in May 2008; and

(7) approximately Rmb 100 million to finance the development of our other existing property
developments;

approximately Rmb 385 million to Rmb 870 million to acquire new land for development; and

the remaining balance, if any, to repay certain outstanding loans and/or for general corporate

purposes, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share, specifically,

(1) loans of an aggregate principal amount of approximately Rmb 331 million, with annual
interest rates ranging from 5.02% to 12.00% and maturity dates between August 2006 and
December 2006, that we borrowed to finance the development of Deep Blue Plaza, Jingui
Plaza, Taohuayuan South, Beijing Baihe Apartments, Shangyu Guihua Garden, Zhousha
Guihua City; and

(2) loans of an aggregate principal amount of approximately Rmb 150 million, with annual
interest rates ranging from 5.58% to 10.80% and maturity dates between September 2006
and December 2006, that we borrowed for working capital and general corporate purposes
and accrued interest of approximately Rmb 17 million on our Convertible Bonds.

Among the projects or project phases mentioned above, Taohuayuan South and Jiuxi Rose Garden
Holiday Village are villa projects, in respect of which we have obtained the land use rights certificates.

We intend to use our additional net proceeds of approximately HK$310 million, assuming an Offer
Price of HK$6.57 per Share, or approximately HK$465 million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per
Share, that we estimate we will receive from subscription for additional Shares in the event the Over-
allotment Option is exercised in full, to acquire new land for development.

Our acquisitions of new land for development mentioned above may include, but are not limited to,
those described in the section entitled “Business — Other Land Acquisition Contractual Arrangements”
after the signing of the relevant land use rights grant contracts. As of the Latest Practicable Date, we
did not have concrete plans and timetable for such acquisitions.

Pending the use of our net proceeds as disclosed in this prospectus, we will hold such funds on short-
term deposit with licensed banks and/or authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong as we consider
to be in our interest and in the interest of our shareholders taken as a whole.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Sale Shares by any Selling Shareholder. The net
proceeds of the Global Offering accruing to the Selling Shareholders (after deduction of underwriting
fees and commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Selling Shareholders in relation to the
Global Offering) are estimated to be approximately HK$165 million, assuming an Offer Price of
HK$6.57 per Share, or HK$247 million, assuming an Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Share.
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UNDERWRITERS

Hong Kong Underwriters

J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited

UBS AG

BOCI Asia Ltd

Core Pacific - Yamaichi International (H.K.) Limited
First Shanghai Securities Limited

South China Securities Limited

Tai Fook Securities Company Limited

UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENTS AND EXPENSES
Hong Kong Public Offering

We, the Hong Kong Underwriters and the Joint Global Coordinators, among others, entered into the
Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement on June 29, 2006. As described in the Hong Kong Underwriting
Agreement, we are offering the Hong Kong Offer Shares for subscription on the terms and subject to
the conditions of this prospectus and the Application Forms at the Offer Price. Subject to the Listing
Committee granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, our Shares in issue and to be issued, and
to certain other conditions described in the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement (including the Joint
Global Coordinators, on behalf of the Underwriters, and us agreeing to the Offer Price), the Hong Kong
Underwriters have agreed severally to subscribe or procure subscribers for the Hong Kong Offer Shares
which are being offered but are not taken up under the Hong Kong Public Offering on the terms and
subject to the conditions of this prospectus and the Application Forms.

The Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement is conditional upon and subject to the International
Underwriting Agreement having been signed and becoming unconditional.

Grounds for termination

The Joint Global Coordinators may in their absolute discretion, upon giving notice in writing to us,
terminate the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement with immediate effect if, at any time prior to 8:00
a.m. on the Listing Date:

(i)  there shall develop, occur, exist or come into effect:

(@) any new law or any change or development involving a prospective change in any existing
laws or any change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other
competent authority of the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong, the PRC, the United States,
Singapore, France, Germany, The Netherlands and the United Kingdom (collectively, the
“Relevant Jurisdictions”); or

(b) any change or development involving a prospective change in, or any event or series of
events resulting or likely to result in any change or development in local, national or
international financial, political, military, industrial, legal, fiscal, economic, regulatory,
market or currency matters or conditions (including but not limited to a change in the
system under which the value of the H.K. dollar is linked to the U.S. dollar or revaluation of
Renminbi against any foreign currencies or a change in any other currency exchange rates)
in the Relevant Jurisdictions; or
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the imposition of any moratorium, suspension or restriction on trading in securities generally
on the Stock Exchange, the Singapore Stock Exchange, the London Stock Exchange, the
New York Stock Exchange or in the NASDAQ System or any disruption in commercial
banking activities or securities settlement, payment or clearance services or procedures in
any of the Relevant Jurisdictions; or

a change or development or event involving a prospective change in taxation or exchange
control (or the implementation of any exchange control) or foreign investment regulations in
the Relevant Jurisdictions; or

any imposition of economic sanctions, in whatever form, directly or indirectly, by the United
States, France, Germany, The Netherlands, the United Kingdom or the PRC, Hong Kong or
the Cayman lIslands; or

the outbreak or escalation of hostilities involving any of the Relevant Jurisdictions or the
declaration by any of the Relevant Jurisdictions of a national emergency or war or any other
national or international calamity or crisis; or

any event or series of events of force majeure in or affecting any of the Relevant Jurisdictions
including without limiting the generality thereof, any act of God, war, riot, public disorder,
civil commotion, fire, flood, explosion, epidemic (including SARS or H5N1 or such related/
mutated forms), terrorism, strike or lock-out; or

any change or development or event involving a prospective change in our assets, liabilities,
profit, losses, performance, condition, business, financial, earnings, trading position or
prospects including any litigation or claim of material importance of any third party being
threatened or instigated against us or any of our subsidiaries; or

other than with the approval of the Joint Global Coordinators, the issue or requirement to
issue by us of a supplementary prospectus or offering document pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance or the Listing Rules in circumstances where the matter to be disclosed is, in the
sole opinion of the Joint Global Coordinators, materially adverse to the marketing for or
implementation of the Global Offering; or

a petition is presented for the winding up or liquidation of any of our subsidiaries or any of
our subsidiaries makes any composition or arrangement with its creditors or enters into a
scheme of arrangement or any resolution is passed for the winding-up of any of our
subsidiaries or a provisional liquidator, receiver or manager is appointed over all or part of
the assets or undertaking of any of our subsidiaries or anything analogous thereto occurs in
respect of any of our subsidiaries; or

a valid demand by any creditor for repayment or payment of any indebtedness of any of our
subsidiaries or in respect of which any of our subsidiaries is liable prior to its stated maturity,
or any loss or damage sustained by any of our subsidiaries (howsoever caused and whether
or not the subject of any insurance or claim against any person),

which, individually or in the aggregate and in the sole opinion of Joint Global Coordinators
(for themselves and on behalf of the Hong Kong Underwriters):

(1) is or will or is likely to be materially adverse to the business or financial condition or
prospects of us and our subsidiaries taken as a whole; or
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(2) has or will have or is likely to have a material adverse effect on the success or
marketability of the Hong Kong Public Offering or the International Offering; or

(3) makes it inadvisable or inexpedient or impracticable to proceed with the Hong Kong
Public Offering or the International Offering on the terms contemplated in this
prospectus; or

(4) would have the effect of making any part of the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement
incapable of performance in accordance with its terms or which prevents the
processing of applications and/or payments pursuant to the terms of the Hong Kong
Underwriting Agreement, the Receiving Bankers Agreement and/or the Branch
Registrar Agreement (as defined in the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement).

any change or development or event involving a prospective change, or a materialization of, any
of the risks set out in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in this prospectus which in the sole
opinion of Joint Global Coordinators (for themselves and on behalf of the Hong Kong
Underwriters) has, or shall have or is likely to have a material adverse effect on the success of
the Hong Kong Public Offering or the International Offering; or

any statement including but not limited to any forecasts, expressions of opinion, intention or
expectation contained in this prospectus or the Application Forms becomes or is discovered to be
untrue, inaccurate, incomplete or misleading or in the case of forecasts, expressions of opinion,
intention or expectation, are not fair and honest based on reasonable assumptions in any material
respect with reference to the facts and circumstances then subsisting; or

any matter or event arising or having been discovered rendering or there coming to the notice of
any of the Joint Global Coordinators, the Sponsor or the Underwriters any matter or event
showing any of the representation and warranties we gave in the Hong Kong Underwriting
Agreement to be untrue, inaccurate or misleading or having been breached in any material
respect; or

there shall have occurred any matter or event, act or omission which gives rise or is reasonably
likely to give rise to any material liability of us pursuant to the indemnities contained in Clause 13
of the Hong Kong Underwriting;

any breach on the part of us, the Original Shareholders and/or the Selling Shareholders of any of
the material provisions of the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement or the International
Underwriting Agreement in any material respect; or

any matter has arisen or has been discovered which would, had it arisen or been discovered
immediately before the date of this prospectus, not having been disclosed in this prospectus,
constitute a material omission therefrom; or

(viii) we withdraw this prospectus and the Application Forms or the Global Offering.
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Undertakings

We have undertaken to each of the Joint Global Coordinators, the Sponsor and the Hong Kong
Underwriters that, and we, the Original Shareholders and the Selling Shareholders undertake to use our
respective best endeavor to procure that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

except pursuant to the Global Offering (including pursuant to the Over-allotment Option) or in
certain prescribed circumstances, such as the issue of Shares pursuant to (a) our Share Option
Scheme or (b) the conversion of our Convertible Bonds, or with the prior written consent of the
Joint Global Coordinators and of the Stock Exchange, and unless in compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, we will not (a) offer, allot or issue, or agree to allot, issue, grant
or agree to grant any option, right or warrant over, either directly or indirectly, any of our Shares
or other securities (including warrants or other securities convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for or that represent the right to receive any of our Shares) or (b) enter into any
swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic
consequences of ownership of any Shares, whether any of the foregoing transactions is to be
settled by delivery of such Shares or such other securities, in cash or otherwise, or offer or agree
to do any of the foregoing, or announce any intention to do so, within the first six (6) months
from the Listing Date;

in the event of an issuance or arrangement by us of any of the foregoing as set out above by
virtue of the aforesaid exceptions or during the period of six (6) months immediately following the
expiry of the first six-month period after the Listing Date, we will take all reasonable steps to
ensure that any such act will not create a disorderly or false market for any of our Shares or other
securities; and

we shall not effect any purchase of Shares, or agree to do so, which may reduce the holding of
Shares in “public hands” (as such expression means under the Listing Rules) below the relevant
prescribed minimum percentage as is set out in and calculated in accordance with the Listing
Rules without first having obtained the prior written consent of the Joint Global Coordinators,
save as otherwise agreed or permitted by the Stock Exchange.

Each of the Original Shareholders and the Selling Shareholders undertakes to each of us, the Joint
Global Coordinators, the Sponsor and the Hong Kong Underwriters that:

(i)

during the period commencing from the date of this prospectus and ending on the date which is
six (6) months from the Listing Date (the “First Period”), such person or entity will not, except
pursuant to the stock lending agreement, without the prior written consent of the Joint Global
Coordinators and unless in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, (a) offer,
pledge, charge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option
or contract to sell, grant or agree to grant any option, right or warrant to purchase or subscribe
for, lend or otherwise transfer or dispose of, either directly or indirectly, any of our Shares or
shares in the capital of Delta House (“Delta House Shares”) or shares in the capital of Profitwise
(“Profitwise Shares”) or shares in the capital of Wisearn (“Wisearn Shares”) held by such person or
entity or other securities of us that are convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or that
represent the right to receive any such Shares or Delta House Shares or Profitwise Shares or
Wisearn Shares (as the case may be) or such other securities or (b) enter into any swap or other
arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of
ownership of such Shares or Delta House Shares or Profitwise Shares or Wisearn Shares (as the
case may be), whether any of the foregoing transactions is to be settled by delivery of such Shares
or Delta House Shares or Profitwise Shares or Wisearn Shares (as the case may be) or such other
securities, in cash or otherwise;
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(i)  such person or entity will not, without the prior written consent of the Stock Exchange in the six-
month period commencing on the expiry of the First Period set out in paragraph (i) above (the
“Second Period”), dispose of, nor enter into any agreement to dispose of or otherwise create any
options, rights, interests or encumbrances in respect of, any Shares held by Delta House or
Profitwise or Wisearn upon completion of the Global Offering or Delta House Shares or Profitwise
Shares or Wisearn Shares held by such person or entity if, immediately following such disposal or
upon the exercise or enforcement of such options, rights, interests or encumbrances, the Original
Shareholders and the Selling Shareholders would individually or together cease to be our
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules);

(iii) in the event of a disposal of any of our Shares or securities or any interest therein within the First
Period and/or the Second Period, such person or entity will take all reasonable steps to ensure that
such a disposal will not create a disorderly or false market for any of our Shares or other securities;
and

(iv) such person or entity will comply with all the restrictions and requirements under the Listing Rules
on the sale, transfer or disposal by such person or entity of any Shares.

Each of the Original Shareholders and the Selling Shareholders undertakes to each of us, the Joint
Global Coordinators, the Sponsor and the Hong Kong Underwriters that, during the period
commencing on the date by reference to which disclosure of direct or indirect shareholding in us
held by such person or entity is made in this prospectus and ending on the date which is twelve (12)
months from the Listing Date, such person or entity shall:

(i)  when such person or entity pledges or charges any of our Shares or other securities of us or the
Delta House Shares or the Profitwise Shares or the Wisearn Shares (as the case may be)
beneficially owned by such person or entity in favor of any authorized institution pursuant to Note
(2) to Rule 10.07(2) of the Listing Rules, immediately inform us of such pledge or charge (as the
case may be) together with the number of Shares or securities so pledged or charged; and

(i) when such person or entity receives any indication, either verbal or written, from the pledgee or
chargee of any of our Shares or securities or the Delta House Shares or the Profitwise Shares or
the Wisearn Shares (as the case may be) such person or entity pledged or charged shall be
disposed of, immediately inform us of such indication.

We have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that save in connection with the Global Offering or the
Over-allotment Option, no further Shares or securities convertible into our equity securities will be
issued by us, or form the subject of any agreement by us to such an issue, within six months from the
date on which our Shares first commence dealing on the Stock Exchange (whether or not such issue of
Shares or securities will be completed within six months from the commencement of dealings) except in
the circumstances permitted pursuant to Rule 10.08 of the Listing Rules.

Our Original Shareholders have been acting in concert since April 1998 and pursuant to an agreement
entered into among our Original Shareholders on November 26, 2005, each of them confirmed and
agreed that they will continue to act in concert in relation to our business operations and management
affairs. Each of our Original Shareholders has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that except pursuant
to the Global Offering or the Over-allotment Option, he or she shall procure the companies controlled
by him or her shall not:

(i)  in the period commencing on the date by reference to which disclosure of the shareholdings of

the companies controlled by him or her is made in this prospectus, and ending on the date which
is six (6) months from the date on which dealings in our Shares commence on the Stock Exchange
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(the “Initial Six Month Period”), dispose of, nor enter into any agreement to dispose of, or
otherwise create any options, rights, interests or encumbrances in respect of, any of our securities
in respect of which the companies controlled by him or her are shown by this prospectus to be the
beneficial owner (the “Securities”); or

(i) in the six (6) month period commencing on the expiry of the Initial Six Month Period, dispose of,
nor enter into any agreement to dispose of, or otherwise create any options, rights, interests or
encumbrances in respect of, any of our Securities if, immediately following such disposal or upon
the exercise or enforcement of such options, rights, interests or encumbrances, the companies
controlled by him or her would then cease to be a controlling shareholder of us.

Each of the Original Shareholders further undertakes to the Stock Exchange that, within the period
commencing on the date by reference to which disclosure of the shareholdings of the companies
controlled by him or her is made in this prospectus and ending on the date which is 12 months from the
date on which dealings in our Shares commence on the Stock Exchange, he or she shall procure that
companies controlled by him or her shall:

(i) when it pledges or charges any securities beneficially owned by it in favor of an authorized
institution pursuant to Note (2) to Rule 10.07(2) of the Listing Rules, immediately inform us of
such pledge or charge together with the number of securities so pledged or charged; and

(i) when it receives any indications, either verbal or written, from the pledgee or chargee that any of
the pledged or charged securities will be disposed of, immediately inform us of such indications.

Each of the Selling Shareholders undertakes to the Stock Exchange that, save in connection with the
Global Offering or the Over-allotment Option, it shall not:

(i) in the period commencing on the date by reference to which disclosure of its shareholdings is
made in this prospectus, and ending on the date which is six (6) months from the date on which
dealings in our Shares commence on the Stock Exchange (the “Initial Six Month Period”), dispose
of, nor enter into any agreement to dispose of, or otherwise create any options, rights, interests
or encumbrances in respect of, any of our securities in respect of which it is shown by this
prospectus to be the beneficial owner; or

(ii)  in the six (6) month period commencing on the expiry of the Initial Six Month Period, dispose of,
nor enter into any agreement to dispose of, or otherwise create any options, rights, interests or
encumbrances in respect of, any of our Securities if, immediately following such disposal or upon
the exercise or enforcement of such options, rights, interests or encumbrances, we would then
cease to be a controlling shareholder of us.

Each of the Selling Shareholders further undertakes to the Stock Exchange that, within the period
commencing on the date by reference to which disclosure of its shareholdings is made in this
prospectus and ending on the date which is 12 months from the date on which dealings in our Shares
commence on the Stock Exchange, it shall:

(i)  when it pledges or charges any securities beneficially owned by it in favor of an authorized
institution pursuant to Note (2) to Rule 10.07(2) of the Listing Rules, immediately inform us of

such pledge or charge together with the number of securities so pledged or charged; and

(i) when it receives any indications, either verbal or written, from the pledgee or chargee that any of
the pledged or charged securities will be disposed of, immediately inform us of such indications.
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International Offering

In connection with the International Offering, we, the Selling Shareholders and the Original
Shareholders expect to enter into the International Underwriting Agreement with the Joint Global
Coordinators and the International Underwriters. Under the International Underwriting Agreement, the
International Underwriters will, subject to certain conditions, severally agree to purchase the
International Offer Shares being offered pursuant to the International Offering or procure purchasers
for such International Offer Shares.

We will grant to the International Underwriters the Over-allotment Option, exercisable by the Joint
Global Coordinators on behalf of the International Underwriters at any time from the day on which
trading of our Shares commences on the Stock Exchange until 30 days after the last day for lodging of
applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering, to require us to allot and issue up to an aggregate of
48,701,000 additional Shares at the Offer Price to cover, among other things, over-allocations in the
International Offering.

Commission and expenses

We will pay the Hong Kong Underwriters a commission of 3.2% of the aggregate Offer Price payable
for the Hong Kong Offer Shares initially offered under the Hong Kong Public Offering, out of which
they will pay any sub-underwriting commissions. For unsubscribed Hong Kong Offer Shares reallocated
to the International Offering, we will pay to the International Underwriters an underwriting commission
at the rate applicable to the International Offer Shares. We and the Selling Shareholders will pay, in
proportion to the number of International Offer Shares sold by us and the Selling Shareholders,
respectively, in the International Offering, such fee and commission in connection with the
International Offering. We and the Selling Shareholders will pay, in proportion to the number of
Offer Shares sold by us and the Selling Shareholders, respectively, in the Global Offering, the Stock
Exchange listing fees, the Stock Exchange transaction levy, certain legal and other professional fees,
printing, and other expenses relating to the Global Offering, which are estimated to be approximately
HK$31 million in aggregate (based on the mid-point of the offer price range and assuming the Over-
allotment Option is not exercised). We and each Selling Shareholder may pay additional fees and
expenses relating to specific professional services rendered to their own benefit in connection with the
Global Offering.

The International Underwriters will receive a commission of 3.2% of the aggregate Offer Price payable
for the International Offer Shares offered under the International Offering.

The Underwriters will pay us an aggregate amount of US$1,875,000 to reimburse a part of the fees and
expenses incurred in relation to our issue of the Convertible Bonds and reorganization prior to this
Global Offering.

We and the Selling Shareholders have agreed to indemnify the Hong Kong Underwriters for certain
losses which they may suffer, including losses arising from the performance of their obligations under
the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement and any breach by us or any Selling Shareholder of the Hong
Kong Underwriting Agreement. We, the Selling Shareholders and the Original Shareholders will agree
to indemnify the International Underwriters against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under
the U.S. Securities Act.

UNDERWRITERS’ INTERESTS IN US

Other than (i) respective rights and obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting
Agreements, (ii) 10,000,000 Shares owned by JPMorgan Securities (after giving effect to the
Capitalization Issue), and (iii) US$21,000,000 in principal amount of our non-mandatory Convertible
Bonds held by JPMorgan Securities, immediately upon completion of this Global Offering, none of the
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Underwriters has any shareholding interests in us or in any of our subsidiaries or has any right, legally
enforceable or not, to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for our securities or securities
of any of our subsidiaries.

Following the completion of this Global Offering, the Underwriters and their affiliates may hold some
of our Shares in connection with the performance of their obligations under the Underwriting
Agreements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE SPONSOR
The Sponsor is independent of us and satisfies the requirements of Rule 3A.07(1) of the Listing Rules as
disclosed below:

a. Assuming an offer price of HK$6.57, JPMorgan Securities will hold approximately 1.8% of our
enlarged issued share capital assuming (i) full conversion of our non-mandatory Convertible Bonds
into our Shares and (ii) an offer of new Shares representing 23% of our enlarged issued share
capital in the Global Offering; it being understood, as permitted by Rule 3A.07(1) of the Listing
Rules, that these calculations do not take into account any holdings of our Shares that may arise
solely as a result of any underwriting obligation of JPMorgan and JPMorgan Securities under the
Global Offering.

b.  None of the directors of the Sponsor or their associates holds or will hold, directly or indirectly,
any interest in our issued share capital; and

c.  Except as disclosed above and unless otherwise permitted under Rule 3A.07(1) of the Listing

Rules, none of the members of the sponsor group (as defined in the Listing Rules) holds or will
hold, directly or indirectly, any interest in our issued share capital.
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PRICE PAYABLE ON APPLICATION

The Offer Price will not be more than HK$9.86 and is expected to be not less than HK$6.57, unless
otherwise announced by no later than the morning of the last day for lodging applications under the
Hong Kong Public Offering as further explained below. If you apply for the Offer Shares under the
Hong Kong Public Offering, you must pay the maximum Offer Price of HK$9.86 per Offer Share plus a
1.0% brokerage fee, 0.005% Stock Exchange trading fee and 0.005% SFC transaction levy. This
means that, for every board lot of 500 Offer Shares, you should pay HK$4,979.80 at the time of your
application.

If the Offer Price, as finally determined in the manner described below, is lower than HK$9.86, we will
refund the respective difference, including the brokerage fee, Stock Exchange trading fee and SFC
transaction levy attributable to the surplus application monies. We will not pay interest on any
refunded amounts. You may find further details in the section entitled “How to Apply for the Hong
Kong Offer Shares” in this prospectus.

DETERMINATION OF THE OFFER PRICE

We expect the Offer Price to be fixed by agreement among us and the Joint Global Coordinators, on
behalf of the Underwriters, on the Price Determination Date when market demand for the Offer Shares
will be determined. We expect the Price Determination Date to be on or around July 7, 2006 and in any
event, no later than July 10, 2006. The Offer Price will not be more than HK$9.86 per Offer Share and
is expected to be not less than HK$6.57 per Offer Share. You should be aware that the Offer Price
to be determined on the Price Determination Date may be, but is not expected to be, lower
than the indicative offer price range stated in this prospectus.

The Joint Global Coordinators, on behalf of the Underwriters, may, where considered appropriate
based on the level of interest expressed by prospective professional, institutional and other investors
during the book-building process, and with our and the Selling Shareholders’ consents, reduce the
number of Offer Shares and/or the indicative offer price range below that described in this prospectus
prior to the morning of the last day for lodging applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering. In
such a case, we will as soon as practicable following the decision to make such reduction and in any
event not later than the morning of the last day for lodging applications under the Hong Kong Public
Offering publish a notice in the South China Morning Post (in English) and the Hong Kong Economic
Times (in Chinese) of the reduction in the number of Offer Shares and/or the indicative offer price
range.

Upon issue of such a notice, the revised number of Offer Shares and/or offer price range will be final
and conclusive and the Offer Price, if agreed upon among the Joint Global Coordinators, on behalf of
the Underwriters, and us, will be fixed within such revised offer price range. In this notice, we will also
confirm or revise, as appropriate, the working capital statement as currently disclosed in the section
entitled “Financial Information — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Working capital” of this
prospectus, the offering statistics as currently disclosed in the section entitled “Summary” of this
prospectus, the use of proceeds in the section entitled “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” and any
other financial information which may change as a result of such reduction. If you have already
submitted an application for Hong Kong Offer Shares before the last day for lodging
applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering, you will not be allowed to subsequently
withdraw your application, even if the number of Offer Shares and/or the offer price range is
reduced. If we do not publish a notice in the South China Morning Post or the Hong Kong Economic
Times of a reduction in the number of Offer Shares and/or the indicative offer price range stated in this
prospectus on or before the morning of the last day for lodging applications under the Hong Kong
Public Offering, the Offer Price, if agreed upon by us, will be within the offer price range as stated in
this prospectus.
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If we are unable to reach an agreement with the Selling Shareholders and the Joint Global
Coordinators, on behalf of the Underwriters, on the Offer Price by July 10, 2006, the Global
Offering will not proceed and will lapse.

We expect to publish an announcement of the Offer Price, together with the level of interest in the
International Offering and the application results and basis of allotment of the Hong Kong Offer
Shares, on July 12, 2006.

CONDITIONS OF THE GLOBAL OFFERING
Acceptance of all applications for the Offer Shares will be conditional on, among other things:

° the Listing Committee granting the listing of and permission to deal in our Shares in issue and to
be issued as described in this prospectus (including any additional Shares issuable pursuant to the
exercise of the Over-allotment Option), and such listing and permission not having been
subsequently revoked prior to the commencement of dealings in our Shares on the Stock
Exchange;

° the Offer Price having been duly determined and the execution and delivery of the International
Underwriting Agreement on or about the Price Determination Date; and

e the obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreements becoming and remaining
unconditional (including, if relevant, as a result of the waiver of any conditions by the Joint Global
Coordinators, on behalf of the Underwriters) and such obligations not being terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements,

in each case, on or before the dates and times specified in the Underwriting Agreements (unless and to
the extent such conditions are validly waived on or before such dates and times) and in any event not
later than the date that is 30 days after the date of this prospectus.

The consummation of each of the International Offering and the Hong Kong Public Offering is
conditional upon, among other things, the other becoming unconditional and not having been
terminated in accordance with its terms.

If the above conditions are not fulfilled or waived prior to the times and dates specified, the Global
Offering will not proceed and will lapse and the Stock Exchange will be notified immediately. We will
publish a notice of the lapse of the Global Offering in the South China Morning Post and the Hong
Kong Economic Times on the day after such lapse.

In the above situation, we will return all application monies to the applicants, without interest and on
the terms described in the section entitled “How to Apply for the Hong Kong Offer Shares — Refund of
Application Monies” in this prospectus. In the meantime, we will hold all application monies in a
separate bank account or separate bank accounts with the receiving banker or other banks licensed
under the Banking Ordinance (Chapter 155 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

We expect to dispatch share certificates for the Offer Shares on July 12, 2006. However, these
share certificates will only become valid certificates of title on 8:00 a.m. on July 13, 2006
provided that (i) the Global Offering has become unconditional in all respects and (ii) the
right of termination as described in the section entitled “Underwriting” in this prospectus has
not been exercised.
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The Global Offering

Our Global Offering consists of the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering. We
intend to initially make available up to 324,675,500 Offer Shares under the Global Offering, of which
292,207,500 Offer Shares will be conditionally placed at the Offer Price pursuant to the International
Offering and the remaining 32,468,000 Offer Shares will be offered to the public in Hong Kong at the
Offer Price under the Hong Kong Public Offering subject, in each case, to reallocation on the basis
described under “The Hong Kong Public Offering” below.

Of the total 324,675,500 Offer Shares under the Global Offering, assuming no exercise of the Over-
allotment Option, we are allotting and offering 298,701,500 Shares and our Selling Shareholders are
offering 25,974,000 Shares. The 324,675,500 Offer Shares in the Global Offering will represent
approximately 25% of our enlarged share capital immediately after the completion of the Global
Offering, without taking into account the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

You may apply for Offer Shares under the Hong Kong Public Offering or indicate an interest for Offer
Shares under the International Offering, but you may not apply in both offerings for the Offer Shares.
In other words, you may only apply for and receive either Hong Kong Offer Shares under the Hong
Kong Public Offering or International Offer Shares under the International Offering, but not under both
offerings. The Hong Kong Public Offering is open to members of the public in Hong Kong as well as to
institutional and professional investors. The International Offering will involve private placements of the
Offer Shares to QIBs in the United States in reliance on Rule 144A or another exemption from
registration under the U.S. Securities Act and to institutional and professional investors and other
investors anticipated to have a sizeable demand for our Offer Shares in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions outside the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S. Professional
investors generally include brokers, dealers, companies (including fund managers) whose ordinary
business involves dealing in shares and other securities and corporate entities which regularly invest in
shares and other securities. Prospective professional, institutional and other investors will be required to
specify the number of the Offer Shares under the International Offering they would be prepared to
acquire either at different prices or at a particular price. This process, known as “book-building,” is
expected to continue up to the Price Determination Date.

Allocation of the International Offer Shares to investors under the International Offering will be
determined by the Joint Global Coordinators and will be based on a number of factors including the
level and timing of demand, total size of the relevant investor’'s invested assets or equity assets in the
relevant sector and whether or not the relevant investor is likely to buy further, and/or hold or sell its
International Offer Shares after the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange. Such allocation is
intended to result in a distribution of the International Offer Shares on a basis which would lead to the
establishment of an appropriate shareholder base to our benefit and the benefit of our shareholders as
a whole.

Allocation of Hong Kong Offer Shares to investors under the Hong Kong Public Offering will be based
on the level of valid applications received under the Hong Kong Public Offering. The basis of allocation
may vary depending on the number of Hong Kong Offer Shares validly applied for by applicants. We
intend to make the allocation on a pro-rata basis although we may, if necessary, allocate the Hong
Kong Offer Shares on the basis of balloting, which would mean that some applicants may receive a
higher allocation than others who have applied for the same number of Hong Kong Offer Shares and
that those applicants who are not successful in the ballot may not receive any Hong Kong Offer Shares.

In connection with the Global Offering, we intend to grant the Over-allotment Option to the Joint

Global Coordinators on behalf of the International Underwriters. The Over-allotment Option gives the
Joint Global Coordinators the right, exercisable at any time from the day on which trading of our
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Shares commences on the Stock Exchange until 30 days after the last day for lodging of applications
under the Hong Kong Public Offering, to require us to allot and issue up to an aggregate of 48,701,000
additional Shares, representing in aggregate approximately 15% of the initial size of the Global
Offering at the Offer Price to cover, among other things, over-allocations in the International Offering,
if any. The Joint Global Coordinators may also cover any over-allocations by purchasing Shares in the
secondary market or by a combination of purchases in the secondary market and a partial exercise of
the Over-allotment Option. Any such secondary market purchase will be made in compliance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations. If the Joint Global Coordinators exercise the Over-allotment
option in full, the additional Offer Shares will represent approximately 3.6% of our enlarged issued
share capital following the completion of the Global Offering and the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option. In the event that the Over-allotment Option is exercised, we will make a press announcement.

In order to facilitate the settlement of over-allocations in connection with the International Offering,
the Joint Global Coordinators may choose to borrow Shares from our controlling shareholders under a
stock borrowing arrangement between the Joint Global Coordinators and our controlling shareholders,
or acquire Shares from other sources. A waiver has been granted by the Stock Exchange to our Original
Shareholders and their wholly owned subsidiaries from strict compliance with Rule 10.07(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules which restricts the disposal of shares by controlling shareholders following a new listing, in
order to allow our Original Shareholders and their wholly owned subsidiaries to enter into such stock
borrowing arrangement. The waiver is subject to the condition that any Shares which may be made
available to the Joint Global Coordinators pursuant to such arrangements will be on the following
terms:

these Shares will only be used for settlement of over-allocations in the International Offering;
they will be limited to the maximum aggregate number of Shares which may be issued and
allotted by us upon full exercise of the Over-allotment Option;

° the same number of Shares so borrowed must be returned to our Original Shareholders and their
wholly owned subsidiaries no later than three business days following the earlier of (a) the last
date on which the additional Shares may be issued and allotted by us pursuant the Over-allotment
Option, and (b) the day on which the Over-allotment Option is exercised in full;

° no payment will be made to our Original Shareholders and their wholly owned subsidiaries by the
Joint Global Coordinators under the stock borrowing arrangement; and

e the stock borrowing arrangement will be effected in compliance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulatory requirements.

The Hong Kong Public Offering is fully underwritten by the Hong Kong Underwriters and the
International Offering is expected to be fully underwritten by the International Underwriters. The Hong
Kong Public Offering and the International Offering are subject to the conditions described in the
section entitled “Underwriting — Underwriting Arrangements and Expenses” in this prospectus. In
particular, we, our Selling Shareholders and the Joint Global Coordinators, on behalf of the
Underwriters, must agree on the Offer Price for the Global Offering. The Hong Kong Underwriting
Agreement was entered into on June 29, 2006 and, subject to an agreement on the Offer Price
between the Joint Global Coordinators (on behalf of the Hong Kong Underwriters) and us for purposes
of the Hong Kong Public Offering. The International Underwriting Agreement (including the agreement
on the Offer Price between and among us, the Selling Shareholders and the Global Coordinators on
behalf of the International Underwriters for purposes of the International Offering) is expected to be
entered into on July 7, 2006, the Price Determination Date. The Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement
and the International Underwriting Agreement are inter-conditional upon each other.
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THE HONG KONG PUBLIC OFFERING

The Hong Kong Public Offering is a fully underwritten public offer (subject to agreement as to pricing
and satisfaction or waiver of the other conditions provided in the Hong Kong Underwriting Agreement
and described in “— Conditions of the Global Offering” above in this prospectus) for the subscription in
Hong Kong of, initially, 32,468,000 Offer Shares at the Offer Price (representing approximately 10% of
the total number of the Offer Shares initially available under the Global Offering). Subject to the
reallocation of Offer Shares between the International Offering and the Hong Kong Public Offering
described below, the Hong Kong Offer Shares will represent approximately 2.5% of our enlarged
issued share capital immediately after completion of the Global Offering, assuming that the Over-
allotment Option is not exercised.

The total number of the Offer Shares available under the Hong Kong Public Offering is to be divided
equally into two pools for allocation purposes:

° Pool A: The Offer Shares in pool A will be allocated on an equitable basis to applicants who have
applied for Hong Kong Offer Shares with an aggregate subscription price of HK$5,000,000
(excluding the brokerage, the Stock Exchange trading fee and the SFC transaction levy payable) or
less; and

° Pool B: The Offer Shares in pool B will be allocated on an equitable basis to applicants who have
applied for Hong Kong Offer Shares with an aggregate subscription price of more than
HK$5,000,000 (excluding the brokerage, the Stock Exchange trading fee and the SFC transaction
levy payable) and up to the value of pool B.

Investors should be aware that applications in pool A and applications in pool B may receive different
allocation ratios. If the Offer Shares in one (but not both) of the pools are under-subscribed, the surplus
Offer Shares will be transferred to the other pool to satisfy demand in that pool and be allocated
accordingly. For the purpose of this subsection only, the “subscription price” for the Offer Shares
means the price payable on application therefor (without regard to the Offer Price as finally
determined).

Applicants can only receive an allocation of Hong Kong Offer Shares from either pool A or pool B but
not from both pools. We will reject multiple applications between the two pools and reject multiple
applications within pool A or pool B. In addition, any application for more than 50% of the 32,468,000
Offer Shares initially included in the Hong Kong Public Offering (that is, 16,234,000 Offer Shares) will
be rejected. Each applicant under the Hong Kong Public Offering will also be required to give an
undertaking and confirmation in the Application Form submitted by him or her that he or she and any
person(s) for whose benefit he or she is making the application have not indicated an interest for or
taken up and will not indicate an interest for or take up any Offer Shares under the International
Offering, and such applicant’s application will be rejected if the said undertaking and/or confirmation is
breached and/or untrue, as the case may be. We and the Hong Kong Underwriters will take reasonable
steps to identify and reject applications under the Hong Kong Public Offering from investors who have
indicated interest in or have received Offer Shares in the International Offering, and to identify and
reject indications of interest in the International Offering from investors who have applied for or have
received Offer Shares in the Hong Kong Public Offering.

The allocation of the Offer Shares between the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International
Offering is subject to the following adjustments in the event of over-subscription under the Hong Kong
Public Offering:

° If the number of the Offer Shares validly applied for under the Hong Kong Public Offering

represents 15 times or more but less than 50 times the number of the Offer Shares initially
available for subscription under the Hong Kong Public Offering, then International Offer Shares
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will be reallocated to the Hong Kong Public Offering from the International Offering, so that the
total number of the Hong Kong Offer Shares available under the Hong Kong Public Offering will
be 97,403,000 Offer Shares, representing approximately 30% of the Offer Shares initially
available under the Global Offering;

° If the number of the Offer Shares validly applied for under the Hong Kong Public Offering
represents 50 times or more but less than 100 times the number of the Offer Shares initially
available for subscription under the Hong Kong Public Offering, then the number of International
Offer Shares to be reallocated to the Hong Kong Public Offering from the International Offering
will be increased so that the total number of the Hong Kong Offer Shares available under the
Hong Kong Public Offering will be 129,870,500 Offer Shares, representing approximately 40% of
the Offer Shares initially available under the Global Offering; and

° If the number of the Offer Shares validly applied for under the Hong Kong Public Offering
represents 100 times or more the number of the Offer Shares initially available for subscription
under the Hong Kong Public Offering, then the number of International Offer Shares to be
reallocated to the Hong Kong Public Offering from the International Offering will be increased, so
that the total number of the Hong Kong Offer Shares available under the Hong Kong Public
Offering will be 162,338,000 Offer Shares, representing approximately 50% of the Offer Shares
initially available under the Global Offering.

If the Hong Kong Public Offering is not fully subscribed, however, the Joint Global Coordinators may
reallocate to the International Offering all or any unsubscribed Hong Kong Offer Shares in such
numbers as they deem appropriate.

References in this prospectus to applications, Application Forms, application or subscription monies or
the procedure for application relate solely to the Hong Kong Public Offering.

THE INTERNATIONAL OFFERING

The number of the Offer Shares to be initially offered for sale under the International Offering will be
292,207,500 Offer Shares (comprising 266,233,500 Offer Shares to be allotted and offered by us and
25,974,000 Offer Shares to be offered by our Selling Shareholders), representing approximately 90%
of the Offer Shares initially available under the Global Offering and approximately 22.5% of our
enlarged issued share capital immediately after completion of the Global Offering, assuming the Over-
allotment Option is not exercised.

Pursuant to the International Offering, the International Offer Shares will be conditionally placed on our
behalf and on behalf of the Selling Shareholders by the International Underwriters or through selling
agents appointed by them. International Offer Shares will be placed with certain professional and
institutional investors and other investors anticipated to have a sizeable demand for the International
Offer Shares in Hong Kong, Europe and other jurisdictions outside the United States (other than
mainland China) in offshore transactions meeting the requirements of, and in reliance on, Regulation S,
and with QIBs in the United States in reliance on Rule 144A or another exemption from registration
under the U.S. Securities Act. The International Offering is subject to the Hong Kong Public Offering
becoming unconditional.

The Joint Global Coordinators (on behalf of the Underwriters) may require any investor who has been
offered Offer Shares under the International Offering and who has made an application under the
Hong Kong Public Offering to provide sufficient information to the Joint Global Coordinators so as to
allow them to identify the relevant applications 